
North Bristol NHS Trust 
Board Meeting 

Thursday 31 May 2012 
Board Room, Trust Headquarters, Frenchay Hospital 

 
AGENDA FOR PUBLIC SESSION 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
3. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM LINKS REPRESENTATIVES 
 
4. MINUTES 
 
 Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on  26 April 2012   Enc 
 
5. MATTERS ARISING 
 
6. GOVERNANCE, QUALITY AND SAFETY 
 

6.1 Quality Report        MNO/Enc 
 6.2 Quality Account       MNO/Enc 
 6.3 National Inpatient Survey      MNO/Enc 
 6.4 Staff Attitude Survey 2011 Results & Directorate Analysis  HH/Enc 
 6.5 Annual Governance Statement and Audit Committee 
  Reporting for 2011/12       RB/KG/Enc 
 
7. STRATEGY 
 
 7.1 Redevelopment Project Highlight Report    DP/Enc  
 7.2 Foundation Trust Update      RB/Verbal 

7.3 NBT Values        HH/Enc 
 
8. SERVICE DELIVERY AND PERFORMANCE 
 
 8.1 Management Information Reports 
  8.1.1 Activity and Performance      SWa/Enc 
  8.1.2 Workforce Strategy & Organisation Development  HH/Enc 
  8.1.3 Infection Control Report     CB/Enc 
  8.1.4 Finance Report      SWe/Verbal 
  8.1.5 Draft Accounts 2011/12     SWe/Enc 
  8.1.6 Building Our Future Programme - Update   HH/Enc 
 
 8.2 Draft Annual Report 2011/12      RB/Enc 
 
9. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 9.1 Chairman’s Report       PR/Verbal 
 9.2 Chief Executive’s Report      RB/Verbal 

 



 
 
10. INFORMATION 
 
 10.1 GRMC Report        RB/Enc 
 10.2 Audit Committee Report      KG/Enc 

10.3 Use of Trust Seal       RB/Enc 
   
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
12. NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next meeting will be held on Thursday 28 June 2012 in the Board Room, 

Trust Headquarters, Frenchay Hospital. 
 

13. RESOLUTION 
 

That representatives of the press and other members of the public be excluded from 
the remainder of this meeting having regard to the confidential nature of the business 
to be transacted, publicity on which would be prejudicial to the public interest (section 
(2) Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960) 

  



North Bristol NHS Trust 
Minutes of the North Bristol NHS Trust meeting held on 26 April 2012 

 
Present: Mr P Rilett (Chair) 
 
 Mr M Bell 
 Mrs R Brunt 
 Dr C Burton 
 Mr K Guy 
 Mr H Hayer 
 Mr R Mould 
 Mr A Nield 

Professor A Waterman-Pearson 
Ms M-N Orzel 
Mr N Patel 
Mrs S Watkinson 
Mr S Webster 
Mr S Wood 

 
Observers: Ms B Harris  
 Mrs D Havercroft 

 Mr N Havercroft 
 Mr R Hill  

Ms J Jackson 
Dr L Kirkham 
Mrs G Maw, LINks 

 
In Attendance: Mr T Bartlett 
 Mr C Puckett 
 Miss K Rose 
 
Apologies: Mr D Powell 
 Mr S Hughes 
 
 

  ACTION 
66/12 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
   
 Mrs Havercroft requested a response from the Non-Executive 

Directors to her letter regarding the issue of the histopathology 
services.  The Chairman confirmed that the Non-Executive 
Directors were meeting following the Board meeting and assured 
her that she would then receive a response. 
 
Mrs Havercroft asked for clarification regarding the Cap Gemini 
observers during the last Board meeting. Mrs Brunt confirmed they 
were present as observers as part of the ongoing governance 
review linked to the Trust’s Foundation Trust application. 
 
Mrs Havercroft asked that public involvement in relation to the 
transfer of Breast Care Services be considered. Mrs Brunt 
confirmed this was being discussed in joint working with UHB. 

 

   
67/12 QUESTIONS FROM LINKS  
   
 Mrs Maw asked for clarification of the two directorates, reported at 

the previous board, who were not meeting their nutritional needs 
and how the Trust assessed the individual patients’ needs. Ms 
Orzel confirmed the directorates were Musculoskeletal and 
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  ACTION 
Neurosciences. Patients’ nutritional needs were assessed on 
admission and based on number of criteria including current 
weight, physical condition and current eating habits.  

   
68/12 MINUTES  
   
 The minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2012 were agreed as 

a correct record, subject to the following amendments:- 
 
Minute 46/12 to read: “Dr Burton confirmed the need for effective 
public involvement was acknowledged and appropriate 
involvement would be discussed at the next action group” 
 
Minute 57/12 to read: “The figures for January …..”  

 

   
69/12 MATTERS ARISING  
   
 (i) Questions from Public (Minute 46/12 refers) 

 
Mrs Brunt confirmed that she had been in communication with Mr 
Chandler since the last meeting, and he had also submitted his 
concerns to NHS Bristol. Mrs Brunt, Mrs Watkinson and the Clinical 
Director for Medicine had, this week, met with the Primary Care 
Trust to provide assurance that actions were in place with regard to 
Emergency Department performance.  
 
(ii) National Staff Attitude Survey 2011 (Minute 51/12 refers) 
 
Mr Hayer stated that over 3,000 responses, including 500 paper 
responses, had now been received through the internal survey for 
all staff. A summary of actions would be brought to the Board in 
May.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HH 

   
70/12 CERNER IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE  
   
 Mrs Brunt confirmed that the independent review was still under 

way. A final report would come to the Board in May.  
 
Mr Bell stated that the recovery work was continuing with a key 
area of focus on availability of patients’ notes. 
 
Mrs Brunt stated that work was ongoing to validate 18 week 
pathway information and Referral to Treatment pathways. 

 
RB 

   
71/12 QUALITY REPORT  
   
 The report was noted.  Ms Orzel reported that neither pressure 

ulcers nor falls had achieved the CQUIN target although both had 
shown an improvement and work continues for 2012/13.  
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  ACTION 
Mr Patel queried whether there were high priority patient categories 
with regard to falls.  Ms Orzel confirmed that they were able to 
identify categories of patients when monitoring falls.  Mrs Brunt 
confirmed that it be appropriate to see that falls were reducing in 
high risk areas/groups. 
 
Dr Burton queried how the patient experience is measured.  Ms 
Orzel confirmed that it was based on both the patient survey results 
and NQAT results.   

   
72/12 QUALITY ACCOUNT PRIORITIES FOR 2012/13  
   
 Ms Orzel reported on the 4 key priority areas which the quality 

account for 2012/13 would focus on.  Mr Hayer queried whether by 
focusing on 4 key priorities others would lose their emphasis.  Ms 
Orzel confirmed that there were monitoring processes in place via 
other routes to ensure this did not happen. The draft quality 
account would come to Board in May. 

 
 
 
 
M-NO 

   
73/12 UPDATED ACTION PLAN ON BRISTOL HISTOPATHOLOGY 

SERVICE 
 

   
 The report was noted. Following the further suggestions from the 

inquiry panel, these were being reviewed by the histopathology 
service and the action plan was being updated. There was a query 
around patient and public involvement which would be discussed 
jointly between NBT and UHB. The updated action plan would 
come to Board in due course. 

 

   
74/12 NBT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
   
 Mrs Brunt reported that the project remained on programme with 

no significant variation.   
 
The mock-ups had now been completed and installed and were 
being reviewed by the project team to ensure they were an 
accurate replica of facilities in the new hospital.  Mr Rilett asked 
about how feedback was being gathered and processed from staff.  
This would be discussed with Mr Powell.  

 

   
75/12 MAJOR TRAUMA FINAL REPORT  
   
 The Major Trauma Project Closure was noted. 

 
Major Trauma had now moved to ‘business as usual’ and 
operational control had now transferred to Mrs Watkinson.  Mr Guy 
queried how performance was monitored and the impact it had on 
other patients and theatres.  Mrs Watkinson confirmed that this was 
being monitored and could be reported to the Board on a quarterly 
basis.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
SWa 

 3



  ACTION 
 
Mrs Brunt noted that the project had been well managed and was 
delivered on time and to specification.  Mr Rilett conveyed the 
Board’s thanks to the project team.  

   
76/12 FOUNDATION TRUST UPDATE  
   
 Mrs Brunt reported that the timeline was still on track.  There had 

been a successful Board to Board meeting with the SHA the 
previous week and the application would be submitted to the 
Department of Health in May, who would be likely to take 2 months 
before referral to Monitor. 
 
NBT was ahead of its recruitment trajectory for members, with over 
5,400 members.  Over 300 people had expressed an interest in 
being a governor, and over 1,000 members had indicated the level 
of involvement they would like with the Trust.  Elections would take 
place in the summer. 

 

   
77/12 RESEARCH & INNOVATION STRATEGY REPORT 

2011-12 QTR 4 
 

   
 The report was noted. Mr Hayer confirmed that income targets had 

been met in quarter 4.  The Trust has received two 'intention to 
award' grant letters but these could not be announced until the 
outcome of the grant application process was formally known. 

 

   
78/12 ACTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE REPORT  
   
 Mrs Watkinson reported that there had been an anomaly reported 

in February readmission rates which were showing a large 
increase.  As the NBT readmissions were consistently lower than 
the national average, this was clearly an error which was under 
investigation. 
 
ED performance had improved over the last six weeks, with most 
breaches occurring out of hours. An improvement trajectory had 
been agreed with the PCT and SHA and this was being monitored 
closely to ensure that performance was sustainable.  
 
A system-wide piece of work was being carried out by the Healthy 
Futures Programme Board about emergency access following 
concerns that had been raised across BNSSG, which would focus 
on the referral practices of GPs. 

 

   
79/12 WORKFORCE STRATEGY & ORGANISATION DEVELOPMENT  
   
 The report was noted. 

 
The additional bank and agency use had been affected by the 
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  ACTION 
increase in winter pressure beds which were not permanently 
staffed. It was felt that a metric showing staff per bed would be 
helpful. 
 
Mr Nield asked how NBT compared against other Trusts in terms of 
its current workforce age profile and how the removal of the default 
retirement age had impacted on the workforce.  
 
It was agreed the new style Workforce Strategy and Organisational 
Development Report was effective. 

   
80/12 INFECTION CONTROL REPORT  
   
 The report was noted.  Ms Orzel noted that work was continuing, in 

particular with regard to emergency screening and ensuring 
infection control mandatory training was reached and remained 
over the 85% target.   
 
Dr Burton commented that it had been a relatively light year with 
regard to Norovirus and the number of organisations in crisis had 
been lower than previous years. 

 

   
81/12 PROVISIONAL MONTH 12 FINANCE REPORT AND 

2011/12 FINAL ACCOUNTS SUMMARY 
 

   
 It was noted that the Trust had achieved a FT risk rating of 4 at the 

year end. The projected £9m surplus had been reached.  
 

   
82/12 BUILDING OUR FUTURE TRACKER  
   
 Two projects had now been completed. It was reported that the 

non pay project had been successful and had overachieved on its 
target. Mr Wood felt there were still further opportunities in this 
area.  

 

   
83/12 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY – 2011/12 REPORT AND OBJECTIVES  
   
 It was noted that equality and diversity continued to be a challenge, 

especially engaging with BME groups. 
 
Mr Puckett asked how the needs of staff were being met, where 
English was not their first language and also the staff groups who 
did not have access to computers, as this was not reflected in the 
objectives. Mr Hayer confirmed that there was a need to do more 
but that initiatives and workshops were reaching a wider group.  

 

   
84/12 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  
   
 Mr Rilett had nothing to report  
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  ACTION 
85/12 CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT  
   
 Andrew Lansley had set the 4 main strategic objectives for the 

NHS Commissioning Board which included:  
1. Transferring power to local organisations; 
2. Establishing the commissioning landscape; 
3. Developing specific commissioning and financial 

management capabilities; and 
4. Developing excellent relationships. 

 
A new Nursing and Care Quality forum had been established which 
was aimed at promoting accountable leaders in nursing and 
ensuring nurses have time to provide high quality care.  
 
Jane Cummings has been appointed as the Chief Nursing Officer 
following the retirement of Dame Christine Beasley. 
 
Following national concerns about patients being discharged 
overnight, systems were being put in place for ongoing monitoring, 
to ensure patients were not being discharged inappropriately. This 
would distinguish between ward discharges and  those from both 
the Emergency Department and maternity services and would also 
identify  patient choice.  
 
The British Safety Council had undertaken a complete audit of 
Health and Safety Services in April. Mrs Brunt and Mr Wood had 
received verbal feedback, which indicated good compliance in 
clinical areas, although there were some areas for improvement in 
estates and facilities. A written report was awaited.  
 
Judging had taken place for this year’s Exceptional Healthcare 
Awards. A high standard of application had been received. The 
awards ceremony would take place on 24 May.  
 
Since the last Trust Board, two Emergency Department 
Consultants and a Consultant in Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health had been appointed.  

 

   
86/12 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
   
 There was no other business  
   
87/12 NEXT MEETING  
   
 The next meeting would be held on Thursday 31 May 2012 in the 

Board Room, Trust Headquarters, Frenchay Hospital. 
 

   
 RESOLUTION  
   
 That representatives of the press and other members of the public  
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  ACTION 
be excluded from the remainder of this meeting having regard to 
the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, publicity 
on which would be prejudicial to other public interest (section (2) 
Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960. 

 



Appendix 2 

 
 

Quarterly Report to Trust Board – Quarter 4 2011/12 
 

Title: Pressure Ulcer Report to Board  

Purpose of paper: 
 The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of pressure ulcer incidence 
within the Trust in relation to Pressure Ulcer CQUIN 2011/12 and the key 
actions being taken to improve performance. 

 

Executive Summary 

Performance year to 
date is 12.9 patients 
per 10,000 bed days  

The CQUIN target of 
5.5 patients per 10,000 
bed days was not 
achieved 

 
CQUIN target 5.5 patients per 10000 bed days. Performance as of March 
2012 is at 14.0  

  
Overall year to date performance 2011/12 is at 12.9 

 

There has been a 
decrease in the 
reported number of 
Grade 2 PU’s in Qtr 4  

In Quarter 3 there were a total of 148 patients with grade 2 + ulcers (171 PU’s).

In Quarter 4 there were a total of 123 patients with grade 2 +pressure ulcers 
(167 PU’s.) 

There has been an 
overall reduction in 
Grade 3 and 4 
pressure ulcers in 
2011/12 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of reported 
grade 2 ulcers has 
increased overall in 
2011/12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There were 15 patients with a total of 17 grade 3 PUs over 2011/12 compared 
to 26 ulcers in 2010/11. There were 7 grade 3 ulcers in quarter 4, attributable 
to 3 patients.  

Number of patients with Pressure Ulcers 2010/11 2011/12 

Grade 4  1   0   

Grade 3 26 17   

Grade 2 310 441   
 

 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 
 10/11 11/12 10/11 11/12 10/11 11/12 10/11 11/12 
Grade 
3 

8 5 7 3 7 2 4 7 

Grade 
4 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Pressure Ulcer trends 
by Clinical Area 

All directorates have seen an increase in the numbers reported over the year 
which reflects the spread of the improvement programme. 

Pressure Ulcer Trends 
by Anatomical Site. 

 

There has been a decrease in the reported number of heel and foot ulcers 
over quarter 4 following the targeted action taken to reduce heel ulceration by 
launching a Healthy Heels campaign. 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 



Appendix 2 
 

 
 

Key Risks: Non-achievement of CQUIN targets would prevent the Trust from accessing incentive 
payments and result in the Trust receiving financial penalties  

Impact on Patients: All measures relate to the delivery of patient care, achievement of gateways/CQUIN 
targets helps to build confidence in Trust service provision and assure the public/other key 
stakeholders that the organisation is meeting quality and safety standards 

CQC Outcome: O16 – assessing & monitoring 
quality of services 

Responsible Committee: GRMC  
Quality Committee 

Financial Issues 
considered: 

As indicated in regard to incentive 
payments/penalties. 

Equality Impact 
Assessment: 

Considered 
throughout 

Legal Issues Legal issues are considered 
throughout. 

Sustainability 
Assessment Completed: 

No 

 

 
Presented by: Marie-Noelle Orzel – Director of Nursing 
Prepared by: Helen Richardson - Assistant Director of Nursing  
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Performance for March was at  14.3 patients per 10,000 bed days compared to 12 in February and 
15 in January. CQUIN performance for 20111/12.8 was at 12.9 against the target of 5.5 

There has been a reduction in grade 3 ulcers. There were 6 grade 3 ulcers in January attributable 
to 2 patients with multiple ulcers. There were no grade 3 ulcers in February & 1 grade 3 in March. 
There have been no grade 4 ulcers during 2011/12.  

Patients with Pressure Ulcers - Grade 2+, Hospital Acquired
April 2011 - March  2012

Core Clinical, 55

Medicine, 168

Musculo, 89

Neuro, 38

Renal, 18

Surgery, 83

Womens & Childrens, 2

Core Clinical Medicine Musculo Neuro Renal Surgery Womens & Childrens
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All directorates have seen an increase in reporting following the implementation of the skin bundle. This chart shows PUs by Ulcers by anatomical site. There has been a reduction in heel and foot 
ulcers following the launch of an awareness campaign and targeted education programme.  
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Quality Indicators

NOTE: In month validation by clinical teams can alter scores. Charts show position at the time report was produced

Of the 3 sets of notes reviewed in April 3 sets were high EWS scoring.  All sets 
were assessed correctly therefore the March figure is 100%.  All patients who 
had shown signs of deterioration had care escalated for medical review. 

There were 180 falls in April a decrease of 39 from the 219 falls in March. There were 3 serious falls in April, an increase of 1 from March. Data source: 
validated incidents on Safeguard

The number of cases with EWS scored correctly was 73.7%  to the previous 
score of 82% in March. Resuscitation Team are reviewing notes to determine if 
adding of  EWS scores is a factor in order to target improved compliance

There were 38 calls in April  (29 in March). The rise is partially attributable to 
multiple cardiac arrests from the same patients. The rolling mean is 1.54  
against a national average of 2.5

In April 2 out of 19 cases were correctly completed according to the oxygen 
prescribing policy. Medical education programme currently underway to 
highlight, particularly with junior doctors, the importance of accurate oxygen 
prescribing.
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Quality Indicators

NOTE: In month validation by clinical teams can alter scores. Charts show position at the time report was produced

Rolling year cumulative relative risk = 86.3There has been a slight increase to 16.7 patients per 10,000 bed days in April. 
CQUINS targets for pressure ulcers have yet to be agreed with the PCT

The number of wards achieving silver or gold on the nutrition element has 
dropped slightly to 85% in April, due to requirement to achieve higher 
standards in NQAT audits this year

Wards audited are achieving either silver or gold with patients rating their 
experience with a score of 97% in April.  

Wards in April are being audited against revised standards with a higher 
expectation in order to achieve silver or gold awards. 40/41 wards were rated 
as silver or gold.  1 ward previously assessed as silver has dropped to a 
bronze award.
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Report to Trust Board – May 2012 
 

Title: Quality Report to Board 

Purpose of paper: To inform the Board on progress with measures of the quality of clinical 
services provided by the Trust and progress with the new priorities set out in 
the Trust’s Quality Account. 

 

For Discussion 

Executive Summary:   

NBT mortality rate is lower 
than the national average 

 

HSMR – rate continues to be below the national expected mortality rate 
of 100 with a rolling mean of 86.3 using the Dr Fosters age adjusted 
casemix.  

The rolling mean rate of 
cardiac arrest calls is 1.54 
per 1000 discharges.  

Preventing Deterioration – Cardiac arrest rates remain well below 
national average of 2.5 per 1000 discharges.    

There has been a small increase since last month - partially attributable 
to multiple cardiac arrests from the same patients during April. 

Overall falls are continuing 
to reduce. 

 

Falls – There were 3 grade 4 falls in April.  

There were 180 reported falls in April – a decrease of 39 from the 
previous month. 

Pressure ulcer (PU) 
incidence has increased to 
16 patients per 10,000 bed 
days in April. 

Pressure Ulcers: 47 patients were reported with grade 2 pressure ulcers 
in April.  There were no grade 3 or grade 4 pressure ulcers. 

The Qtr 4 exception report for PU’s is attached as Appendix 2 

There has been a reduction 
in nutrition achievement 
due to ‘raising the bar’ 

Nutrition - The number of wards rated silver or gold for nutrition 
decreased from 90% in March to 85% in April.   This is due to the 
requirement to achieve higher standards in NQAT audits this year. 

Informing patients of 
planned treatment & 
discharge date 

Measures to capture treatment information provided and informing 
patients of discharge dates are being developed.  These will form part of 
a patient experience report/dashboard – along with other patient survey 
improvement indicators, which will be presented to the Board in June. 

Measures for the two new 
priority topics on reducing 
infection are still to be 
defined 

Surgical site infections (SSI) – definitions of an SSI and a method of 
measuring are being developed by surgery and infection control teams. 

CAUTI - The strategy for Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections is 
to introduce a surveillance system to capture probable CAUTI’s through 
laboratory specimens, using recognised surveillance definitions.   The 
aim is to identify causes, establish key risks/themes, and make 
improvements to practice to reduce infections. 

CQUIN measures are not 
yet agreed with PCT 

CQUINs are currently being negotiated in line with the national operating 
framework. In addition to national targets there are likely to be 9 local 
targets agreed with commissioners. The full CQUIN chart should be 
available for July Board papers. 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report & also to consider whether in future 
months the data would be better presented on a 15-month rolling basis instead of ‘cutting off’ and 
starting again for the new financial year. 



 
 

Key Risks: Non-achievement of CQUIN targets could result in the Trust receiving financial penalties  

Impact on Patients: All measures relate to the delivery of patient care, achievement of gateways/CQUIN 
targets helps to build confidence in Trust service provision and assure the public/other key 
stakeholders that the organisation is meeting quality and safety standards 

CQC Outcome: O16 – assessing & monitoring 
quality of services 

Responsible Committee: GRMC  
Quality Committee 

Financial Issues 
considered: 

As indicated in regard to incentive 
payments/penalties. 

Equality Impact 
Assessment: 

Considered 
throughout 

Legal Issues Legal issues are considered 
throughout. 

Sustainability 
Assessment Completed: 

No 

 

 
Presented by: Marie-Noelle Orzel – Director of Nursing 
Prepared by: Lesley Le-Pine – Head of Clinical Governance 
 Phil Martin – Information Analyst  
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Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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Report to the Trust Board – May 2012 
 

Title: Quality Account 2011/12  
 
Purpose of paper:  To seek Board approval for the content of the Quality Account so it 

can be designed and published to meet required timescales 

For Information  

Executive Summary:  
 
The final text of the Quality Account is presented for Board approval; the design will be the same as 
last year.  The text version of the Quality Account has been circulated for comment to PCT’s, Local 
Authority Health Scrutiny Committees, LINKs and the Trust Patient Panel and they are required to 
respond with any comment for inclusion in the report by 8th June.  
 
The Department of Health require the Audit Commission to conduct an external audit of NHS Trusts 
Quality Accounts 2010/11. The Audit Commission’s process commenced on 10th May and the draft 
report recommended minor amendments to the report which have been completed. The Audit 
Commission’s final report will therefore assess the account as compliant on the regulations and 
mandatory information required.  
 
As part of the assurance process, Trusts are required to complete a ‘Statement of Director 
Responsibilities’ in respect of the 2011/12 Quality Account (Appendix 3). NHS Trust Chief Executives 
are asked to provide the auditors with this signed statement to be submitted to the Auditors along with 
the 2011/12 Quality Account 
 
The Regulations require NHS trusts to send their 2010/11 Quality Accounts to the Secretary of State 
and upload a copy to NHS Choices by 30 June 2012.  
 
Action Required:  The Board is asked to approve the content of the Quality Account to 

enable the document to be published within the required timescale. 
 
 The Chairman & Chief Executive are required to sign the statement of 

responsibilities for inclusion in the account 
  
Key Risks: Non-publication of the Quality Account by the 30th June deadline could result in criticism 
of the Trust by the Department of Health and in the external audit report by the Audit Commission 
 
Impact on Patients:  The Quality Account reports on the delivery of patient care over the last 
financial year. It is written for patients and the public, helping to build confidence in Trust service 
provision and assure the public/other key stakeholders that the organisation is meeting quality and 
safety standards. 
 
CQC Outcomes:   All 
Responsible Committees:  Quality Committee  
Financial Issues considered: Considered throughout 
Equality Impact Assessment:  Equality and diversity is considered throughout 
Legal Issues :  Legal issues are considered throughout. 
Sustainability Assessment Completed: No 
 
Presented by: Marie-Noelle Orzel – Director of Nursing 
Prepared by: Lesley Le-Pine – Head of Clinical Governance,  
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Part 1 - Statement on the quality of services from the 
Chief Executive 
 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust (The Trust) is one of the largest trusts in the country, with 1087 
beds and employing 9,100 staff.  The Trust provides hospital and community services to 
the 900,000 people of Bristol, South Gloucestershire and North Somerset. In addition, 
specialist services are provided to a larger population in the South West of England and 
in some instances, at a national and international level. 
 
The Trust provides acute hospital services at Southmead and Frenchay, children’s 
community health services for South Gloucestershire and Bristol and adult community 
health services in South Gloucestershire. 
 
The Trust works in close partnership with NHS Primary Care Trusts, GPs, local councils 
and community organisations, to ensure our services are of the highest quality and meet 
the needs of people in our community. 
 
In 2011/12:  

- We carried out 113,000 inpatient episodes 
- 96,000 patients were treated in our Emergency Department or Minor Injuries Units 
- We carried out 359,000 outpatient appointments  
- 6,305 babies were born at Southmead Hospital, at home or in the community.  

 
During the year the Trust celebrated a number of successes with Southmead Hospital 
once again awarded Baby Friendly status by UNICEF and the World Health Organisation 
for the high quality education and practical advice it gives new mums about breast-
feeding. A new project to publicise hygiene and safety scores on every ward at our 
hospitals was highly commended in the national Department of Health safety awards as it 
recognised how we use patient and public involvement to inform patient safety and 
experience improvements. In December, our catering team was awarded the Hospital 
Catering Award at the 2011 Health Business Awards in recognition for producing good, 
locally sourced foods at the best possible price.   
 
In 2014, a brand new 800-bed state-of-the-art hospital will open at the Southmead 
Hospital site and will significantly improve the facilities in which we deliver patient care. 
August 2012 marks the second anniversary of work starting on this project and the 
building itself can now be seen across the city and beyond. The work on the new building 
is on time and on budget and, when it opens, we firmly believe our patients will be cared 
for in the best new hospital in the country. To keep up to date with the new hospital 
development visits www.nbt.nhs.uk/newhospital.  
 
2011 saw us launch our application to become an NHS Foundation Trust and we remain 
on track to achieve this by December 2012. A Foundation Trust is still part of the NHS but 
has greater flexibility in its decision-making and planning of local health services and is no 
longer accountable to the Department of Health.  
 
Instead, a Foundation Trust becomes accountable to a membership, which is drawn from 
the local population it serves. These members can get involved in developing the quality 
of the Trust’s services and are represented by a Council of Governors, who holds the 
Trust Board to account. To date we have more than 5,500 members and aim to have 
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15,000 members by December 2013. To keep up to date with our progress and to find out 
how to become a member log onto www.nbt.nhs.uk/ft 
 
The Trust has a long standing commitment to improve the quality of its services and every 
member of staff understands their responsibility for continuous improvement. The quality 
and safety culture has clear leadership from all the Executive and Non Executive 
Directors of the Trust, all of whom are committed to supporting this process and to focus 
on the Trust’s duty of service to our patients.  
 
This account cannot cover all of the work of such a large organisation in detail but I hope 
that it provides an informative overview of the work carried out by the Trust over the last 
year to improve quality and safety as well as an indication of our aims for 2012/13. 
 
The information that is contained in this report is to the best of my knowledge and belief 
an accurate description of the activities of the Trust. It has been reviewed and approved 
by the Trust Board at its meeting on 31 May 2012.  
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
QUALITY ACCOUNT – 2011/12 
 
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009, National Health Service (Quality 
Accounts) Regulations 2010 and National Health Service (Quality Account) Amendment 
Regulation 2011 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. The Department of 
Health has issued guidance on the form and content of annual Quality Accounts (which 
incorporate the above legal requirements).  
 
In preparing the Quality Account, directors are required to take steps to satisfy 
themselves that:  
 

 the Quality Accounts presents a balanced picture of the Trust’s performance over 
the period covered;  

 the performance information reported in the Quality Account is reliable and 
accurate;  

 there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures 
of performance included in the Quality Account, and these controls are subject to 
review to confirm that they are working effectively in practice;  

 the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality 
Account is robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and 
prescribed definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality 
Account has been prepared in accordance with Department of Health guidance.  

 
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with 
the above requirements in preparing the Quality Account.  
 
By order of the Board  
 
NB: sign and date in any colour ink except black  
 
Signatures and dates in final published copy 
 
 
Signed............................................................. Date………………………………….. 
 
Peter Rillet  
Chairman  
 
 
Signed............................................................. Date............................................... 
 
Ruth Brunt 
Chief Executive 
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Part 2 - Priorities for Improvement  
 
The Trust has a long standing commitment to improve the quality and safety of its services.  Over 
the last year, we have been playing a leading role in the South West Quality and Safety 
Improvement programme. This work has enabled us to continue with our commitment to continue 
to reduce our mortality rates (HSMR) to one of the lowest in the country.     
 
HSMR is a measurement which compares a hospital’s actual number of deaths with their 
predicted number of deaths taking into account factors such as the age and sex of patients, their 
diagnosis, whether their admission was planned or an emergency.  If a Trust has an HSMR of 
100, this means that the number of patient deaths is as expected, based on the seriousness of 
their condition. If the HSMR is above 100 this means that more people have died than would be 
expected. In contrast an HSMR below a 100 means that fewer die then expected.   
 
The graph below shows that the Trust’s HSMR rates have continued to fall and in 2011 NBT 
achieved an HSMR of 87, which is well below the national average of 100. 
 
Dr Foster 
Dr Foster is an organisation that monitors the safety of care provided by Hospitals. The Dr Foster 
publication ‘Good Hospital Guide’ highlights the Trust as having lower than expected mortality for 
the patients it treats.   
 
 

 
 

Our Priorities for Improvement in 2011/12 
 
The Department of Health set three areas of quality – these are Safer Care, More Effective Care 
and Patient Centred Care and in addition to the extensive work going on in the Trust to improve 
the quality of patient care, the Trust made a commitment to prioritise 5 further areas of 
improvement in 2011/12. The Trust prioritised these areas of improvement following consultation 
with the Trust’s clinicians, patients, the public and patient representative groups. These were:  
 

SAFER CARE  
1. REDUCING HARM FROM HEALTH CARE ACQUIRED INFECTION.   

We chose this priority because health care acquired infections cause significant harm and are a 
major concern to our patients.  Our aim was to continually reduce our rates of Methicillin Resistant 
Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) bloodstream infections (bacteraemia) and Clostridium Difficile (C 
Diff) infections.  
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2. PREVENTING DETERIORATION 
 
We chose this because early recognition of a deteriorating patient is key in the management of 
their condition and what factors are causing them to become acutely unwell in hospital. The Trust 
uses a system called ‘Early Warning Scores’ (EWS). The EWS calculates a score based on the 
patient’s key observations (e.g. blood pressure, pulse) and provides an indicator of how sick a 
patient is and enables the recognition of ill patients.  
 
What were our goals? 
 95% of all inpatients will have their observations and Early Warning Scores recorded  
 95% of all inpatients with a high Early Warning Score will be assessed and managed 

according to clinical best practice   
 95% of all inpatients will have oxygen prescribed if they need it 
 
3. REDUCING FALLS 
 
We chose this because falls represent a significant number of the recorded incidents that occur in 
our hospitals. At the Trust we introduced a programme to reduce falls, including what we call a 
‘Falls Bundle’.  This consists of a number of tools to help staff recognise patients at greater risk of 
a fall and then put in place preventative actions reducing the likelihood of a patient fall.  This 
includes: 

 checking medication which might cause dizziness,  
 making sure things the patient might need are in easy reach, such as the call bell or their 

glasses  
 checking every hour that the patient has enough to drink or has help to use the toilet. 

 
What were our goals?  
 To reduce the number of patient falls by 10%.  
 Over 95% of wards have implemented the Falls Bundle  
 Reduce the severity of patient falls  
 

MORE EFFECTIVE CARE  
 
4. PRESSURE ULCERS    

We chose this because a pressure ulcer, also known as a bed sore, can be extremely distressing 
for patients. They cause pain and can prolong a patient’s time in hospital. 
 
What were our goals? 
 To reduce the number of pressure ulcers by 25%.  
 Over 95% of our wards to use the ‘Skin Bundle’   
 A thorough investigation to be completed for all severe pressure ulcers (Grade 3 and 4) 
 
PATIENT CENTRED CARE  
 
5.   NUTRITION SCREENING 
We chose this because hospital meals are a concern for patients and especially for relatives when 
their partner or a family member is in hospital. Maintaining good nutrition and hydration, by eating 
and drinking well, is essential for the wellbeing of patients and helps their recovery. 
 
What were our goals? 
 90% of patients will have a comprehensive nutrition check within 24 hours of being in hospital  
 All patients identified ‘at risk’ will have a nutritional care plan  
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How did we get on with last years priorities? 
 
1.   Reducing Harm from Health Care Associated Infection (HCAI) 
 
Unfortunately in 2011/12, there were 11 cases of Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus 
(MRSA) bloodstream infections recorded within the Trust compared to 6 cases in 2010/11 and the 
national target set for the Trust of 8 cases. Therefore, we did not achieve our target for 
improvement.  
 
The majority of the cases in 2011/12 occurred in April to June 2011 and, after further scrutiny, the 
cases were extremely complex in nature. The Trust continues an unrelenting focus on all aspects 
of infection prevention and control practice. 
 
In contrast, during 2011/12, we were able to reduce the number of patients recorded as having 
Clostridium Difficile (C Diff) to 79 in comparison to 91 patients in 2010/11. This has exceeded the 
improvement target set out for us nationally of 113 cases.   We achieved this through: 
 
 Strengthening our infection prevention & control policies and processes to help staff deliver 

best practice 
 Ongoing clinical staff education programmes.  
 Monitoring compliance with antimicrobial prescribing  
 Caring for patients who developed C.diff, in a separate ward where staff had the skills and 

knowledge to provide best care possible 
 Thoroughly investigating every patient who has contracted an HCAI, with the results 

reported to the Chief Executive, Medical Director & Director of Nursing 
 
The Trust is pleased with the progress made to reduce CDiff infections, however we are focused 
on continually looking for improvements to reduce the number of infections acquired by patients 
cared for by the Trust. We remain both vigilant and committed to the challenge ensuring that 
further improvements are made over the next year.   
 

Type of infection NBT 2010/11 DoH/SHA target NBT 2011/12   
Cases of MRSA 5 8 11  increase 
Cases of C diff 91 113 79  decrease 
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Figure 1: Total number of MRSA bacteraemias * since April 2008
and the 12 month rolling average

Number of MRSA bacteraemias 12 month rolling average
*Acute trust and non-Acute trust apportioned cases
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Figure 4: Quarterly rate of Acute Trust apportioned MRSA bacteraemias 
compared to the national and regional rates
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How did we get on with last years priorities? Cont… 
 
2.  Preventing deterioration 
 
Early Warning Scores’ (EWS) calculates a score based on the patient’s key observations and 
provides an indicator of how sick a patient is and enables the recognition of ill patients. All 
inpatients at the Trust have their key observations (temperature, pulse, blood pressure etc) 
monitored according to our Observations Policy. This early recognition and management of 
patient observations may prevent avoidable patient admissions to Intensive Care Unit (ICU) or 
prevent a heart attack (cardiac arrest). 
 
In hospital cardiac arrests are rarely a sudden event. There is research evidence to show that 
patients will often have signs of deterioration prior to a suffering a cardiac arrest. By using cardiac 
arrest rates and the overall reduction in rates we can demonstrate that by following the Early 
Warning System and using the observation chart, our staff have the tools to help recognise these 
signs, and in doing so potentially prevent the patient having a cardiac arrest. 
 
Headline achievements 
 
• The Trust’s cardiac arrest rates are below the national average  
• To achieve improvement we rolled out a specific training programme and so far  71% of 

nursing staff have now been trained 
•  Unplanned admissions to ICU reduced from last year 
 

  2010/11 2011/12 

Numbers of Cardiac arrests 296  213 

 
The Trust has also introduced an improved prescribing guide for Oxygen treatment to ensure that 
oxygen is given appropriately. 
 
What we did 
 Delivered specialist training on the wards  
 Implemented a tool for junior doctors and Night Nurse Practitioners to ensure they effectively 

assess and manage patients who are deteriorating and where necessary seek advice from 
senior doctors and nurses 

 Develop a ward-based Prevention of deterioration package to ensure all members of the ward 
team recognise their responsibility for preventing and raising concerns about a patient whose 
condition is deteriorating  

 Develop an electronic tool to monitor observation and clinical best practice was being followed 
 Develop best practice between specialist areas and wards to ensure that patients are kept 

safe during transfers. 
 Trained “trainers” from every ward to provide education on the safe use of oxygen 
 
What we achieved 
 The number of cardiac arrest calls reduced from 1.2 per 1000 discharges compared to 2.5 in 

2009 and 1.9 in 2010. This means a reduction of 50% in cardiac arrest calls over a 2 year 
period.  

 Unplanned ICU admissions reduced this year 
 For the ward that tested the new education package there were no cardiac arrests.  
 Appropriate prescribing of oxygen has risen from 9% to 60%, work to improve this is on-going 
 
Whilst we are seeing improvements, we know that we still have further work to do to ensure best 
practice is taking place across the Trust. To address this, in March 2012, we launched a series of 
Patient Safety events for our senior nursing and medical teams.  Based on the success of the pilot 
ward we now plan to roll out the Prevention of Deterioration Package across all wards over the 
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next 6 months. We aim to achieve more than 95% compliance with the Observation Policy and 
EWS best practice to further reduce Cardiac arrests by another 30% by April 2013.  
 
3.   Reducing Falls 
 
Falls can have a devastating outcome for patients. Serious falls can result in bone fractures, 
increasing their time in hospital and in severe cases result in the death of a patient. So preventing, 
and reducing, the number of falls, especially serious ones, is an important priority for the Trust. 
Not all falls are preventable but many falls can be avoided with good patient assessments, 
preventative interventions and the right training & support of staff. For example, bed rails are 
helpful for patients recovering from an anaesthetic or who are worried about falling out of bed in 
their sleep, but not helpful for patients who are mobile, confused or restless. 

Headline achievements 
• 88% of nurses have completed training in falls prevention 
• Over 90% of wards are regularly completing falls risk assessments and completing 

bed rails assessments when a patient is admitted to hospital 
• Implemented hourly comfort ward rounds  
• Identify learning for further preventative action when a fall takes place 
 

Reduce overall number of patient falls 

2010/11 2011/12 

2339 2232 

Reduce number of serious falls 

2010/11 2011/12* 

37 27 

 
What we did 

  Developed a training package and delivered this to all wards  
 Established a Falls Champions for every ward 
 Hourly Comfort Rounds introduced for all patients assessed as being at risk of falls –

checking every hour that the patient has enough to drink or has help to use the toilet 
 Developed new ‘Guidelines for Essential Care after a Fall in Hospital’ incorporating 
           best practice in falls prevention and appropriate management for patients who suffered  
           serious injuries from a fall 
 Introduced a new Falls Risk Assessment tool for all inpatients which prompts Falls 

Preventions actions to help the patient 
 A Post-falls Actions tool for completion at the time of the fall to assess contributing 

factors, exclude injury and minimise the risk of further falls 
 Developed a falls sticker for the medication chart for any patient who falls – this 

highlights the need for a pharmacist to review medications 
 

What we have achieved 
 88% of nursing staff have received face-to-face training in Falls Prevention 
 All wards are now using the Falls Bundle.  This has resulted in over 90% Trustwide 

compliance with Falls Risk Assessment and Bed Rails Assessment.  
 Considerable improvements in applying Falls Prevention interventions such as Comfort 

Rounds and Post-fall reviews. 
 

This work has increased the awareness of the need to manage patient falls and has resulted in an 
increase in the reporting of falls. The areas that need greater focus include the assessment of 
patients at risk of falls, particularly in terms of how we manage confused patients and the need to 
review their medication. Recognising the importance of the achievements to date the Trust is 
committed to continuing with the improvement work and will be launching a series of Safety 
Events, including falls prevention for senior medical and nursing staff.   
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4.   Pressure ulcers    
Preventing pressure ulcers (bed sores) prevents pain, distress and avoids prolonged hospital 
stays. 
 

Headline achievements 
• we improved staff education and the process for reporting pressure ulcers 
• we introduced more accurate assessment of the severity of pressure ulcers  
• we developed a ‘skin bundle’ to help staff identify patients at risk and put in processes 

to avoid ulcers and improve care 
• we purchased more pressure relieving equipment, 65 specialist mattresses, 75 pairs of 

heel protectors and seat cushions.  
 

Number of Pressure Ulcers* 2010/11 2011/12 

Grade 4  1   0   

Grade 3 26 17   

Grade 2 310 441   

  * This is number of pressure ulcers counted – some patients had more than one ulcer 

 

In 2010/11 The Trust developed an improved electronic reporting system for pressure ulcers, this 
resulted in increased reporting of pressure ulcers. The Tissue Viability specialist nurses review all 
suspected severe press ulcers (Grade 3 or 4) and advise the clinical team how best to manage 
the ulcer to prevent any worsening of the ulcer.   
 

All Grade 3 pressure ulcers are investigated with key causes identified, lessons learnt and shared 
with teams, action plans agreed and progressed to provide assurance that prevention of 
recurrence is addressed for all clinical areas. 
 
The ‘Skin Bundle’ consists of a number of tools to help staff with early recognition of patients at 
risk of pressure ulcers and then put in place preventative actions that will reduce the likelihood of 
a pressure ulcer. The implementation of the ‘Skin Bundle’ was successfully completed by 
December 2011.  This has meant that the incidence of reporting pressure ulcers has now 
increased across the Trust as a result of the increased awareness of staff, resulting in increased 
reporting of grade 2 pressure ulcers since last year.  
 
The use of specialist equipment can really help prevent pressure ulcers. We bought a number of 
heel protectors and these were distributed to the clinical areas to prevent the development of heel 
ulcers.  We also bought 65 beds and specialist mattresses that will assist staff caring for patients 
at high risk or who already have pressure damage. 
 
‘Repose’ foot protector: 
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Pressure Ulcers By Grade
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Explanation of Pressure Ulcer Grades   
 
Grade 1 
This is indicated by non blanchable redness 
that does not subside after pressure is 
released. The skin might be hotter or cooler 
than normal, have an odd texture, and it can be 
painful to the individual. 
 
 
 
Grade 2 
This is damage to the first layer of skin 
extending into, but no deeper than this layer. At 
this stage, the ulcer may be referred to as a 
blister or abrasion.  
 
 
 
 
Grade 3 
This grade indicates more serious damage as 
the sore extends into the full thickness of the 
skin and may extend into the deeper tissue 
layer. There is less blood supply making it more 
difficult to heal. At this stage, the sore or wound 
may be much larger under the surface  
 
 
 
Grade 4 
This grade is the most serious ulcer. It is the 
deepest ulcer, extending through skin into the 
muscle, tendon or even bone.   
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Schema_stades_escarres.svg�


 

 13

Ongoing work 2012/13 
We are committed to continuing with our improvement work and this will include; 

 Providing training to all staff for the SKIN Bundle with weekly bed equipment training and 
monthly study days,  

 Interventions with ward sisters to identify improvements that can be made on wards in high 
risk areas.   

 E-learning modules with practical ‘show me how’ to prevent pressure ulcer sessions 
available for all clinical staff. 

 Healthy Heels campaign to raise awareness of how to keep patient’s feet healthy. 
 

5. Nutrition Screening 
Good nutrition and hydration (eating and drinking well) is fundamental to health. In hospital it is 
particularly important because better-nourished patients recover from illness faster, have more 
resistance to infections and heal faster after surgery. 
 

Hospital food is always a subject of interest to patients and visitors and our Catering Department 
is one of only a few hospitals in the UK to have achieved a Soil Association award for its food. All 
inpatients are able to choose from a range of meals which meet their personal and dietary 
requirements.  
 

Sometimes patients are too unwell or frail to fully benefit from the high quality food that is 
produced.  We have made it a priority to undertake a malnutrition risk check as soon as people 
are admitted so that we can identify those people who are already malnourished or who, because 
of their condition, are at risk of becoming malnourished or dehydrated during their stay in hospital. 
We can then make sure each patient has a care plan to prevent malnutrition or dehydration. 
 

What were our goals? 
 

Nutritional risk assessment completed within 24hrs of admission 

Goal  90% 

Achievement 90% 

Patients identified at risk will have a nutritional care plan 

Goal 100% 

Achievement    100% 
 

How did we get on? 
Our rates of malnutrition patient screening on admission rose steadily through the year and the 
process is now in place on all wards.  In December 2011, we were able to include it for all new 
patient admissions in our electronic documentation system and we have been working to improve 
other areas of nutrition too; 
 
 We have introduced a system of red tray cloths at mealtimes to help ward staff know which 

patients need extra help and encouragement to eat.    
 
 All wards now have a designated nutrition champion whose role is to make sure that patient 

nutrition is always considered and a training programme for them has been implemented.  In 
the next year we will introduce regular ‘five minute training’ updates with staff directly on the 
wards to make sure we are always able to meet our patients’ nutritional needs, especially 
those who need a special diet, food with altered texture or who have dementia.   

 
 We are developing an “accessible menu”, with pictures for those patients with learning 

difficulties, dementia and reading difficulties.   
 
 We are also looking at how we can help people with dementia, for example by using coloured 

crockery to help patient recognise the plate and by offering a finger food menu rather than 
dishes that need to be eaten with a knife and fork.   
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 We are working with our volunteers to identify more people who can offer support and 
encouragement to patients at mealtimes and help them eat when necessary.   

 

Nursing Quality Assessment Tool achievements 
The Nursing Quality Assessment Tool (NQAT) examines the core fundamental standards of 
patient care as set down by the Department of Health. The process collects data from a real time 
patient survey questionnaire, review of patient documentation, observing nursing care and 
questioning of staff. Each audit is unannounced and centrally co-ordinated to ensure that the audit 
team allocated are independent of the directorate. 
 
The wards are allocated a rating which is a bronze award if their scores are 70-80%, silver if 81-
90% and gold award in 91– 100%. No award is given if the total score is below 70%.  
 
There has been a steady improvement from bronze to silver and gold awards during the year. At 
the end of March 2012 there were 9 wards who achieved gold, 33 achieved silver and 2 achieved  
bronze. The Trust is committed that all ward areas will achieve a total audit score of greater than 
80% (silver award). 
 

Our Priorities for Improvement for 2012/13 
 
1. Further reducing infection, focusing on reducing urinary infections for patients with catheters 

and wound site infections 
2. Ensuring patients are eating and drinking well 
3. Involving and informing patients of treatment planned and keeping patients informed of their 

anticipated discharge date 
4. Increasing observations for most unwell patients 
 
Involving the public in identifying these priorities 

We asked our clinical teams to make suggestions for priorities to improve patient care. This 
extensive list was then discussed with the Trust’s Patient Panel to obtain their views. 

These topics were then compiled into a survey for patient and public consultation which was 
available on line via the website and distributed to in-patients on wards. It was also distributed the 
Trust’s Foundation Trust members who want to take part in surveys and to Local Councillors and 
community groups.   

Presentations including the shortlist were made to the two Local Authority Health Scrutiny 
Committees to seek their views. 

As a result, over 400 patients and members of the public completed the survey. The results of the 
survey were analysed and ranked according to importance as rated by patients and carers. These 
were discussed by Trust’s Management Team to agree the final priorities approved by the Trust’s 
Board. 

How we will measure progress with these priorities 
 

Improvement measures will be set for each priority and the data will be collected and analysed to 
track progress.  This will be monitored closely by the Trust’s Quality Committee chaired by the 
Director of Nursing. Its membership includes the Chief Executive, Medical Director, other 
executives as well as Clinical Directors, chairs of quality and safety committees and other key 
staff involved in monitoring or progressing quality and safety priorities. 
 
A Quality Report is reported to the Board every month and this includes the measurements of 
progress shown on a quality dashboard.   This report is included in the public session of the Trust 
board. In addition the information is reported to NHS Bristol Primary Care Trust, the lead 
commissioner for the Trusts services. 
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Part 3 - Statements of Assurance from the Trust Board 
 
Review of Services 
 
During 2011/12, the Trust provided a wide range of NHS services. These are listed in Appendix 1.  
 
The Trust reviews data related to the quality of these services through regular reports to the Trust 
Board and the Trust governance Committees. Each service undergoes a quarterly performance 
review in which performance against standards of quality and safety are reviewed in detail. The 
Trust has therefore reviewed 100% of the data available to them on the quality of care in all its 
NHS services. 
 
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2011/12 represents 100% percent of total 
income generated from the provision of NHS services by the North Bristol NHS Trust for 2011/12. 
 

Participation in clinical audits 
 
Local Clinical Audits  
 
The Trust has a highly proactive clinical audit programme which is reflected in the high volumes of 
local audits included in the Trust clinical audit programme.  Individual audit recommendations and 
action plans are formulated and monitored for each audit. 
 
There were 723 registered local clinical audits undertaken during the year 2011/12 on a wide 
range of topics and in many specialties and services across NBT in addition to the national audits 
and NCEPOD audits listed in the tables below. 
 
National Clinical Audits  
 

 During April 2011– March 2012, 48 national clinical audits and 4 national confidential 
enquiries covered NHS services that North Bristol NHS Trust provides. 

 
 During April 2011– March 2012 North Bristol NHS Trust participated in (40/48) 83% 

national clinical audits and (4/4) 100% national confidential enquiries which it was eligible 
to participate in. 

 
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquires that the Trust participated in and for 
which data collection was completed during April 2011 – March 2012, are listed below (Table 1) 
alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number 
of registered cases required by the terms of enquiry. 
 
Table 1 

Title Eligible to 
participate 

Participating Cases Submitted Compliance 

MBRRACE-UK (Mothers and Babies - Reducing Risk through 
Audits and Confidential Enquiries across the UK) 

Yes Yes Yes*  

Neonatal Audit Programme (NNAP) Yes Yes 221 100% 
Paediatric management (College of Emergency Medicine) Yes Yes Yes*   
Childhood Epilepsy (RCPH National Childhood Epilepsy) Yes Yes Yes*  
National audit of community acquired pneumonia 2011/12 Yes Yes Yes*  
British Thoracic Society Pleural Procedures Audit Yes Yes Yes*  
Cardiac arrest (National Cardiac Arrest audit) Yes Yes 168 100% 
Severe sepsis & septic shock (College of Emergency 
Medicine) 

Yes Yes Yes*  

Adult critical Care (case mix programme) – ICNARC CMPD) Yes Yes Yes*  
Potential donor Yes Yes (Apr 11-Sep 11) 11 100% 
Seizure Management (National Audit of Seizure Management) Yes Yes 30 100% 
National Audit of heavy menstrual bleeding  Yes Yes 58 patient questionnaires  11% 
Chronic Pain Audit  Yes Yes Yes*  
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Ulcerative colitis &  Crohn’s disease (UK IBD audit) Yes Yes 12/20 ulcerative colitis 
18/20 Crohn’s disease 

60% 
90% 

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) -British 
Thoracic Society/European audit 

Yes Yes 29 casenotes reviewed 
26 reviewed & followed-up 

90% 

British Thoracic Society of Asthma Audit Yes Yes 12 100% 
National Joint registry Yes Yes Yes*  
 (PROMS) – knees Yes Yes 253/530 48% 
 (PROMS)– hips Yes Yes 274/522 52% 
 (PROMS) – hernias Yes Yes 235/306 77% 
 (PROMS) – varicose veins Yes Yes 48/55 87% 
Coronary angioplasty (NICOR Adult cardiac interventions) Yes Yes 174 100% 
Peripheral vascular surgery (VSGBI Vascular Surgery 
Database) 

Yes Yes Yes* 95.7% 

Carotid interventions (Carotid Intervention audit) Yes Yes 29 100% 
Myocardial Infarction National Audit Programme (MINAP) Yes Yes 746 99% 
National Heart Failure Audit Yes Yes Yes*  
Stroke Care (National Sentinel Stroke Audit) Yes Yes 59 98% 
Cardiac Arrhythmia (Cardiac Rhythm Management Audit) Yes Yes 430 new implants 

72 ICD implant 
100% 

Renal Replacement Therapy (Renal Registry) Yes Yes 144 (new) 
(Total - 1350 prevalent pts 
on dialysis & transplant) 

100% 

Renal Transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant Registry) Yes Yes 98 adult 
(750 transplant patients 
under regular follow-up) 

100% 

National Lung Cancer Audit Data analysis (LUCADA) Yes Yes 212 93% 
National Bowel Cancer audit Project Yes Yes 249 96.1% 
National Data for Head and Neck Cancer (DAHNO) Yes Yes 97 100% 
Oesophago-gastric cancer (National O-G Cancer Audit) Yes Yes Yes*  
National Hip Fracture database Yes Yes 466 93% 
Severe Trauma (Trauma audit and Research Network ) Yes Yes 532 (to date) 100% 
Falls and non-hip fractures (National Falls & Bone Health 
Audit) 

Yes Yes 40 non-hips 
22 hip fractures 

100% 
100% 

Bedside transfusion (National Comparative Audit of Blood 
Transfusion) 

Yes Yes 61 100% 

Medical Use of Blood (National Comparative Audit of Blood 
Transfusion) 

Yes Yes 82 100% 

Care of Dying in hospital (NCDAH) Yes Yes 127 100%+ 
National Confidential Enquiry - Surgery in Children Yes Yes 2 67% 
National Confidential Enquiry - Peri-operative Care for High 
Risk Surgical patients 

Yes Yes 17 94% 

National Confidential Enquiry - Cardiac Arrest Study 
 

Yes Yes 4 100% 

National Confidential Enquiry - Bariatric Surgery Yes Yes 6 100% 
 YES* = Cases submitted but record not kept by lead clinician

 
Participation in other national Audits 
 
The Trust participated in 29 other national audits during April 2011 – March 2012 that are not 
included in the Department of Health (DoH) list of audits for inclusion in the Quality Account.  
These audits are listed in Table 2 below. 
 
Table 2:  

TITLE Specialty ELIGIBLE PARTICIPATING 
National Inpatient Audit 2011 Diabetes Yes Yes 
National Dementia Care Care of the Elderly Yes Yes 
British Association of Urological Surgeons 
(BAUS)Cancer Registry & Audit  

Urology Yes Yes 

Newborn Screening Programme- Vermont/Oxford Neo-natal Yes Yes 
National Registry of Paediatric Neurosurgical 
Operative activity 

Neurosurgery Yes Yes 

Shunt Registry Neurosurgery Yes Yes 
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The UKNG database – neurosurgery neurovascular 
patients who are coiled 

Neurosurgery Yes Yes 

National Burns Audit Burns & Plastics Yes Yes 
Implementing NICE guidance for health and work: 
a national organisational audit 
(report published  in 2011/12) 

Trustwide Yes Yes 

National Audit - Avascular 
necrosis/Bisphosphonate related jaw necrosis 

Oral Surgery Yes Yes 

National Cochlear implant audit (paediatrics) Paediatric Speech 
& Language 

Yes Yes 

Spinal Muscular Atrophy (SMART) Net Clinical 
Network & Database registration 

Paediatric 
Neurology 

Yes Yes 

National Audit of Cardiac Rehabilitation Cardiology Yes Yes 
Mastectomy & Breast Reconstruction Audit General Surgery Yes Yes 
Surgical Site Surveillance – neurosurgery Neurosurgery Yes Yes 
Surgical Site Surveillance – orthopaedics Orthopaedics Yes Yes 
International colo-rectal stent registry General Surgery Yes Yes 
Safe Implementation of Thrombolysis in Stroke 
(SITS) 

Care of the Elderly Yes Yes 

National Severe Airways Complications – Audit 
Project4 (report published  in 2011/12) 

Anaesthetics Yes Yes 

National audit of services for people with multiple 
sclerosis 2011 – Service provider 

Neurology Yes Yes 

National Kidney Vascular Access Renal & Transplant Yes Yes 
Patient reported outcomes following Zenith total 
ankle replacement 

Orthopaedics Yes Yes 

Birthplace – a national study Maternity Services Yes Yes 
Closing the Gap:  Improving Lung Cancer 
Outcomes 

Respiratory 
Medicine 

Yes Yes 

National audit of back & pain management by NHS 
Occupational health services 

Occupational 
Health 

Yes Yes 

Management of Open Wounds General Surgery Yes Yes 
National Audit of Bone Allograft Traceability Trauma 

Orthopaedics 
Yes Yes 

National Bottle Audit Cleft Unit Yes Yes 
What is the decay experience of children in South 
West England with Cleft Lip & Palate 

Cleft Unit Yes Yes 

 
The national clinical audits that North Bristol NHS Trust did not participate in during April 2011 – 
March 2012 are as follows in Table 3 below. 
 

Table 3 
Title Participated Comments 

Paediatric Intensive Care No NBT not participating as involved in 
South West Critically Ill Child project) 

Emergency Oxygen Audit No No clinical resource available for audit 
British Thoracic Guidelines – Non-Invasive 
Ventilation  

No No clinical resource available for audit 

National Diabetes Audit No No clinical resource available for audit 
Parkinson’s UK Audit No No clinical resource available for audit 
National Bronchiectasis Audit No No clinical resource available for audit 
Acute Stroke (SINAP) No Trust decision not to participate 
National Health Promotion in Hospitals Audit No No clinical resource available for audit 
 
The reports of 18 national clinical audits were reviewed by the Trust’s Clinical Audit Committee 
(on behalf of the Trust Board) between April 2011 and March 2012.  The Trust intends to take the 
following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided; 
 
1. National Comparative Audit of the use of Red Cells in Neonates and Children 2010 
Local guidelines for blood transfusion in children and for avoiding unnecessary sampling in 
neonates are being developed.  Within the Neonatal Unit, a new blood gas analyser has been 
purchased and an Education Board is available highlighting how much blood is needed for the 
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test required.  Staff have now been educated to document post-transfusion Hb, clinical condition, 
reason for transfusion.  Education has been given to all staff who take blood in the procedure to 
reduce haemolysed samples. 
 
2. National Cardiac Arrest Audit  
This is a continuous monitoring audit with local reports produced on a quarterly basis.  The 
Resuscitation Officer has developed a process with the Information Department and the Clinical 
Site Team to aid the full completion of resuscitation forms.  Reports are sent to the Clinical Risk 
Committee, Heads of Nursing and Medical Directors to identify and act on any areas of concern.  
Audit findings are now included in the Resuscitation training sessions for staff. 
  
3. UK Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) Audit 3rd round (2010) – Organisational Audit 
In this 3rd round of the audit all participating sites were asked to complete the dataset for the 
situation in their own IBD Service “as at” the 1st September 2010. 
 
The following actions have been taken to make improvements to our IBD services: 

 Access to a psychologist & two physicians with an interest in pulmonary TB. 
 Patients with eye disease to be referred & seen by the eye hospital 
 To use specialties with an interest in IBD (i.e. Rheumatology and Dermatology) 
 Improved toilet facilities will be addressed in the new hospital build (75% en-suite facilities) 
 A new written policy to ensure IBD patients are not sited on outlying wards and are 

transferred promptly if newly diagnosed 
 

4. National Lung Cancer Audit Data analysis (NLCA) 
This is a continuous monitoring audit and the initial report published in September 2010, was 
reviewed by the Clinical Audit Committee.  This included all patients with lung cancer & 
mesothelioma in the calendar year 2009.   
 
To improve the capturing of data in real time, the NBT clinical team will be using the Somerset 
data base with subsequent uploads to NLCA within mandated timeframes. The Somerset 
proforma in use at present for collection at multi-disciplinary team meetings (MDT) is not 
adequate for national audit data collection, therefore, an interim proforma is being produced.  The 
MDT chair will assist the MDT co-ordinator in ensuring key data fields are completed and invite 
the surgeon to attend the MDT meeting.  A review will be undertaken of the specialist nurse 
service to ensure a sufficient funding with clear referral pathways. 
 
5. National Kidney Care – Patient Transport Survey  
This is the second national patient transport survey that took place in October 2010. The survey 
asked the patient about their experience of travelling to their renal unit for dialysis in a set time 
frame.  As a result, of the findings, the following actions were recommended:  
 
 An Operational Review Group to be set up by NHS Bristol (Commissioning Service) to monitor 

performance as agreed by the Contract Team;   
 NHS Bristol to conduct an audit to identify whether the patient is being collected at the correct 

pick up times from home and hospital ensuring no patient should be waiting longer than 30 
minutes;  

 the General Manager in the Renal & Transplant Directorate to regularly liaise with the local 
Patient Forum on transport issues and agree actions to be taken, and the Dialysis Unit Sisters 
and Receptionists when booking patients are to ensure that patients are able to dialyse 
closest to their home environment. 

 
6. National Audit of Major Complications Airway Management 
The project is the National Audit Project 4 (NAP4) being conducted jointly by the Royal College of 
Anaesthetists and the Difficult Airway Society. The audit ran for 1 year to determine the incidence 
of major complications of airway management in the UK.  There was no individual trust report 
produced. 
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The local action plan was developed and agreed to ensure that the ‘Use of Difficult Airway Society 
Guidelines’ is placed in the resource folder in all anaesthetic rooms with airway training to be bi-
annually.  There will be use of capnography for all ICU airway procedures and that monitoring of 
airway incidents will continue. 
 
7. National Sentinel Stroke Audit 2010 – Round 7 
The Royal College of Physicians on behalf of the Intercollegiate Stroke Working Party conducted 
a 7th round of the National Sentinel Stroke Audit in 2010 to monitor the progress of stroke delivery 
post National Stroke Strategy.  
 
As a result of the findings of the audit, a number of local recommendations implemented at NBT 
were put in place including; Grand rounds across both hospital sites to allow for Stroke Physicians 
to improve education, Consultants to maintain a high use of the early supported discharge 
service.  With additional consultants in post this led to an increase in research activity into Stroke. 
 
8. National Dementia Audit 
The aim of this national audit was to benchmark environmental and staffing factors against 
national standards, identify good practice, areas for improvement in hospital wards, and look at 
the experience of people with dementia and the experience of their carers.   
 
The Trust is working with the South-West Dementia Partnership using the NHS South West 
Standards for Dementia Care in Hospital Self Assessment Framework 2011-12, to develop local 
hospital action plans.  The self-assessment framework is a large project and is work in progress. 
The following audits were completed to address a number of issues relating to the findings within 
the case-note review audit:   
 
An audit to identify that antipsychotic medications are only used after non-pharmacological 
methods have been tried and their use is time limited and reviewed regularly.  This audit showed 
that two thirds of prescriptions for people with cognitive impairment or dementia were initiated 
prior to admission.  Clinicians will now review the drugs with the GP during the admission and ask 
about the prescribing reason.   
 
A second audit has been completed relating to identifying the numbers of patients moving  wards 
between 8pm and 8am and also any moves at mealtimes and medication times.  One of the 
recommendations was to update the bed management protocol to include times when patients 
with dementia should not be moved unless this was essential for their clinical need.     
 
9. National Hip Fracture Database (NHFD) 
The National Hip Fracture Database is a prospective national audit measuring quality of care for 
hip fracture patients to which the Trust has been submitting data since late 2007.  
 
The last report published in July 2011 covering the case mix, care and outcomes of cases 
submitted by the Trust between 1 April 2010 and 31st March 2011 was reviewed and due to poor 
completion of the Abbreviated Mental Test Score (AMTS) The AMTS is now included in the 
Trust’s clerking proforma.  Junior doctors are being educated to complete the AMTS. This will 
ensure that the AMTS information can then be entered into the NHFD. 
 
10. National Neonatal Audit Programme (NNAP) 
The NNAP has been established with the aim of informing good clinical practice in aspects of 
neonatal care by auditing national standards.  However, as the Trust is a tertiary service it has 
long been involved in a different data based system which is International and is known as the 
Vermont-Oxford Network which allows benchmarking of standards against an array of units 
spread across the World. The Trust remains active in this network.   As Local Commissioners will 
be using the data held within the NNAP to determine funding, the Trust has now moved towards 
finding the most appropriate way to make sure that the already robust data systems are not being 
replicated but can be used to complete the data for the NNAP.    
 
 



 

 20

11. 2010 Re-audit of the Use of Group O Rhd Negative Red cells 
In June 2010 the National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion re-audited usage of O RhD 
negative red cells.   The Trust Transfusion Committee put in place the following recommendations 
to improve practise.   
 The massive Haemorrhage guideline now contains a proforma requiring all blood product use 

to be documented. The Guideline has been approved by Clinical Effectiveness Committee. 
 Additional emergency O RhD negative red cell use to be reviewed as required (if use goes 

above 10.5%) 
 

12. Re-audit of the use of Platelets in Haematology 2010 
This National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion used standards to assess the use of 
platelets in accordance with national guidelines and recommendations from the previous audit. 
One particular recommendation was put in place nationally to assists trusts was that of a platelet 
transfusion project group (PTPG) being established with the following outputs:  

 Graphs to indicate platelet use by hospitals within each region 
 A simple summary of indications for platelet transfusion. 

Within the Trust, a programme of teaching haematology staff involved with platelet transfusion 
has been implemented. 
 

13. National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion 2011 Re-audit of Bedside 
Transfusion Practice 

The key aim of the audit was to determine whether the 2009 British Committee for Standards in 
Haematology guidelines for the administration of blood components were being followed at the 
bedside and to determine if there had been any further improvement compared to previous audits.   
 

As a result of the findings, the Trust’s Transfusion team has updated the current version of Blood 
Transfusion policy and will ensure that all healthcare staff involved in any aspect of blood 
transfusion have training against local policies.  Healthcare staff must have this mandatory 
training or they will not be allowed to administer blood. 
 

14. Myocardial Infarction National Audit Programme (MINAP) 
The tenth national audit public report for MINAP was published in September 2011.  The Trust 
reviewed this national report and the local findings for the Trust.  It was recommended that 
Cardiology department will continue to produce quarterly audit reports to monitor its performance.  
There is already a mechanism in place for reporting and presenting this data within the Avon, 
Gloucester, Wiltshire network reperfusion group. 
 

The reporting for MINAP will now change due to the Trust no longer treating Segment Elevation 
Myocardial Infarction (STEMI) patients as they will be taken straight to the Bristol Heart Institute 
for assessment for primary percutaneous coronary intervention.  Therefore care within the Trust 
will be focused more on non STEMI patients.   
 

15. Management of Renal Colic in ED 
This project was one of the national audit projects listed by the College of Emergency Medicine 
for 2010/11.  The aim of the project was to improve the care of patients admitted to Emergency 
Departments with renal colic. Findings for the Trust revealed that the problems area was the non-
recording of the pain assessment.   The implementation of the new electronic patient records 
system (Cerner) within the Trust has made recording of pain assessment more effective. 
 

16.  National Audit of Angioplasty  
The fifth national report was published in March 2011.  The audit uses mechanisms developed in 
collaboration with the Central Audit Cardiac Database to collect procedure-specific data based on 
the current minimum British Cardiovascular Interventional Society (BCIS) dataset (link British 
Cardiovascular Interventional Society) The data included in this report relates to procedures 
performed between 1st January and 31st December 2009.  
 

The data for the Trust showed that In hospital percutaneous coronary intervention (PCI) mortality 
is in keeping with national results.   The Trust no longer treats STEMI patients as they are taken 
straight to Bristol Heart Institute for assessment for Primary PCI.  Therefore our care is focused 
on NSTEMI patients.   
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17. National Audit of Seizure Management in Hospitals – (Frenchay) 
The main aim of the audit was to describe and understand the organisation of care available for 
people presenting to emergency departments with seizures. The University of Liverpool reported 
on this national audit and created summary statistics from 7 variables, representing independent 
aspects of the care pathway.   The Trust’s overall indicator score for the 7 variables was 50.5%; 
this was within the range for the national average.   
 
The care pathway for this group of patients needs to be improved and a decision was made to 
introduce a protocol to record the important aspects of the care pathway to ensure these aspects 
are adhered to and information is recorded in the medical notes.   
 
18. UK Carotid Endarterectomy Audit – Round 3 
This prospective two-year audit aims to inform current provision of relevant services within 
hospitals that offer carotid endarterectomy (CEA).  Round 3 reported that the results for NBT 
showed that 70% of patients received surgery within 14 days of referral, with 37% of patients 
receiving surgery within 14 days of symptoms that triggered referral.  These figures had improved 
from the results in Round 2. 
 
Recommendations have been put in place to have a generic referral to vascular surgeons for TIA 
minor stroke patients, agreement of team based referral and response, and for patients to be 
followed up through a joint surgeon/physician clinic.  
 

Research activity at the Trust 
 
By December 2011/12, the Trust was involved in around 550 separate research studies and the 
National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) supported 220 of these studies through its research 
networks. The number of patients receiving NHS services provided or sub-contracted by NBT in 
2011/12 to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee and within the NIHR 
portfolio was 3,807. This represents an increase from 2010/11, both in terms of the number 
of active studies and patients recruited into studies on the national portfolio.  
  
Participation in nationally recognised clinical research demonstrates the Trust‘s commitment to 
improving the quality of care we offer and to making our contribution to wider health improvement. 
Our clinical staff stay abreast of the latest treatment possibilities and active participation in 
research leads to improved patient outcomes.  
  
During 2011/12 we have updated our research strategy to reflect national and local changes 
in the research environment in the last five years. Our mission is to improve patient health through 
our excellence in world‐class translational and applied health services research and our culture 
of innovation.   
  
Our aims for research 2012-16 are to: 

 Be World-leading - actively participate in the establishment of Bristol Health Partners in 
which world-class clinical services, research and innovation and teaching are strategically 
and operationally integrated  

 Deliver high quality research of direct patient benefit - support our staff to deliver high 
quality translational and applied health services research of direct patient benefit.  

 Embed a research culture in clinical service delivery - develop a culture across NBT in 
which research and innovation are embedded in and aligned with routine clinical services, 
leading to significant health gains and efficiency improvements in health services delivery  

 Increase research income - increase the income from research and innovation and use 
that income in support of our strategic aims. 
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Goals agreed with commissioners 
 

In 2011/12 a proportion of the Trust’s income was conditional on achieving quality improvement 
and innovation goals agreed between the Trust and any person or body they entered into a 
contract, agreement or arrangement with for the provision of NHS services, through the 
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework.  
 

Appendix 2 - tables show the agreed CQUIN targets and the outcome by 31 March 2012.  
 

Safeguarding  
 
The Trust has a Safeguarding Committee that oversees the implementation of the new reporting 
structures and to monitor the safeguarding agenda in all of the Trusts services. As an 
organisation we are committed to making safeguarding a high priority for all members of the Trust. 
 
The Safeguarding Committee has responsibility for setting and monitoring the delivery of the 
Trust’s strategic priorities for safeguarding through the Trust and providing assurance to the 
Board. 
 
The Committee is supported by five operational groups who carry out the work in relation to 
safeguarding; 

 Children (child protection) 
 Vulnerable adults 
 People with dementia 
 Adults with learning disabilities 
 People with mental health 

 
Safeguarding Children 
 
The Trust is committed to promoting and safeguarding the welfare of children and young people 
who use our services. At all times a child’s welfare is seen as paramount. The Trust takes action 
to ensure that the risk of harm to children’s welfare is minimised and, where there are concerns 
about a child or young person, staff within the Trust take action to address this.  
 
Staff work collaboratively with other agencies involved in safeguarding children and follow national 
and local legislation, policy and guidance. The Trust provides child protection training to all staff to 
ensure they have an appropriate level of competence in this area of work. Overall training 
compliance meets the commissioner’s targets at over 90%. 
 
Reflective practice and peer review regarding safeguarding children is in the process of being 
rolled out throughout all clinical directorates. Compliance with this will be audited by the Trusts’s 
Safeguarding Manager.  
 
The Trust provides care to children and young people, via the Community Child Health 
Partnership (CCHP) for Bristol and South Gloucestershire. These services include community 
paediatrics, health visiting, school health nursing, allied health professionals and Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health. Children are also seen in a range of other settings throughout NBT 
such as minor injuries and the Emergency department. Children are treated form the wider South 
West at the Trust’s via the specialist services such as burns and neurosurgery as inpatients and 
out patients.  
 
Maternity services provide care for Mother and babies; mothers may be under the age of 18 
themselves. Babies requiring specialist care are treated in the award winning Neonatal Intensive 
Care Unit.  
 
The definition of a child is anyone under the age of 18 however young people aged 16-18 are 
often seen in adult services.    
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The Trust’s services were inspected as part of the Bristol Safeguarding and Looked After Children 
independent inspection by Ofsted/Care Quality Commission. Bristol services including those at 
the Trust, were judged as ‘good’ in keeping children safe. South Gloucestershire Safeguarding 
and Looked After Children services are due to be similarly inspected before July 31 2012. 
Safeguarding performance activities are reported quarterly to the Commissioners and the Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards. 
 
This diagram below shows the training achieved at the required levels.  Level 1 training is given to 
all Trust staff including ‘back office’ staff that do not come into contact with patients or children as 
part of their work.  Level 2 training is for staff that come into contact with children regularly as part 
of their work.  Level 3 is enhanced 2 day training for staff who work directly with children providing 
treatment and care to children and their families. The national requirement for Level 3 training 
changed from an annual requirement to completing training every three years.  The Trust also 
now employs a specialist Safeguarding Manager to improve training compliance – this explains 
the shift in compliance for Level 3 on the diagram. 
 
 

 
 
Safeguarding vulnerable people   
 

The safeguarding of vulnerable adults requires joint working between health and social care. The 
Trust’s safeguarding adults group meets quarterly and includes representatives from all clinical 
directorates and our local authority partners. The Group is chaired by the Head of Operations. 
Members of the Trusts safeguarding team attend Local Safeguarding Adults Boards and are 
active in the Board(s) sub groups. 
 
In 2011/12, there is has been a push to increase general safeguarding adult and dementia 
awareness training. The Trust is continuing to deliver Safeguarding Adults, the Mental Capacity 
Act and Deprivation of Liberty Standards training to clinical teams.  There were a total of 6 
safeguarding adult incidents reported to the Local Authority Safeguarding Team for investigation 
this year. 
 
The Trust is reconfiguring the safeguarding team to bring all safeguarding elements adults and 
children into one team and there are plans to recruit a senior safeguarding adult post in the near 
future. 
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Trust Data Quality  
 

The Trust has to submit a wealth of information and monitoring data centrally to a national data 
set for the department of Health. Quality Data is of vital importance to the Trust and the NHS to 
ensure high quality clinical care and accurate financial reimbursement. 
 

We take data quality seriously within the Trust. An assurance group with responsibility for data 
quality is held to ensure actions are in place to identify and address issues as they arise. The 
impact of the implementation of Cerner Millennium is the major open theme- planning to ensure 
the new system is fully exploited to improve the quality of data. 
 

We submitted records during 2011/12 to the Secondary Users Service for inclusion in the Hospital 
Episode Statistics (HES) which are included in the latest published data.  
The percentage of records in the published data which included patient’s valid NHS number was 
for the period Apr-Nov; 
 
97.8% for Admitted patient care 
96.4% for Outpatient care 
85.2% for Accident and emergency care 
 

The percentage of records in the published data which included the patients valid General 
Medical Practice was: 
 
99.8% for Admitted patient care 
99.7% for Outpatient care 
96.1% for Accident and emergency care 
 
Information Governance Toolkit Overall Scores  
 
The IG Toolkit is now in its 9th year. All requirements now require evidence to be uploaded to 
support the self assessment. Instead of red/amber/green, there are now just two grades: 
 

 Satisfactory (green); level 2 achieved on all 45 requirements 
 Not Satisfactory (red); level 2 not achieved on all requirements 
 

These changes linked directly to the NHS Operating Framework (informatics Planning 2010/2011, 
now 2011/2012 which require all organisations to achieve level 2 in all requirements (not just key 
requirements).  The other reason for this change is that the previous grading scheme allowed 
organisations to be ‘green’ even if they were underperforming on certain requirements.   
 

The main purpose of the IG Toolkit is to drive improvement and a ‘Not Satisfactory’ (red) status is 
an effective way to get Information Governance high up on the corporate agenda. 
 

NBT is 84% compliant (green) in the IG Toolkit – Final Submission Score for V9 assessment. 
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Clinical Coding  
 

Accurate Clinical Coding is an essential element of the Trust’s ability to understand its clinical 
activity, in terms of audit and mortality statistics, and to ensure accurate reimbursement.  
 
In 2011/12 the Audit Commission resumed its programme auditing the accuracy of clinical coding 
within all Acute NHS Trusts. New to the programme for 11/12 was an assessment of the accuracy 
of other relevant PbR (payment by results) data. 
 The audit highlighted excellent accuracy of coding and noted evidence of best practice in 

place at NBT. 
 The audit identified that all national requirements within the Information Governance Toolkit 

for coding accuracy at NBT continued to be met: 
 

  

2009/10 
National 
Average 

2009/10 
NBT 

2011/12 
NBT 

Accuracy of Diagnoses 87% 94% 97.4%
Accuracy of Procedures 90% 94% 97.5%
Accuracy of HRGs 90.9% 95% 96.5%

 
The audit looked at the accuracy of 200 episodes. 100 from orthopaedics as selected by local 
commissioners and 100 selected at random across all other specialties. The report made three 
recommendations to be followed up via the Clinical Coding training plan or Data Quality 
Assurance Group as appropriate. The net financial impact identified within the audit sample was 
£7,616 (1.4%) 

Results  
The audit shows extremely positive results regarding clinical coding accuracy of admitted activity 
and the accuracy of other relevant PBR data. (age on admission, sex, admission method, Length 
of Stay) 
 
Performance against the national standards in the Information Governance toolkit has been 
maintained in all four areas. Primary and secondary procedures/diagnoses exceed their 
respective 90% / 80% targets and compare very favourably to the latest available benchmarks 
from 2009/10 (only 30 Trusts were audited in 2010/11)  
 
The financial implication of coding inaccuracy was lower than the findings of the internal audit 
performed in 2010/11 £7,616 versus £13,409 (1.4% versus 3.3%). A significant improvement is 
seen in the accuracy of coding within Trauma and Orthopaedics- an area of significant focus since 
the last review. 
 
4 of the 200 episodes reviewed (2%) were identified to have incorrect admission or discharge 
dates. The errors had no financial implication for the specific cases identified. 
 
The audit highlights the effectiveness of the coding audit and training programme in place in the 
Trust. It also notes the positive impact on coding accuracy of good engagement with Trust 
clinicians. Although not highlighted in the report as a Trust we should look to build on this existing 
work to continue to assure the accuracy of income associated with our admitted activity. 
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Part 4 - Local Objectives for Safety and Quality 2011/12 
 
Trust Objectives for 2011/12 
 
In April 2011, the Trust’s Board agreed its continuing programme of objectives – this included 
setting aims for improvement of the quality of clinical services.  
 
The quality & safety objectives were: 
 
 Reduce hospital mortality as measured by the Dr Foster measure of Hospital Standardised 

Mortality Rate (HSMR). 
 Minimise harm to patients by continuing to reduce healthcare acquired infection. 
 Develop and deliver actions to improve achievement of patient experience indicators as 

measured by the National Patient Survey 
 NQAT assessment – every ward at minimum of Silver level  
 Meet improvements for Quality Account targets; nutrition, pressure ulcer care, reduce harm 

from falls, improve care to deteriorating patients 
 Implement systems and measures to deliver the quality of care required by the 

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) programme. 
 No cancelled operations on the day of surgery for non-clinical reasons  
 No admitted patients moved for non-clinical reasons  
 Rehabilitation model implemented with South Gloucestershire community staff  
 All patients treated within 18 weeks of GP referral unless delay due to clinical complexity or 

choice  
 All orthopaedic patients treated in-house  
 New Emergency Department outcomes met  
 No South Gloucestershire patient needing community services will be delayed in an acute bed  
 Three patient pathways agreed with community services to reduce length of stay or avoid 

admission  
 Expectations agreed with social services regarding the effective management of patient flow  
 
Serious Incidents 
 
The Trust is committed to providing high quality care to patients within a safe environment and 
therefore it is the policy of the trust to take all reasonable steps to minimise the risk of harm to 
patients in the course of their treatment and care.  However, when incidents do occur the Trust is 
fully committed to learn lessons to improve patient safety.   
 
An open and learning culture operates within the trust and all patient safety incidents are reported 
to the National Reporting & Learning Service (NRLS) and the Care Quality Commission (CQC).  
The Trust also adheres to the principles of Being Open as defined by the National Patient Safety 
Agency (NPSA).  Being Open encourages and supports a culture of honesty and transparency 
when communicating with patients and their families - following an incident in which a patient was 
harmed.  Organisational feedback reports from the NRLS indicate high levels of reporting from the 
Trust and this is indicative of a positive learning culture within the organisation.  A very high 
proportion of incidents reported this year resulted in either no harm or very minor harm to patients.  
This demonstrates that lessons have been learnt and shared. 
 
There were 61 serious incidents reported this year (compared to 63 last year).  All of these 
incidents were thoroughly investigated using root cause analysis (RCA) methodology and an 
action plan for each incident was implemented. This minimises the risks of such incidents re-
occurring.  All RCA reports and the implementation of action plans are agreed and monitored by  
the Trust’s Clinical Risk Committee.  

 
The Department of Health lists very serious, preventable patient safety incidents that ideally 
should not occur if the relevant preventative measures have been put in place. These are called 
‘never events’. 
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Two ‘never events’ occurred in the Trust during 2011/12: 
 
1. Unintended retention of a foreign object post surgical intervention 
 
The retained object was a small microvascular clamp and this was removed during a subsequent 
operation, which resulted in a satisfactory outcome for the patient.  The patient was fully informed 
of the incident and accepted a formal apology. A full investigation was carried out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident   

 A Swab, Instrument & Needle count Policy has been written and implemented within the 
Trust.  This dictates the action to be taken when there is a discrepancy in the count and 
requires that an x-ray be taken if this is the case. 

 The peri-operative record of care has been revised to include documented recording of the 
count being correct.  If not, the above policy must be followed. 

 A safe system of work has been written and implemented for the use of microvascular 
clamps.  This links to the policy and peri-operative record of care outlined above.   

 The Clinical Risk Committee is assured that the above actions have been implemented and 
will improve patient safety. 

 
2. Wrong Site Surgery  
 
A surgical intervention was performed on the wrong organ in a patient.  The operation was 
complex due to distortion of the patient’s anatomy.  This incident has resulted in some long term 
harm for the patient although the patient has since fully recovered.  The patient has been fully 
informed and an apology given.  A full investigation has been carried out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident  

 The incident was caused by human error due to distorted anatomy.  The consultant 
surgeon was experienced, and was assisted by another specialist  

 The World Health Organisation Surgical Safety Checklist was used correctly and as such, 
could not have prevented this error. 

 The case was discussed at directorate clinical governance meetings and disseminated 
widely to raise awareness of distorted anatomy with clinical staff. 

 The Clinical Risk Committee, Commissioners and the National Patient Safety Agency are 
assured that human error is an acceptable reason for this incident and that all procedures 
were carried out correctly. 

 
Implementation of guidance from the National Institute Clinical Excellence (NICE) 
 
The Trust manages the guidance received from NICE through the Clinical Effectiveness 
Committee. The committee ensures that all relevant specialities are aware of new guidance from 
NICE when issued. The procedures cover Technology Appraisals, Clinical Guidelines and 
Interventional Procedure Guidance. Audit of implementation of NICE guidance is given priority 
within the Trust annual audit programme. 
 
Safety and Quality Improvement work streams 
 
In 2007, the Trust commenced quality improvement work as part of the Safer Patient Initiative 
funded by the Health Foundation. As part of our commitment to improving quality and safety we 
have continued to develop and spread our improvement work.  During 2011/12 the South West 
Strategic Health Authority has facilitated a programme to continue the spread of this work to cover 
all acute Trusts in the South West region. The Trust is actively contributing to the South West 
work and internally has four work streams – general ward, perioperative care, critical care, 
medicines management. 
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General Wards Work Stream 
There are several projects for improvement of care on general wards which also includes 
recognition of the deteriorating patient and falls – both of which were priority topics. 
 
Urinary Catheter Care 
 
 

Urinary Catheter Care Bundle 
Compliance with Insertion

January 2012
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Measures for urinary catheter care will continue to be reported to as they are now part of the 
national Operation Framework for 2012/13 with the introduction of the NHS Safety Thermometer 
and CQUIN which includes Catheter Infections. 
 
Safety Briefings 
 Clinical communications are vital for safe hand over of care between professional teams. 

Safety Briefings took place at least once a day on every ward in 2011/12. 
 
Next Steps 

 Recovery has agreed to audit catheter insertion in theatres. 
 developing an audit tool  catheter insertion in Emergency Department 
 Surveillance - Microbiology CAUTI definition agreed. 
 Capturing CAUTI data on new version ICNET commencing end of March  
 National prevalence audit data being reviewed for baseline measurement.  

 
Peri-operative care work stream 
 
Why is this important? 
The Peri-operative work includes the use of pre-list briefings, the WHO checklist, and teamwork 
training in theatre. The aim is also to reduce surgical site infection (SSI) by ensuring all aspects of 
the “SSI bundle” are complete. These include appropriate hair removal, on-time antibiotics, peri-
operative normothermia and normoglycaemia 
 
 surgical safety checklist 
Team briefings before operating lists improve safety and ensure lists run efficiently. These have 
been introduced across the Trust and will be regularly audited using electronic recording to 
monitor compliance.  
 
Next Steps 
 Publication of data - feedback of results to individual surgeons and anaesthetists,  
 Improve contemporary data  
 Theatre leads identified for theatre complexes; briefings embedded into the Productive 

Operating Theatre work as part of preparations for moving into the new hospital. 
 Engagement of clinical groups (neurosurgery and plastics) to improve compliance with theatre 

briefings 
 Team training in Frenchay and Southmead – need to engage more doctors in the work 
 Implement - 5 Steps for Safer Surgery (a guide to the whole process)  



 

 29

 
% Compliance Theatre Briefings

December 2011
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 Normothermia 
Keeping patients warm after surgery can reduce post operative infections. Key work has been 
completed to collect measurements and get baseline data.  Trust thermometers were recalibrated 
to read oral temperatures that have greater accuracy than measuring temperature via the ear. If 
patients are too cold - warmers are used post surgery to raise body temperature. 
 

Next Steps 
 Recovery has moved to electronic data entry to improve data collection. 
 Improve use of use forced air warmers for short cases. 
 Feedback of results to individual anaesthetists, to improve compliance 
 ODPs to take lead on initiating warming if at pre-list brief it is identified that GA > 30 minutes  

 

% Compliance Normothermia
December 2011
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Medicines Management Workstream 
The Trust joined the Safer Patients Initiative (SPI) Programme in May 2007 and when this finished 
we joined the South West Quality and Improvement Programme in September 2009. We decided 
to focus on the following areas: 

 Medicines Reconciliation 
 Missed doses 
 Warfarin 

 
Medicines Reconciliation  

Why is this important? 

Ensuring an accurate record of medications on admission to hospital is important for safe 
treatment. Reconciliation is a process of confirming the medication that a patient is taking with at 
least two independent sources of information.  
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In December 2007, the National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) in 
collaboration with the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) issued guidance on how to improve 
processes to ensure that any medication patients are taking prior to admission is fully 
documented on admission.  
 

Prescribing errors can result in harm to patients and the aim of this process is to ensure when 
patients are admitted to hospital that important medicines aren’t stopped and that new medicines 
are prescribed, with a complete knowledge of what a patients is already taking. NBTI set a 
target of 5% as the upper limit of patients who can be admitted without their medicines 
reconciled within 24 hours. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Number of Patients With No Reconciliation (Six Month Medians)
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Progress to Date 

The Trust achieved the 5% target in November 2010 and maintained this until August 2011 with 
data on 33 wards. We then reviewed our data collection and reduced the quantity of data on those 
wards that have consistently achieved this target and started to focus on new areas that have 
increased levels of admissions. In October 2011 we also started to focus on data from Sunday 
admissions.   
 
We are also continuing to audit the quality of meds reconciliation and report separately. Our data 
collection started on 10 wards and increased to 38 wards. We are now reviewing the data to 
ensure we focus on wards with significant numbers of admissions. Now that we have achieved 
and maintained our target, we will continue to monitor and review admissions data on a regular 
basis. 
 
 Missed doses  
 
Why is this important? 
Missed doses are important to ensure a patient’s care is not compromised. Missed doses were 
highlighted as an issue at the Trust following a review of incident forms.  
 
In 2009 / 2010, we achieved the CQUINS target to reduce the incidence of missed doses by 20%. 
In addition in February 2010, the NPSA produced a rapid response report regarding this safety 
concern.  For 2011 / 2012 the CQUINS target was set as a further reduction of 15% giving us a 
target of an incidence of 1.95% in Q4 (January – March 2012).  
   
 

Med Rec Jul-Dec 07 (44.2%) Jan-Jun 08 (33%) Jul-Dec 08 (26.6%)
Jan-Jun 09 (22.9%) Jul-Dec 09 (22.6%) Jan-Jun 10 (14.7%) Jul-Dec 10 (7.8%)
Jan-Jun 11 (3.5%) Target

SPI-2 Program Ends

SPI-2 Program Starts South West Program Begins

PD SA  Phase 1
5- 8  W ard s Part icip at ing

PD SA  Phase 3
11- 3 0  W ard s 

PD SA  Phase 2
8 - 11 W ard s 

http://www.npsa.nhs.uk/nrls/alerts-and-directives/joint-npsa-nice-guidance/
http://www.npsa.nhs.uk/nrls/alerts-and-directives/joint-npsa-nice-guidance/
http://www.npsa.nhs.uk/nrls/alerts-and-directives/joint-npsa-nice-guidance/
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Progress to Date 
Collated results for January 2012 show that we have achieved the target of 1.95% and reached 
1.88%. Pharmacists are measuring missed doses on a daily basis and wards have been asked to 
collect data via an e-tool on a weekly basis. . This is currently being done on 29 wards within the 
Trust but pharmacists are working with the other wards to increase this. 
 
There has been continued ward based training, handover sheets and aide memoire posters.  In 
addition pharmacists are working with the productive ward initiative to help to spread this practice. 
Medicines Management Technicians are also policing missed doses and looking at drugs where 
missed doses have occurred and highlighting this to the Pharmacists. Pharmacists also review 
data on a weekly basis for underlying causes. 
 
Within the pharmacy, a pink supply slip was introduced to ensure that missed doses are 
prioritised in Dispensary to enable a turnaround time of one hour.  We next plan to look at ‘blanks’ 
i.e. omitted signatures as we have found there was a high incidence of these 
 
 Warfarin   

Why is this important?  
The NPSA flagged Warfarin as being a drug with a high number of adverse incidents with 
increased risk of bleeding associated with poor control of warfarin management. Since 2007, 
numbers of INR’s over 6 (a monitoring measurement for warfarin) have consistently decreased 
with many dosing errors eliminated. All junior doctors now complete an e-learning module as part 
of trust induction. 
 
Progress to Date  
We are now monitoring and investigating high INR’s on a daily basis and have trialled a test of 
change to improve the current system. Feedback occurs from this process and changes can be 
considered for the warfarin administration form, doctors training package and warfarin counselling 
list. 
 
In February 2011, we updated our anticoagulant chart and we have rolled this out to all wards. 
Wards also received training on completion of the charts to ensure that warfarin is prescribed at 
2pm (although administration will still be at 6pm).  
 
Currently we are working to produce a Warfarin e-learning package for nurses. The Haematology 
section of the Pathology website has been updated and there are various links to other resources. 
Ward based training is being planned and there are now posters in the Discharge lounges on both 
sites.  Future plans include a review of discharge prescriptions and increased communication  
  
Critical Care work stream 
 
Critical Care mortality data 
Latest Standard Mortality data from the Intensive Care National Audit & Research Centre shows 
the best outcomes ever reported from the Trust’s critical care units. According to the data patients 
are between 28 – 39 % more likely to survive than the national average for patients with similar 
condition severity, if they are treated in one of our units at NBT.  
 
This is set against a background of mixed results shown from the latest saving lives high impact 
intervention reports. Audit and data collection remains excellent with reliability and quality of data 
capture high.  
 
Our compliance in a number of areas remains excellent but there is continuing difficulty (as 
experienced by many other critical care units) in obtaining reliable Ventilated Acquired Pneumonia 
data. Our compliance in the ventilator care bundle is excellent. Compliance with Safety briefings, 
goals documentation, Central Vein catheter care, C diff infection reduction are all good.  
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Next Steps 
 Major change in bed capacity at Frenchay site with move to 19 fully staffed beds  
 Increase critical care outreach cover to include trauma patients by 10 hours per week  
 “Hot bed” policy to be trialled to improve patient flow from ED / ward to ITU as problems of 

time taken from decision to admit to admission are addressed.  

% of Multidisciplinary Rounds and Two Daily Goals Documented in ICU - January 
2012
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% ITU Mortality in NBT
January 2012

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
ug

-0
9

S
ep

-0
9

O
ct

-0
9

N
ov

-0
9

D
ec

-0
9

Ja
n-

1
0

F
eb

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

A
pr

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
n-

1
0

Ju
l-1

0

A
ug

-1
0

S
ep

-1
0

O
ct

-1
0

N
ov

-1
0

D
ec

-1
0

Ja
n-

1
1

F
eb

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

A
pr

-1
1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
n-

1
1

Ju
l-1

1

A
ug

-1
1

S
ep

-1
1

O
ct

-1
1

N
ov

-1
1

D
ec

-1
1

Ja
n-

1
2

ITU Mortality Median

 
 

Safer Clinical Systems 
 

We have recently begun a new programme with the Health Foundation on Safer Clinical Systems. 
This project is looking at the handover of care for serious ill patients which will further develop the 
safety work of our clinical teams. 
 

This work is focussing on renal patients with chronic kidney disease or living kidney donors who 
are undergoing a surgical procedure.  This group of patients are high risk and often have lots of 
complications with complex treatment information which has to be communicated to other clinical 
teams after surgery.   The project is looking at improving patient safety through better systems for 
handovers, standardising work practices, developing decision aids & providing staff training.  The 
outcomes will be to reduce risks, improve reliability of procedures and deliver a better patient 
experience. 
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Quality of Cancer Services  
 
National Cancer Peer Review is a rolling quality review programme for cancer services and 
multidisciplinary teams. 

Performance against National Cancer Peer Review 2011/12 
Tumour site/topic reviewed % compliance 

Breast MDT 93.6% (29/31) 
Lung MDT 81.5% (22/27) 
Penile MDT 85% (17/20) 
Urology  MDT 93% (40/43) 
Skin MDT 83.3% (25/30) 
Colorectal MDT 90.2% (37/41) 
Sarcoma MDT 82.9% (29/35) 
Brain and CNS tumours MDT 75% (30/40) 
Gynae Locality -Diagnostics only 100% (6/6) 
Colorectal Locality -diagnostic services 100% (2/2) 
Complementary therapies 80% (4/5) 
Head and neck locality – neck lump clinics and support services 100% (11/11) 
Sarcoma locality – diagnostic clinic 100% (12/12) 
Brain and CNS tumours locality – pathways and communication  81.5% (9/10) 
Chemotherapy services 76.2% (32/42) 
Oncology pharmacy 100% (6/6) 
Acute oncology team 16.7% (1/6) new measures 
Acute oncology general services 30% (3/10) new measures 
Acute oncology in patient services 0% (0/4) new measures 

 
All teams achieved the required minimum 70% compliance. Acute Oncology measures are new 
measures released in 2011. They require implementation of a service model to improve the 
support provided to unwell cancer patients admitted via an unplanned route. The Trust is in the 
process of developing services to meet the new measures. 
 
Innovation and transforming care 
 
The Trust has gained national recognition as well as interest from Australia and Ireland for the 
work they have undertaken around cancer survivorship. This has involved redesigning after 
treatment care to involve patients in self-management of their cancer after education, as well as 
implementing a remote surveillance system and a risk stratified model of follow-up. This allows 
assessment, monitoring and communication without patients needing to attend the hospital. As 
part of the work an independent evaluation was undertaken, by Ipsos Mori, and this highlighted: 
 

 85% of patients were confident in managing their own health with education 
 82% knew who to contact for help and had done this with 70% contacting the clinical nurse 

specialist and 39% their GP 
Some patient quotes from our own evaluation: 

“the part on managing stress & fear of it coming back is really good, I felt better afterwards” 
“Given me more confidence to deal with day to day challenges that do arise” 

“It was nice not to be spoken to like a victim, very informative and positive morning” 
 

National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 
 

The Trust takes part in the annual national cancer patient experience survey. Overall in the 
national cancer patient survey for 2011: 
 

 Patients felt they received their diagnosis sensitively 
 They were given choice of the different types of treatments available to them 
 Had understandable answers to important questions 
 Felt the clinical nurse specialist had time to listen 
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There were some key areas for improvement around written information in some areas and 
Information Prescriptions which have been implemented within the Trust to help improve access 
to individualised information. 
 
The Trust met all contractual targets for cancer treatments as set out in the national Cancer Plan. 
 
Cancer Plan Targets Target 2011/12 

Actual 

Cancer TWW GP Referrals 93% 93.8% 

Cancer TWW Breast Symptoms 93% 97.8% 

Cancer 62day First Treatment from GP Referral 85% 88.1% 

Cancer 62Day First Treatment from Consultant Screening 90% 95.8% 

Cancer 62Day First Treatment from Consultant Upgrade 90% 95.8% 

Cancer 31Day First Treatment from Diagnosis 96% 97.3% 

Cancer 31Day Secondary Surgery Treatment 94% 97.3% 

Cancer 31Day Secondary Anti Cancer Drug Treatment 98% 100.0% 

Cancer 31Day Secondary Radiotherapy Treatment 94% 100.0% 

 
Environment  
 
The Trust has been successful in securing funds from Macmillan to develop a bespoke centre in 
the new hospital at Southmead where cancer patients and their families can go for information, 
support, complementary therapies, self-management programmes, creating a meeting place that 
meets all their supportive needs in a non clinical and relaxing environment. 
 
South Gloucestershire Community Health Services 
 
On the 1 April 2011, South Gloucestershire Community Health Services transferred to the Trust as 
part of the national “Transforming Community Services” initiative. The transfer has enabled staff 
providing care to adults in community settings to work more closely with hospital based 
colleagues to improve the care that local people receive.  
 
Improving Ways of working 
We have reorganised our domiciliary staff, providing care to people in their own homes, into multi-
disciplinary teams working more closely with GP practices. This aims to ensure a co-ordinated 
approach to identifying and meeting patient needs. Our community staff meet with GPs and other 
primary care staff on a regular basis to review the patients with highest need to agree the best 
ways to support them. This is part of the Care Planning initiative. 
 
Working with others who care 
In 2011/12, we have been building our relationships with organisations that support patients and 
carers in South Gloucestershire. We attend the South Gloucestershire Senior Citizens’ Forum 
listening to concerns and providing information. We have run a: “Care to Share” event for local 
organisations that support patients and carers giving them an opportunity to share information 
with our staff about the services they offer. We are encouraging our staff to use the “Well Aware” 
web site which provides information about local organisations and have been working with the 
Care Forum to move this forward. We have worked with the Trusts Voluntary Services Manager 
and recruited five meal time Volunteers to improve the meal time experience for patients on 
Henderson Ward at Thornbury Hospital 
 
Listening to Patients in the community 
We established a community Patient Forum in November 2011 with members drawn from the 
Senior Citizens’ Forum, the Trust’s Patient Panel and LINks. We have carried out patient surveys 
in every service, including piloting a survey for Young People at the Yate MIU on behalf of the 
South Gloucestershire LINks. 
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Part 5 – Ongoing commitment to improving the patient 
experience  
 
The Trust continually strives to improve the patient experience.  We want to understand what it is 
like to use our services; therefore we are committed to listening and involving our patients.  We 
extend this commitment to carers, families and members of the public, because we value their 
contribution too.  Becoming a Foundation Trust will also help us to strengthen our ability to be 
more responsive. 
 
To refresh our approach to involving people we have re-written our Patient & Public Involvement 
Strategy to take us up to 2013.  This sets out a framework for involvement at all levels within the 
Trust to ensure we are compliant, covering one to one interactions with patients and their families 
through to working strategically with patient and carer organisations such as Local Involvement 
Networks [LINks] and The Carers Support Centre. 
 
At the heart of ensuring the Trust provides an excellent experience is the Patient Experience 
Group, chaired by the Director of Nursing. Membership includes Patient Experience Leads who 
are responsible for taking the patient experience agenda out into the Directorates and patient and 
carer representation from the Trust’s Patient Panel, LINks and The Carers Support Centre.  The 
group drives how we improve patient experience through involvement and is responsible for 
analysing national surveys, CQUIN targets and patient feedback data from other patient 
involvement. 
 
The Trust has a long standing Patient Panel, with a membership of patients and carers who use 
our services or care for patients using our services.  They are passionate about helping us to 
improve services for patients and carers.  Members are highly valued for their contribution and 
hard work.  As critical friends Patient Panel know that their voice counts and that they make a 
difference.  Over the past year they have been involved in over 60 projects and activities.  These 
include: 
 
 Appointments of senior staff at the request of the Chief Executive 
 Quality and care audits 
 PEAT inspections 
 Nursing Quality Assessment Tool audits on every ward 
 Members of key committees e.g. Quality Committee, Clinical Effectiveness Committee 
 Homecare drugs - future arrangements at NBT 
 Public Patient Forum Meeting for South Glos Community Services 
 Pressure Ulcer Steering Group 
 
We also have a range of other patient/user groups who make a significant contribution to the 
development of services across the Trust.  These include the Rheumatology Patient Support 
Group, the Renal Forum and Headway, in terms of brain injury.  We continue to work 
collaboratively with our Bristol and South Gloucestershire LINks through Enter & Views like the 
Nutrition & Hydration follow up visit and the Emergency Department visit.  We also have 
discharge and stroke meetings planned.  This year we have also had the pleasure of working with 
the Patient Association on our ‘Noise at night’ project where they provided us with a helpful report 
and recommendations that we are actioning through our Heads of Nursing. 
 
Over the last year we carried out a successful Foundation Trust consultation and during that time 
more than 2,500 staff and public gave their views on our plans, one of the highest numbers of 
responses to any NHS Foundation Trust consultation in England.  We also now have signed up 
5400 Foundation Trust members.  The consultation meant we had an opportunity to re-engage 
with a wide range of community groups and in particular hard to reach groups including the Pride 
event for Lesbian, Gay, Bi-sexual and Trans people, Womankind, Council of Bristol Mosques and 
South Gloucestershire Disability Equality Action Group. 
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The extensive programme of involvement and communication continues to engage patients, 
carers and the local community in the development of the new hospital.  We have also been 
working hard to encourage involvement from a wide range of service users for the new Frenchay 
Health & Social Care User Group. 
 
We continue to sit on key statutory and voluntary sections partnerships such as the Bristol 
Equality Health Partnership and South Gloucestershire’s Equalities Forum and we work closely 
with the Care Forum [an umbrella organisation of health & social care groups] as required. 
 
National Patient Survey results in 2011/12  
The Trust takes part in the National patient surveys published by the Care Quality Commission.  
During the last year we have taken part in an inpatient survey and an outpatient survey. 
 
Inpatient Survey  
A random sample of 850 of patients was selected from patient lists and 456 patients responded.  
Each year a different group of patients is sampled – 61% of respondents were in the 60+ age 
group.  The results of the survey have highlighted the many positive aspects of the patient 
experience e.g.  
 
 Overall: rating of care was good/excellent (91%). 
 Overall: doctors and nurses worked well together (91%) 
 Doctors: always had confidence and trust (84%) 
 Hospital: room or ward was very/fairly clean (95%) 
 Hospital: toilets and bathrooms were very/fairly clean (92%) 
 Hospital: hand-wash gels visible and available for patients and visitors to use (90%) 
 Care: always enough privacy when being examined or treated (90%) 
 
Comparison of the areas where we did not improve   

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 69 % 76% 

Discharge: not told how long delay in discharge would be 57 % 73% 

Planned admission: not given choice of admission date 66% 68% 

Planned admission: admission date changed by hospital 22% 25% 

Hospital: didn't get enough information about ward routines 58% 73% 

Hospital: food was fair or poor 46% 50% 

Hospital: not always healthy food on hospital menu 37% 42% 

 
Outpatient Survey 
A random sample of 850 patients was selected from patient lists attending outpatient clinics in 
May 2011, of which 452 patients responded.  The table below compares the latest survey results 
for NBT from 2010 with those from 2009.  These have been identified  
 

 Comparison of 2009 and 2010 results (lower scores are better) 

Category Question 2009 2011 

Before appointment Not fully aware what would happen during appointment 63% 57% 

Before appointment Not given name of person that appointment would be with 24% 30% 

Arrival at hospital Not easy to find way to Outpatients 29% 27% 

Waiting in hospital Patient waited for longer than they were told, or were not 
told how long the wait would be 

67% 74% 

Waiting in hospital Patient not told why they had to wait 71% 72% 

Waiting in hospital Nobody apologised for delay when waiting to be seen -   * 52% 
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Hospital environment  No leaflets or posters about hand washing 11% 10% 

Hospital facilities Patients unable to get suitable food and drink 34% 39% 

Overall about the 
appointment 

Do not always see the same doctor or member of staff 

 

52% 56% 

* This question was not asked in 2009 
 
Areas for Improvement in 2012/13 
 
We have identified the following issues from the latest National In-patient survey as areas where 
we need to make improvements this year. There were 4 key areas of concern: 
 

 Improving facilities e.g.  better storage for personal belongings/food available out of hours 
 Changing planned admission e.g. giving patients a choice of alternative date 
 Informing patients when they are likely to be discharged 
 Involving patients more in decisions about care 
 

Complaints 
 
The Trust continues to implement a robust complaints policy (which was reviewed and updated 
this year) and is actively working on ways to effectively analyse information from complaints to 
guide and improve patient’s experience.  

Year 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 
Number of complaints 728 611 774 
Complaints per 1000 patient 
episodes 

1.26 1.01 2.14 

 
Monitoring and Feedback 

In order to continue to take full advantage of potential learning by the Trust improved monitoring 
has been undertaken within the Complaints Team to provide more information on services and 
analysis of complaint data:   

 Monthly feedback to directorate General Managers is provided which provides details of 
complaint numbers, types, specialties, and also contains graphical analysis of the data. 
Response times and action plans are also closely monitored along with returned complaints 
and the reason for the return.  

 A monthly report to Heads of Nursing, Matrons and Ward Managers in a form that allows for 
individual analysis of complaints/concerns by directorate, over variable time periods, has also 
been introduced. 

 A “dashboard” of key performance indications and lessons learnt is also produced quarterly 
for the Executive Team and presented at Trust Board Meetings. 

Complaints Action Plans 

All complaint responses are returned to the Complaints Department with an Audit Trail Form and 
a completed Action Plan.  The Advice and Complaints Team have continued to monitor the 
returned Action Plans for complaint themes and to track where these are outstanding. Monthly 
completion details are provided to individual directorate General Managers. 

Customer Satisfaction 

The Health Service Ombudsman sighted NBT as an example in their annual report of good 
practice - this was from a complaint at NBT, which highlighted lack of knowledge in A&E about a 
rare condition and which consequently led to poor patient experience. Following successful 
resolution in which the Trust undertook briefings & training to raise awareness of the condition 
among A&E staff, the complainant subsequently wrote to the Health Service Ombudsman to 
praise the Trust for implementing the identified learning, which was then directly experienced by a 



 

 38

fellow sufferer from the same support group. In the patient’s own words: ‘evidently the educative 
information about AD [autonomic dysreflexia] given to their staff ……… has had the desired 
effect’. This was exactly the outcome he wanted. 

Trend Analysis  

The complaints team analyse complaints by recording the main concerns raised by subject 
category 

Complaint Category 2010/11 2011/12 
Services - access and waiting;  16% 2% 
Better information communication and choice required;  27% 48% 
A clean comfortable place to be in;  1% 4% 
Building relations;  4% 6% 
Provision of safe, high quality care. 45% 31% 

 
The problems experienced with the new electronic patient record system led to a substantial 
increase in complaints categorised as ‘better information/communication’.  The reduction in 
complaints in regard to ‘safe, high quality care’ reflect a better performance during last year for all 
clinical areas and may be as a result of the safety and quality improvement work being more 
evident  to patients. 
 
Children and Young Person’s Complaints Service 

Work has been undertaken this year in conjunction with Barnardos to provide an improved 
pathway for complaints to be raised by Children and Young People. The changes concentrate on 
providing facilities and encouragement for Children and Young People to feel comfortable raising 
their concerns about a service. Awareness of the initiative has been supported by staff at senior 
and operational level in the Child Health Partnership to understand and trial the new process. The 
initiative has been supported by a new information leaflet and poster designed and written by 
young service users. 

Compliments 

7,120 written compliments were received during 2011/12, these are received in writing either by 
letter, card, email or feedback cards.  Many verbal compliments are received via the telephone or 
face to face but these are not recorded.  Positive feedback is shared with staff and patients to 
promote and celebrate good practice as well as to boost staff morale. 
 
Privacy and Dignity 
During 2011, Privacy and Dignity rooms were developed on both sites to provide space for friends 
and relatives of patients to meet with clinical staff and receive information / news about their loved 
ones. They have been decorated and furnished using funds donated by the League of Friends.   
 
Dignity is a key element assessed through our Nursing Quality Assessment Tool.  The patient 
survey suggests high satisfaction with the attitude shown by staff which is supported by the 
observation survey. All answers in this section score above 80%.  
 
Carers 
In November 2011, we launched a Carers Charter jointly with University Hospitals Bristol NHS 
Foundation Trust that serves to recognise and clarify our common purpose in: 

 Valuing carers as equal partners  
 Supporting carers by providing information on carers rights  
 Ensuring carers have a voice in the planning and delivery of services 
 Sharing information, with the patient’s consent 
 Involving and supporting young carers 
 Inclusion in discharge planning 

 
The Trust’s Carer Support Scheme has been developed for carers who are willing to continue to 
support a patient whilst they are in hospital with tasks such as washing, dressing, assisting with 
feeding, and supporting them at night. Not all carers will be willing or able to continue their caring 



 

 39

role when the patient is admitted and may wish to use the hospital admission as a respite 
opportunity, but they will still be involved in care planning as appropriate, with the patients 
consent. 
 
We will continue to develop our relationship with carers and monitor our progress through our 
Patient Experience Group. 
 
 
Involvement of patients and the public   
The Trust employs a Patient and Community Engagement Manager who co-ordinates a 
programme of work to actively engage and involve patients, the public and community groups in 
the design, planning and delivery of its services.  This activity includes: 
 

 Work of the Trust’s Patient Panel – who are extensively involved in many aspects of the Trust 
work – from being involved in appointing doctors, senior nurses & executives through to 
conducting quality audits on wards. 

 Involvement and communication programme ensuring the engagement of patients, carers and 
the local community with the development of the new hospital. 

 Improving the patient experience through the work of the Patient Experience Group which has 
a membership of patients, carers and a cross section of staff e.g. porters and nurses. 

 Specialty patient groups which are involved in the delivery of care. 

 Patients or voluntary/statutory organisations involvement through service or specialist user 
groups e.g. Diabetes, renal users group, BUST.   

 Multi agency work such as the Bristol Race Equality Health Partnership and Care Forum (an 
umbrella organisation for health & social care groups). 

 The Trust also has close working relationships with South Gloucestershire and Bristol Local 
Involvement Networks (LINks) to ensure a wide involvement of patients, carers and the local 
community. 

 Significant work has being undertaken on involvement and consultation of the hard to reach 
communities to ensure identified priorities are influencing policy and service planning 
decisions. 
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Part 6 - What other organisations say about the Trust 
 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

By law from April 2010 all Trusts must be registered with the CQC to show they are meeting 
essential quality standards.  NHS Trusts have to be registered for each of the regulated activities 
they provide at each location from which they provide them.  Without registration, we would not be 
allowed to operate. 

The Trust has registered for all of its regulated activities. The Trust is fully registered ‘without 
conditions’ as a provider with the CQC. The Trust is compliant with the essential standards of 
quality and safety and outcomes for care, and has appropriate action plans in place to address 
any gaps and ensure continual improvement.  

During the year, the Trust received four unannounced visits from the CQC as part of their ongoing 
review process for Trusts, providing evidence on a number of outcomes, and as part of the 
planned inspection reviews.  
 
The inspections were as follows; 

 Frenchay Hospital – end March 2011 – report received May 2011 
 Dignity & Nutrition Inspection (DANI) – May 2011 
 Southmead Hospital – September 2011 
 Maternity Services – March 2012 

 
In the three separate visit reports the CQC found the Trust was compliant overall and meeting all 
16 essential standards but had minor concerns which included: 
 

 the supply of pressure mattresses out of hours 
 detailing patient preferences on admission 
 some medical records  were left unsupervised 
 Not all staff were aware of, or understood adult safeguarding principles and processes. 
 Some patients with dementia appeared not to be supported with personal care after a 

meal, which included changing clothes which had food spillages on them.  
 Delays in submitting data to the National Patient Safety Agency 

 
Action plans to address these minor concerns were developed and implemented following each 
inspection. 
 
In the Dignity and Nutrition Inspection report in May – the CQC rated NBT as compliant with 
systems in place to ensure that people’s nutritional needs are being addressed. However they 
highlighted minor concerns that these were not being put into practice consistently. The CQC 
reviewed this outcome again during the September visit and subsequently judged patients can be 
assured their nutritional needs are now being met. 
 
At the time of writing the Trust is awaiting outcome of the fourth unannounced inspection to 
maternity services on the regulated activity for termination of pregnancies.  
 
North Bristol NHS Trust continues to work at ensuring that it is compliant with all quality standards 
from regulators and other statutory and advisory bodies. This is part of the continuous 
improvement process that the Trust follows and develops each year. 
 
The Trust has not taken part in any special reviews or investigations by the CQC under section 48 
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 during the reporting period. 
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Independent Review of Histopathology Services 
 
During 2011/12, University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust has implemented a 
comprehensive action plan in conjunction with North Bristol NHS Trust and NHS Bristol Primary 
Care Commissioners in response to the Inquiry recommendations. The progress of the action 
plan has been publically reported in both Trusts’ Board papers throughout the year and to the 
local Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees, NHS Bristol, the Care Quality Commission and 
Monitor. A summary of a few key areas of work covered by the Histopathology action plan is 
provided below. 
 
In 2011/12 the work, led by Dr Rob Pitcher has focussed on building on the foundations for a 
single integrated cellular pathology service for Bristol such as introducing new quality and 
governance arrangements for the service, reviewing workforce requirements, process redesign 
and increasing joint working across the city. Since the Inquiry report, two new consultant posts 
have been set up and five new consultants have been appointed into new or existing vacancies, 
including in the speciality areas of respiratory and paediatric pathology.  
 
Within the year, a review of the operation of Multidisciplinary Team meetings was conducted. 
Improvements have been made, working jointly with University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation 
Trust (UHB), for example - providing clearer information for patients about Multidisciplinary Team 
meetings and setting standards for attendance by contributing disciplines which exceed those 
required by the National Cancer Peer Review process. The operation of these meetings is subject 
to on-going audit which is reported internally as well as by exception to the Cancer Board.  
 
We have also worked to better understand the expectations of our patients and the public in 
relation to tests and diagnoses through a range of patient and public involvement work such as 
focus groups and surveys, working with our commissioners, governors and Local Involvement 
Network. The results are being fed into the development of the integrated service and to 
commissioners and other providers as well as within UHB to improve patients’ experiences of 
care pathways. 
 
In May 2011, the Care Quality Commission carried out a responsive review of UHB 
histopathology services and found that the Trust was meeting all the essential standards of quality 
and safety they reviewed. They made three recommendations to maintain the quality of 
histopathology services, which are reflected in the progress made in key areas described above. 
 
As the year drew to an end, the Independent Inquiry Panel returned to UHB to review progress in 
response to their recommendations. The panel visited the Histopathology Department and talked 
to patients, relatives and staff from both Trusts. The panel congratulated both Trusts on the 
achievements to date and said that they had seen real evidence of a genuine commitment to 
implement their recommendations and evidence of real progress. They recommended maintaining 
momentum of change and improvement with continued focus on the key areas in our action plan. 
These further recommendations will be incorporated into the development of the future single 
integrated service. 
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Part 7 – Engagement and Consultation in choosing our 
priorities 
 
 
As part of the process to determine the Trust priorities for quality in 2012/13 the Trust undertook 
programme of engagement with patients & carers, staff,  local health involvement networks 
(LINks), Local Authority Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Primary Care Trusts and 
others. This has included meetings, targeted discussions and specific presentations about the 
Quality Account e.g; 
 
Presentation/discussion at Quality Committee – January 2012 
Discussion at Patient Experience Group - January 2012 
Discussion with Trust Patient Panel – February 2012 
Presentation to Bristol Health Scrutiny Committee – March 2012 
Presentation to South Gloucestershire Health Scrutiny Committee – April 2012 
Presentation to Trust Patient Panel – April 2012 
 
The Trust also undertook an extensive on-line survey of the Trusts public website and distributed 
survey questionnaires to patients in hospital, targeted community groups and all Local Authority 
councillors to ascertain views on the priority topics for the year ahead. 
 
The draft Quality Account was circulated for comment in the period 4th May to 8th June. A list of 
the organisations sent the document as part of the consultation is set out in Appendix 3. 
 
 
External Comments 
 
Any statements provided by commissioning PCT’s, LINks and Local Authority – Health Scrutiny 
Committees to be inserted here. 



 

 43

Appendix 1   List of Services provided by NBT 
 
 

Latest List to be inserted from website 
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Appendix 2   2011/12 CQUINS framework 
 
 

CQUINS rewards 
 Target 2011/12 actual 
Acute Indicators   
Reduce avoidable death, disability and chronic ill 
health from Venous-thromboembolism 

90% 93% 

Improve responsiveness to personal needs of patients 71.9 points 68.5 points 
Improvement against locally determined patient 
experience measures 

90% 98% 

Reduce length of stay for breast cancer patients 
delivered through 23 hour best practice breast cancer 
surgical pathway  

80% 82% 

Better coding for patients with dementia to improve the 
outcomes for patients who present at hospital through 
a range of routes 

+25% +22% 

Reduce ward moves for patients between 8pm and 
8am unless for medical reasons 

95% 99% 

Dementia training to become part of mandatory 
training for all staff 

 Achieved 

Discharge summaries issued within 24 hours 90% Awaiting audit 
Discharge summaries completed to agreed quality 
standards to improve communication with primary 
care.  

90% Awaiting audit 

Increase falls assessment for patients aged 65 and 
over on admission to hospital  

90% 95% 

Reduce number of absolute falls occurring 455 670 
Improving availability and quality of  information for 
patients with learning disabilities 

 Achieved 

Improving assessment for patients with learning 
disabilities on admission to hospital 

90% 90% 

To ensure relevant staff have completed end of life 
training  

 Achieved 

Increase number of vaginal deliveries compared to 
Caesarean section deliveries 

61% 58% 

Increase number of deliveries not using 
instrumentation 

83% 81% 

Reduction in incidents due to medication errors 
causing harm 

1.7% 1% 

Reduction in medication errors due to drugs being 
unavailable 

1.95% 1.45% 

Improve nutritional assessments for patients 90% 90% 
Reduce number of aborted journeys for the patient 
transport service 

3.8% 9.4% 

Reduce the number of non-medical escorts within the 
patient transport service 

9% 16% 

To increase the number of patients being referred to 
smoking cessation services 

500 1247 

Reduce the incidence of Grade 2 and above hospital 
acquired pressure ulcers  

5.5 12.9 

Reduction in infection rates in neonates for 24-26 
weeks gestation at birth 

-10% -6% 

Reduction in infection rates in neonates for 27-29 
weeks gestation at birth 

-5% +40% 

Increase home delivery of drugs for HIV patients  
25% 

27% 

 
   
South Glos Community Health Indicators   
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Service User experience 19 20 
Care planning 85% 98% 
End of Life 220 220 
Ambulatory care sensitive conditions 100 576 
Discharge planning 80% 97% 
   
Children’s Community Health Partnership 
Indicators 

  

Providing 24/7 cover 100% 100% 
Statementing 95% 99% 
Serious case reviews 100% 100% 
CAMHS health outcomes 35% 36.6% 
DNA rated 5.5% 5.1% 
Increase breast feeding rates in Bristol 32.9% 32.9% 
Increase breast feeding rates in South Glos 37.2% 37.2% 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 46

Appendix 3 List of Organisation Consulted & invited to comment 
 
 
Bristol - Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
South Gloucestershire - Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
North Somerset - Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
LINKs – Bristol 
 
LINKs – Sth Gloucestershire 
 
NHS Bristol 
 
North Bristol Trust - Patient Panel 
 
The Care Forum  
 
 



 
 

 
 

Report to Trust Board – May 2012 
 

Title: National Inpatient Survey Results 2011/12 

Purpose of paper: To provide a summary of  the 2011/12 Inpatient Survey results and inform 
the Board of what actions will be taken forward as agreed by Governance 
Risk Management Committee on 2nd May 2012  

 

For Discussion 

Executive Summary:   

456 patients completed 
the Inpatient Survey  - a 
55% response rate 
 
61% of respondents were 
aged over 60. 

The Care Quality Commission requires all acute Trusts to participate in a 
national In-patient Survey. NBT uses Picker Institute to administer the 
process.  824 eligible patients were randomly selected and 456 survey 
questionnaires were returned giving a response rate of 55%.  The results 
below are benchmarked with the 73 Trusts who also use the Picker 
Institute.  

improvements since last 
year’s survey  

[see Appendix 1-  Section A 
and Part B] 

Out of the 87 questions used in the 2010 and 2011 surveys, the Trust 
performance is: 
 Significantly BETTER on 4 questions 
 Significantly WORSE on 2 questions 
 No significant difference on 81 questions 
 

Compare to other Trusts NBT was; 
 Significantly BETTER than average on 12 questions 
 Significantly WORSE than average on 6 questions 
 Scored average on 79 questions 

Based on results there are 
4 key themes for action  

[Appendix 1 – Section B, 
Tables 4 – 7] 

Key areas for improvement  work are:  
 

1. Facilities e.g. storage for personal belongings 
2. Planned admission e.g. patient have dates changed, not given choice 
3. Providing information on discharge 
4. Patient’s involvement in care. 

Directorates will complete an Inpatient Survey Action Plan with set 
timescales. This improvement work will be taken forward with each 
directorate & action plans monitored by Patient Experience Group. (PEG) 

Assurance action for 
2012-13 will be on the 5 
CQUIN targets, plus 3 
further areas identified 
from this Survey. 

 

[Appendix 1, Section B, 
tables 4 – 7] 

The PEG meeting in April 2012 agreed to prioritise the five patient 
experience CQUINs, with an additional 3 areas based upon areas of 
concern in this survey; 
 

5 national patient experience CQUIN targets  
 Were you as involved as you wanted to be in decisions about your 

care and treatment? 
 Did you find someone to talk to about worries and fears? 
 Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition or 

treatment? 
 Were you told about medication side effects to watch out for when 

you went home? 
 Were you told who to contact if you were worried about your 

condition after you left hospital? 
 

From the Inpatient Survey, priorities identified from NBT results; 
 Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 
 Discharge: not told how long delay in discharge would be 
 Planned admission: admission date changed by hospital 



 
 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report which demonstrate that our 
inpatient survey results have improved in some areas.  Of those areas where results 
have worsened 8 have been identified for improvement action planning. 
 

Key Risks: 
Not implementing the Action plan could have a negative impact on the Trust’s reputation 

Impact on 
Patients: 

Implementation of this Action Plan contributes to improving patient experience  

CQC Outcome: All Responsible Committee: Patient Experience Group 

Financial Issues 
considered: 

None Equality Issues Considered: Considered throughout 

Legal Issues None Sustainability Assessment 
Completed: 

No 

 

Presented by:  Marie-Noelle Orzel, Director of Nursing 

Prepared by:   Juliet Winter, Patient & Community Engagement Manager 



 
 

APPENDIX 1 
ANALYSIS OF PATIENTS WHO RESPONDED TO THE SURVEY: 
 
 57% of patients were on a waiting list/planned in advance  
 36% came as an emergency or urgent case. 
 83% had an operation or procedure during the stay 
 47% were male; 50% were female and 4% did not answer 
8% were aged 16-39; 28% were aged 40-59; 26% were aged 60-69 and 35% were aged 70+; 3% did 
not reply 
 
SECTION 1 – AREAS WE HAVE IMPROVED IN 
 
A. Survey highlights many positive aspects of patient experience [Table 1]  
 

Table 1: Positive aspects of patient care: 

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 Average

Overall: rating of care was good/excellent 93% 91% 90%

Doctors: always had confidence and trust 81% 84% 79%

Hospital: room or ward was very/fairly clean 94% 95% 96%

Hospital: toilets and bathrooms were very/fairly clean 93% 92% 93%

Care: always enough privacy when being examined or treated 90% 90% 90% 88%

 
B. Trust has improved significantly on the following areas since 2010 [Table 2] 
 

Table 2: Areas improved in: 

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 

A&E Dept: not given enough privacy when being examined or treated 21% 12%

Planned admission: not given printed information about condition or treatment 27 % 18%

Admission: had to wait long time to get to bed on ward 30% 24%

Overall: not asked to give views on quality of care 84% 78%

 

C. Trust results were significantly better than the ‘Picker average’ [Table 3] 

Table 3: The Trust has worsened significantly on the following questions: 

Lower scores are better 2011 Average

A&E Dept: not enough/too much information about condition and treatment 15% 21%

A&E Dept: not given enough privacy when being examined or treated 12% 22%

A&E Dept: waited 4 hours or more for admission to bed on a ward 15% 26%

Admission: had to wait long time to get to bed on ward 24% 31%

Hospital: patients using bath or shower area who shared it with opposite sex 7% 13%

Doctors: did not always have confidence and trust 15% 19%

Doctors: talked in front of patients as if they were not there 16% 25%

Surgery: risks and benefits not fully explained 14% 18%

Surgery: questions beforehand not fully answered 18% 22%

Discharge: not given any written/printed information about what they should or should 
not do after leaving hospital 

30% 34%

Discharge: not told who to contact if worried 15% 20%

Overall: would not recommend this hospital to family /friends 4% 6%

 
 



 
 
SECTION 2 – AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

D. Areas for improvement where results indicate a less favourable response than in 2010/11  

Table 4: The Trust has worsened significantly on the following questions: 

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 Average

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 69 % 76% 63%

Discharge: not told how long delay in discharge would be 57 % 73% 66%
 

Table 5: Results were significantly worse than the ‘average’ for the following questions: 

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 Average

Planned admission: not given choice of admission date 66% 68% 63%

Planned admission: admission date changed by hospital 22% 25% 19%

Hospital: didn't get enough information about ward routines 58% 73% 68%

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 69% 76% 63%

Hospital: food was fair or poor 46% 50% 43%

Hospital: not always healthy food on hospital menu 37% 42% 33%
 

Table 6: Areas where more than 50% of patients reported most problems: 

Lower scores are better 2010 2011 Average

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 69% 76% 63%

Hospital: didn’t get enough information about ward routines 58% 73% 68%

Planned admission: not given choice of admission date 66% 68% 63%

Hospital: food was fair or poor 46% 50% 43%

The survey is Trust wide but more patients responded from the following specialties e.g. Trauma & 
Orthopaedics, General Surgery, Neurosurgery and Urology.  The key problem areas within those 
specialities have been summarised to focus Directorate Action Plans. 
 

E. Patient experience CQUIN targets [Table 7] 

Table 7: Improving responsiveness to personal needs of patients [CQUINS]  
 

Lower scores are better  
 
 

2010 2011 Average

Were you as involved as you wanted to be in decisions about your care and 
treatment 

47% 45% 46% 

Did you find someone to talk to about worries and fears 56% 63% 58% 
Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition or treatment 26% 29% 27% 
Were you told about medication side effects to watch out for when you went 
home 

56% 58% 61% 

Were you told who to contact if you were worried about your condition after 
you left hospital 

17% 15% 20% 

 
F. Wider Care Quality Commission benchmarking of all Trusts [Table 8] 
An additional area of concern identified by the wider CQC benchmarking, which placed the Trust at the 
high end of worst performing Trusts was:  

Table 8: CQC benchmarking 
Higher scores are better Scores 

NBT  
Lowest 
Trust score 
achieved 

Highest 
Trust score 
achieved 

No of 
respondents 

Planned admissions: Overall from the time you first 
talked to a health professional about being referred to 
hospital, how long did you have to wait to be admitted 
to hospital? [answered by those referred to hospital) 

5.0 4.6 8.9 254 

 



 
 
G. Exception report: Key areas for improvement at specialty level [Table 9] 

Overall more patients responded from the following specialties so as to be able to provide the following 
breakdown: 

Table 9: Key specialty problem results 

Lower scores are better Trust Trust
Specialty

Picker 
Specialty

Trauma & Orthopaedics 

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 76% 79% 64%

Hospital: food was fair or poor 50% 53% 41%

General Surgery 

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 76% 86% 63%

Hospital: not always healthy food on hospital menu 42% 53% 35%

Care: Could not always find staff member to discuss concerns with 63% *[83%] 61%

Neurosurgery 

Hospital: bothered by noise at night from other patients 41% 68% 37%

Urology 

Planned admission: not given choice of hospitals 62% * [83%] 68%

Planned admission: not given choice of admission date 68% * [83%] 69%

Hospital: nowhere to keep personal belongings safely 76% * [86%] 60%

Overall: not given enough information on how to complain 88% * [100%] 83%

 
* Less than 50 people answered this question therefore results should be treated with caution 
 

H. Examples of Respondents comments 
 

 

Staff were friendly, 
helpful and efficient 

My designated nurse barely 
spoke to me, and when I 
needed a nurse could never 
find one - too much time in 
little groups talking. I felt I was 
imposing if I needed to speak 
to them I was not the only one 
who felt like this

There seemed a 
good team spirit 
between all the staff 
and plenty of smiles 

Despite all the building work 
being carried out, the staff were 
never phased by the noise & 
disruption & I was very grateful 
for their care & dedication. 

I am extremely grateful for the standard of 
care I received. Every single one of the staff 
showed the utmost human care. Nothing was 
too much trouble even when staff were busy. I 
am a strict vegetarian staff took great care to 
ensure my needs were met with medication 
as well as food. I was one of many patients 
but i never felt one of many because i 
received personal care & caring. 

Very comfortable, 
clean, friendly, warm 

Discharge - drugs & after 
effects of brain - surgery, I 
felt unconfident about 
being out in the world on 
my own 
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Report to the Trust Board – May 2012   
 
 

Title: Staff Attitude Survey 2011 Results 
& Directorate Analysis 
 

 
Purpose of paper:  The 2011 Staff Attitude Survey showed a slight 

improvement over 2010. HR & Development was tasked 
with bringing back :   

 
 further analysis of results, including at Directorate 

level 
 the results of a local Trust wide Staff Attitude Survey 

undertaken to validate the national survey  
 and proposals for actions to be taken to improve the 

staff survey results 

The attached papers give additional information on: 
 
 comparing the Directorates within the Trust  
 league tables of performance   
 local survey results 
 comparisons with other South West Acute Trusts 
 details of actions recommended to improve staff 

engagement and involvement throughout the Trust, 
and other areas which would improve the national 
scores 

For Endorsement 
 
Action Required:  The Trust Board is asked to NOTE the attached paper 

and ENDORSE the proposed course of action.  
 

Key Risks: Financial and performance-related risks  
 
Impact on Patients: The Trust’s workforce and organisation development 

strategy and associated matters, including staff 
satisfaction and motivation at work, directly affect the 
provision of patient care and treatment 

 
CQC Outcome:  CQC Outcomes 12,13,14 
 
Responsible Committee:             Workforce Strategy & Governance Committee 
 
Financial Issues considered Yes 
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Equality Impact Assessment  
Completed  Breakdown by staff equality group has been considered 
 
Legal Issues Considered:  Yes  
 
Sustainability Assessment  
Completed:    Not Applicable 
 
 
Presented by:       Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 
 
Prepared by:         Robert Baker, Associate Director, Human Resources & Development  
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         Trust Board Paper – Staff Attitude Survey Results 2011 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Following an earlier Trust Board report outlining the 2011 NBT Staff Survey results, 

this paper presents, for both national and local survey:- 
 

 information and key messages relating to Directorates 
 the review approach expected of Directorates and other groups  
 next steps 

 
 
2. Key messages 
 
2.1 NBT improved in respect of the actual Key Findings scores between 2010 and 2011, as 

follows: 
 

 23 scores have improved 
 11 scores have worsened 
   4 scores remain the same 

 
2.2 In terms of Trust performance against other Trusts, there are signs of a small 

improvement, having doubled the number of scores which are over average, as 
indicated in the following table, which looks at all 38 Key Findings, and assess the NBT 
score against the national average for Acute Trusts 

 
Scores of Key Findings relative 
to national average for acute 
Trusts 2010 2011 

Top 20% 3 5 

Better than average 2 5 

Average 10 9 

Worse than Average 10 9 

Bottom 20% 13 10 
 
2.3 Of the 10 Key Finding scores that NBT found itself in the bottom 20% of Acute Trusts 

nationally, 6 related to the category of Health Safety and Well being.  Poor 
performance in this area is further evidenced as the Trust is 2nd worst ranking against 
all South West Acute Trusts, and further highlighted in the results of the local survey. 

 
2.4 In addition to the Key Findings, Trusts are allocated a score for their performance in 

staff engagement in the national survey, based on responses to Key Findings 31,34 
and 35.  NBT’s score improved from 3.56 in 2010 to 3.61 in 2011, which was 
considered average nationally when compared with other Acute Trusts. 

 
2.5  NBT compared very favourably under the category related to personal development, 

with 3 of 7 Key Findings rated as top 20% of Acute Trusts, and none rated below 
average or worse, and ranked 2nd best against South West Acute trusts. 
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2.6 The Local Staff survey, conducted in April 2012, based on those areas where NBT 

scored amongst the worst 20% of Trusts, not only validated the national survey as 
areas of concern from a large sample (nearly 30% of workforce responded) but 
evidenced that no Directorate had room for complacency in delivering a review of 
these figures. Other highlights are shown in Section 6 below. 

 
2.7  There was an improved reporting from Disabled staff against the Key Findings, over 

2010 results, but still generally report lower than non disabled staff. 
 
 
3. Identified Actions 
 
3.1  Each Directorate will be required to follow the 7 point plan agreed last year to engage 

staff in understanding the results, and developing improvements locally.   
 
3.2 The Staff Engagement group will continue to oversee the production and integration of 

NBT Core Values to the organisation 
 
3.3 The Equality and Diversity Committee will be asked to analyse the results by equality 

group, to recommend actions relating to communicating positive messages to staff  
about the work  being undertaken, and proposed to better engage with disabled staff 
and others where issues are highlighted 

 
3.4 Trust Health and Safety Committee to consider results relating to Health and Safety, in 

particular on issues relating to stress, and the potential re-establishment of the Staff 
Well Being (Stress) group 

 
3.5 The Workforce Directorate to bring to the Board in September a strategy for improving 

the Health and Well being of staff, as a key objective in this years Big 5.  This to 
include balancing the need to properly manage sickness with an apparent increase in 
presenteeism. 

 
 
4. National Survey Directorate scores: 2011   (Appendix 1) 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 shows  the top 3 and bottom 3 performing Directorates against each Key 

Finding.   Total appearances in top and bottom 3 are totalled at the foot of the page. 
 
4.2 Top 2 Directorates using the data in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 were Renal and 

Human Resources.  The bottom 2 Directorates were Surgery, and Clinical Support.  
 
4.3 The table below compares the number of indicators in the ‘Above Average’, ‘Average’ 

and ‘Below Average’ categories against the National Average for the best and worst-
performing directorates in the 2011 staff survey.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Renal 

 
Human 
Resources 
 

 
Core 
Clinical 

 
Surgery 

 
Trust Wide 

Above Average 29  26   11  9  10 
Average  1    1    9 
Below Average  7  8 26  29  19  



This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed section' of any 

meeting. 
5 
 

 

 
 
 
5. Directorate League Tables: 2009/2010/11 and 2012 Local Survey (Appendix 2) 
 
5.1 Appendix 2 shows a league table of Clinical Directorates for: 

o Local Survey conducted in April 2012 
o National Survey 2011 
o National Survey 2010 
o National Survey 2009 

 and shows moves and consistency of Directorates over the three year period 
 

5.2  Note the total points cannot be compared between 2009 2010 and 2011, as basis of 
scoring is different.  Also these do not indicate a good or bad performance against 
Trust or national Average scores, but merely rank internally. 

 
5.2 The local survey shows the performance of Directorates against NBTs worst national 

key Findings.  As these are NOT consistent with the national survey rankings, this 
highlights that even better performing Directorates have areas to work on. 

 
 
6. Local Staff Attitude Survey (Appendix 3) 
 
6.1  All staff in NBT were surveyed, both through e-surveys and paper format, to comment 

on those areas where the NBT had scored in the bottom 20% of Trusts in the national 
survey.  Although there were 10 such key Findings, KF36 was excluded as NBT does 
not require 12 monthly updates for E&D training.  The remaining 9 were an 
amalgamation of a series of 18 individual questions which were replicated for the local 
survey.  

 
6.2  2813 staff responded and fully completed the local survey, about a 30% response 

rate.  Headline results for the survey are attached, together with Directorate rankings 
for 15 questions (excluding availability of hand washing materials questions).  This 
shows a different picture from the rankings in the full survey, and Directorates must 
pay careful attention to these results in order to improve those areas the Trust does 
very badly in, and in particular to address some wide variations from the mean score. 

 
6.3  Initial study of these results gave the following key messages: 

 
a) Local vs National score 
 

The main purpose of the exercise was to provide evidence as to whether the 
national survey gave a true picture in areas where we were scored the worst. 
 
Of the 18 questions asked: 
 

Question Theme NBT national 
score better  

NBT local 
score better 

Patient Care/Work Pressure 7 0 
Work Injury 2 3 
Hand Washing 3 0 
Violence/ Harassment 3 0 
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The Trust only bettered our national score in 3 of the questions, which confirms 
against the much larger sample that the Trust really should take note of the 
scores in the national survey in these areas. 
 

b) Clinical Directorates vs National score 
  

Of the seven questions relating to quality of care and work pressure, all 8 
directorates were below the NBT national score in 5 questions, and in the other 
two, 6 out of 8 were below national score.  
 
As an example, for the question “I am satisfied with the quality of care I give to 
patients” this was 87% in the NBT national survey, and 60% in local.  The highest 
non-corporate directorate score was 72% from South Glos, with the lowest being 
in Medicine at only 47%. 
 

c) Physical Violence 
 

Staff suffering from physical violence from patients was 11.6% across the Trust, 
but very high in Medicine, Neurosciences, and Operations (36.7%). 
 
However staff suffering from physical violence from managers/colleagues is low, 
below the national score at 1.1%, with Facilities being an outlier at 7.9%.  Further 
investigation is required into this to enable appropriate action to be taken. 
 

d) Stress 
 

44% of staff felt unwell due to work related stress.  This was generally higher in 
clinical than Corporate Directorates, however at 33% in Corporates, this was also 
significant.  The areas with community services, South Glos CHS and Womens & 
Children, faired the worst with a response rate of over 50%. 

 
e) Disabled vs non-disabled 
 

Although not shown in this analysis, further work has indicated that 95 (3.4%) staff 
identified themselves as disabled, 2160 (76.6%) as non disabled, and 558 (20%) 
did not state either. 
 
Disabled staff scored much worse in respect of work related illness, on all 5 
questions.  In particular absence due to slips trips falls for disabled staff scored 
15.8% compared to 3.8 for non-disabled%, and due to stress was 62% against 
42% 
 
. 

7. SHA wide comparisons (Appendix 4) 
 
7.1 The table at Appendix 4 compares key Findings for all acute Trusts in the South West 

area.  Note that this performance assesses Key Finding scores in quartiles against 
NHS South of England Acute Trusts, from which South West Trusts have been 
extracted, with Green being upper quartile, Red being lower quartile, with Yellow in the 
middle. 
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7.2 The Trusts are shown in rank order, based on points allocated for the quartile each 
Trust is in.  Rankings and points total are shown, with NBT ranking 11th of 18 Trusts. 

 
7.3  NBTs scores under personal development rank as 2nd best in the South West area.  

However the scores under health safety and well being are the 2nd worst within the 
South West area. 

 
 
8. Other comparisons 
 
8.1 The Survey report allows comparison between other areas, including:  
 

 Location 
 Staff group 
 Equality Profile 

8.2 Last year, poor results were highlighted for disabled staff.  An initial assessment 
indicates that these have now improved, although remain below the responses for 
non-disabled staff.  In particular,  

 
 KF10 % feeling there are good opportunities to develop potential at work 

improved by almost 50%  
 KF26 Harassment and Bullying from staff down by almost 75% 
 KF29 feeling pressure in last 3 months to attend work when feeling unwell fell 

by 10%  
 KF37 % believing the trust provides equal opportunities for career progression 

or promotion increased by 8% 
 KF38 Experiencing discrimination at work in last 12 months down by more than 

50% 
 
8.3 The NBT Equality and Diversity Committee will be asked to look at these results 

across the whole spectrum, but particularly for disabled staff, and respond by  : 
 

a. continuing to communicate positive messages to staff  about the work  being 
undertaken  

b. furthering the work to better engage with disabled staff to  understand their 
concerns  

c. continuing to act on matters raised by disabled staff  
         d.   including data in the 2011 Statistical report which is currently being compiled  

 
 
9. Trust Staff Engagement Group 
 
9.1 The NBT Staff Engagement Group, which is a sub group of the Workforce Strategy 

and OD Committee, is currently undergoing revision to its work programme to ensure 
high impact and value-add.   Key outcomes will be to drive forward work which 
addresses the Key Findings in the Staff Attitude Survey related to engagement.  
However many of the Key Findings, especially around Health and Safety, are not part 
of that agenda and will be remitted to the appropriate Trust Board Committee for 
ownership. 
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9.2 Staff engagement is measured in the national survey by combining the scores of three 
elements, Key Findings 31, 34 and 35.   These Key Findings relate to the following 
aspects of staff engagement:  

 
 staff members’ perceived ability to contribute to improvements at work (KF31) 
 their willingness to recommend the trust as a place to work or receive 

treatment (KF34) 
 the extent to which they feel motivated and engaged with their work (KF35) 

 
The NBT score improved from 3.56 in 2010 to 3.61, which was considered average 
when compared with trusts of a similar type. 

 
 
10. Conclusion 
 
The Board is asked to NOTE the work continuing to be undertaken to move towards the 
‘Great Place to Work’ objective and  
 

ENDORSE the proposed course of action to addresses the key issues.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2012 
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KEY
NBT 
2011

National 
Average 

Score 
2011

Position in 
respect of 

other Acute 
Trusts 2011

Core 
clinical

Women & 
Children Facilities Surgery Medicine Other 

Execs
South 

Glos CHS Musculo Neuro Info Mngt HR&D Renal

note 1 - scores in italics are better when 
lower

NBT Score 
worsens

Respondents 128 77 41 40 40 33 30 24 20 18 14 12

note 2 - single figures are %, decimal figures 
are scored out of 5

NBT Score 
improves

Note - * = no 
score shown

KF1 % feeling satisfied with the quality of work 
and patient care they are able to deliver 69 74 Worst 20% of 

Trusts
*

KF2 % agreeing that their role makes a difference 
to patients 91 90 Better than 

Average *

KF3 % feeling valued by their work colleagues 81 76 Best 20% of 
Trusts

KF4 Quality of job design 3.42 3.41 Average

KF5 Work pressure felt by staff 3.28 3.12 Worst 20% of 
Trusts

KF6 Working in a well structured team 
environment 3.68 3.72 Worse than 

Average

KF7 Trust commitment to work-life balance 3.29 3.36 Worse than 
Average

KF8 % working extra hours 72 65 Worst 20% of 
Trusts

KF9 % using flexible working options 62 61 Better than 
Average

KF10 % feeling there are good opportunities to 
develop their potential at work 41 40 Better than 

Average

KF11 % receiving job-relevant training, learning or 
development in last 12 months 80 78 Best 20% of 

Trusts

KF12 % appraised in last 12 months 89 81 Best 20% of 
Trusts

KF13 % having well structured appraisals in last 12 
months 36 34 Average

KF14 % appraised with personal development plans 
in last 12 months 75 68 Best 20% of 

Trusts

KF15 Support from immediate managers 3.61 3.61 Average

KF16 % receiving health and safety training in last 
12 months 74 81 Worse than 

Average

KF17 % suffering work-related injury in last 12 
months 21 16 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF18 % suffering work-related stress in last 12 
months 34 29 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF19 % Availability of hand washing materials 58 66 Worst 20% of 
Trusts

KF20 % witnessing potentially harmful errors, near 
misses or incidents in last month 36 34 Worse than 

Average

Top 3 Directorates per Key Factor

Bottom 3 Directorates per Key factor

STAFF PLEDGE 2: To provide all staff with personal development, access to appropriate training 
for their jobs and line management support to succeed.

STAFF PLEDGE 3: To provide support and opportunities for staff to maintain their health, well-
being and safety.

STAFF PLEDGE 1: To provide all staff with clear roles and responsibilities and rewarding jobs for 
teams and individuals that make a difference to patients, their families and carers and communities.
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NBT 
2011

National 
Average 

Score 
2011

Position in 
respect of 

other Acute 
Trusts 2011

Core 
clinical

Women & 
Children Facilities Surgery Medicine Other 

Execs
South 

Glos CHS Musculo Neuro Info Mngt HR&D Renal

KF21 % reporting errors, near misses or incidents 
witnessed in the last month 97 96 Better than 

Average
* * * * * * * *

KF22 Fairness and effectivness of procedures for 
reporting errors, near misses or incidents 3.41 3.46 Worse than 

Average

KF23 % experiencing physical violence from 
patients / relatives in last 12 months 10 8 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF24 % experiencing physical violence from staff 
in last 12 months 2 1 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF25
% experiencing harassment, bullying or 
abuse from patients / relatives in last 12 

months
17 15 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF26 % experiencing harassment, bullying or 
abuse from staff in last 12 months 16 16 Average

KF27 Perceptions of effective action from employer 
towards violence and harassment 3.52 3.58 Worse than 

Average  

KF28 Impact of health and well being on ability to 
perform work or daily activities 1.56 1.56

Average  

KF29 % staff feeling pressure in last 3 months to 
attend work when feeling unwell 28 26 Worse than 

Average

KF30 % reporting good communication between 
senior management and staff 24 26 Worse than 

Average

KF31 % able to contribute towards improvements 
at work 61 61

Average

KF32 Staff job satisfaction 3.48 3.47
Average

KF33 Staff intention to leave jobs 2.58 2.59
Average

KF34 would staff recommend the trust as a place to 
work 3.43 3.5 Worse than 

Average

KF35 Staff motivation at work 3.85 3.82 Better than 
Average

KF36 % having equality and diversity training in 
last 12 months 28 48 Worst 20% of 

Trusts

KF37
% believing trust provides equal 

opportunities for career progression or 
promotion

93 90 Best 20% of 
Trusts *

KF38 % of staff experiencing discrmination at work 
in last 12 months 12 13

Average

times in top 3 2 6 8 3 7 10 11 14 4 3 21 29

times in bottom 3 10 5 12 19 9 7 5 10 11 14 5 3

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

STAFF PLEDGE 4: To engage staff in decisions that affect them and the services they provide, 
individually,through representative organisations and through local partnership working 

arrangements. All staff will be empowered to put forward ways to deliver better and safer services 
for patients and their families.

STAFF SATISFACTION
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Notes 

1. National highest ranking directorate on an indicator = 12 points in 2011, 9 points in 2010, 10 points in 2009, 16 points in local survey. 
2. Lowest ranking directorate on an indicator – 1 point 
3. Some Key Factors excluded where minimal response (e.g. Key Factor KF21 in 2011 excluded as only 4 Directorates have a score)   
4. Where occasional no score registered due to low response, an average scores added to that Directorate for that KF  

National  2010  Score 
 

 
Neurosciences   271 
 
------------------------------------------- 
Women & Children   222 
 
Surgery    202 

 
Musculoskeletal   200 
 
------------------------------------------- 
Renal     189 

 
Medicine    174 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Core Clinical    140 
 
Facilities    130 
 
 
 
 
NB  
- Scores relate to 37 Key Factors with 

max 9 points 
- Only Finance from Corporate 

Directorates recorded at   

National     2011             Score 
 
 
Renal     374 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
South Glos CHS  291 
 
Musculoskeletal  270 
 
Women & Children  261 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Medicine   244 
 
Neurosciences  221 
 
Facilities   219 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Core Clinical   198 
  
Surgery   181 
 
 
NB  
- Scores relate to 37 Key Factors with 

max 12 points 
- Corporate Directorates scores in range 

266 - 359 
 

National       2009             Score 
 

 
Renal    275 

 
Musculoskeletal  268 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Critical care   244 
  
Neurosciences  225 
 
Clinical Support   215 

 
Medicine   201 

 
Women & Children  200  
 
----------------------------------  
Surgery   177
    
Facilities    162 
 
 
 
 
NB 
- Scores relate to 38 Key factors with max 

10 points 
- All Corporate Directorates scored 170  

Local          2012  Score 
 

 
South Glos CHS                   133                                
 
Facilities `                             128 
 
Musculoskeletal                   122 
 
Core Clinical                         114 
 
Neurosciences                      109 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Women & Children                 84 
 
Renal                                       78 
 
Surgery                                   77 
 
-------------------------------------------- 
Medicine                                 49 
 

 
NB 
- The local survey investigated 9 key factors 

where NBT was in the Bottom 20% 
nationally in 2011 

- Scores relate to 15 Questions with max 16 
points (excludes hand washing) 

- All Corporate Directorates scored in range 
146 - 215 
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Local Survey % NBT's National % Core Clin Medicine Musculo Neuro Renal Surgey SGCHS W&C Cap Proj Chief Exec Clin Gov Facilities Finance HR IMT Ops
Respondents to local survey 2813 678 324 140 158 83 68 252 464 9 12 44 240 51 143 114 33

KF1

Strongly Agree/Agree 55.7 57 58.5 40.3 49.2 52.5 52 45.1 60.6 49.4 100 88.9 76.3 61.5 70.2 75.6 72.8 64.5
RANK  7 1 3 6 5 2 8 4 16 15 14 9 11 13 12 10

Strongly Agree/Agree 59.8 87 64.1 46.9 61.2 59.5 54.6 54.5 72.7 55.2 50 88.8 65.8 55.4 61.7 63.7 69.5 58.1
RANK 12 1 9 8 4 3 15 5 2 16 13 6 10 11 14 7

Strongly Agree/Agree 39.2 65 39.5 29.3 38.8 38.5 41.6 37.7 47 38.3 50 44.4 50 38.5 21.3 32.3 37 35.5
RANK 14 2 12 11 6 8 7 9 16 14 16 11 1 3 5 4

KF5

Strongly Agree/Agree 65.7 49 64.6 72.8 63.1 68.9 64.8 72.8 67.2 73.2 57.2 66.7 57.1 62.3 64.5 58 55.1 43.3
RANK 8 3 10 4 7 3 5 1 13 6 14 11 9 12 15 16

Strongly Agree/Agree 46.8 49 48.7 40.3 56.2 46.4 48.7 46.4 54.7 42.5 57.2 66.6 57.2 48.5 64.4 63.8 46 43.4
RANK 9 1 11 6 9 6 10 2 13 16 13 7 15 14 4 3

Strongly Agree/Agree 17 24 16.1 8.5 17 17.4 5.5 12.5 7.9 11.8 57.1 77.8 25.8 29.7 37.8 34.5 24.7 26.7
RANK 6 3 7 8 1 5 2 4 15 16 10 12 14 13 9 11

 

Strongly Agree/Agree 62.4 54 60.5 71.1 62.3 62.4 59.5 65.6 60.9 69.6 42.9 55.5 51.4 56.3 62.3 58 58.4 40
RANK 8 1 6 4 9 3 7 2 15 13 14 12 6 11 10 16

KF17

16.3% 16 18.4 20.1 15.5 14.7 21.1 16.4 12.5 11.7 0 0 8.6 15.9 9.1 11 14.9 3.3
RANK 3 2 6 8 1 4 9 10 16 16 13 5 12 11 7 14

2.6% 4 2.2 4.1 2.3 2.2 5.6 4.5 1.6 2.4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.1 0
RANK 7 3 5 7 1 2 8 4 16 16 16 16 16 16 9 16

3.8% 4 3.2 3.7 2.3 2.9 4.2 4.1 1.6 3.9 0 0 2.9 7.9 2.3 4.2 5.7 6.7
RANK 9 8 13 11 5 6 14 7 16 16 11 1 13 5 3 2

1.3% 2 1.9 0.8 0 0 1.4 1.8 0 0.7 0 0 0 4.8 2.3 0 0 0
RANK 3 6 16 16 5 4 16 7 16 16 16 1 2 16 16 16

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:  "I am able 
to do my job to a standard I am personally pleased with"  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:    "I am 
satisfied with the quality of care I give to patients / service users"  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:    "I am able 
to deliver the patient care I aspire to"  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:  “I have 
adequate materials, supplies and equipment to do my work”  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:  “I cannot 
meet all the conflicting demands on my time at work”  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:  “I do not 
have time to carry out all my work”  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement:  “There are 
enough staff at this Trust for me to do my job properly”  

During the last 12 months have you been injured or felt unwell as a result of 
exposure to dangerous substances?  

During the last 12 months have you been injured or felt unwell as a result of 
moving and handling?  

Yes

During the last 12 months have you been injured or felt unwell as a result of 
needlestick and sharps injuries?  

Yes

%Feeling satisfied with the quality of work and patient care they are 
able to deliver

Work pressure felt by staff

% staff suffering work related injury in last 12 months

Yes

During the last 12 months have you been injured or felt unwell as a result of slips, 
trips or falls?  

Yes
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Local Survey % NBT's National % Core Clin Medicine Musculo Neuro Renal Surgey SGCHS W&C Cap Proj Chief Exec Clin Gov Facilities Finance HR IMT Ops

KF18

44.1% 35 44.9 43 43.4 44.9 40.8 49.1 54.7 50.2 14.3 22.2 42.9 38.1 36.4 29.7 43.7 33.3
RANK 5 8 7 5 10 3 1 2 16 15 9 11 12 14 6 13

KF19

38.8% 64 40.6 32.4 42.6 33.8 43.7 39 46.9 43.3 14.3 22.2 45.7 36.5 34.1 44.1 36.8 23.3
48.9% 29 52.7 54.5 46.5 53.7 45.1 47.7 45.3 44.5 71.4 44.4 34.3 44.4 52.3 42.4 49.4 53.3

RANK

29.9% 58 26.6 26.2 32.6 30.9 36.6 35.8 42.2 36.9 14.3 11.1 28.6 20.6 25 30.4 23 20
41.1% 25 37.5 55.3 42.6 49.3 46.5 40.4 26.6 42.8 42.9 11.1 34.3 38.1 25 25.4 24.1 43.3

 

29.9% 57 28.2 26.2 31 30.9 36.6 35.3 45.3 36.7 14.3 11.1 25.7 19 25 30.5 23 3.3
41.1% 24 37.5 57 41.1 48.5 49.3 37.6 23.4 40.3 42.9 11.1 34.3 38.1 29.5 28 33.3 63.3

 

KF23

11.6% 10 9.4 29.6 8.6 22.8 11.4 12.9 6.3 6.7 0 0 0 1.6 2.3 0 0 36.7
 6 2 7 3 5 4 9 8 16 16 16 11 10 16 16 1

KF24  

1.1% 2 0.5 0.8 0.8 0.7 1.4 0 0 0.2 0 0 0 7.9 2.3 0.9 0 0
RANK 8 6 6 7 3 16 16 9 16 16 16 1 2 4 16 16

KF25  

24.0% 17 21.6 35.8 32.8 32.4 28.6 28.1 29.7 19.3 14.3 33.3 17.1 12.7 4.7 9.5 18.4 40
RANK 9 2 4 5 7 8 6 10 13 3 12 14 16 15 11 1

Hot water, soap and paper towels, or alcohol rubs, are available when they are 
needed by staff...  

Always

Availability of hand washing materials

Yes

During the last 12 months have you been injured or felt unwell as a result of work-
related stress?  

In the last 12 months, have you personally experienced harassment, bullying or 
abuse at work from patients / service users, their relatives or other members of the 
public?  

Yes

In the last 12 months have you personally experienced physical violence at work 
from your manager / team leader or other colleagues?  

Hot water, soap and paper towels, or alcohol rubs, are available when they are 
needed by visitors to the Trust...  

Most of time

Hot water, soap and paper towels, or alcohol rubs, are available when they are 
needed by patients / service users...

Always
Most of time

Always
Most of time

% experiencing physical violence from patients / relatives in last 12 
months

% experiencing physical violence from staff in last 12 months

% experiencing harrasment, bullying or abuse from patients/relatives 
in last 12 months.

Yes

In the last 12 months have you personally experienced physical violence at work 
from patients / service users, their relatives or other members of the public?  

Yes

% suffering work related stress in last 12 months
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 pkb 23 5 11

KF1 KF2 KF3 KF4 KF5 KF6 KF7 KF8 KF9 KF10 KF11 KF12 KF13 KF14 KF15

Rank Points Name % % % Score Score Score Score % % % % % % % Score

1 96 South Devon Healthcare  78.97 88.92 83.77 3.49 3.09 3.78 3.48 60.93 60.15 43.42 80.80 81.47 32.43 72.47 3.73

1 96 Royal Bournemouth & Christchurch Hsptls 77.39 91.65 79.25 3.46 2.99 3.86 3.42 65.27 59.18 46.52 82.11 84.69 41.46 68.09 3.69

3 95 Great Western Hospitals  72.45 93.70 79.04 3.42 3.16 3.71 3.44 70.20 66.73 39.89 80.34 80.34 32.82 68.22 3.70

3 95 Salisbury  73.57 90.85 79.00 3.50 3.08 3.75 3.57 66.88 57.70 40.12 76.94 82.39 40.89 68.42 3.77

5 92 Northern Devon  76.47 94.26 82.06 3.43 3.13 3.79 3.51 65.34 70.66 43.36 80.43 82.77 32.19 72.63 3.74

6 87 Yeovil District Hospital  79.03 94.21 75.65 3.44 2.97 3.71 3.47 73.11 65.22 41.90 79.28 77.51 38.86 62.08 3.61

7 85 Royal Devon And Exeter  65.99 89.12 76.48 3.43 3.13 3.73 3.43 64.45 64.80 39.72 75.60 83.69 33.81 74.38 3.63

8 84 University Hospitals Bristol  74.50 92.40 78.31 3.46 3.17 3.74 3.37 64.54 64.62 41.29 81.32 83.02 37.66 68.01 3.69

9 72 Taunton And Somerset  71.85 89.97 78.23 3.41 3.19 3.68 3.30 66.89 60.87 36.59 78.95 84.55 32.71 72.86 3.72

10 71 Weston Area Health  69.44 87.53 78.54 3.42 3.28 3.81 3.28 60.53 62.20 32.94 78.95 78.02 30.47 67.25 3.60

11 69 North Bristol  68.54 91.28 81.05 3.41 3.30 3.69 3.29 72.40 62.09 40.93 80.83 89.24 35.85 75.96 3.61

11 69 Royal National Hosp - Rheumatic Diseases  71.43 90.95 74.22 3.32 3.19 3.61 3.57 64.68 71.84 35.27 73.54 78.48 36.82 67.29 3.59

13 67 Plymouth Hospitals  69.12 87.24 77.85 3.35 3.27 3.66 3.28 64.43 56.97 33.55 73.63 88.48 30.48 76.20 3.63

14 65 Royal United Hospital Bath  68.75 88.81 79.01 3.39 3.31 3.67 3.31 62.94 54.73 33.48 74.83 77.21 32.81 64.17 3.62

15 63 Dorset County Hospital  68.19 88.69 74.53 3.37 3.15 3.69 3.16 65.80 60.94 28.34 76.02 80.73 25.62 67.77 3.61

16 58 Gloucestershire Hospitals  63.03 87.85 72.88 3.27 3.26 3.66 3.26 67.47 61.60 32.52 75.56 86.22 30.86 70.78 3.53

17 53 Poole Hospital  64.95 88.77 75.15 3.32 3.31 3.68 3.12 64.67 58.60 33.47 72.46 75.05 30.60 58.81 3.45

17 53 Royal Cornwall Hospitals  59.57 84.46 78.15 3.25 3.33 3.66 3.10 69.02 56.73 25.77 68.65 83.54 22.71 71.14 3.49

1 pt

3 pts

2 pts

KF16 KF17 KF18 KF19 KF20 KF21 KF22 KF23 KF24 KF25 KF26 KF27 KF28 KF29 KF30 KF31 KF32 KF33 KF34 KF35 KF36 KF37 KF38

Rank Points Name % % % % % % Score % % % % Score Score % % % Score Score Score Score % % %

1 96 South Devon Healthcare  81.94 16.33 23.90 63.60 36.90 97.48 3.43 6.58 0.22 11.01 10.22 3.62 1.46 18.16 28.51 63.76 3.65 2.27 3.80 3.87 62.50 93.18 7.74

1 96 Royal Bournemouth & Christchurch Hsptls 89.48 11.65 25.55 75.55 35.71 99.33 3.49 8.20 0.80 14.03 15.09 3.62 1.53 26.26 29.60 61.31 3.55 2.32 3.71 3.92 57.34 91.67 12.75

3 95 Great Western Hospitals  91.23 16.07 25.93 73.52 31.28 97.55 3.57 5.04 0.57 11.42 13.64 3.64 1.52 27.86 26.26 63.35 3.53 2.53 3.48 3.89 70.24 93.65 9.63

3 95 Salisbury  80.00 13.33 23.84 64.72 29.32 97.73 3.52 6.75 0.64 10.15 15.53 3.58 1.49 24.59 32.57 66.18 3.56 2.48 3.71 3.90 63.91 93.31 10.00

5 92 Northern Devon  85.53 14.68 26.36 67.36 32.91 98.70 3.48 8.58 1.08 14.02 12.63 3.62 1.48 22.62 26.46 63.56 3.58 2.40 3.57 3.89 63.95 94.08 10.21

6 87 Yeovil District Hospital  79.02 18.09 26.44 81.94 35.77 95.38 3.53 10.00 0.54 15.63 13.49 3.76 1.53 23.39 31.19 57.95 3.52 2.40 3.78 3.93 31.58 86.21 13.62

7 85 Royal Devon And Exeter  91.65 15.07 25.06 68.87 35.22 93.84 3.44 4.51 0.48 7.84 12.98 3.65 1.54 25.72 25.30 60.90 3.49 2.58 3.63 3.75 62.08 91.44 8.96

8 84 University Hospitals Bristol  75.52 15.24 27.35 52.30 40.37 95.77 3.56 9.13 1.69 16.28 15.16 3.67 1.52 20.33 30.99 64.27 3.54 2.51 3.65 3.87 51.06 91.56 14.81

9 72 Taunton And Somerset  66.06 12.73 23.34 67.35 38.04 96.36 3.43 11.93 0.69 14.98 16.40 3.52 1.48 27.74 17.46 63.49 3.48 2.52 3.59 3.75 20.98 88.93 13.61

10 71 Weston Area Health  89.29 18.90 29.83 73.75 37.14 94.74 3.50 10.55 0.48 15.51 12.41 3.60 1.54 23.45 20.99 63.21 3.52 2.74 3.24 3.83 49.76 90.35 11.29

11 69 North Bristol  75.91 21.89 34.96 58.47 37.29 96.47 3.41 10.40 1.94 16.52 16.13 3.51 1.57 28.05 23.11 61.68 3.47 2.60 3.42 3.84 27.51 93.22 12.24

11 69 Royal National Hosp - Rheumatic Diseases  86.67 13.89 36.20 81.25 21.88 97.87 3.48 3.64 0.46 8.22 16.13 3.63 1.68 17.17 28.96 61.71 3.55 2.71 3.76 3.83 66.82 93.06 8.97

13 67 Plymouth Hospitals  76.89 17.47 29.22 65.87 36.30 95.68 3.49 7.79 0.44 14.94 15.54 3.67 1.59 29.05 21.40 59.35 3.42 2.59 3.33 3.67 42.73 92.10 10.89

14 65 Royal United Hospital Bath  72.45 11.75 31.45 63.93 35.14 96.79 3.36 10.53 0.45 13.51 13.72 3.44 1.57 24.38 17.99 59.10 3.43 2.68 3.43 3.76 54.28 87.78 13.98

15 63 Dorset County Hospital  86.18 15.80 27.76 72.71 34.12 95.04 3.38 9.91 1.90 16.04 18.68 3.52 1.55 29.34 24.88 55.79 3.41 2.75 3.31 3.67 68.99 90.66 12.94

16 58 Gloucestershire Hospitals  93.53 18.86 29.32 57.88 36.65 96.32 3.47 8.32 1.93 16.60 18.62 3.48 1.58 26.42 24.21 54.10 3.40 2.68 3.25 3.67 81.70 89.53 12.80

17 53 Poole Hospital  83.20 18.24 29.14 68.86 40.92 96.98 3.41 10.98 1.81 17.23 18.47 3.50 1.51 27.07 22.57 56.32 3.39 2.67 3.37 3.72 44.88 92.65 12.10

17 53 Royal Cornwall Hospitals  83.59 17.34 39.94 68.94 33.64 95.33 3.31 7.74 0.62 13.89 18.01 3.50 1.59 37.17 19.69 55.45 3.35 2.79 2.96 3.63 56.52 83.24 15.08

1 pt

3 pts

2 pts

Clear roles and responsibilities Personal Development

Health Safety and Wellbeing Engagement Staff Satisfaction Equality & Diversity

Red = Worst performing quartile
Green = Best performing quartile

Yellow = Between best and worst quartiles

Red = Worst performing quartile
Green = Best performing quartile

Yellow = Between best and worst quartiles
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Name of organisation:  North Bristol NHS Trust 
 
Organisation Code: RVJ 

Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 
 
1. Scope of responsibility 
 
As Chief Executive and Accountable Officer of the Trust my responsibilities are set out in the 
Accountable Officers’ Memorandum issued by the Department of Health. These include 
ensuring that; 
 

 There are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and 
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance. 

 Value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust. 
 The expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes intended 

by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them. 
 Effective and sound financial management systems are in place. 
 Annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of 

State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. 

 
In addition I have responsibility for; 
 

 Maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the 
Trust’s policies, aims and objectives. 

 Ensuring the services provided by the Trust are of exemplary quality and safety, 
giving patients the best possible experience. 

 
 
2. Governance framework of the organisation  
 
Corporate Governance 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. As a large and complex organisation a supporting infrastructure is required 
to fulfil these responsibilities effectively.  Authority is delegated by the Board to various board 
committees, as outlined within the Trust’s Standing Orders. The Committee structure of the 
Trust is shown below: 
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The key committees in terms of supporting the system of internal control are; 
 

Committee Functions 
Trust Board 
 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of internal control. 
It primarily discharges this responsibility through the receipt and review of; 
 Governance and Risk Management Committee reports on the Assurance 

Framework to ensure key risks are identified and controls or assurance gaps are 
being addressed. 

 Regular reports providing internal assurances, at monthly, quarterly and six monthly 
intervals including finance, activity, workforce measures, commissioning and clinical 
governance. 

 External assurance sources, including the Audit Letter and end of year accounts, 
and reports from the Healthcare Commission, NHSLA etc. 

 
Audit & 
Assurance 
Committee  
 

 The Audit & Assurance Committee provides independent and objective scrutiny of 
Trust activities through its membership, which consists of three Non-Executive 
directors. Executive Directors, senior managers, Internal and External auditors 
attend and provide input. 

 It is responsible for ensuring there are arrangements for the establishment and 
maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk management and 
internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities (both clinical and 
non-clinical). 

 This supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives and ensures 
compliance with regulatory, legal and code of conduct requirements.  

 In carrying out this work the Committee primarily utilises the work of Internal Audit, 
External Audit and other assurance functions, as well as seeking reports and 
assurances from directors and managers as appropriate. 

 
Governance 
and Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(G&RMC) and 
supporting 
committees 
 

 The Governance and Risk Management Committee (G&RMC) is the Executive 
Committee responsible for the management of Risk, Governance and Assurance for 
the Trust, including overseeing development of the Trust’s Assurance Framework 
prior to Board approval.  

 It comprises the executives and two non-executives and is responsible for ensuring 
that effective governance, risk management and regulatory compliance systems are 
in place and that effective actions are taken to identify and address deficiencies 
should they arise.  

 This also includes overseeing directorates’ clinical and non-clinical risk registers 
including escalation to the Trust risk register as informed by the Non Clinical and 
Clinical Risk Committees and reviewing progress against NHSLA risk management 
standards.  

 Furthermore, it is responsible for identifying all the cross cutting themes arising from 
various committees such as the Patient Experience Group and commissioning 
improvement activity from the Quality Committee. 

 
Building our 
Future 
Programme 
Board 
 

 The Programme Board has been meeting during the year to provide leadership and 
effective delivery of the Trust’s change agenda as well as leadership to all project 
boards.   

 In addition the group provides assurance to the Trust Board.   
 The Board is chaired by a non-executive Director and consists of all the Executive 

Directors and supported by the Head of Marketing and Director of Programmes.  
 

Southmead 
Hospital 
Redevelopment 
Project Board  
 

 This Project Board is responsible for the overall direction, management and 
governance of the Southmead Hospital Redevelopment project.    

 It comprises members of the Trust’s Executive team, a Non-Executive Director, 
representatives from the Strategic Health Authority and local Primary Care Trust 
and is supported by the Deputy Project Director.   

 Its role is to specify and oversee the project management arrangements for the 
project including risk management and control and project planning, provide overall 
guidance to the project and take decisions on key issues without delay and within 
delegated tolerances.   

 It is responsible for ensuring key milestones are met and for directing action 
necessary to meet project objectives.  
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Committee Member Attendance Records 

Member Board Audit & Assurance 
Comm. 

Governance & Risk Mgt. 
Comm. 

Charitable Funds 
Comm. 

 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 

M Bell 10/11 9/11 3 1 4/4 5/6 n/a n/a 

R Brunt 10/11 10/11 n/a n/a 4/4 4/6 n/a n/a 

C Burton 10/11 10/11 n/a n/a 4/4 4/6 n/a n/a 

K Guy 10/11 10/11 3/4 4/4 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

H Hayer 10/11 10/11 1 n/a 4/4 5/6 n/a n/a 

S Hughes 9/11 10/11 n/a n/a 3/4 1/6 n/a n/a 

R Mould 11/11 9/11 n/a n/a 3/4 5/6 n/a n/a 

A Nield 10/11 10/11 3/4 2/4 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

M-N Orzel 10/11 11/11 n/a 2 3/4 6/6 n/a n/a 

N Patel 10/11 9/11 3/4 3/4 n/a n/a 4/4 4/4 

D Powell 8/11 9/11 n/a n/a 2/4 0/6 n/a n/a 

P Rilett 10/11 10/11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

A Waterman-
Pearson 

10/11 9/11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

S Watkinson 10/11 10/11 n/a n/a 3/4 6/6 n/a n/a 

S Webster 9/11 10/11 3/4 4/4 3/4 3/6 4/4 4/4 

S Wood 9/11 9/11 n/a n/a 4/4 2/6 1 2 

 
Principal Board Committee Reports 

The Audit and Assurance Committee and Governance and Risk Management Committee are 
the key independent and executive risk management and assurance committees underpinning 
the Trust Board’s overall responsibility for internal control. In 2011/12 these committees have 
received reports on: 

Committee Reporting Area 
Audit & Assurance Committee 
(Independent assurance) 
 

 the overarching Trust governance and assurance framework  
 the standing financial instructions 
 the counter fraud work plan 
 the strategic internal audit plan 
 the 2010/11 Financial Accounts 
 the Trust’s Annual Report 
 changes to the local counter fraud strategy 
 Safeguarding Adults 
 Decontamination of Medical Equipment 
 Management systems for identifying and caring for patients with learning 

disabilities 
 the Building our Future Programme  
 a summary of clinical audit activity 
 the Foundation Trust project governance 
 benefits realisation from the e-Rostering project 

 
Governance and Risk 
Management Committee 
(G&RMC) and supporting 
committees 
(Executive assurance) 
 

 Progress on achieving NHSLA  & CNST Maternity risk management 
standards 

 The overarching Trust framework for governance and assurance 
 Safeguarding protocols for adults 
 Monitoring of mortality statistics for low incidence diseases 
 CQC visiting reports 
 Board Assurance Framework 
 Risk Registers 
 Quality assessment for FT application 
 Outpatient survey results 
 Patient and Public Involvement strategy approval 
 Review of risk reporting procedures 
 CJD risks 
 Decontamination risks 
 CRB checks 

 
 
Board Development & Progress towards Foundation Trust status 

The Trust is applying for Foundation Trust status. Part of this process involves an on-going 
programme of board development, including a formal self-assessment of its effectiveness. 
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The Board Development Programme was initiated through an assessment of strengths and 
weaknesses, performed in the Summer of 2011. PWC were appointed to facilitate ongoing 
development workshops to address the weaknesses identified.  

Areas of development are being progressed and monitored internally via the FT Project 
Board and will be validated externally as part of the FT application assessment, by the 
Department of Health and then Monitor.  
 
In the meantime, various reviews have occurred to validate the progress made, such as; 

 SHA Board observation 
 Deloitte Board observation as part of their Due Diligence reviews 
 PWC formal Board observation as part of development programme 
 PWC facilitated mock Board to Board 
 SHA Executive to Executive meeting 
 SHA Board to Board meeting 

To date, all milestones have been achieved and provide assurance that the organisation is 
on track to achieve Foundation Trust status during the 2012-13 financial year.  

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 

Within the context of being part of the National Health Service the Board complies with the 
Corporate Governance Code with the exception of the following: 

 The deputy chairman acts as the senior independent director and the role of the post 
was finalised as part of the FT governance development in January 2012, thus whilst 
not in place for the whole year this has now been resolved. 

 The Appointments Commission appoints the non-executives negating the need for a 
formal nomination committee. If authorised as a Foundation Trust this will change in 
future years. 

3.  Risk and control framework 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to:  

 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims 
and objectives   

 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 
Risk management is embedded throughout the Trust through a risk management framework 
that is made up of committee structures, staff familiar with their roles and responsibilities in  
patient safety and risk management and risk management tools e.g. the risk register, used 
throughout the organisation. The risk management strategy, which is reviewed annually, 
seeks to promote a culture where all staff assume responsibility for risk management. Its 
objective is to ensure a pro-active approach to risk management by engaging staff at all 
levels, in efforts to resolve risk locally wherever possible or escalate to a more senior  
level of management if necessary. It is available to staff on the Trust intranet.  
 
 
 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

Leadership given to the risk management process  
 
The overall responsibility for managing risk rests with the Chief Executive and I chair the 
Governance and Risk Management Committee (GRMC). Reports from this Committee, which 
includes all Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors of the Trust, are made to 
the Board in public session. Risk management receives significant attention at Board level 
and this is being cascaded throughout the organisation. The Board is formally appraised of 
risks throughout the organisation including clinical, non-clinical and business, through the 
various committees properly constituted within the Trust, as outlined in Section 1. 
 
Committees supporting the GRMC are: Quality, Safeguarding, Clinical Audit, Clinical Risk 
and Clinical Effectiveness, Health and Safety, Infection Control, Patient Experience, Patient 
Records and Cancer Services.  
 
4. Risk Assessment 
 
Strategic Risks - Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
  
The BAF provides the mechanism for identifying potential risks against the Trust’s strategic 
priorities. These are set against the ‘Big 5’ Trust objectives, as approved by the Board. It 
considers the stated aims and objectives of the Trust together with the related controls and 
assurances in place and their adequacy. Furthermore it identifies any gaps in those controls 
and assurances and where an action plan is in progress, to address these gaps. It has been 
updated twice in year since its original approval. 

As required by the Foundation Trust application process the Trust has also submitted an 
Integrated Business Plan to the Strategic Health Authority. This includes a risk assessment 
of the Trust and these risks have been cross-referenced to the BAF to demonstrate the 
relationship to the Trust’s ongoing assessment of its risk profile. 

Project and Directorate Risks 
 
Programmes and projects are expected to manage risks within the context of their objectives 
and deliverables. Overall risks to the organisation arising from key programmes and projects 
are considered for inclusion within the Trusts Corporate Risk register. 

All clinical directorates have a forum where risk is discussed. This is either a specific risk 
group or it is part of another group as a standing agenda item e.g. Clinical Governance or 
Health and Safety Group. At these groups the directorate identifies risks and reviews 
incidents, taking action to minimise risk and learn lessons from incidents. Risk assessments 
are used at all levels of the Trust, from service planning to assessing day-to-day risks. The 
Risk Management Strategy/Policy gives guidance on scoring risks. 

Risk assessments can be clinical and non-clinical. Risks that cannot be controlled 
adequately at local level should be escalated to directorate level and used to populate their 
directorate risk register. Directorate risk registers are reviewed annually by Clinical Risk 
Committee and are also used to inform/prioritise the budget setting process.  
 
The Clinical & Non-Clinical Risk Committees also ensure that the Trust risk register is 
reviewed and updated regularly and includes core strategic and operational risks assessed 
as being over the acceptable level set out in the risk management strategy. This is overseen 
by the Governance and Risk Management Committee which reviews the full register at least 
annually. Incident reports and complaints are reviewed regularly at directorate-level and bi-
monthly by board-level committees. 
 
In addition there are quarterly meetings between directorate management teams and 
executives which monitor the progress of actions on risk registers as part of the Trust’s 
performance management process. 
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Incident reporting   
 
The Trust has a comprehensive single incident reporting system, which is well established in 
the organisation. Reports from incidents are provided to the directorates and specific Trust 
committees as an aid to planning future improvements and thus preventing similar incidents 
from re-occurring. Incidents are reviewed and investigated accordingly and for those that are 
graded serious, a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) is undertaken.  
 
Reports of these RCA’s and action plans are considered at the Clinical Risk and Trust 
Health and Safety Committees.  The GRMC receives an incident report and dashboard at 
every meeting. The Trust Board receives a monthly report of new serious incidents and 
progress of actions of previous serious incidents. All patient safety incidents are reported 
electronically to the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) via the National Learning 
Reporting Scheme (NLRS). Serious untoward incidents are also reported to the Strategic 
Health Authority and Primary Care Trust. Incidents meeting the criteria of the Reporting of 
Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrence Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR) are reported to 
the Incident Contact Centre.  
 
During 2010-11 the Trust implemented an on-line electronic incident reporting form (e-
AIMS), replacing the paper system. This improved the speed of reporting incidents and 
quicker corrective action. Some issues were identified during 2011-12 in the link from this 
system into reporting to the NLRS. This did not affect the management of these incidents or 
the implementation of actions but did reduce the volumes recorded on NLRS. This has now 
been addressed and continues to be monitored. 
 
Organisational Risk Profile 
 
During the 2011/12 financial year the following risks have been identified for GRMC or Board 
review, either through the BAF, or Corporate Risk Register, and managed as outlined below; 
 

High Risks (pre-mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

Failure to deliver 75% of 
available CQUINS incentives. 

 Improve by achieving CQUIN targets 
 An executive leads each target 
 Managerial lead appointed for each target with 

supporting structures developed over year 
 Information team engaged 
 Placed on PPFC dashboards 
 Target progress reported routinely to Board 
 Focus placed on deliverable targets 

 

 Some targets achieved 
others, including A&E 
waiting time, not 
achieved. 

Failure to reduce hospital 
acquired Infections within 
parameters set out in the 
NHS Operating Framework. 

 Monthly meetings of Control of Infection Committee 
 Assistant Director of Nursing supporting IC team 
 Focus on screening 
 Anti-microbial ward rounds re-introduced 
 Saving lives data placed on ‘I’ 
 Regular reports to Board, PCTs and HPA 
 Continuous emphasis on IC procedures to leaders 
 Focus put on all aspects of Saving Lives bundles 

 All infections reduced 
except MRSA which has 
exceeded its annual 
target. 

Excessive waits/delays in 
Emergency Department (ED) 

 BNSSG Management Board  
 Weekly Emergency Access Group reviews progress 

on ED standards 
 New clinical pathways developed with Community 
 Assurance reporting to Board 

 Further remedial actions 
underway to improve 
performance in 2012-13. 

Cerner implementation – 
inadequate outpatient & 
theatre builds and related 
operational risks 

 Programme governance structure via Cerner 
Programme Board 

 End of stage Gateways commissioned (and all 
signed off) 

 Greenfield Board reviews 
 OGC reviews 
 Internal Audit reviews to Audit Committee 
 Post go-live recovery plans, with clinical safety 

prioritised  
 Directorates aware of problems and managing risks 
 Independent review commissioned 

 Yes in terms of primary 
clinical and operational 
risks. 

 Ongoing work is 
progressing to improve 
build and to realise 
system benefits. 



7 | P a g e  
 

High Risks (pre-mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

Delays in project for transfer 
of Breast Service. 

 Implementation plans being agreed with clinicians 
and stakeholders 

 Joint post with UHB leading transfer with supporting 
structure 

 Involvement strategy  
 Regular service updates to Management Team 

 Further actions planned 
to strengthen project 
structure and elicit key 
decisions to progress 
scheme. 

Delays in project for transfer 
of Pathology Service. 

 Implementation plans being agreed with clinicians 
and stakeholders 

 Programme Board set up with supporting structure 
 Bristol providers engaged 
 Business case developed 
 Regular reports to Board and Management Team 

 Yes, business case 
agreed and procurement 
process underway. 

Increase in cost of PFI 
Scheme 

 Monitoring of RPI whilst above 2.5%  No, outside of any NHS 
influence but improving 
situation 

Injury to Patients through 
Falls 

 Falls bundle training introduced 
 Guidelines for post Neck of Femur distributed 
 80% of nurses trained and Falls bundle embedded 

 Yes, risk reduced to 
below threshold for board 
monitoring. 

Incomplete 
Thromboprophylaxis 
implementation 

 Guidance and strategy developed and distributed 
 Identification system of VTE events in RCAs 
 Ensure compliance with CQUIN target for VTE risk 

assessment and NICE quality standards. 

 Yes, risk reduced to 
below threshold for board 
monitoring. 

Shortage in supply chain 
leading to out of stocks at 
Trust and procurement of 
alternative drugs 

 On-going electronic list reviewed twice weekly 
 Contribution to regional letter to DH 
 Strengthening of systems and formal Standard 

Operating Procedures. 

 No– actions are 
underway but as yet not 
fully delivered. 

Contaminants in theatre sets 
and holes in wraps causing 
delays, cancellations or 
potential post-operative 
infections. 

 AOC theatres to increase shelving 
 Purchase of additional sets to enable longer 

turnaround times for high demand sets  
 Hire kit supervisor to further improve flow of kit and 

cope with operational difficulties in AOC. 
 Purchase of containers to replace wraps 
 Further purchase of high demand kits in March 2012 
 Range of actions in CSSD to improve service 

delivery. 
 Independent review of CSSD & AOC interaction 

 No – actions are 
underway but as yet not 
fully delivered. 

Potential failure to meet 
priorities, timelines and pass 
key stages within 
Foundation Trust Application 

 Project board set up 
 Project manager appointed 

 Yes –strong project 
management in place and 
all milestones achieved to 
date. 

 
Information Governance 
 

 As Accountable Officer I receive comprehensive and reliable assurance from a range 
of sources including managers, internal audit and periodic external audits that 
information governance risks are being managed effectively.  

 There have been no lapses of data security in 2011/12. 
 I can also confirm that the Trust is compliant with the NHS Information Governance 

Toolkit self-assessment requirements in achieving at least Level 2 against all 45 
requirements at 31st March 2012. 
 
 

5. Review of Effectiveness of risk management and internal control 
 
As Accountable Officer, I have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
Firstly, I can confirm that the system of internal control has been in place in North Bristol 
NHS Trust for the full year ended 31 March 2012 and up to the date of approval of the 
Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
The detail of my review is informed in a number of ways, as follows; 

 Executive directors and managers within the organisation who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the system of internal control provide me with 
assurance. 
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 The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements 
for gaining assurance through the Board Assurance Framework and on the controls 
reviewed as part of the internal audit plan. The draft HIAO has been provided and 
confirms that “Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound 
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the 
design and in some cases inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of 
particular objectives at risk.” This is a sound assurance opinion, at the same level 
achieved for the past 5 years.  

 The BAF itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
manage the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been 
reviewed. 

 The Trust’s Quality Account is subject to review by Internal Audit and also to a 
formal External Auditor’s opinion; the outcomes of these are both reported to the 
Audit & Assurance Committee. The external audit is also reported to the Quality 
Committee. Ongoing assurance on performance and data quality against the Trust’s 
Priority Aims for Quality Improvement is obtained through their inclusion in the 
monthly Board Quality report and the prior scrutiny this receives. This information is 
also reviewed at the Trust’s Quality Committee with Clinical Directors and forms part 
of quarterly directorate performance reviews with the executive team. 

 
A range of internal and external assurances are considered, key examples being;  

 
Type Assurance Source 
 
External Assurances 
 

 
 NHS Litigation Authority assessments. In November 2011, the Trust was successful 

in obtaining level 2 compliance against the acute general standards. 
 The Trust was last at level 2 against the CNST Maternity Standards in 2010 and is 

due to be assessed at Level 3 in June 2012.  
 External Audit reports on the Trusts annual financial accounts, which were 

unqualified for 2010/11. 
 External Audit report on the Trusts Quality Account, which was unqualified for 

2010/11. 
 SAS 70 report on the operations run by Shared Business Services Ltd  
 SAS 70 report on the Electronic Staff Records system (ESR)  
 Annual patients’ survey and delivery of action plan 
 Annual staff survey and delivery of action plan 
 Care Quality Commission – planned and unannounced review programme and 

continuance of registration without conditions or enforcement actions  
 External review of the Monitor Quality Governance Framework by PwC 
 Due Diligence reviews for Foundation Trust status (stages 1 & 2) by Deloitte 
 Quality and Governance reviews by Strategic Health Authority for Foundation Trust 

status 
 LINks – enter and view visit reports  
 Postgraduate Medical Education Training Board visits  
 HSE inspection visits  
 Strategic Health Authority (peer review visits)  
 Local Authorities – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
 National Clinical Audit reports  
 HMCIP visits 
 Medicines and Healthcare Products Agency 
 OFSTED inspections 
 Management Systems Organisations accreditation reviews, such as the British 

Standards Institute 
 

Internal Assurances 
 

 Reports received from internal audit  
 Clinical audit reports  
 Achievement of financial targets for 2011/12  
 Performance Management reports to the Trust Board 
 Quality reports to the Trust Board 
 Workforce & Organisational Development reports to the Trust Board 
 Annual Quality Account 
 Governance & Risk Management Committee Assurance reports to Board  
 Audit & Assurance Committee reports to Board 
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6. Significant Issues 
 

Taking the guidance provided on the disclosure of ‘significant issues’ within the ‘Annual 
Governance Statements – Guidance’ letter issued by Janet Perry NHS Chief Financial 
Controller, on 29th February 2012, the Trust has outlined below information where this 
applies. 
 
Implementation of New Patient Record 
 
The Trust has been implementing a new electronic patient record system to replace the 
previous outdated, less efficient system. The system ‘went live’ in December 2011. Most 
wards, minor injuries units at Southmead Hospital and at Yate as well as the Emergency 
Department at Frenchay went live without major difficulties.   
 
However, unexpected problems were experienced within the outpatient appointments and to 
a lesser extent Theatres. Systems were established to ensure that patient safety was not 
compromised. We have apologised to patients who have been inconvenienced during this 
time, as well as making public apologies to patients and to our staff who have had to cope 
with the stress this has caused. 
 
We were able to confirm at the beginning of March that all outpatient activity was being 
processed through the system. Work is ongoing to further ‘bed this in,’ with IT teams dealing 
with issues relating to specific clinics and staff getting used to the new system and new ways 
of working. 
 
An independent review has been commissioned to assess and report on the issues 
experienced and to ensure lessons are learned for the future.  
 

Serious Incidents – ‘Never Events’ 

Two ‘never events’ occurred in NBT during 2011/12: 
 
1. Unintended retention of a foreign object post-surgical intervention 
The retained object was a microvascular clamp and this was removed during a subsequent 
operation which resulted in a satisfactory outcome for the patient.  The patient was fully 
informed of the incident and accepted a formal apology. A robust and comprehensive 
investigation was carried out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident   
 
A Swab, Instrument & Needlecount Policy has been written and implemented within the 
Trust.  This dictates the action to be taken when there is a discrepancy in the count and 
requires that an x-ray be taken if this is the case. 
 
The peri-operative record of care has been revised to include documented recording of the 
count being correct.  If not, the above policy must be followed. 
 
A safe system of work has been written and implemented for the use of microvascular 
clamps.  This links to the policy and peri-operative record of care outlined above.   
The Clinical Risk Committee is assured that the above actions have been implemented and 
this will improve patient safety. 
 
 
2. Wrong Site Surgery  
A surgical intervention was performed on the wrong organ in a patient.  The operation was 
complex due to distortion of the anatomy.  This incident has resulted in some long term harm 



10 | P a g e  
 

for the patient although the patient has since fully recovered. The patient has been fully 
informed and an apology given.  A robust and comprehensive investigation has been carried 
out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident  
 
The incident was caused by human error due to distorted patient anatomy.  The consultant 
surgeon was experienced and assisted by a specialist in the patient’s condition. 
The World Health Organisation Surgical Checklist was used correctly and as such, could not 
have prevented this error. 
 
This case was discussed at directorate clinical governance meetings and disseminated 
widely to raise awareness of implications of distorted patient anatomy with clinical staff. The 
Clinical Risk Committee, Commissioners and the National Patient Safety Agency are 
assured that human error is an acceptable root cause of this incident and that all procedures 
were carried out correctly. 
 
 

 

Signed …………………………………….. 

Ruth Brunt, Chief Executive 

North Bristol NHS Trust 

Date:   ..…………………………………. 

 



 
 

 
 

Report to Trust Board – May 2012 
 

Title: Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 

Purpose of paper: To seek Board approval for the Trust’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
 

For Approval 

Executive Summary:   

The Trust’s Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12 is appended, which replaces the Statement on 
Internal Control (SIC) issued in previous years as part of the Trust’s Annual report.  
 
Given that there are various changes in format from the SIC, as well as an explicit requirement for the 
AGS to be approved at a public board session, this has been submitted as a separate item this year. In 
future years we intend to move to a single board approval process as part of the Annual report.  
 

The Trust’s Audit 
Committee approved the 
draft version on 18th April 
2012, followed by a review 
at GRMC on 2nd May. 

The Audit Committee is the responsible Board committee for reviewing 
the AGS and approved the draft, subject to minor amendments, for 
submission to the Strategic Health Authority on 23rd April as required.  

This included review of the Head of Internal Audit Opinion, which stated 
that “Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound 
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, 
and that controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weakness in the design and in some cases inconsistent application 
of controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk.” This is a 
sound assurance opinion, at the same level achieved for the past 5 years. 

The GRMC review provided final opportunity for further comments prior to 
board review. No changes were requested. 

 

The Trust’s external auditor 
is satisfied that it meets 
requirements and fairly 
reflects the Trust's 
arrangements. 

Confirmation was received from the Audit Commission on 3rd May that 
the AGS has been reviewed as part of the annual accounts audit and 
“meets requirements and fairly reflects the Trust's arrangements.” 

There are a number of 
‘new’ areas of coverage in 
the AGS compared to the 
SIC. 

 Section 2 – members’ attendance at the board and key 
subcommittees. A description of the board development 
programme and assurance processes. A section on 
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. 

 Section 3 – none. Very similar to SIC coverage. 
 Sections 4 & 5 – drafted differently in some respects, but 

overall this is similar to SIC coverage. 
 Section 6 – definitions for ‘significant’ control issues have 

been revised as shown on the following page.  
 

There are also a number of 
explicit ‘disclosures’ 
previously mandated 
within the SIC that are no 
longer required. 

 Full and part year disclosures where systems have not been 
in place for the whole financial year. 

 Explicit commentary on the Board Assurance Framework 
and a ‘self-assessment’ against specific criteria to the SHA. 

 Specific disclosure on compliance with equality, diversity 
and human rights legislation 

 Specific disclosure on NHS Pension scheme compliance. 



 
 

 Specific disclosure on compliance with Climate Change 
Adaptation reporting to meet the requirements under the 
Climate Change Act 2008. 

 Specific disclosure on CQC essential standards of quality 
and safety. 

 
The organisational risk 
profile is outlined within 
Section 4, taking account 
of risks reported through 
GRMC during the year. 

Risks have been identified from the Board Assurance Framework 
and the Trust’s Risk Register, identifying those that have featured 
as high risks during the year. The table also provides a high level 
‘position statement’ on whether these have been reduced at the 
year end. This is intended to cover the requirements to identify “any 
newly identified risk; i.e. risks identified in the year 2011/12” but 
also to comment upon “Management of both manifest and potential 
risks.” 
 
A specific section on Information Governance has been included 
and confirmed with the Trust’s Information Governance lead.  
 

‘Significant issues’ have 
been disclosed in line with 
the guidance. 

Three disclosures have been made, applying the criteria set out in 
the overall AGS guidance. The Audit Committee & Governance & 
Risk Management Committee have both been provided with that 
guidance for comparative purposes. 
 
The Cerner implementation is included due to the broad external 
coverage this has received, the negative impact on programme 
objectives, the patient and staff issues and related reputational risk. 
 
The two ‘Never Events’ are included as key Serious Incidents and 
the wording is identical to that used within the Trust’s Quality 
Account. 
 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is requested to review and approve the Annual Governance Statement 
for 2011/12. 

 

Key Risks: Inaccurate or unsubstantiated statements in the AGS would damage the Trust’s 
reputation if publically identified and challenged. 

Impact on 
Patients: 

None. 

CQC Outcome: All Responsible Committee: Audit Committee. 
Financial Issues 
considered: 

Inherent within overall 
systems of internal control.

Equality Impact 
Assessment: 

Not specifically for this 
statement. 

Legal Issues Inherent within overall 
systems of internal control.

Sustainability 
Assessment Completed: 

Not specifically for this 
statement. 

 

 

Presented by: Ruth Brunt – Chief Executive 
Prepared by: Paul Cresswell – Head of Compliance  



Decisions Required:

Key Issues:

Programme 2011/12 A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N
Ward block envelopes G G G G G G G G G G
Clinical block envelopes G G G G G G G G G G
Ward block fit outs G G G G G G G G G G
Clinical block fit outs G G G G G G G G G G
Clinical (C-sheets) G G
Equipping G G G G G G G G G G
Concourse Roof G G G G G G
Commissioning G G G G G G
Risk/Cost impacts RAG
Summary: A
Type No. Mitigation Score

Operational F12

A detailed reconciliation against the agreed C sheets is under way in order to populate the IM&T database and ensure the 
correct budget is in place to procure and deliver the PFI 15

Commissioning P10
The Trust is actively planning the immediate priority projects including Cerner, BoF, Operational Planning and FT application. It 
is essential that there is sufficient resource and engagement from 2012 on what is needed to transform the services and to 
commission the new building.

15

Operational A6

Generic space planning allows for temporary mix changes and closure programme around Frenchay could be managed to allow 
time to resolve service transfer issues. Maintain close liaison with UHB and other organisations to ensure early warning signs are 
picked up and seek share of risk of delay with new host organisation.

12

Quality RAG
Summary: G
Design G
Clinical/functionality G
Technical G
Arts G
Sustainability G
Comms/involvement G
Asbestos/Ground 
Conditions

Cost £000 RAG

Unexpected ground 
conditions

0 G

Unidentified asbestos 200 (anticipated and allowed for in budget) G
Variations Cost £000 RAG
Error Corrections: 0 G
Strategic Decisions: 0 G

Southmead Hospital Redevelopment Project

Highlight Report

The quality of design submissions and samples generally continue to meet the Trust requirements and expectations

0

Author: Martin Warren

None

On programme and four tower cranes have completed their tasks and been removed
Window installation is vitually complete throughout these blocks and pennant stone installation has commenced on Block 1
Terracotta panel installation is substantially complete throughout
Pre fit out works are substantially complete. Fit out and pod deliveries have continuesd to programme

SRO: David Powell

Schedule of Trust supply IM&T equipment is found 
to be incomplete and Capital Plan could be 
inadequate to fund all Trust supply IM&T 
equipment
Staff unable to allocate sufficient time to engage 
with commissioning new building and delay the 
opening

Date:     
17/05/12

Report Number:  

Period: 15/04- 17/05

95

Construction work is on programme and most of Phase 1 design review has been completed

Risk

Pre fit out works are substantially complete and fit out has started on all blocks

IM&T resources being reviewed to deliver the procurement and commissioning phase.  

Most of the outstanding design issues on the staff MSCP have now been agreed, The balustrade sample, which is also for use site wide, is also being reviewed.

A planned series of events for staff, public, local residents together with business and health communities are contnuing 
Number

Service transfers out from NBT do not proceed as 
planned

The operation of the agreed water feature is being reviwed with the legionella group
Carillion are consistently exceeding the target of 50% waste diverted from landfill. They again reported 100% recycles last month. 

1

Number
0

1 (Phase 1 demolitions)

Only Theatres and Burns C sheets are still outstanding
The selection process for all equipment is proceeding in line with the programme

Discussions have started with carillion on the operation of the service yard during the transition from Pahse 1 to Phase 2
The interface between mini skirted canpoies, pendants and lights is under review with users and suppliers

Glazing is complete in sector 1 and cladding to all 3 windcatchers has started
A joint workshop with Carillion was held with the Move Project Team to develop principles for going forward

7.1 Redevelopment Project Highlight Report



 
 

Report to the NBT Trust Board  
31 May 2012  

 
Title: Southmead Hospital Redevelopment Update 

Purpose of paper:  To provide an overview of issues and risks associated with the 
Southmead Hospital Redevelopment project. 

To note 

Executive Summary:  
 Construction work is on programme overall.  
 Work has started on the Move Programme into the new hospital in 2014 
 The design process is planned to shortly to focus on the Phase 2 aspects.  
 Rectification works to the staff MSCP are progressing 
 Carillion’s claim for unidentified asbestos, which is a standard contractual requirement, has 

been agreed but not yet formally documented. 
 No claims have been received by the Trust. 
 
Action Required: The Trust Board is asked to Note the issues identified.  
 
Key Risks: 
The key risks identified for the period include: 

 Schedule of Trust supply IM&T equipment is found to be incomplete and Capital Plan 
could be inadequate to fund all Trust supply IM&T equipment. A detailed reconciliation 
against the agreed C sheets is under way in order to populate the IM&T database and 
ensure the correct budget is in place to procure and deliver the PFI 

 Service transfers between Trusts not proceeding to agreed timescales.  Contingency plans 
are being developed in the event that services are unable to transfer. 

 Staff not having sufficient time to engage with the service redesigns and workforce 
planning for development of the commissioning plan for the new hospital. The forthcoming 
major projects which could compete with resources are planned to peak prior to the new 
hospital commissioning process. 

Impact on Patients:  
 
Emerging costs that have not been allowed for could reduce available funding for patient care or 
could result in additional savings being required.  A successfully delivered design should bring 
significant benefits to patients, visitors and staff in terms of environment and functionality. 
 
CQC Outcome:   10 and 26   
Responsible Committee:   North Bristol Trust Redevelopment PB 
Financial Issues considered:  Yes 
Equality Impact Assess’t Completed: Yes   
Legal Issues Considered:   Yes  
Sustainability Assess’t Completed: No 
 
Presented by:   David Powell, Director of Projects  
Prepared by:   Martin Warren, Project Manager  
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Report to the Trust Board – May 2012   
 

Title:    NBT Values 
 
Purpose of paper 
 
This paper sets out: 
 

 Why we are developing local values in NBT 
 How we are developing local values in NBT  
 The implications for the way we work. 

The Trust Board is asked to NOTE the long list of values and the Board’s significant 
role in approving and launching the NBT values later this summer. 

 

For  Information  

Executive Summary:  
 
 Having strong values in an organisation can make a big difference to staff and 

patients; but these benefits only materialise when employees feel that the 
organisation’s values are aligned with their own. 

 We are involving staff in identifying our values, and seeking the views of patients 
and the public, before seeking Board approval of the final values. 

 The values will influence our behaviours to patients, colleagues and others, our 
leadership, decision-making, communications and organisational processes. 

 
 
Key Risks: poor implementation could reduce staff engagement with an adverse 
effect on patient care. 
 
 
Impact on Patients: thorough implementation, role modelled and integrated with our 
systems and processes, will increase staff engagement, and thus support 
consistently high standards of patient care    
 
 
Presented by: Cathy Meredith, OD Lead  
 
Prepared by:   Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance  

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under 

a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
1 
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NBT Values 
 

1. Summary 
This paper explains:  

 Why we are developing local values in NBT 
 How we are developing local values in NBT  
 The implications for the way we work. 

It also asks the Board to note the long list of values (3.2 below), and their significant role in 
approving and launching the NBT values later this year. 

  
2 Why we are developing local values in NBT 

Our values underpin our mindsets and our behaviours. There is evidence to show that having 
strong values in an organisation can make a big difference to staff and patients; but that 
these benefits only happen when employees feel that the organisation’s values are aligned 
with their own. Values can not be imposed from above, or borrowed from elsewhere.  
 
It is necessary to engage staff in the process of developing values. In NHS organisations 
including NBT, people bring strong personal and professional values to the workplace. As 
part of the NBT Staff Engagement Strategy, we are bringing these values to the surface, and 
embedding them in every aspect of the way we work. This work is led by the Staff 
Engagement Group, chaired by the Chief Executive. 

  
3 How we are developing local values in NBT  

We are using a 4 step process: 
3.1 Explore 
3.2 Engage 
3.3 Embed 
3.4 Evaluate 

  
 3.1 Explore 

In Autumn 2011 we prepared for the work on values by identifying best practice nationally, 
using the NHS Institute for Innovation, the NHS Constitution, and the work of other acute 
trusts. Locally, University Hospitals Bristol shared their experience of involving staff in 
identifying their values.  

  
 3.2 Engage 

Based on this, we held a series of focus groups with a wide range of staff in January and 
February 2012, in Frenchay, Southmead, and in the community.  
106 people attended, and shared their views on various subjects including: 

 what it was like to work at NBT,  
 what exceptional healthcare personally delivered meant to them 
 what they value about their job, their team and NBT 

 
The long list 
From these views we have identified seven potential values: 
 

 Putting patients first 
 Committed to Excellence 
 Encouraging Innovation 
 Leading by Example 
 Embracing Change 
 Working Together 
 Respecting Others 

1 



2 

 
The next steps are to 

1. Give staff the opportunity to comment on these values and suggest their own 
in a survey to be held in June.  

2. At the same time we will seek the views of volunteers, and patients and the 
public from the NBT foundation trust database. 

3. Draft a short list of values for Trust Board approval in July 
4. Launch the values in autumn 2012 with Trust Board-level sponsorship. In 

other organisations this has included, for example individual board members 
sponsoring a particular value, or members of the board walking the floor to 
discuss the values with staff and patients. 

5. Embed the values from autumn 2012 through to the opening of the new 
hospital and beyond. 

  
 3.3 Embed 

Embedding the values means integrating them into everything we do including: 
  Changing mindsets and behaviours 
 How we behave with our patients  
 How we behave with each other  
 How we behave with colleagues in other organisations 
 How we communicate internally and externally 
 Our leadership  
 Our decision-making  
 Our organisational processes  

 
Other organisations have found this most effective if leaders embody and champion the 
values, and that staff are engaged in working out what the values mean for them in terms of 
behaviours and the underlying mindsets. So in addition to writing the values into our HR 
processes to recruit, appraise, reward and motivate staff, we will be highlighting one value at 
a time over the course of a year to enable staff to explore what that value means for them in 
their work.  

  
 3.4 Evaluate 

We can evaluate the inputs in terms of: 
 Whether we have done what we set out to do e.g. embedding the values in our 

recruitment and appraisal processes 
 How staff feel about the values e.g. through surveys and focus groups 

The outputs that can be measured are:  
 Whether staff are behaving differently e.g. through staff and patient feedback, HR 

metrics ( turnover and absence rates) 
 The impact on patients e.g. through patient feedback and reviewing ‘touchpoints’ with 

patients.  
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
 Cathy Meredith 

Head of OD 
NBT 

18 May 2012 
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Report to the Trust Board – 31st May 2012 
 

Title: Activity and Performance Report 

Purpose of paper:  To present the current Trust position against new 
and existing performance targets/indicators to the 
Board. 

For Information 

Executive Summary:   
 
Emergency Access –  Despite very detailed action plans in relation to patient 
flow and emergency access, we are not seeing the expected improvements.   
 
18 Week Referral to Treatment Time – Incomplete pathway medium 
continues to rise with significant additions to the waiting lists which we are 
addressing through a task and finish group.  Admitted 18 week RTT was not 
achieved in March due to multi-factorial issues, which has a knock on impact 
on the 95th percentile.  April has achieved admitted RTT.   
 
Cancer – No issues with cancer.   
 
Cancelled Operations – Validation is now complete and is within trajectory.  
The Trust is struggling with rebooking within 28 days, however, we anticipate 
this to improve in the coming months.   
 
Re-admission Rates – At the last Board meeting, it was noted that the 
readmission rate for February was significantly high.  Initial investigations 
point to significant numbers of regular day cases being recorded as 
emergency admissions, notably in diabetic medicine and gastroenterology.  
Recoding is taking place.  There is no evidence to suggest that readmissions 
have significantly deteriorated.  
 
Stroke Management – As discussed at the last Board, further validation has 
been completed and this target has been achieved for the quarter.   
 
Action Required:  
 
No action required. 
 
The Trust Board is asked to: 
 
Note the content of the report. 
 
Key Risks: 
 
None delivery of operational performance may invoke financial penalty and 
reputational damage. 
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Impact on Patients:  
 
 Timely access to services is very important to patients. 
 
 
 
CQC Outcome:    Performance indicators.  
Responsible Committee:    PPFC 
Financial Issues considered:   Yes 
Equality Impact Assessment Completed: No 
Legal Issues Considered:   Yes 
Sustainability Assessment Completed: No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented by: Sue Watkinson, Director of Operations 
 
Prepared by: Dan Bates, Information Analyst 
 
 



 

 
 
 
Balanced Scorecard 
 
 

Balanced Scorecard 
April.xls  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

Explanation of operational performance targets and associated financial penalties 
 
Target Target Description Contract measure Financial 

penalty per 
target 

Total possible 
financial 
penalty per 12 
months 

Admitted 18 weeks 90% of all admitted patients for an elective 
operation/ procedure (pathway) should be 
treated within 18 weeks from referral. 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Admitted median The middle patient out of all admitted 18 week 
pathways should wait no longer than 11.1 
weeks 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Admitted 95th 
percentile 

The patient at 95% out of all admitted 18 week 
pathways should not be waiting longer than 23 
weeks 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Non-admitted 18 
weeks 

95% of all non-admitted patients should wait no 
longer than 18 weeks. 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Non-admitted median The middle patient out of all the non-admitted 18 
week pathways should wait no longer than 6.6 
weeks 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Non-admitted 95th 
percentile 

The patient at 95% out of all the non-admitted 
pathways should not wait longer than 18.3 
weeks. 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Incomplete pathway 
95th percentile 

The patient at 95% of all incomplete pathways 
should not wait longer than 28 weeks 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

Incomplete pathway 
median 

The middle patient out of all the incomplete 
pathways should wait no longer than 7.2 weeks 

Contract penalty Up to 
£3,000,000 

Up to 
£3,000,000 

TWW GP referrals 93% of all patients with suspected cancer will be 
see from date of referral within 2 weeks 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 
 
 
 

     



 

TWW Breast 
symptoms 

93% of all patients with suspected cancer will be 
see from date of referral within 2 weeks 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

62 day First treatment 
from GP referral 

85% of all patients with a cancer diagnosis will 
receive their first treatment within 62 days from 
being referred by their GP 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

62 day First treatment 
from Consultant 
screening 

90% of all patients with a cancer diagnosis 
following routine screening will have their first 
treatment within 62 days of referral 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

62 day First treatment 
from Consultant 
Upgrade 

90% of all patients with a cancer diagnosis 
following a routine consultant referral will have 
their first treatment within 62 days 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

31 day First treatment 
from diagnosis 

96% of all patients following a cancer diagnosis 
will be have their first treatment within 31 days 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

31 day Secondary 
AntiCancer Drug 
Treatment 

98% of patients will have cancer drug 
treatments within days for second or 
subsequent treatments 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

31 day Secondary 
Surgery Treatment 

94% of patients wait no more than 31 days for 
second or subsequent surgical cancer treatment 

Contract penalty 2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

2% of the value 
of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

31 day Secondary 94% of patients wait no more than 31 days for Contract penalty 2% of the value 2% of the value 



 

Radiotherapy 
Treatment 

second or subsequent radiotherapy cancer 
treatment 

of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

of all activity 
associated 
with this 
patient group 

31 day Secondary 
Palliative Care 

94% of patients wait no more than 31 days for 
second or subsequent palliative care 

Internal target No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 

31 Day Secondary 
Active Monitoring 

94% of patients wait no more than 31 days for 
second or subsequent active monitoring 

Internal target  No financial 
penalty 
 

Cancelled Operations 
for non-clinical 
reasons 

Provider cancellation of Elective Care operation 
for non-clinical reasons either before or after 
Patient admission – 0.8% of all elective 
admissions 

Contract penalty £15k per 
quarter 
breached 

£60k 

Cancelled Operations 
re-booking within 28 
days 

95% of same-day cancellation to be re-booked 
within 28 days 

Contract penalty Provider must 
pay for the 
relevant 
Patient’s 
treatment by 
another 
provider of the 
Patient’s 
choice 

Provider must 
pay for the 
relevant 
Patient’s 
treatment by 
another 
provider of the 
Patient’s 
choice 

A&E total time 95th 
percentile (4 hours) 

95% of patients to spend no longer than 4 hours 
in department 

Contract penalty 2% of value of 
A&E activity 
for period 

2% of value of 
A&E activity 
for period  

A&E unplanned re-
attendance rate 

Less than 5% of patients to re-attend unless 
planned 

Contract penalty Penalty to be 
decided 

Penalty to be 
decided  

A&E left department 
without being seen 

Less than 5% of patients leave department 
without being seen 

Contract penalty Penalty to be 
decided 

Penalty to be 
decided  

A&E Initial 
assessment 95th 
percentile (15 mins) 
 

95% of patients have initial assessment within 
15 minutes 

Contract penalty Penalty to be 
decided 

Penalty to be 
decided  

A&E time to treatment 
median (60 mins) 

The middle patient of all patients waiting treated 
within 60 minutes 

Contract penalty Penalty to be 
decided 

Penalty to be 
decided  



 

A&E Ambulance 
Handover times >2 
hours 

No ambulance handovers taking longer than 2 
hours 

Contract penalty Penalty to be 
decided 

Penalty to be 
decided  

A&E ambulance 
handover times >45 
mins 

No ambulance handovers taking longer than 45 
minutes 

Contract penalty £95 per breach £95 for each 
breach 

Length of stay 
measures 

Local targets set for improved productivity  Internal target No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 

Readmissions within 
30 days – emergency 
re-admissions 
following elective 
admission 

With the exception of specific patient groups, 
emergency re-admission following an elective 
admission within 30 days is not paid for 

Contract limiter No re-
admission 
activity is paid 
for  

No re-
admission 
activity is paid 
for 

Readmissions within 
30 days – emergency 
re-admissions 
following emergency  
admission 

2% reduction on 2010/11 levels of emergency 
re-admissions following emergency admissions 

Contract limiter Activity not 
paid for if 
reduction is 
less than 2% 

Activity not 
paid for if 
reduction is 
less than 2% 

DNA rates “Did not attend” rates to be less than 5% Internal target No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 

6 week diagnostic 
waits 

99.5% of diagnostic waits to be less than 6 
weeks 

Contract penalty £10k / month 
breached 

£120k 

Revascularisation – 11 
weeks 

100% of revascularisation within 11 weeks National target No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 

Choose & Book 
sufficient appointment 
slots 

Failure to ensure that “sufficient appointment 
slots” are made available on the Choose and 
Book system – 96% availability 

Contract penalty £10k / month 
breached 

£120k 

18 week direct access 
audiology 

95% of Patients seen within 18 weeks for direct 
access audiology treatment 

Contract penalty £10k per 
month 
breached 
 

£120k 

Stroke management 
90% on stroke unit 

80% of stroke patents who spend at least 90% 
of their time on a stroke unit.  

Contract penalty £30,000 per 
quarter 

£120,000 

Stage of Treatment – 
26 week inpatient 

No patient waiting longer than 26 weeks from 
referral to admitted treatment 

National target No specific 
financial 

No specific 
financial 



 

breaches penalty penalty 
Stage of Treatment – 
13 week outpatient 
breaches 

No patient waiting longer than 13 weeks for an 
outpatient appointment from referral 

National target No specific 
financial 
penalty 

No specific 
financial 
penalty 

Delayed Transfers Delayed transfers of care to be maintained at a 
minimal level. Target set at 20% reduction on 
2010/11 levels 

Contract penalty No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 

Daycase Rates 72.7% of specific procedures to be carried out 
as a daycase 

Internal target No financial 
penalty 

No financial 
penalty 
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Operations Report for 2011/12 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Provide the Trust Board with a general review the operational performance during 
2011/12 

 Specific review of key performance indicators 
 identify areas of improvement in performance against 2010/11 
 identify areas of poor performance against 2010/11 

 

2. Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 
 
2.1  Cancer standards  -  Achievement status - Green 
 
There are 9 national KPI (key performance indicators) cancer standards which includes the non- 
symptomatic breast standard that was introduced in quarter 3/4 in 2009/10. Internally we 
monitor 2 additional cancer targets. 
 
Table 1 National cancer standards 
 

National  
Cancer standards 

Standard 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Comparison 
between 10/11 & 
11/12 

 
Two Week Wait GP 
referral 

 
93% 

 
93.31% 

 
93.6% 

 
93.8% 

 
62 day (Urgent GP) 

 
85% 

 
86.97% 

 
87.9% 

 
88.1% 

 
31 day first 
treatment 

 
96% 

 
97.39% 

 
97.70% 

 
97.3% 

 
Screening Target 

 
90% 

 
90.55% 

 
94.51% 

 
95.8% 

 
Consultant 
Upgrade 

 
88% 

 
96.15% 

 
94.1% 

 
95.8% 

 
Anti-Cancer Drugs 

 
98% 

 
97.09% 

 
100% 

 
100% 

 
Subsequent 
Surgery 

 
94% 

 
97.1% 

 
96.3% 

 
97.3% 

 
Radiotherapy 

 
94% 

 
No 

patients 
seen 

 
100% 

 

100% 

 

 

 
Non-symptomatic 
breast 

 
93% 

 
100% 

(18 
Patients ) 

 
97.1% 
(1226 

Patients) 

 
97.8% 

 

 

 
 
 
 

     



 

 

Internal Cancer 
Standards 

     

 
Active Monitoring 

 
94% 

 
100% 

 
100%  

 
Palliative Care 

 
94% 

 
100% 

 
100%  

 
 All cancer targets have stayed the same or improved in 2011 / 12, with the exception of 

the 31 day treatment, which was comfortably achieved, but 0.4% less than 2010 / 11.  
 
Table 2 number of months cancer standards not achieved - Achievement Status Green 
 

National  
Cancer standards 

Standard Number of 
months not 
achieved 
Target % 
2009/10 

Number of 
months not 
achieved 
Target % 
2010/11 

Number of 
months not 
achieved 
Target % 
2011/12 

Comparison 
between 10/11 
& 11/12 

 
Two Week Wait GP 
referral 

 
93% 

 
3 

 
 

 
1 

 
62 day (Urgent GP) 

 
85% 

 
4 

 
 

 
1 

 
31 day first treatment 

 
96% 

 
2 

 
1  

 
Screening Target 

 
90% 

 
6 

 
3 

 
1 

 
Consultant Upgrade 

 
88% 

 
2 

 
 

 
 

 
Anti-Cancer Drugs 

 
98% 

 
3 

 
  

 
Subsequent Surgery 

 
94% 

 
1 

 
  

 
Radiotherapy 

 
94% 

No Patients 
seen 

 

 
 

  
N/A 

 
Non-symptomatic 
breast 

 
93% 

Part year 
only 
(18 

Patients ) 

1 
 

(1226 
Patients) 

  
 

Internal Cancer 
Standards 

     

 
Active Monitoring 

 
94% 

 
 

 
  

 
Palliative Care 

 
94% 

 
 

 
  

 
Total number of 
months standards 
breached 

  
19 

 
5 

 
3 

 
Conclusions: 
 
 Overall, cancer performance remains strong and with the exception of the 31 day target, 

where a marginal deterioration was seen (0.4%), all other target areas have improved or 
stayed the same. 



 

 

 
 The real improvement has occurred in the sustainability of all cancer targets.  In 2009/10 

out of 132 months (11 cancer standards x 12 months) 19 months breached.  In 2010/11 - 
5 months breached, and in 2011/12 - 3 months breached.  In April 2011 the 62 day first 
treatment from consultant screening breached, which was purely down to patient choice.  
In August 2011 the 62 day first treatment from GP referral (urgent GP), breached which 
was down to Urology capacity.  In January 2012, the 2 week wait from GP referral 
breached, which was a result of Cerner implementation.   

 
2.2.  Referral to Treatment times – Achievement Status Green 
 
Table 3 - Non - admitted referral to treatment times (95%) Admitted referral to treatment 
times (90%) 
 
National standard Target 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12 Comparison 

between 
10/11 & 11/12

Admitted patients will 
be seen and treated 
within 18 weeks for 
GP referral to 
treatment. 

 
90% 

 
92.1% 92.2% 

 
91.3% 

 

 

Non -admitted 
patients will be seen 
and treated within 18 
weeks for GP referral 
to treatment. 

 
95% 

98.1% 98.0%  
97.1% 

 

 

 
Conclusions : 
 
 Referral to treatment times have been delivered as per contract, however, there is a 

downward trend from last year. 
 
 In relation to RTT there is a huge number of patients that require validation and a task and 

finish group has been put together to complete this work.  We are currently unable to have 
a forward view of 18 week performance, which will be remedied over the next 4 months.   

 
 

2.3 The 18 week inpatient backlog.   
 
Table 4 - 18 week inpatient backlog activity 
 
National standard 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12  Comparison 

between 10/11 
& 11/12 

Under the NHS constitution, all 
patients excluding complex 
pathways and patient choice will 
be treated within 18 weeks from 
GP referral to treatment  

 
572 

 
570 

 
Unvalidated 

data  
 

 
Conclusions: 
 
 There has been little overall movement with 18 week backlog (although this has varied 

throughout the year). The current backlog is mostly due to trauma and orthopaedics, 
Neurosurgery and plastics. The current position is unvalidated which is a result of the 
Cerner Implementation and a task and finish group is actively working to remedy this. 



 

 

 Following contract negotiations for 2011/12 it the lead commissioner fund has agreed to 
Orthopaedic backlog clearance  

 
2.4 Diagnostics - Achievement Status Green 

 
 

National standard Target 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Comparison 
between 10/11 
& 11/12 

99.5% of all patients will 
be seen within 6 weeks 
for key diagnostics. 

 
99.5% 

 
99.9% 

 
99.9% 

 
99.9% 

 

 

 
 

Conclusions: 
 
 

 This standard has been achieved this year.  Up until November 2011, we had achieved 
100% monthly, from December to year end, although the target has been met, due to 
working from a paper based system, which is now electronic, a few patients per month 
breached.  However, each month was delivered.   

 
 
 
2.5 Access to audiology - Achievement Status Green 
 
National 
standard 

Target 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12 Comparison 
between 
10/11 & 
11/12 

 
95% of all patient 
will be seen 
within 18 weeks 
 

 
 
95% 

 
99.9% 

 
99.5% 

 
100%  

 
 
Conclusions: 
 

 There have been a couple of patients who have breached, but due to the numbers 
involved it is statistically insignificant, hence the 100%. 

 



 

 

2.6 Cancelled operations Achievement Status Green 
 
Cancelled 
Operations  

Target 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Comparison 
between 10/11 
& 11/12 

April 0.8% 1.7% 1.5% 0.4% 
May 0.8% 1.9% 2.6% 0.4% 
June 0.8% 1.0% 1.6% 0.6% 
July 0.8% 1.2% 0.9% 0.6% 
August 0.8% 1.4% 1.1% 0.8% 
September 0.8% 1.2% 1.0% 1.0% 
October 0.8% 1.4% 1.1% 0.7% 
November 
 

0.8% 1.3% 0.7% 0.8%  

December 0.8% 1.0% 0.4% 0.8% 
January 
 

0.8% 2.6% 0.5% 0.7%  

February 0.8% 1.7% 0.5% 0.3% 
March 0.8% 1.5% 0.5% 0.3% 
Total 0.8% 1.5% 1.0% 0.6% 
 
Conclusions: 
 

 For the first time NBT has achieved its year end cancelled operation target.  As can be 
seen from the table above, 10 months out of 12 achieved less than 0.8%.  For clarity, the 
reason why some months at 0.8% are green and one red –  is due to rounding up or 
down so green means pass and red fail.  

 
Cancelled Operations re-booked within 28 days  
 
National Target Target 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Comparison 

between 
10/11 & 
11/12 

All patients that have 
their operation 
cancelled on the same 
day will be re-booked 
within 28 days.  

95% 81.7% 86.2% 
 

89.3% 
 

 

 



 

 

Conclusions: 
 
 In line with the same day cancelled operations target, this has historically been a 

challenging target. There has been some improvement each year but we are still not 
achieving this target. 

 
2.7 Stage of Treatment Outpatient 13 Week Breaches Achievement Status unknown 

for year end 
 
South West SHA 
Standard 

Target 2009/10  2010/11  Comparison 
between 
10/11 & 11/12 

No more than 21 patients 
will wait longer than 13 
weeks for first outpatient 
appointment from receipt 
of referral from GP 

21 14 0  

 
Stage of Treatment Inpatient 26 Week Breaches 
 
South West SHA 
Standard 

Target 2009/10  2010/11  Comparison 
between 
10/11 & 11/12 

No more than  patients 
will wait longer than 26 
weeks for inpatient 
episode  

12 0 0 
 

 

 
Conclusion: 
 

 At this point in time we are unable to validate stage of treatment breaches although until 
November 2011 we had achieved 100% in 13 and 26 weeks. 

 
2.8 Choose and book –slot availability - Achievement Status Green 
 
National 
standard 

Target 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12 Comparison 
between 
10/11 & 
11/12 

No more than 4% 
of appointment 
slots will be 
unavailable 
through choose 
and book 

96% 89.4% 98.3% 
 

97% 
 

 

 
Conclusion:  

 
 Access to choose and book has been achieved in 2011/12. We had a couple of months of 

non-achievement, 1 due to a national IT problem and 2 months due to unavailability of 
clinics following Cerner implementation.  

 



 

 

2.9  Stroke and TIA access 
 
National standard Target 2010/11 

 
2011/12  Comparison 

between 
10/11 & 11/12 

High risk TIA 
 

 
>60% 

 
26% 

 

 
73% 

 

 

Stroke Management on 
Stroke Unit 

 
>80% 
 

 
79% 

 
83% 

 

 

  
 
2.10 Emergency Department 4 hour target - Achievement Status Red 
 
National standard Target 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12 

 
Comparison 
between 
10/11 & 11/12 

95% of all patients 
attending the 
Emergency 
Department (Frenchay) 
and associated Minor 
Injuries Unit 
(Southmead) will be 
seen within 4 hours.  

95% 98.2% 97.1% 
 

94.88% 
 
 

 
Conclusion: 
 
This has been our most challenged area since September 2011.  A recovery plan has been 
presented to the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
Sue Watkinson 
Director of Operations 
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Apr‐11 May‐11 Jun‐11 Jul‐11 Aug‐11 Sep‐11 Oct‐11 Nov‐11 Dec‐11 Jan‐12 Feb‐12 Mar‐12 YTD 10/11 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Admitted  18 weeks 90% 92.0% 93.1% 92.8% 91.3% 90.0% 93.1% 92.6% 91.8% 90.1% 90.2% 90.1% 88.2% 91.3% 92.2% 92.6% 91.5% 91.1% 89.4%

Admitted median < 11.1 6.6 7.7 7.7 8.0 7.3 7.4 7.4 6.7 7.0 6.4 5.1 5.9 7.0 7.3 7.3 7.6 7.0 5.9

Admitted 95th percentile < 23 20.3 20.7 20.1 20.4 21.7 20.0 20.0 20.9 21.3 22.0 22.4 25.0 21.1 19.9 20.3 20.7 20.7 23.1

Non Admitted 18 weeks 95% 98.5% 98.1% 98.0% 98.1% 98.4% 98.5% 98.3% 96.9% 96.8% 95.4% 98.0% 97.3% 97.7% 98.0% 98.2% 98.3% 97.2% 96.9%

Non‐admitted median < 6.6 4.4 5.0 4.1 4.1 4.3 4.4 3.9 4.0 3.4 6.1 4.7 2.9 4.1 4.6 4.6 4.3 3.9 4.4

Non‐admitted 95th percentile < 18.3 12.6 13.1 13.4 13.0 13.0 13.6 13.3 14.7 15.3 17.6 14.4 14.9 14.0 13.4 13.0 13.1 14.3 15.4

Incomplete pathway 95th 
percentile

< 28 24.6 24.4 23.7 23.6 24.6 23.7 23.9 24.7 24.3 24.7 25.1 28.0 25.0 23.7 23.7 24.3 26.0

Incomplete pathway median < 7.2 6.6 6.6 6.0 5.9 6.6 6.4 5.9 6.4 6.1 8.0 8.7 9.9 6.9 6.0 6.4 6.1 8.9

TWW GP Referrals > 93% 93.7% 93.2% 93.4% 93.4% 96.2% 93.6% 93.8% 96.1% 94.3% 90.1% 93.0% 95.6% 93.8% 93.6% 93.4% 94.0% 94.6% 93.1%

TWW Breast Symptoms > 93% 96.3% 98.0% 100.0% 96.2% 96.3% 96.8% 98.2% 98.2% 100.0% 96.0% 97.0% 100.0% 97.8% 97.1% 97.1% 95.5% 98.7% 97.8%

62 Day First Treatment from GP 
Referral

> 85% 93.7% 92.0% 87.7% 92.8% 84.5% 88.7% 86.8% 89.6% 88.2% 85.3% 87.0% 85.7% 88.1% 87.9% 89.2% 88.0% 88.7% 85.6%

62 Day First Treatment from 
Consultant Screening

> 90% 83.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 91.7% 100.0% 100.0% 90.0% 100.0% 90.0% 95.8% 94.5% 94.4% 100.0% 97.7% 93.3%

62 Day First Treatment from 
Consultant Upgrade

> 90% 100.0% 90.9% 92.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 94.7% 93.8% 100.0% 100.0% 95.8% 94.1% 93.2% 100.0% 94.7% 96.0%

31 Day First Treatment from 
Diagnosis

> 96% 99.4% 99.0% 98.6% 96.9% 97.3% 97.2% 98.6% 96.7% 97.0% 97.8% 98.8% 96.5% 97.3% 97.7% 98.9% 96.8% 97.1% 97.7%

31 Day Secondary AntiCancer 
Drug Treatment

> 98% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

31 Day Secondary Surgery 
Treatment

> 94% 98.1% 98.7% 100.0% 97.7% 98.9% 97.5% 98.4% 97.7% 97.0% 95.1% 94.4% 94.3% 97.3% 96.3% 98.9% 97.1% 97.6% 94.6%

31 Day Secondary Radiotherapy 
Treatment

> 94% No cases No Cases 100.0% No Cases No Cases No Cases No Cases No Cases No Cases No Cases No Cases 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% No Cases No Cases 100.0%

31 Day Secondary Palliative Care > 94% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% No Cases 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

31 Day Secondary Active 
Monitoring

> 94% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% No Cases No Cases 100.0% No Cases 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cancelled Ops for non‐clinical 
reasons < 0.8% 0.4% 0.4% 0.6% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0% 0.7% 0.8% 0.8% 0.7% 0.3% 0.3% 0.6% 1.0% 0.4% 0.8% 0.8% 0.4%

Cancelled Ops rebooking within 
28 days > 95% 78.9% 100.0% 100.0% 96.4% 87.2% 100.0% 87.9% 90.0% 77.1% 80.0% 69.2% 91.7% 89.3% 88.0% 94.2% 94.9% 85.2% 80.0%
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North Bristol NHS Trust Performance Overview 2011/12

Apr‐11 May‐11 Jun‐11 Jul‐11 Aug‐11 Sep‐11 Oct‐11 Nov‐11 Dec‐11 Jan‐12 Feb‐12 Mar‐12 YTD 10/11 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

A&E Total time 95th 
percentile (4 hours)  TOTAL

< 4.00 3.97 3.95 3.97 3.98 3.97 4.55 5.23 5.17 6.00 5.90 6.05 5.12 2.47 3.97 4.21 5.95 5.98

A&E Total time 95th 
percentile (4 hours)  SMD

< 4.00 2.57 2.50 2.88 2.32 2.57 2.48 2.50 2.47 2.67 2.85 2.78 2.60 2.47 2.65 2.46 2.76 2.77

A&E Total time 95th 
percentile (4 hours)  FRE

< 4.00 3.98 3.97 3.98 4.05 3.98 5.02 6.00 5.62 6.45 6.33 6.50 5.60 3.98 3.98 4.35 6.39 6.43

A&E 4 hour wait 
 (SMD, FRE & YATE)

> 95% 97.6% 97.9% 97.2% 97.6% 96.4% 97.6% 93.9% 93.9% 85.1% 89.8% 90.7% 94.4% 97.1% 97.6% 96.3% 93.9% 90.4%

A&E 4 hour wait  SMD > 95% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 99.9% 100.0% 99.8% 99.9% 99.9% 100.0% 99.9% 100.0% 100.0% 99.9% 100.0% 99.9% 99.9% 100.0%

A&E 4 hour wait  FRE > 95% 96.7% 97.0% 96.0% 95.0% 96.5% 92.7% 91.1% 91.2% 77.4% 85.5% 86.4% 92.0% 96.4% 96.6% 94.7% 91.2% 86.2%

A&E Unplanned 
reattendance rate  TOTAL

< 5% 4.2% 4.4% 3.7% 4.8% 4.6% 4.4% 4.4% 4.1% 3.6% 3.1% 3.4% 3.5% 4.0% 4.6% 4.0% 4.6% 4.0% 3.4%

A&E Unplanned 
reattendance rate  SMD

< 5% 4.2% 3.6% 3.0% 4.6% 5.7% 5.2% 5.6% 5.0% 4.6% 3.6% 3.9% 3.8% 4.4% 6.1% 3.5% 5.1% 5.2% 3.8%

A&E Unplanned 
reattendance rate  FRE

< 5% 4.2% 4.6% 3.9% 4.9% 4.3% 4.2% 4.0% 3.8% 3.4% 3.0% 3.3% 3.5% 3.9% 4.1% 4.2% 4.4% 3.7% 3.2%

A&E Left dept without 
being seen TOTAL

< 5% 2.7% 2.2% 2.4% 2.7% 2.3% 3.0% 2.3% 2.7% 3.4% 3.3% 4.0% 4.2% 2.9% 2.4% 2.4% 2.7% 2.8% 3.8%

A&E Left dept without
 being seen SMD

< 5% 2.0% 1.0% 1.9% 1.6% 1.4% 0.8% 1.2% 1.4% 0.7% 1.2% 1.3% 1.8% 1.4% 1.4% 1.6% 1.2% 1.1% 1.5%

A&E Left dept without
 being seen  FRE

< 5% 3.0% 2.5% 2.6% 3.0% 2.6% 3.6% 2.6% 3.1% 4.0% 3.8% 4.7% 4.9% 3.3% 2.7% 2.7% 3.1% 3.2% 4.5%

A&E Initial assessment 95th 
percentile (15 mins) TOTAL

< 15 76 76 53 90 79 81 80 60 162 168 138 110 69 82 70 156

A&E Initial assessment 95th 
percentile (15 mins)  SMD

< 15 46 37 0 22 53 0 10 0 0 68 21 101 28 25 5 30

A&E Initial assessment 95th 
percentile (15 mins)  FRE

< 15 76 75 53 90 77 81 80 60 162 168 138 110 68 79 70 156

A&E Time to treatment median 
(60 mins)  TOTAL

< 60 60 54 54 53 49 65 54 58 98 103 106 66 56 56 56 102

A&E Time to treatment median 
(60 mins) SMD

< 60 33 30 30 28 29 32 28 24 47 53 61 35 31 30 26 54

A&E Time to treatment median 
(60 mins)  FRE

< 60 69 61 61 61 56 78 65 71 117 121 123 78 64 65 68 120

A&E Ambulance Handover times 
> 2hrs

0 0 4 5 1 1 33 41 34 35 26 42 12 234 19 9 35 110 80

A&E Ambulance Handover times 
> 45 mins

0 92 48 36 26 56 243 307 251 174 118 170 136 1657 678 176 325 732 424

Overall Elective LOS < 3.90 4.20 3.98 3.59 3.97 4.16 4.36 3.46 3.86 3.21 2.95 4.13 3.42 3.75 3.99 3.92 4.16 3.77 3.44

Elective Pre‐op LOS < 0.3 0.26 0.28 0.21 0.28 0.27 0.59 0.18 0.21 0.19 0.11 0.09 0.08 0.23 0.28 0.25 0.38 0.21 0.09

Overall Emergency LOS < 5.26 5.06 5.56 5.50 5.20 5.43 5.43 5.27 5.68 5.53 5.53 5.53 5.43 5.43 5.43 5.39 5.33 5.48 5.50

Acute Emergency LOS < 4.6 4.36 4.69 4.79 4.56 4.82 4.79 4.54 5.00 5.30 4.98 4.98 4.76 4.80 4.66 4.64 4.69 4.93 4.91
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North Bristol NHS Trust Performance Overview 2011/12

Apr‐11 May‐11 Jun‐11 Jul‐11 Aug‐11 Sep‐11 Oct‐11 Nov‐11 Dec‐11 Jan‐12 Feb‐12 Mar‐12 YTD 10/11 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Readmissions within 30 days ‐ 
Emerg Readmissions following 

Elect Admission

<115/ 
month

107 104 107 97 88 89 98 115 94 73 89 97 1158 1384 317 275 306 259

Readmissions within 30 days ‐ 
Emerg Readm following 

Emergency Adm ‐ 2% reduction

‐2% ‐1.6% ‐5.4% ‐0.6% 1.5% ‐2.0% 1.2% ‐12.0% ‐7.5% ‐15.4% ‐3.7% 3.0% ‐2.6% 0.3% ‐11.7%

6 Week Diagnostic Waits > 99.5% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 99.9% 99.5% 99.8% 99.8% 99.9% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 99.7%

Revascularisation ‐ 11 weeks 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

C&B Sufficient appointment slots > 96% 97% 97% 98% 99% 99% 95% 99% 98% 94% 96% 97% 97% 97% 98% 98% 98% 97% 96%

18 Week Direct Access Audiology > 95% 99% 100% 99% 99% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 99% 99% 100% 100% 100%

High Risk TIA > 60% 90% 57% 65% 57% 79% 64% 74% 86% 83% 78% 87% 63% 73% 26% 68% 67% 81% 74%

Stroke Management 90% on 
Stroke Unit

> 80% 80% 89% 83% 86% 86% 85% 89% 85% 67% 83% 78% 83% 83% 79% 85% 84% 81% 81%

DNA rates < 5% 9% 10% 10% 10% 10% 11% 10% 10% 14% 16% 16% 15% 12% 10% 10% 11% 12% 16%

Stage of Treatment ‐ 26 week 
Inpatient breaches

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Stage of Treatment ‐ 13 week 
Outpatient breaches

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Delayed Transfers 1.42% 2.04% 2.47% 2.25% 1.72% 1.86% 1.66% 1.76% 2.33% 2.85% 1.50% 2.13% 2.20% 2.06% 2.25% 1.72% 2.30% 1.94%

Daycase Rates > 72.7% 72.8% 73.3% 74.3% 73.0% 74.6% 74.1% 74.6% 73.1% 61.9% 67.4% 74.6% 74.7% 72.6% 71.5% 73.3% 74.0% 70.4% 72.3%
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Performance against SLA 2012/13 : DATA SOURCE = WAREHOUSE

Directorate / Specialty  = ALL
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Performance against SLA 2012/13 : DATA SOURCE = WAREHOUSE

Directorate / Specialty  = ALL



OUTPATIENT REFERRALS by FINANCIAL MONTH : Data source IHCS until 8th December, Cerner from 9th December onwards To List

(data table : SQLCLUSTERLIVE.Warehouse.KPI.1213_OPReferrals_monthly)
(table construction : X:\KFW\PERFORMANCE\Contract Terms 1213\Working Data\KPI_1213_OPReferrals_monthly.sql)

Directorate (All)
Specialty (All)
GpOther (All)
Consultant (All)

Total Referrals Year
LastUpdate Month 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13

2012-05-10 04 11272 10455 9978 11641
05 10641 10381 11212
06 11876 11425 11747
07 13188 11274 11284
08 11017 10309 11441
09 11882 10941 11301
10 11657 10768 11593
11 10817 11071 11178
12 9772 9540 9856
01 10121 10501 13356
02 9946 10465 13290
03 11487 12224 13847

2012-05-10 Total 133676 129354 140083 11641
Grand Total 133676 129354 140083 11641
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Report to Trust Board – May 2012   

 
 

Title: Workforce & Organisation Development Report 

Purpose of paper:  To provide Trust Board with an update and assurance on current 
workforce and organisation development delivery against objectives  

For Information 
 
 
Action Required:  Trust Board is asked to NOTE the attached paper. 

 
Key Risks: Financial and performance-related risks  

 
 
Impact on Patients: The Trust’s workforce and organisation development strategy 

and associated matters directly affect the provision of patient 
care and treatment  

 
CQC Outcome:  CQC Outcomes 12,13,14 
 
Responsible Committee:             Workforce Strategy & Governance Committee 
 
Financial Issues considered Yes 
 
Equality Impact Assessment  
Completed:  Yes where applicable  
 
Legal Issues Considered:  Yes  
 
Sustainability Assessment  
Completed:    Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
Presented by:       Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 
 
Prepared by:         Robert Baker, Associate Director, Human Resources & Development  
                               Cathy Meredith, OD Lead  
 
 



Workforce Issues 
 
WTE Staff per bed 
The Board asked for information on staff against available beds.  There are 
1087 beds (excluding well baby cots), and 7357 wte staff giving a staff:bed ratio 
of  6.8:1 
 
 
Industrial Action - 10th May 2012 
Unite the Union called a one day strike for 10th May 2012 from public sector 
organisations.  the issue related to pensions, and was aimed nationally rather 
than at local employers.  Following close liaison between NBT and local 
stewards, the Trust was prepared for any action which would occur, but 
ultimately reported that 20 staff took strike action on the day. 
 
Appraisals 
New appraisal documents are now available on the HR Portal to use during this 
years appraisal period. 
A new concept is to provide a more tailored approach with three forms being 
available, designed to be used as follows, but could be more interchangeable 
dependent upon role, 
a) Bands 1- 3 
b) Bands 4 - 7 
c) Bands 8a and above 
In addition, managers are being issued with a preliminary version of 'The Road 
to 2014', as a script to start discussion with staff individually about the potential 
consequences of service transfers until the opening of the new hospital.  A 
more detailed launch is scheduled for September, to tie in wit the operating 
Framework for the new hospital. 
 
Mars Cessation 
The arrangements for Trusts to run a MARS scheme expired at the end of 
March 2012.  This does not affect the scheme already run in 2012 by NBT but 
at the moment no future schemes using the previous national scheme rules can 
be put in place. 
 
At national level, revised schemes are under consideration, which will be 
notified to Trusts once agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Workforce Metrics - Commentary 
Workforce Issues 
 
Key messages from tables 
 
1) Training data shows 2% increase in Infection Control compliance, but 3% 
reduction in Manual Handling compliance. 
 
2) Increased uptake in safeguarding training, following direct approach to non-
clinical staff, in a combined course with Infection control and Dementia. 
 
3) Trust age profile overall mirrors the national profile, but the 
Admin/Clerical/Estates/Ancillary group show an ageing workforce. 
 
4) Poor sickness performance in February and March 2012 have increased the 
rolling 12 month absence to 4.13%.    
ACTION - a Health and Well Being Strategy will be presented to the Board in 
September 2012 aimed at tackling health, safety and sickness absence shortfalls. 
 
5) For the period April to December 2011 (latest national data available) NBT 
sickness mirrored national sickness rates.  
 
National issues 
 
The DoH has re-let the contract to provide NHS Jobs, for a further period of 5 
years with a further 3 year option.  This secures the future of this service, which 
will remain at no charge to Trusts to use, but will include an eCRB service at 
additional costs. 
 
Local Issues 
 
Partnership Working with UHB. 
At a recent Partnership Board with UHB concerning options to bring together city 
wide HR&Development Services, it was agreed : 
- concentrate on creating joint legal and transactional services starting with the 
provision of Temporary Staffing Services and Payroll followed later in the year 
with Recruitment Services.  
- other areas including Employee Relations, Equality, Learning and Development, 
Health and Wellbeing would be temporarily deferred, to be revisited later in the 
year. 
To improve joint working in the transfer of staff between the two Trusts a 
Memorandum of Understanding has been approved between UHB and NBT. This 
will greatly assist in the centralisation of services.  
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Workforce Metrics - Staff Utilisation 
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Monthly Pay Expenditure  

Comment 
 
Staff in Post 
The line indicates wte staff in post month by month last year.  The bars will 
develop to show staffing levels for 2012/13, showing a reduction from the 
same period last year, and a fall from March 2012 figures. 
 
Bank and Agency Use 
All three areas show a reduction on March, however the 'Other' group 
(which contains amongst others Admin and Clerical and Ancillary staff) 
remains high, partly due to cover for not recruiting permanent staff in 
Domestic areas until the move to the new Hospital is completed 
 
Pay Expenditure 
Provisional figures from Finance indicate pay spend for April 2012 was 
£27.1m  
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Health & Safety Compliance  

Health&Safety Target Trend 

General trend continues upwards,  still 9% 
short of target 

Overall trend upwards, but in month reduction 
of 3% leaves this 21% short of target 
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Manual Handling Compliance  

ManualHandling Target Trend 
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Fire Training Compliance  

FireSafety Target Trend 

No change from last month, with compliance short 
by 23% 
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Child Protection Compliance  

ChildProtection Target Trend 

Compliance remains high 
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Infection Control Compliance  

InfectionControl Target Trend 

General trend upwards, increasing by 2% in 
month.  Still 5% short of target 

 
Comment 
 
1 - Directorate league tables now circulated to 
Directorate Management Teams. 
 
2 - Email reminders started being sent to staff 
in April. 
 
3 - Only includes compliant bank staff, as 
those non compliant can no longer work.  
Currently 446 Bank staff are excluded for this 
reason. 

Workforce Metrics - Statutory and Mandatory Training Compliance 
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Substantial increases in numbers trained for Conflict Resolution and Safeguarding, but reduction showing against Information Governance, Mental Capacity and Resuscitation. 
 
 Series of training sessions for non clinical staff covering Safeguarding, Infection control & Dementia (SID) have been run through the spring, and helped increase the Infection control (previous page) and 
Safeguarding training attendances. 

Feb 12 

Mar 12 

Workforce Metrics - Mandatory Training - Feb - Mar 2012 
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Age Profile - Qualified Professional Staff -  

The Trust's age profile is compared to the National Acute Trust age 
profile, published in December 2011, and follows a very similar pattern. 

This chart shows the medical, qualified nursing and scientific and 
professional staff 

This chart shows the profile for all support workers in professional areas, 
including HCAs  

Th e profile for Administrative, clerical, ancillary and estates staff is shown, 
with a significantly higher number of staff in the older age  bracket 

Workforce Metrics  Age Profile Comparison 
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Age Profile - Trust Total  

NBT Total 

Acute 
National 
Average 
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Age Profile - Non Qualified Professional Staff 
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Age Profile - Admin & Ancillary  
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Maternity Absence 

Trust 2011/12 

Trust 2012/13 

Avg 2011/12 

Comment 
 
Sickness absence 
 
Sickness in March slightly higher than last year (4.28%), overall rolling last 12 
months figures to March 2012 for the Trust have increased to 4.13%, adversely 
affected by poor absence in February and March. 
 
National Acute Trust sickness absence (only available to December) shows similar 
levels to NBT. 
 
Maternity Leave 
 
April maternity leave below last years average absence 
  
Turnover 
 
11/12 trend for turnover remains very static at just under 10% 
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Report to Trust Board  – May 2012 
 

Title:   Monthly Infection Control Report  

Purpose of paper:  To update Trust Board on Infection Control 
performance.   

For discussion 

Executive Summary:  
 

MRSA        
 1 MRSA bacteraemia attributable to the Trust occurred in April 2012.  
 Breach in policy found in RCA: Failure to screen patient for MRSA on 

admission in accordance with Trust policy. This was not contributory to 
development of bacteraemia most likely due to MRSA pneumonia. 

 Actions are being taken to address the issue with the clinical area concerned 
with learning distributed through the Trust by Control of Infection Committee. 

 In 2012/13, 1 MRSA bacteraemia has been recorded against the Trusts 
target of 6 cases. 

 Elective MRSA screening compliance for April 2012 is 99% 
 Emergency MRSA screening compliance for April 2012 is 91% (target 90%) 

with 89% of patients screened with 24 hours of admission. A Directorate 
level summary is attached, continued vigilance is required to sustain 
compliance and particular improvement is required within the Women and 
Children’s and Musculoskeletal Directorates. 
 

MSSA  
 There were 8 MSSA bacteraemia in April 2012, 5 attributable to NBT. 
 The majority of these cases were complex burns patients within ITU. A full 

review of these cases has been undertaken with no microbiological evidence 
to indicate the cases are linked. 

 Target for 2012/13 is 26.  
 

Clostridium difficile    
 There were 9 C.difficile cases in inpatients during April 2012, of these 3 were 

attributable to the Trust.  
 The NBT target for 2012/13 is 61 cases. 

 
E-Coli 

 There were 17 cases of E-coli bacteraemia during April 2012 of which 2 were 
attributable to the Trust. 

 The local trajectory 2012/13 for E-Coli bacteraemia has been set at 56 (a 
20% reduction to last years out turn position) 
 

 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under 

a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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Norovirus 
 In April there was 1 reported ward closure due to confirmed Norovirus.  
 

Outbreaks 
 There was 1 reported Infection Control Incident during April 2012 relating to 

the management of a patient with Tuberculosis, this incident is being 
managed in partnership with the Health Protection Agency. 

  
Hand Hygiene  

 In April 2012, Trust wide compliance was 94% (target 95%). Continued 
vigilance is required in all directorates to sustain and further improve 
compliance with hand hygiene and naked to the elbow. 

 
Mandatory Training  

 Infection Control mandatory training has increased to 80% (target 85%) 
 Continued action is required from Directorates to ensure improvement stays 

on trajectory. 
 

Action Required: Trust Board are asked to note the report and the Directorate 
actions required to maintain and improve infection control performance. 
 
Key Risks: 

 Non achievement of DH MRSA bacteraemia trajectory of 6 
 Non achievement of MRSA emergency screening target which is set at 90%    
 Non achievement of DH C.diff trajectory of 61 
 Infection control mandatory training compliance 

 
Impact on Patients: Patients deserve the highest level of professional standards. 
 
CQC Outcome:    Outcome 8 (regulation 12)  
Responsible Committee:    Control of Infection Committee 
Financial Issues considered:   Yes 
Equality Impact Assessment Completed: No   
Legal Issues Considered:   Yes  
Sustainability Assessment Completed: Yes 
 
Presented by: Chris Burton Medical Director /DIPC 
Prepared by:  Helen Richardson Assistant Director of Nursing  
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North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended 31 March 2012
2011-12 2010-11

NOTE £000 £000

(restated)
Employee benefits 9.1 (332,092) (315,512)
Other costs 7 (251,757) (166,804)
Revenue from patient care activities 4 442,828 421,726
Other Operating revenue 5 76,602 73,709
Operating (deficit)/surplus (64,419) 13,119

Investment revenue 11 48 25
Other gains 12 99 152
Finance costs 13 (1,872) (1,813)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year (66,144) 11,483
Public dividend capital dividends payable (6,427) (7,966)
Retained (deficit)/surplus for the year (72,571) 3,517

Other Comprehensive Income
Impairments and reversals (5) (4,172)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 1,058 7,249
Net loss on other reserves 0 (1,029)
Total comprehensive income for the year (71,518) 5,565

Financial performance for the year
Retained (deficit)/surplus for the year (72,571) 3,517
Prior period adjustment to correct errors 0 0
IFRIC 12 adjustment 717 (30)
Impairments 79,362 6,525
Adjustments in respect of donated asset reserve elimination 1,494 (2,124)
Adjusted retained surplus 9,002 7,888

PDC dividend: balance receivable at 31 March 2012 89 0

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this account.

A trust's adjusted retained surplus or deficit for the year is derived from its retained surplus or deficit, but adjusted for the
following:-

a) Impairments to fixed assets are not considered part of the organisations operational performance.

c) For 2011-12 the Department for Health, in line with treasury guidance, amended the accounting for donated assets such
that trusts no longer maintain a donated asset reserve, and therefore cannot transfer income from it to match the
depreciation of donated assets in year. When assets are recieved, income will be recognised equivalent to their value.
Over the life of the asset the charge to the Statement of Comprehensive income will be the same i.e. NIL, but in any
particular year there may be an imbalance. this imbalance is not considered part of the organisation's operational
performance.

b) The revenue cost of bringing PFI assets onto the balance sheet (due to the introduction of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10) - NHS Trusts' finanical performance measurement needs to be
aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental
revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to PFI, which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for
overall budgeting purposes, should be reported as technical. This additional cost is not considered part of the
organisation's operational performance. This refers to the IFRIC 12 adjustment above.
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North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2012
31 March 2012 31 March 2011 01 April 2010

(restated) (restated)
NOTE £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14 216,191 302,967 304,582
Intangible assets 15 1,463 1,927 1,834
Total non-current assets 217,654 304,894 306,416
Current assets:
Inventories 18 7,512 7,655 9,465
Trade and other receivables 19.1 21,965 19,383 21,451
Cash and cash equivalents 20 28,300 4,482 1,382
Total current assets 57,777 31,520 32,298
Non-current assets held for sale 21 0 425 500
Total current assets 57,777 31,945 32,798
Total assets 275,431 336,839 339,214

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (53,594) (42,694) (51,041)
Other liabilities 23 (2,312) (2,894) (2,120)
Provisions 27 (4,033) (1,205) (760)
Borrowings 24 0 0 (52)
Other financial liabilities 0 0 0
Working capital loan from Department 25 (900) (8,980) (8,420)
Capital loan from Department 25 (520) (520) (520)
Total current liabilities (61,359) (56,293) (62,913)
Non-current assets less net current liabilities 214,072 280,546 276,301

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (2,106) (2,396) (2,577)
Other Liabilities 25 0 0 0
Provisions 27 (1,831) (1,744) (1,904)
Borrowings 24 (8,947) (8,420) 0
Other financial liabilities 0 0 0
Working capital loan from Department 25 (12,590) (9,450) (18,430)
Capital loan from Department 25 (11,180) (11,700) (12,220)
Total non-current liabilities (36,654) (33,710) (35,131)
Total Assets Employed: 177,418 246,836 241,170

FINANCED BY:
TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
Public Dividend Capital 211,744 209,644 209,543
Retained earnings (117,507) (47,107) (52,855)
Revaluation reserve 83,181 84,299 83,453
Other reserves 0 0 1,029
Total Taxpayers' Equity: 177,418 246,836 241,170

     
The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 1 to 37 were approved by the Board on  [date] and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: Date:
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North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Public 
Dividend 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836
Opening balance adjustments 0 0 0
Adjustments for Transforming Community Services transactions 0 0 0
Restated balance at 1 April 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12
Retained deficit for the year (72,571) (72,571)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 1,058 1,058
Impairments and reversals (5) (5)
Movements in other reserves 0
Transfers between reserves 2,171 (2,171) 0
New PDC Received 2,100 2,100
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 2,100 (70,400) (1,118) (69,418)
Balance at 31 March 2012 211,744 (117,507) 83,181 177,418

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2010-11
Balance at 1 April 2010 209,543 (52,855) 83,453 240,141
Retained surplus for the year 3,517 3,517
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 7,249 7,249
Impairments and reversals (4,172) (4,172)
Transfers between reserves 2,231 (2,231) 0
New PDC Received 8,101 8,101
PDC Repaid In Year (8,000) (8,000)
Net recognised revenue for the year 101 5,748 846 6,695
Balance at 31 March 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836



North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
2011-12 2010-11

£000 £000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities (restated)
Operating (Deficit)/Surplus (64,419) 13,119
Depreciation and Amortisation 22,434 21,619
Impairments and Reversals 79,545 6,953
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash (325) (3,678)
Interest Paid (1,305) (1,757)
Dividend paid (6,517) (7,966)
Decrease in Inventories 143 1,810
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (2,582) 874
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 7,721 (3,445)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities (582) 774
Provisions Utilised (675) (200)
Increase in Provisions 3,538 412
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 36,976 28,515

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 48 25
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (10,598) (20,045)
Payments for Intangible Assets (97) (594)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 524 360
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (10,123) (20,254)

NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 26,853 8,261

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Public Dividend Capital Received 2,100 8,101
Public Dividend Capital Repaid 0 (8,000)
Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal (520) (520)
Loans repaid to DH - Working Capital Loans Repayment of Principal (4,940) (8,420)
Capital grants and other capital receipts 325 3,678
Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities (3,035) (5,161)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,818 3,100

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period 4,482 1,382
Opening balance adjustment - TCS transactions 0

4,482 1,382

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign Currencies 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end 28,300 4,482

Restated Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the 
Period
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North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet
the accounting requirements of the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM
Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
2011-12 NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies
contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts permits a choice of
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular
circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The
particular policies adopted by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in
dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.  

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets
and financial liabilities.

1.2 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector.
Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be
‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.3 Transforming Community Services (TCS) transactions
Under the TCS initiative, services historically provided by PCTs have transferred to other providers -
notably NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts. Such transfers fall to be accounted for by use of
merger accounting. The Treasury FREM provides that where a transfer takes place in 2011-12, the
recipient of the transfer will account for transferred activity in full for the period (and the original provider
for none) to reflect the position had the transfer always applied.

For TCS transactions specifically, it is impracticable to adjust the prior period's revenue account in each
body and so restatement is effected by an adjustment to 1 April 2011 opening balances rather than by
full restatement of comparators.

The trust received a transfer of community services from South Gloucestershire PCT which carried an
annual value of approximately £18m per year. Currently all assets and liabilities of the service up to
31st March 2011 remain with the PCT, and new assets and liabilities created since that date are
recorded in the accounts of this thrust as they arise.

1.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Where key judgements and estimates have been made, this is noted in the appropriate note to the
accounts in which the value associated with the judgement or estimate is shown.

In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
During the financial year, the trust made a critical judgement regarding the expected life of one of the
Trust's main hospital sites, Frenchay Hospital. This hospital is expected to be vacated in 2014 when the
new, PFI funded hospital opens at Southmead. In light of the revised expected life for the hospital, its
value has been reduced to reflect this. The effect of the reduction, and the new value are detailed in
note 14 on non-current assets. 

1.4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The Key estimates made by the trust in preparing these accounts relate to three main areas: the
accrual of the cost of annual leave earned but not taken, the valuation of partially completed spells and
the valuation of property assets during the year. Provisions by their nature have an element of
uncertainy, and these are detailed in note 28.

The accrual for annual leave has been based upon a sample of leave carried from one financial year
into another by a selection of staff including most staff groups and departments. Estimates of partially
completed spells are discussed in note 1.5 and valuation changes are discussed in note 14.3

1.5 Revenue  
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance
occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue
for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services. Revenue relating to patient care spells that
are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of length of
stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay. 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income
is deferred.

The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost
of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g.
by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of
Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim.
The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a
provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

1.6 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is
received from employees, The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period
is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward
leave into the following period.

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and
other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme
is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying
scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by
the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.7 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have
been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the
trust;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more
than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit,
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly
different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own
useful economic lives.

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured
subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that
would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows:

● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

Until 31 March 2009, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been estimated for
an exact replacement of the asset in its present location. HM Treasury has adopted a standard
approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it
would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.  
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less
any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as
expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and Fittings are carried at current cost, as estimated by the use of an indexation factor. This
factor has been derived from the government's regularly published GDP deflator figures. This
information can be expected to be available for the forseeable future and so the trust will continue with
the current basis of valuation.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does
not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to
the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter,
to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be
taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other
comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly
attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original
specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is
written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.9 Intangible assets

Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.
They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to
the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item
of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for
example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-
generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it
● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset
and sell or use it
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market,
or, where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis),
indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed software is held at
historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological
advances.  

1.10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property,
plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated
useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the
assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain
economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the Trust and may be shorter
than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each
year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives 

At each reporting period end, the trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or
intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment
loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and,
if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is
recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on
the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear
consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no
initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of
the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME) from 2011-12. This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.
DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and Departments may not exceed the limits that they have
been set. AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to
the Budget. Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME
spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility
may mean departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial
year, any expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.

1.11 Donated assets
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset
reserve is no longer maintained. Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on
receipt, with a matching credit to Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described
above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are as
described above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached
to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the 2010-11 results
have been restated.

1.12 Government grants 
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a government grant
reserve is no longer maintained. The value of assets received by means of a government grant are
credited directly to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the 2010-11 results
have been restated.

1.13 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when
the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and
management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is open market value
including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the
balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. For donated and
government-granted assets, a transfer is made to or from the relevant reserve to the profit/loss on
disposal account so that no profit or loss is recognised in income or expenses. The remaining surplus
or deficit in the donated asset or government grant reserve is then transferred to retained earnings. 

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as
held for sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset
is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.14 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the
lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching
liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and
individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 

The trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
trust’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.15 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes
where the government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession arrangements, following the
principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of
property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the
contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate
estimation techniques where necessary:
a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;
b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
c)       Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle 

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings
within ‘operating expenses’.

PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets
are measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets
are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s approach for each
relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at
the same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease
liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening
lease liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet
the annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the
finance lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments,
but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a
finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are
capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time
they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for
each year of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the
lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or
prepayment is recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the
difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater
than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred
income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the
shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and
equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.

1.16 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost
formula. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of
stocks.  

1.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management.

1.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM
Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms (2.8% for employee early departure obligations).
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

1.19 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution
is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases the legal liability remains with the trust. The total value of clinical negligence
provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 28. 

1.20 Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.
Both are risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation
Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership
contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating
expenses as and when they become due.

1.21 EU Emissions Trading Scheme
EU Emission Trading Scheme allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible
assets if they are not expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current
assets. They are valued at open market value. As the NHS body makes emissions, a provision is
recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of
the allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end
of the reporting period.

1.22 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is
remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
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1.23 Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in 
the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.  

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss; held to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

1.24 Financial liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the trust becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the
goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has
been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities
are initially recognised at fair value.

Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except for loans from Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life
of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the
effective interest method.

1.25 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is
charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.26 Foreign currencies
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a
foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are
recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.27 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details of third party assets are given in
Note 37 to the accounts.

1.28 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State
can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the value
received. As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity
financial instrument.
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An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of
Health as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury
(currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities, except for donated assets
and cash balances with the Government Banking Service. The average carrying amount of assets is
calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

1.29 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed
funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not
arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an
accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS
trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal
revenue expenditure).

1.30 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred,
except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can
reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits
expected and is amortised through the Operating Cost Statement on a systematic basis over the period
expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The
amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.31 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2011-
12. The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for
2011-12, were they applied in that year:

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (Other Comprehensive Income) - subject to consultation
IAS 12 - Income Taxes (amendment) - subject to consultation
IAS 19 Post-employment benefits (pensions) - subject to consultation
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements  - subject to consultation
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - subject to consultation
IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures (annual improvements)  - effective 2012-13
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation  - subject to consultation
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements  - subject to consultation
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  - subject to consultation
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  - subject to consultation
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation
IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation

2 Operating Segments
The trust has a number of directorates, all of which operate in the healthcare segment. These
directorates are used for internal management purposes and divide the healthcare and other services
of the trust into various medical and surgical specialties. While these are reported on internally for
financial and activity purposes, they have been consolidated into trust wide figures for these accounts.
The trust receives income from a number of healthcare commissioners, which are under the common
control of the Department of Health. The bodies involved and the respective income levels are
disclosed in note 34 to these accounts on transactions with related parties
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3.    Income generation activities

Summary Table - aggegate of all schemes 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Income 5,021 4,828 
Full cost 4,023 4,482 
Surplus 998 346 

2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Income 1,444 1,359 
Full cost 1,552 1,642 
Deficit (108) (283)

The financial objective of the resturant is to cover the costs of the activity.

2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Income 3,577 3,469 
Full cost 2,471 2,840 
Surplus 1,106 629 

The financial objective of the fertility unit is to create surpluses to support NHS activity.

4.   Revenue from patient care activities 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Strategic health authorities 0 0 
NHS trusts 0 0 
Primary care trusts - tariff 214,882 209,890 
Primary care trusts - non-tariff 200,751 186,128 
Primary care trusts - market forces factor 17,029 16,077 
Foundation trusts 0 0 
Local authorities 0 7 
Department of Health 0 0 
NHS other 0 0 
Non-NHS: 
      Private patients 5,214 4,627 
      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 161 367 
      Injury costs recovery 2,181 2,219 
      Other 2,610 2,411 

442,828 421,726 

Catering sales to the public from resturants on Southmead and Frenchay 
sites

Provision of fertility services under the trading name 'Bristol Centre for 
Reproductive Medicine'

The trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in
patient care. The following provides details of income generation activities whose full cost exceeded £1m
or was otherwise material.
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5.  Other operating revenue 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

(restated)
Education, training and research 29,588 28,694
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 120 128
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions 325 3,678
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 7,751 7,673
Income generation 4,230 4,019
Other revenue 34,588 29,517

76,602 73,709

Total operating revenue 519,430 495,435

6.  Revenue
Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services.  Revenue from the sale of goods is immaterial.

7.  Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

(restated)
Services from other NHS trusts 1,390 1,604
Services from PCTs 5,517 3,001
Services from foundation trusts 4,065 229
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies 1,911 4,885
Supplies and services - clinical 83,691 81,808
Supplies and services - general 5,074 5,940
Consultancy services 1,736 1,000
Establishment 5,447 5,354
Transport 662 1,050
Premises 23,311 18,443
Impairments and Reversals of Receivables 305 224
Inventories write down 221 732
Depreciation 21,873 21,118
Amortisation 561 501
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 79,545 6,878
Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale 0 75
Audit fees 191 216
Clinical negligence 8,561 7,302
Research and development (excluding staff costs) 1,012 1,203
Education and Training 1,338 1,245
Other 5,346 3,996

251,757 166,804

Employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding Trust chair and non executive directors 332,030 315,450
Trust chair and non executive directors 62 62
Total employee benefits 332,092 315,512

Total operating expenses 583,849 482,316

Other revenue includes income of £14,857k (2010-11 £10,967k) received to offset the costs of the new hospital
development including additional depreciation charges incurred. It also includes income from Avon & Wiltshire
Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust £2,489k (2010-11 £2,846k) relates to the use of facilities on the North Bristol
NHS Trust sites.

Remuneration of board members has been shown differently from last year. It is included under operating
expenses for 2010-11, and employee benefits for 2011-12
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8 Operating Leases
The trust leases various equipment throughout the year to support the provision of healthcare.

2011-12 2010-11
8.1 Trust as lessee Total Total

£000 £000
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 1,891 617
Contingent rents 0 0
Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 1,891 617

Payable:
No later than one year 165 133
Between one and five years 2,259 675
After five years 1,246 916
Total 3,670 1,724

8.2 Trust as lessor

9 Employee benefits and staff numbers

9.1 Employee benefits

Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Employee Benefits 2011-12 £000 £000 £000
Salaries and wages 283,446 258,248 25,198
Social security costs 19,672 19,672 0
Employer contributions to NHS Pensions scheme 30,598 30,598 0
Other pension costs 0 0 0
Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0
Other employment benefits 0 0 0
Termination benefits 988 988 0
Total employee benefits 334,704 309,506 25,198

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (table below) 0 0 0
Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 334,704 309,506 25,198

Employee costs capitalised 2,612 1,660 952
Net Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 332,092 307,846 24,246

The trust has one arrangement in which it acts as lessor. The University of Bristol occupies accomodation within
the trust's Learning and Research Building. The University made a financial contribution to the development of
the building in the financial year 2009-10. This is recorded as a non-current payable and is being released to
income over the life of the lease agreement which is 41 years beginning in the final quarter of 2009-10. The
income recognised in 2011-12 is £110,000 (2010-11 £112,000).
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Total
Permanently 

employed Other
£000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits 2010-11
Salaries and wages 269,854 251,950 17,904
Social security costs 17,032 17,032 0
Employer contributions to NHS Pensions scheme 28,898 28,898 0
Other pension costs 0 0 0
Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0
Other employment benefits 0 0 0
Termination benefits 35 35 0
Total employee benefits 315,819 297,915 17,904

Employee costs capitalised 369
Net Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 315,450

9.2 Staff Numbers
2011-12 2010-11

Total Permanently 
employed

Other Total

Number Number Number Number
Average Staff Numbers
Medical and dental 817 800 17 822
Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0
Administration and estates 1,686 1,555 131 1,585
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 1,498 1,225 273 1,432
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 2,431 2,280 151 2,408
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 1,529 1,527 2 1,418
Social Care Staff 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 7,961 7,387 574 7,665

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 58 43 15 19

9.3  Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2011-12 2010-11
Number Number

Total Days Lost 68,402 67,625
Total Staff Years 7,330 7,225
Average working Days Lost 9 9

2011-12 2010-11
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 11 19
£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 510 1,840

On 1st April 2011 the trust took responsibility for Community services previously provided by South
Gloucestershire Primary Care Trust. This led to the addition of 400 staff.
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9.4 Exit Packages agreed in 2011-12

2011-12 2010-11

Exit package cost band (including any special 
payment element)

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number 
of exit 

packages by 
cost band

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages 
by cost 
band

Number Number Number Number Number Number
Less than £10,000 13 3 16 0 3 3
£10,001-£25,000 8 1 9 0 0 0
£25,001-£50,000 7 4 11 0 0 0
£50,001-£100,000 1 5 6 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total number of exit packages by type (total cost 29 13 42 0 3 3

Total resource cost (£000s) 508 480 988 0 35 35

Compulsory redundancy costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme and relate to the closure of the trust laundry. Other
departures have been paid under the terms of the SHA wide Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) as managed by the trust. This note provides
an analysis of exit packages agreed in the year. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the
NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages taken by staff leaving in the year.  Note: The expense associated with these departures 
may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
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9.5 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits
payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies,
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run
in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting
valuation every year.  An outline of these follows:

a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme
(taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by
employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was
undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The conclusion from the
2004 valuation was that the scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against the notional assets 

In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay and most
employees had up to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.

Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004, and after
consideration of changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008, his Valuation report
recommended that employer contributions could continue at the existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1
April 2008, following the introduction of employee contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their 

On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in
the scheme’s liabilities.

b) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting
period by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.

Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to the
scheme actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the scheme membership are updated
to allow the scheme liability to be valued. 

The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2011, is based on detailed membership data as at 31 March
2008 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2011 with summary global member and accounting data.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts
can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

c) Scheme provisions 
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide
only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be
met before these benefits can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of
the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of
reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations
have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax
free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension 

21



North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

10 Better Payment Practice Code

10.1 Measure of compliance 2011-12 2011-12 2010-11 2010-11
Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 85,730 129,346 99,065 138,246
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 80,307 120,457 86,152 118,388
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 93.67% 93.13% 86.97% 85.64%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,874 36,216 3,163 36,035
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 2,177 31,340 2,048 26,589
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 75.75% 86.54% 64.75% 73.79%

10.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

0 0
0 0

11 Investment Income 2011-12 2010-11
Interest Income £000 £000

Bank interest 48 25
Total investment income 48 25

12  Other Gains and Losses 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 99 152

Total 99 152

13  Finance Costs 2011-12 2010-11
Interest £000 £000

Interest on loans and overdrafts 1,293 1,740
Provisions - unwinding of discount 52 73
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

    - main finance cost 527 0
Total interest expense 1,872 1,813
   Other finance costs 0 0
Total  1,872 1,813

The combined performance of the trust is 93.1%. The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to 
pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are
based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the statement of comprehensive
income at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the
Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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14.1 Property, plant and equipment

2011-12

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction & 
payments on 

account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2011 68,103 206,051 3,901 3,262 78,060 2,361 36,072 6,109 403,919
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 1 April 2011 restated 68,103 206,051 3,901 3,262 78,060 2,361 36,072 6,109 403,919
Additions Purchased 0 3,995 0 2,672 1,959 124 4,509 0 13,259
Additions Donated 0 0 0 0 325 0 0 0 325
Reclassifications 0 860 0 (860) 0 0 0 0 0
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 211 0 0 2,264 68 0 177 2,720
Impairments/negative indexation (5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5)
At 31 March 2012 68,098 211,117 3,901 5,074 82,608 2,553 40,581 6,286 420,218

Depreciation
At 31 March 2011 0 19,150 140 50,485 2,037 24,517 4,623 100,952
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 1 April 2011 restated 0 19,150 140 50,485 2,037 24,517 4,623 100,952
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 1,464 59 0 134 1,657
Impairments 13,040 63,980 1,580 2,418 411 0 0 0 81,429
Reversal of Impairments 0 (1,884) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,884)
Charged During the Year 0 13,484 164 4,480 67 3,384 294 21,873
At 31 March 2012 13,040 94,730 1,884 2,418 56,840 2,163 27,901 5,051 204,027
Net book value at 31 March 2012 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191

Purchased 55,058 111,994 1,990 2,656 21,539 390 12,655 1,235 207,517
Donated 0 4,393 27 0 4,229 0 25 0 8,674
Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2012 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191

Asset financing:
Owned 55,058 109,942 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 209,746
Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 6,445 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,445
PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings Dwellings Plant & 

machinery
Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 31 March 2011 37,886 44,303 1,223 887 0 0 0 84,299
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 1 April 2011 restated 37,886 44,303 1,223 887 0 0 0 84,299
In year revaluation 0 (1,226) 0 108 0 0 0 (1,118)
At 31 March 2012 37,886 43,077 1,223 995 0 0 0 83,181
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14.2 Property, plant and equipment

2010-11 (restated)

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction & 
payments on 

account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2010 72,275 176,570 3,331 11,903 70,997 2,249 33,112 5,960 376,397
Additions - purchased 0 12,957 0 619 3,612 61 2,440 15 19,704
Additions - donated 0 1,744 0 0 1,934 0 0 0 3,678
Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 8,740 0 (9,260) 0 0 520 0 0
Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 (78) 0 0 0 (78)
Revaluation & indexation gains 0 6,040 570 0 1,595 51 0 134 8,390
Impairments (4,172) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,172)
Reversals of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to Foundation Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2011 68,103 206,051 3,901 3,262 78,060 2,361 36,072 6,109 403,919

Depreciation
At 1 April 2010 0 0 0 0 44,409 1,931 21,313 4,162 71,815
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 5 0 999 43 0 94 1,141
Impairments 0 6,304 0 0 574 0 0 0 6,878
Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charged During the Year 0 12,846 135 0 4,503 63 3,204 367 21,118
At 31 March 2011 0 19,150 140 0 50,485 2,037 24,517 4,623 100,952
Net book value 68,103 186,901 3,761 3,262 27,575 324 11,555 1,486 302,967

Purchased 68,103 176,029 3,733 3,262 22,942 324 11,520 1,486 287,399
Donated 0 10,872 28 0 4,633 0 35 0 15,568
Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2011 68,103 186,901 3,761 3,262 27,575 324 11,555 1,486 302,967

Asset financing:
Owned 68,103 180,191 3,761 3,262 27,575 324 11,555 1,486 296,257
Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 6,710 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,710

68,103 186,901 3,761 3,262 27,575 324 11,555 1,486 302,967

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings Dwellings Plant & 

machinery
Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2010 restated 42,058 39,772 1,483 1,077 0 0 0 84,390
Movements (specify) (4,172) 4,531 (260) (190) 0 0 0 (91)
At 31 March 2011 37,886 44,303 1,223 887 0 0 0 84,299
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14.3 Property, plant and equipment

Economic Lives of Non-Current Assets Min Life Max Life
Years Years

Buildings exc Dwellings 1 83
Dwellings 1 26
Plant and Machinery 5 15
Transport Equipment 7 7
Information Technology 5 10
Furniture and Fittings 7 10

14.4 Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2011-12 2011-12 2010-11

Total Total

£000 £000
Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 79,545 6,450
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 79,545 6,450

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 5 4,605
Total impairments for PPE charged to reserves 5 4,605

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment 79,550 11,055

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve 5 4,605
Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 79,545 6,450
Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME 0 0
Overall Total Impairments 79,550 11,055

As recorded in note 8.2 the trust acts as lessor in an arrangement for the University of Bristol to occupy space
within the trust's Learning and Research Building. Owing to the nature of the building and the space occupied
by the trust and university, it is difficult to split the values between trust and university elements.

All donated asset expenditure during the year has come from the trust's charitable funds.

The district valuer undertook a full valuation of the trust's land and building as at 1st April 2009. He has
subsequently undertaken an assessment of the movement in values at each year end including one as at 31st
March 2012. These have been used to ensure that the values included in the statement of financial position of
the trust at those points is appropriate. The valuation in 2011-12 led to an impairment charged to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income of £2.1m 

During 2011-12 the trust has undertaken an impairment review of the Frenchay hospital site. This was triggered 
by the substantial progress that has been achieved in the construction of the new PFI funded hospital at
Southmead, which will be used to provide all services previously provided from Frenchay, when it opens in
2014. Given the reduced operational life of the asset, this review has led to a reduction in the value of the site
in the trust's statement of financial position by £73.5m in the current year.

In addition to the above two elements, there were a number of further impairments totalling £3.9m.

The trust entered into a PFI concession arrangement in February 2010 with Carillion to provide a substantial
redevelopment of the Southmead site. This will provide a new hospital and associated buildings. When the new
hospital comes into use in 2014, the trust will record the hospital as a non-current asset and also record a
liability equivalent to the construction cost.
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15.1 Intangible non-current assets

2011-12
Software 

purchased
Total 

£000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2011 3,985 3,985
Prior period adjustments 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0
At 1 April 2011 restated 3,985 3,985
Additions - purchased 97 97
At 31 March 2012 4,082 4,082

Amortisation
At 31 March 2011 2,058 2,058
Prior period adjustments 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0
At 1 April 2010 2,058 2,058
Charged during the year 561 561
At 31 March 2012 2,619 2,619

NBV at 31 March 2012 1,463 1,463

Net book value at 31 March 2012 comprises:
Purchased 1,463 1,463
Total at 31 March 2012 1,463 1,463

15.2 Intangible non-current assets

2010-11
Software 

purchased
Total 

£000 £000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2010 3,391 3,391
Additions - purchased 594 594
At 31 March 2011 3,985 3,985

Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 1,557 1,557
Charged during the year 501 501
At 31 March 2011 2,058 2,058

Net book value at 31 March 2010 1,927 1,927

Net book value at 31 March 2010 comprises:
Purchased 1,923 1,923
Donated 4 4
Total at 31 March 2011 1,927 1,927

All of the trust's intangible assets are purchased software and are amortised over a
period of between 5 and 10 years depending on the advised software life. With all
assets having a finite life, revaluations do not take place unless there is a major
change deemed in the remaining useful life. Any such changes would be effected
through the accounts, though there have not be any in the current year.

As the intangible assets are IT related, they are not subject to indexation, and
therefore there is no associated revaluation reserve for them.
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16  Commitments

16.1 Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 887 2,510
Intangible assets 0 0
Total 887 2,510

16.2 Other financial commitments 

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Not later than one year 2,317 2,266
Later than one year and not later than five years 10,667 11,284
Later than five years 0 0
Total 12,984 13,550

17 Intra-Government and other balances Current 
receivables

Non-current 
receivables

Current 
payables

Non-current 
payables

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 6,384 0 1,889 0
Balances with Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 3,840 0 1,439 0
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
Balances with bodies external to government 11,325 0 53,178 2,106
At 31 March 2012 21,549 0 56,506 2,106

prior period:
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 2,486 0 12,714 0
Balances with Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 3,487 0 1,590 0
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
Balances with bodies external to government 13,410 0 28,390 2,396
At 31 March 2011 19,383 0 42,694 2,396

18 Inventories Drugs Consumables Energy Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 2,127 5,203 325 7,655
Prior period adjustment 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustment 0 0 0 0
Restated at 1 April 2011 2,127 5,203 325 7,655
Additions 33,229 23,822 49 57,100
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (33,020) (24,002) 0 (57,022)
Write-down of inventories (including losses) (184) (37) 0 (221)
Balance at 31 March 2012 2,152 4,986 374 7,512

The trust has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service concession
arrangements) for a managed pathology equipment service. The payments to which the trust is committed are as
follows.
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19 Trade and Other receivables

19.1  Trade and other receivables
31 March 2012 31 March 2011 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000
NHS receivables - revenue 10,224 5,903 0 0
NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 5,486 3,868 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 2,941 4,698 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (3,116) (1,843) 0 0
VAT 635 68 0 0
Other receivables 5,795 6,689 0 0
Total 21,965 19,383 0 0

19.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£000 £000

By up to three months 8,099 1,756
By three to six months 557 166
By more than six months 0 18
Total 8,656 1,940

19.3  Provision for impairment of receivables 2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 (1,843) (1,479)
Adjustments 0 0
Restated balance at 1 April 2011 (1,843) (1,479)
Amount written off during the year (968) (140)
Amount recovered during the year 0 0
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (305) (224)
Balance at 31 March (3,116) (1,843)

20 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Opening balance at 4,482 1,382
Opening balance adjustment 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0
Restated 4,482 1,382
Net change in year 23,818 3,100
Closing balance 28,300 4,482

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service 28,267 4,454
Commercial banks 0 28
Cash in hand 33 0
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 28,300 4,482
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 28,300 4,482

Patients' money held by the Trust, not included above 14 14

Current Non-current

The great majority of trade is with Primary Care Trusts, as commissioners for NHS patient care services. As
Primary Care Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is
considered necessary.

The receivables impaired are due from companies, insurance groups and individuals. The contacts that the trust
debt collection team have had with debtors or their representatives has resulted in impairment of the debtors
where it is felt that the full amount will not be received. Debt collection continues in all cases.
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21  Non-current assets held for sale Land Total
£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 425 425
Merger adjustments 0 0
Restated at 1 April 2011 425 425

Less assets sold in the year (425) (425)
Balance at 31 March 2012 0 0

Balance at 1 April 2010 500 500
Less impairment of assets held for sale (75) (75)

Balance at 31 March 2011 425 425

22 Trade and other payables
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest payable 47 58
NHS payables - revenue 3,321 4,633 0 0
NHS payables - capital 7 0 0 0
NHS accruals and deferred income 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 10,988 8,294 0 0
Non-NHS payables - capital 5,073 1,989 91 196
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 26,637 21,253 0 0
Social security costs 3,119 2,801 0 0
VAT 0 0 0 0
Tax 3,626 3,465 0 0
Payments received on account 107 100 2,015 2,200
Other 669 101 0 0
Total 53,594 42,694 2,106 2,396

Total payables (current and non-current) 55,700 45,090

Current Non-current

The asset held for sale was the former hospital site at Ham Green. This was declared surplus to trust
requirements in 2009-10, and the sale was completed in Dec 2011.

29



North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

23 Other liabilities
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Payments received on Account 2,312 2,894 0 0
Total 2,312 2,894 0 0

24 Borrowings
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Loans from Department of Health 1,420 9,500 23,770 21,150
Main PFI liability 0 0 8,947 8,420
Total 1,420 9,500 32,717 29,570

Loans - repayment of principal falling due in: 31 March 2012
DH Other Total

£000 £000 £000
0-1 years 1,420 0 1,420
1 - 2 Years 1,420 0 1,420
2 - 5 Years 4,260 0 4,260
Over 5 Years 18,090 0 18,090
TOTAL 25,190 0 25,190

25  Other financial liabilities

26  Deferred income
Included within Non-NHS accruals and deferred income shown in note 23 and other liabilities in note 24 is a
total of £8,080,000 (2010-11 £9,245,000) in respect of accruals for deferred income, representing cash
received in the current or previous years which relate to a liability in a future period.

The trust has no financial liabilities which require disclosure under this heading.

During the year the trust negotiated an extension of the repayment plan for its historic deficit loan. This moved
the final repayment date from 15th March 2013 to 15th March 2026. This reduced the amount repaid in the
year from the planned £9,500,000 to £5,460,000.

Current Non-current

Current Non-current
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27   Provisions Comprising:

Total

Pensions 
Relating to 
Other Staff Legal Claims

Agenda for 
Change Other Redundancy

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 01/04/11 2,949 1,837 95 537 480 0
Prior period adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0
Restated Balance 01/04/11 2,949 1,837 95 537 480 0

Arising During the Year 3,538 0 42 0 3,496 0
Utilised During the Year (675) (195)   (480) 0
Unwinding of Discount 52 52 0 0 0 0
Change in Discount Rate 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance as at "31/03/12" 5,864 1,694 137 537 3,496 0

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year 4,033 0 0 537 3,496 0
Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 95 0 95 0 0 0
Later than Five Years 1,736 1,694 42 0 0 0

28 Contingencies 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Contingent liabilities
Potential cost of litigation (49) (35)
Net Value of Contingent Liabilities (49) (35)

The contingent liabilities relate to litigation cases managed on behalf of the trust by the NHSLA. It is not certain what amounts will be paid or when, but the figure
above is based on estimates made by the claims handlers at the NHSLA.

£55.429m is included in the accounts of the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) at 31/3/2012 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the trust (31/3/2011
£45.383m). The accounts of the NHSLA also include £5.424m in respect of Employer liability scheme liabilities.

The legal claims provisions relates to insurance excess on public liability claims against the trust. The provision is based on standard excess costs per claim, unless
the NHS Litigation Authority has advised the trust that the excess will be lower.

The pension provision arose as a result of a change in accounting treatment for early retirements in 2002-03. The provision for the remaining estimated enhanced
pension costs due in relation to staff taking early retirments before 6 March 1995. Calculation of future pension costs have been made using actuarial calculations
provided by the NHS Pensions agency. Since 1995 all such costs are charged in full, in year, to operating expenses.

Other provisions relate to Mutually Agreed Resignation Schemes, and costs related to acquisition and disposal of assets in the current year.
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29  PFI and LIFT - additional information 2001-12 2010-11
£000 £000

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI
Total charge to operating expenses in year - OFF SOFP PFI 1,793 2,321
Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 0 0
Total 1,793 2,321

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI
No Later than One Year 0 0
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 0 0
Later than Five Years 746 806
Total 746 806

Estimated Capital Value of Project - off SOFP PFI 4,500 5,450

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due
No Later than One Year 0 0
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 0 0
Later than Five Years 8,947 8,420
Subtotal 8,947 8,420
Less: Interest Element 0 0
Total 8,947 8,420

PFI Schemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position
During the financial year the trust had three PFI schemes not recorded on the Statement of Financial Position:

a) Renal Satellite Dialysis service with B Braun Healhcare

b) Burden Institute (Burden) / Brain Injury Rehabilitation Unit (BIRU)

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the
Trust is committed to make during the next year. 

The service commenced in February 1999 and was contracted to end in February 2009. Notice was given at that
point that the trust would withdraw from the contract on 30th Spetember 2011. The contract was actually
terminated on 1 December 2011. Until it's termination the estimated capital value of the scheme was an amount
not exceeding £950,000.

The trust had no formal commitment as payments to the operator vary in relation to the number of sessions
required and as such the amount varies from month to month. The scheme provided a Renal Dialysis service at
South Bristol Health Park.

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £2,000,000 and a further £800,000 was incurred for enabling works
to BIRU.

Crestacre constructed a 25 bed brain injury rehabilitation unit and a separate private nursing home (collectively
known as BIRU), as well as constructing accomodation for neuro psychiatry services and the Burden
Neurological Institute (collectively known as Burden).
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PFI Schemes deemed to be on-Statement of Financial Position

30  Impact of IFRS treatment - current year
The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget reconciliation purposes

Total
Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 
(e.g PFI / LIFT) £000
Depreciation charges 81
Interest Expense 527
Impairment charge - AME 0
Impairment charge - DEL 183
Revenue Receivable from subleasing 0
Impact on PDC dividend payable (74)
Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 717
Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net 
of any sublease income) 0
Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 717

Capital expenditure 2011-12 0
Average net assets relating to IFRIC12 schemes - IFRS 0
Average net assets relating to IFRIC12 schemes - UKGAAP 0
UK GAAP capital expenditure 2011-12 (Reversionary Interest) 0

Although, as with the other trust PFI schemes noted above, the scheme is off balance sheet, the accounting for
the land is not the same as for the BIRU and Burden. The trust has an option to purchase the unit for its
depreciated replacement cost at the end of either years 14,19 or 24 (which excludes the value of the land). The
trust is deemed not to have disposed of the land, therefore there is no deferred asset created as in the case of
the BIRU and Burden scheme.

Although the financing arrangements for BIRU and Burden remain off-SoFP, Burden is treated as a non-current
asset in the statement of financial position as the trust is expected to purchase the building at the end of the
operating contract (currently July 2022). The trust does not currently make any payment for the building as the
charges are paid by commissioners within the NHS, and the building was constructed at the expense of
Crestacare. For this reason there are no expenditure figures included within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, and the Non-Current asset is treated as a donated asset.

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12

In addition the trust accounts for the multi-storey car park on the Southmead site which has been provided as part
of the PFI contract. In accordance with IFRIC 12 the trust has capitalised the car park as a non-current asset,
with an equivalent liability to pay for it. Under the PFI concession arrangement no payments are due until the
main hospital opens in March 2014, so the only charge in the current year is the accrual of interest on the liability,
and the depreciation of the asset.

c) Leonard Cheshire Foundation (Cossham Gardens)

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £1,700,000. The service commenced in May 2000 and is contracted
to end on 30 April 2014. There is an option to extend the contract after year 14 for a further five years, twice.

The Burden operating agreement is with Crestacre Properties Ltd and is a 22 year contract ending in July 2022.
The BIRU agreement is prinicpally with Crestacre (GB) Ltd (which is a subsidiary of Crestacre plc) and this
agreement is to end in June 2024. In the case of Burden the head lease is for a period of 90 years, BIRU is for 99
years. The trust's annual commitment to BIRU is currently £130,669.

The scheme provides a purpose built unit providing long term accomodation for younger disabled people at
Cossham Hospital. The Leonard Cheshire Fondation built the facility, which has a total of 16 beds. The trust is
committed to 10 of these beds, currently at a cost of £615K per annum, but allowing for an RPI increase each
year.
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31 Financial Instruments

31.1 Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

31.2 Financial Assets Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000 £000
Receivables - NHS 9,739 9,739
Receivables - non-NHS 9,231 9,231
Cash at bank and in hand 28,300 28,300
Total at 31 March 2012 47,270 47,270

Receivables - NHS 5,903 5,903
Receivables - non-NHS 12,070 12,070
Cash at bank and in hand 4,482 4,482
Total at 31 March 2011 22,455 22,455

Because the majority of the trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the trust has
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2012 are in receivables from customers,
as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care trusts, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament . The trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its
prudential borrowing limit.  The trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the
period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing
service provider relationship that the NHS trust has with primary care trusts and the way those primary care
trusts are financed, the NHS trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also
financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The NHS trust has limited powers to borrow
or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities
rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS trust in undertaking its activities.

The trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters
defined formally within the trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors.
Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the trust’s internal auditors.

The trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being
in the UK and sterling based. The trust has no overseas operations. The trust therefore has low exposure to
currency rate fluctuations.

The trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the strategic
health authority. The borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is
charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The trust therefore has low exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.
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31.3  Financial Liabilities Other 
£000

NHS payables 2,832
Non-NHS payables 34,896
Other borrowings 25,190
PFI & finance lease obligations 8,947
Total at 31 March 2012 71,865

NHS payables 4,633
Non-NHS payables 29,746
Other borrowings 30,650
PFI & finance lease obligations 8,420
Total at 31 March 2011 73,449

33  Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts from 
Related Party

Amounts 
owed to 

Related Party
£ £ £

Bevan Brittan 82,001 0 0

University of Bristol 3,037,760 938,258 233,145

34 Losses and special payments
There were 326 cases of losses and special payments (2010-11: 390 cases) totalling £304,
£377,975) incurred during 2011-12. The vast majority of these cases relate to the write off of deb
previously been provided for in the accounts of the Trust.

Professor Avril Waterman-Pearson (a Non-Executive Director) was pro vice chancellor for educ
faculties of science and engineering at the university of Bristol, although she relinquished this post a
2010-11 academic year. Andrew Nield (a Non-Executive Director) was Director of Finance for th
Bristol.

During the year Stephen Hughes (a Non-Executive Director) was a partner with Bevan Brittan.

32  Events after the reporting period
There are no events after the reporting period which would affect the figures reported in tese accoun

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year North Bristol NHS Tr
significant number of material transactions with the other entities for which the Department is re
parent Department.

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departm
central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with H M Revenue and
the NHS Pensions Agency.

North Bristol NHS Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds,
trustees for which are also members of the Trust board.
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The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Turnover 370,223 381,729 420,918 439,624 473,815 492,883 519,430
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,480 85 4,008 3,036 (31,879) 1,393 (72,571)
Adjustment for:

Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:
2006/07 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2005/06) 0
2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07) 0 0
2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2007/08) 0 0 0
Adjustments for Impairments** 6,182 38,056 6,525 79,545
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - Adjustment for Dual Accounting under IFRIC12* 0 (30) 534
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government grants assets** 1,494
Other agreed adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Break-even in-year position 1,480 85 4,008 9,218 6,177 7,888 9,002
Break-even cumulative position (44,884) (44,799) (40,791) (31,573) (25,396) (17,508) (8,506)

*

**

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12
% % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 0.40 0.02 0.95 2.10 1.30 1.60 1.73
Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover -12.12 -11.74 -9.69 -7.18 -5.36 -3.55 -1.64

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.

The Trust's recovery plan, approved by the SHA aims to achieve break-even in 2012/13.  

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

North Bristol NHS Trust Q39_RVJ - Annual Accounts 2011-12

35.1  Breakeven performance

35.   Financial performance targets

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS Trust’s financial performance measurement needs to be
aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the
application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is
excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  

Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to
maintain comparability year to year.
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35.2  Capital cost absorption rate

35.3  External financing
The trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000 £000

External financing limit (16,951) (8,839)
Cash flow financing (26,853) (8,261)
Other capital receipts (325) (3,678)
External financing requirement (27,178) (11,939)
Undershoot 10,227 3,100

35.4  Capital resource limit
The trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2011-12 2010-11
£000 £000

Gross capital expenditure 13,681 23,976
Less: book value of assets disposed of (425) (78)
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (325) (3,678)
Charge against the capital resource limit 12,931 20,220
Capital resource limit 14,927 23,100
Underspend against the capital resource limit 1,996 2,880

Until 2008/09 the trust was required to absorb the cost of capital at a rate of 3.5% of forecast average
relevant net assets. The rate is calculated as the percentage that dividends paid on public dividend capital
bears to the actual average relevant net assets. 

From 2009/10 the dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast)
average relevant net assets and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.

36  Third party assets
The Trust held £13,776 cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2012 (£13,776 at 31 March 2011) which
relates to monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of patients or other parties. This has been excluded from
the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.
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Title:  Annual Accounts for 2011/12 

Purpose of paper:  To brief the Board on the annual accounts for the trust, 
and the key issues contained therein. 

 

For Information 

Executive Summary: 

 
 The draft accounts were submitted to the Department of Health, 

Strategic Health Authority, and Auditors in line with the national 
deadline of 23rd April 2012 

 The audit is almost finalised and no issues have been raised to date 
 The audit committee will meet on the 6th June to review and if 

appropriate recommend to the board adoption of the accounts 
 There will be a special board meeting on 6th of June to action the audit 

committee recommendations  
 The audited accounts must be submitted to the DH by 11th June. 

 
Action Required:  The Trust Board is asked to review the accounts 
 
Impact on Patients:  Failure of the Trust to achieve its target surplus will 
have a negative impact on the Trust. 
 
  
Responsible Committee:  Finance Committee 
Financial Issues considered: Yes 
Equality Impact Assessment Completed: No   
Legal Issues Considered: Yes  

 Sustainability Assessment Completed:          No   
 
Presented by:   Steve Webster Director Finance & Information 
Prepared by:  Mark Ross, Financial Controller, and Richard Hogger, 
Head of Financial Accounts 

http://www.nbt.nhs.uk/Default.htm�


NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST 
FINANCE AND INFORMATION DIRECTORATE 

 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2011/12 

 
REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD 

 
31ST MAY 2012 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with the timetable prescribed by the Department of Health (DH), the 
Trust submitted its draft unaudited accounts to the DH, Strategic Health Authority 
(SHA) and external auditors on 23rd April 2012 and is required to submit final audited 
accounts by 11th June 2012. 
 
The paper that was presented at the April Trust Board regarding targets is 
unchanged: 
 
Description 
 

Target Achieved Notes 

Break even £8.98m Surplus 
(excluding 

adjustments) 

£9.002m 
surplus 

Achieved 

Capital cost 
absorption rate 

3.5% 3.5% Achieved* 

External financing 
limit 

(£16.951m) (£27.178m) Achieved – underspend 
is permitted 

Capital Resource 
Limit 

£14.927m £12.931m Achieved – underspend 
is permitted 

 
* Since 2009/10 the dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the 
actual (rather than the forecast) average net relevant assets and therefore the actual 
capital cost is automatically 3.5%. However it remains a key target reported to the 
Department of Health. 
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) shows a retained deficit of 
£72.571m. However, this includes the following adjustments which are disregarded 
for the purpose of reporting performance against the Trust’s break even duty :- 
 

 impairments of £79.362m 
 costs related to the loss of the donated asset reserve due to NHS wide 

accounting changes, of £1.494m  
 costs related to capital charges on PFI funded assets under IFRIC 12 

accounting requirements of £0.717m.  
 
After excluding these adjustments, the Trust has achieved a surplus of £9.002m for 
breakeven purposes. This is marginally over the planned surplus of £8.980m. 
 
This is shown in note 36.1 to the accounts. 
 
The large impairment charge arises in the year as a result of the following: 
 

 The District Valuer undertook an assessment of the value of the trust’s land 
and buildings as at 31st March 2012. This has been used to ensure that the 



value included in the statement of financial position of the trust at that point is 
appropriate. The valuation in 2011-12 led to an impairment charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income of £2.1m 

 
 During 2011-12 the trust has undertaken an impairment review of the 

Frenchay hospital site. This was triggered by the substantial progress that 
has been achieved in the construction of the new PFI funded hospital at 
Southmead, which will be used to provide all services previously provided 
from Frenchay, when it opens in 2014. Given the reduced operational life of 
the asset, this review has led to a reduction in the value of the site in the 
trust’s statement of financial position by £73.5m in the current year. 

 
 In addition to the above two elements, there were a number of further 

impairments totaling £3.9m. 
 
The IFRIC 12 adjustment refers to the costs of recognising the Multi-Storey car park 
on the balance sheet. IFRIC 12 is the short name of International Financial Reporting 
Interpretation Committee Interpretation 12 which provides guidance on accounting for 
‘service concession arrangements’ and is the accounting standard which the 
Treasury has interpreted as bringing these assets and liabilities onto the balance 
sheet. This has led to additional charges being recognised in the SOCI. The 
Department of Health have decided that these additional costs should be disregarded 
when assessing the trust’s performance against the breakeven target. 
 
A plan was agreed in May 2008 with the Department of Health and the Strategic 
Health Authority which aims to eliminate the Trusts accumulated deficit and repay the 
historical deficit loan by March 2013.  The plan includes utilising Trust surpluses and 
additional income from Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) as well as asset sales to 
contribute to the loan repayment.  During the year the trust entered into negotiations 
with the SHA and the DH to extend the loan repayment element of the plan in order 
to improve the trust’s liquidity position as it prepares for Foundation Trust status.. 
This has been agreed so that loan repayments in the year totalled £5.46m, and 
repayments in future years will remain steady at £1.42m. 
 
2. KEY ISSUES IN THE ACCOUNTS 
 
2.1 Adjustments from the draft accounts. 
 
There are no adjustments to the reported surplus following the audit.  There are a 
small number of amendments to narrative disclosures including additional 
information, re-analysis of figures, and the correction of typographic errors. There 
have also been a small number of disclosure changes, for instance in the related 
party notes, which have no impact on the reported performance of the trust.  
 
2.2 SOCI  
 
 Better payment practice code 
 
Performance overall was 93% of bills paid within 30 days.  This is an improvement on 
the 87% achieved in 2010/11 and has been achieved because of efficient systems 
and availability of cash throughout the year.  We are continuing to work towards 
achieving the 95% target, and will be reviewing those directorates which are the main 
causes of delays. 



 
 Other Operating Income 
 
Other operating income has risen by a net amount of £2.9m which principally is the 
net effect of an increase in other revenue and a reduction in capital donations.   The 
increase in other revenue largely relates to additional income from the SHA to cover 
the transitional costs of the trust in relation to the new hospital and the 
implementation of Cerner. There has been a drop in the receipt of donations for 
capital acquisitions, as 2010-11 included the one off transfer of the BUI charity to the 
trust. 
 
 Operating Expenses 
 
Depreciation continues to include additional charges of £6.98m in relation to the 
accelerated depreciation of buildings at Southmead which are expected to be 
demolished when the new hospital is occupied. The Frenchay site will be depreciated 
at a similar rate to previous years after the revaluation in the current year, and the 
value of all of these buildings will reach zero by the time they come out of use. 
 
The reported cost of services from foundation trusts has increased significantly in 
year.  This is driven by the amounts agreed with other bodies during the year end 
income and expenditure balance agreement process. During 2011-12 the guidance 
from the Department of Health changed so that a number of transactions that had 
previously been treated by the foundation trusts as recharges of consumables and 
staff are now treated as service charges to NBT. This change means that this line in 
the accounts has increased and other headings have reduced, which mostly affects 
clinical supplies and staff costs.  This movement is not visible on the accounts 
because there are other changes contained with these amounts.   
 
There has been a drive by the trust to reduce the use of the private sector to provide 
care to trust patients, particularly where this was targeted to reduce waiting lists. This 
is reflected in the fall in costs from £4,885K to £1,911K. 
 
There has been a reduction in transport costs of £388K which is a result of a fall in 
the hire costs for taxis and other transport. 
 
Premises costs have risen, as this heading includes £1,921K of costs related to the 
implementation of Cerner. This heading also includes the effect of a rise of £580K or 
more than 10% in utilities charges.  
 
Clinical negligence has risen from £7,302K to £8,561K as a result in increases in 
premiums charged by the NHS Litigation Authority. Other costs have risen as a result 
of the one off costs of the laundry re-provision. 
 



2.3 Statement of Financial Position 
 

 Receivables 
 
Overall, receivables have increased by £2.2m which is the net effect of the following 
items:  
             £m 
Increase in NHS receivables 3.8
Increase in Non NHS receivables 1.8
Increase in provisions for impairment of receivables -1.3
Decrease in Prepayments and other receivables -2.6
Increase in VAT receivable 0.5
Total movement 2.2
 
Additional VAT is receivable as a result of the profile of capital expenditure in the 
year, whereby a large proportion of the annual total was incurred in the final month, 
and this has driven an increase in the reclaim due. 
 
The increase in NHS receivables is partly due to a sharp reduction in debtors at the 
last year end as a result of payments from NHS bodies. This reduction has not been 
repeated to the same extent in March 2012. It is also due to an amount of £1.7m 
expected from NHS Bristol that was not received by the year end.  
 
The increase in non-NHS receivables, although somewhat reduced by the increase 
in the provision for impairment of receivables (bad debt provision), is a result of a  
number of customers taking longer to pay, in part due to a reduction in credit control 
activity by the finance department. This reduction has been addressed since the year 
end.  
 

 Cash 
 
The trust has taken a conscious decision to increase the cash balance it holds as 
part of the plan to increase overall liquidity as it approaches Foundation Trust Status. 
As discussed elsewhere in this paper this has included negotiating an extension of 
the Historic deficit loan. It has also been achieved thanks to additional income 
received by the trust during the year, including additional PDC for capital investment, 
and further support for costs of transition. Another contributing factor has been the 
rise in creditors due to delays in receiving invoices which has allowed the trust to 
retain cash temporarily.  
 

 Payables and Provisions 
 
 
The overall level of payables (excluding long term borrowings) has increased by 
£12.5m.  The main movements are as follows: 
            £m 
Decrease in NHS payables -1.8
Increase in Non-NHS Payables 2.7
Net increase in other payables  5.6
Increase in capital payables 3.1
Increase in provisions 2.9
 
Total Movement 12.5
 



The increase in capital payables has been created by the implementation of the 
Cerner system and the accrual of section 106 costs related to the planning 
permission for the new hospital, as this occurred towards the end of the year, the 
majority of the planned capital expenditure costs fell in the final quarter of the year, 
which led to an increase in payables at the year end. 
 
The increase in Non-NHS payables and other payables, is due to an increase in 
accruals for invoices not received by the year end, due to a large extent to  a number 
of  non-recurring, investments made by the trust which were not paid until after 31st 
March.   
 
Provisions have increased by £2.9m in the year.  This increase is made up of 3 
items: 
 

 New provisions for MARS (£0.4m) 
 Laundry decommissioning costs (£0.7m) 
 Third party costs related to Cerner (£1.9m). 

 
There is a small reduction of £0.1m in the recurring provision for the pension costs of 
early retirees from before 1995.  This originally came about as a result of accounting 
changes approximately 10 years ago and will reduce over time. 
 
2.4 Other Issues 
 
 Break even note & historical deficits 
 
Note 35.1 to the accounts discloses the Trust’s performance against its break even 
target. The cumulative deficit shown for breakeven purposes is £8.506m, including 
£9.002m in 2011/12 as described above. 

 



 
 

Trust Board – May 2012 
 

Title:      Building our Future Programme - Update 

Purpose of paper:  This paper outlines progress on the Building our Future Programme 
up to May 2012. The Trust Board is asked to NOTE this report.  

For Information 

Programme Overview: 
 
A significant number of the Building Our Future Programme team are focussing on producing 
a key Programme deliverable – The Operating Plan. This is in essence the ‘manual’ for how 
services in the new hospital and across the community teams will work, and describes how 
the Trust will deliver on its ‘patient promises’ i.e. ‘Right Place, Right Time, First Time’ 
 
Very high-levels of engagement with all specialties and complex modelling has taken place in 
the last month to enable this Plan to be further developed. 
 
A further conference was held off-site on 14th May when around 120 Trust staff (from a wide 
range of staff groups) spent the day reviewing the progress made towards developing the 
Operating Plan, shaping future working practices and giving feedback on the clinical models 
that have been developed so far.  
 
Those present discussed the operational implications of the decisions made at the Senior 
Leaders' Away Day:  
  

 To have a planned surgical unit 
 To dedicate a small number of beds to complex, frail patients 
 To have a single team running the Acute Assessment Unit with 24 hour Primary Care 

presence 
 To centralise administration including bed allocation 

  
Significant work was done to revise the macro-pathways that had been developed to 
describe the over-arching progress of patients through the hospital. 
 
Colleagues spent the afternoon feeding back on the operating system models for 4 key 
areas: theatres and pre-operative assessment, acute assessment, outpatients and long term 
conditions/ rehab.  There was a good deal of consensus, healthy debate and comment all of 
which will be considered in the final document. 
 
Moving forward in the next month a series of desktop exercises are taking place to simulate 
and test how these new operating systems will work in the new hospital. These will further 
refine the work to complete the ‘Operating Plan’ document for July. 
 
Work continues at pace in other Projects, key highlights including: 
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Non pay  
 

1. As part of our partnership working with Bristol and Weston Trusts, we are working to 
achieve bigger savings across the board and where appropriate standardise clinical 
and non-clinical products. Through improved economies of scale and purchasing 
power we aim to save money whilst protecting quality. 
 

2. As part of our drive to support improved staff decision-making, we are launching the 
Advisory Board (and external research organisation) spend analytic tool (Spend 
Compass) on 29th May 2012. This will greatly improve visibility of spend information 
for directorate managers and other major budget holders the allowing them to see 
trends, generate reports, and compare prices locally and nationally. A big step 
forward in becoming a more intelligent client in non pay management. 

 

Nursing & Midwifery Direct Patient Care – Productive Ward 
 
Productive Ward - Exceptional Healthcare Award  
 
We are delighted that the Productive Ward team have been shortlisted for an Exceptional 
Healthcare Award in the ‘Outstanding Achievement’ category. Well done to everyone who 
continues to make Productive Ward a success.  
 
 
 
Impact on Patients: The ‘Building our Future’ Programme will be central to improving 
patient safety, quality and experience.  
 
CQC Outcome:     

Responsible Committee:  Building our Future Programme Board 

Financial Issues considered: N/A 

Equality Impact Assessment Completed: Each programme of work in ‘Building our 
Future’ will require an equality impact 
assessment. 

Legal Issues Considered: N/A  

Sustainability Assessment Completed: N/A 
 
 
Presented by:    
 
Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 
 
Prepared by:    
 
Building our Future Programme Team 



2011/12
Spells Elect Non Elect Day
General Surgery 2221 4571 5501
Urology 1665 739 6020
Trauma & Orthopaedics 4509 1955 2841
ENT 604 381 1005
Oral Surgery 199 86 1058
Neurosurgery 1554 1945 479
Plastic Surgery 1407 2218 5986
Accident & Emergency 3 4260 0
Pain Management 10 14 1285
General Medicine 486 9652 4778
Clinical Haematology 131 33 4651
Clinical Immunology And Alle 4 4 614
Cardiology 264 2141 661
Infectious Diseases 39 760 2
Nephrology 449 1128 1701
Medical Oncology 0 0 1
Neurology 430 719 647
Rheumatology 170 10 646
Paediatrics 24 59 41
Paediatric Neurology 57 35 160
Neonatology 78 3561 0
Well Babies 5 2999 0
Geriatric Medicine 38 3304 4
Obstetrics 6 8799 1
Gynaecology 1050 1001 2869
Midwife Episode 4 6201 0
Neuropsychiatry 184 32 0
Child & Adolescent psych 15 26 0

15606 56633 40951

2010/11 17181 56284 42384

2011/12
Outpatient Activity New Fup Total
General Surgery 12006 15869 27875
Urology 4963 11943 16906
Trauma & Orthopaedics 15592 39446 55038
ENT 5871 7289 13160
Ophthalmology 67 523 590
Oral Surgery 3265 4237 7502
Paediatric Dentistry 22 1153 1175
Orthodontics 301 2071 2372
Neurosurgery 3431 5867 9298
Plastic Surgery 12288 24141 36429
Cardiothoracic Surgery 3 276 279
Paediatric Surgery 249 73 322
Anaesthetics 3665 11131 14796
General Medicine 6528 18079 24607
Clinical Haematology 637 6565 7202
Clinical Immunology And Alle 906 1349 2255
Cardiology 5391 7087 12478
Dermatology 3885 5486 9371
Infectious Diseases 295 3664 3959
Nephrology 1398 21964 23362
Medical Oncology 631 1548 2179
Neurology 5387 8865 14252
Clinical Neuro-Physiology 2029 402 2431
Rheumatology 1374 6636 8010
Paediatrics 789 1678 2467
Paediatric Neurology 59 264 323



Neonatology 6 732 738
Geriatric Medicine 1200 1992 3192
Obstetrics 3992 6164 10156
Gynaecology 13170 10782 23952
Midwife Episode 4833 13397 18230
Neuropsychiatry 593 1681 2274
Child & Adolescent psych 22 1282 1304
Clinical Oncology 57 218 275
Chemical Pathology 0 15 15

114905 243869 358774

2010/11 108259 263809 372068

2011/12
A&E New Follow Up Total
Frenchay 66522 700 67222
Southmead 17704 229 17933
Yate 10619 203 10822

94845 1132 95977

2010/11 83853 378 84231

Maternity Deliveries 2011/12
Hospital 6055
Home 161
Other 89
Total 6305

2010/11 5943
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1. TRUST PROFILE  
 
North Bristol NHS Trust is a centre of excellence for healthcare in the South West 
region in a number of fields, as well as one of the largest hospital trusts in the 
country. 
 
Last year we treated almost 113,000 inpatients, including day case patients, as well 
as caring for more than 96,000 people through our Emergency Department at 
Frenchay and Minor Injuries Units at Southmead and Yate. 6,300 babies were born 
at Southmead at home or in the community and we conducted around 360,000 
outpatient consultations. 
 
We have around 1,100 beds and provide inpatient care from Frenchay and 
Southmead Hospitals and the Riverside Unit. We also provide a wide range of 
outpatient services from Cossham Hospital in Kingswood.  
 
The Trust provides general medical and surgical care as well as maternity and 
paediatric services for a local population of around half a million people in the North 
Bristol and South Gloucestershire area.  
 
It is also a regional and specialist centre for people living in the Greater Bristol area 
as well as Somerset, Gloucestershire, Wiltshire and further afield for services such as 
neurosciences, orthopaedics, pathology, plastic surgery, renal services, urology, 
paediatric neurology and neonatal intensive care. Our Children’s Community Health 
Partnership provides all community child health, and child and adolescent mental 
health, services for Bristol and South Gloucestershire. 
 
We employ approximately 9,100 staff. More than 4,000 of our staff members work 
part time. Around one fifth of our workforce is now based outside of the hospital 
setting in the local community. 
 
The Trust has equality schemes for race, gender and disability which are available on 
our website www.nbt.nhs.uk which were combined into a single equality scheme in 
2010. 
 
We have a Major Incident Plan that is fully compliant with requirements and 
guidance. 
 
How to contact us: 
Frenchay Hospital 
Beckspool Road 
Frenchay 
Bristol 
BS16 1JE 
Tel: 0117 970 1212 
 
Southmead Hospital 
Westbury-on-Trym 
Bristol 
BS10 5NB 
Tel: 0117 950 5050 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2. INTRODUCTION FROM CHAIRMAN AND INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
During the last 12 months, the Trust has continued to focus on delivering good 
quality, safe healthcare for all our patients, with the focus on improving clinical 
outcomes, reducing infections and maintaining good access to our services.   
 
It’s amazing to think that in less than two years we will be caring for our patients in 
the new hospital at the Southmead site. The building and its cranes have become a 
landmark in the Bristol area and can be seen from miles around.  
 
Progress over the last two years has been incredible and anticipation is building 
amongst many of our staff as they look forward to delivering exceptional healthcare 
for our patients in a 21st century, state-of-the-art facility.  
 
We also launched our application to become an NHS Foundation Trust (FT) and 
remain on track to achieve this as planned by December 2012. An FT is accountable 
to its membership which is drawn from the local population and its staff. The 
response has been fantastic with more than 5,000 people already signed up to 
become a member and become part of our new Foundation Trust.  
 
As always, there have been a number of challenges this year. Most notably with the 
introduction of our new computerised booking system in January. We replaced the 
two out dated systems with a new single electronic patient record system that brings 
advantages to clinicians in how they treat their patients. However, the change over 
from our old systems did not go well in some areas of the Trust with significant 
problems in our outpatient clinics.  
 
We are pleased to report that these difficulties have now been overcome and the 
system is working well, but we would like to take this opportunity to once again 
apologise to any patients or staff affected by the change.  
 
We would also like to thank our outgoing Chief Executive Ruth Brunt who retired in 
June 2012 after 40 years in the NHS.  
 
She has been an inspirational leader and we wish her well for the future. Plans are 
now in place to find a permanent Chief Executive to take us forward into the new 
hospital.  
 
In addition, we want to take this opportunity to thank our hard-working and loyal 
staff who have continued to provide our patients with first-class and compassionate 
care over the last 12 months.   
 
Thanks are also due, as always, to the tireless supporters of our hospitals – in 
particularly the Friends of Frenchay Hospital, the League of Friends at Southmead, 
the WRVS and the 500+ volunteers who give up their time each week to support us.  
 
Peter Rilett - Chairman  
XXXX - Interim Chief Executive  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3. Review of the year 2011/12 
 
April 2011 

 NHS South Gloucestershire and North Bristol NHS Trust agree to the transfer 
of the PCT’s community services provider arm: South Gloucestershire 
Community Health Services, into NBT. From April 1, 550 staff, such as district 
nurses, therapists and Yate Minor Injuries Unit, previously employed by NHS 
South Gloucestershire joined NBT’s growing group of community based staff. 
The latest additions from South Gloucestershire now mean that around a fifth 
of NBT’s total workforce is now based outside the traditional hospital setting, 
providing care and treatment in local communities and patients’ homes. 

 
May 2011 

 The Communication Aid Centre at Frenchay Hospital celebrates its 30th 
anniversary. The service supports patients with varying degrees of 
communication difficulties caused primarily by disability, learning difficulties 
or neurological problems, and works with them to develop systems which can 
enhance or replace speech. These could be low level systems such as books 
or charts right up to the latest technology such as ‘eye-gaze’ computers that 
can track eye movements to spell out words and then speak them. 

 
 As part of the Fresh Arts music programme, patients, staff and visitors are 

entertained by royal harpist, Claire Jones, fresh from her recent performance 
at the wedding of William and Kate – The Duke and Duchess of Cambridge.  

 
 Frenchay Hospital becomes the first in the country to offer children with 

cerebral palsy a pioneering treatment that could see them walk again. 
Selective Dorsal Rhizotomy (SDR) is a technique involving the division of 
some of the nerves as they enter the spinal cord to free up constricting 
muscles caused by lower limb spasticity (or increased muscle tone). If 
performed early enough, problems related to lower limb spasticity, such as 
muscle shortening, contractures and abnormal bone growth can be reduced 
or even eliminated. 

 
 A campaign showing the dangers of tea and coffee spills burning children is 

launched. The Hot Drinks Harm film highlights the risks of tea and coffee 
scalds on young children. Burn injuries from tea or coffee account for 40 per 
cent of admissions to the South West UK Children’s Burn Centre at Frenchay 
Hospital. Each week two children are brought into Frenchay with major burns 
caused by hot drinks. 

 
June 2011 
 

 Multiple Sclerosis (MS) research at Frenchay Hospital was awarded a $1.1 
million donation to continue a pioneering bone marrow stem cell trial. The 
project has been shown to have possible benefits for the treatment of the 
disease. Now the grant, donated by American benefactor, The Kenneth and 
Claudia Silverman Family Foundation to the University of Bristol and North 
Bristol NHS Trust, will fund a phase II clinical trial of bone marrow cellular 
therapy in MS patients. 

 
 NBT is one of only four NHS organisations in the country to appear on the 

National Apprenticeship Service’s Top 100 Employers list. The Trust also won 
the South West Employer of the Year award 2011 in the Macro Employer 
category (for organisations with more than 5,000 staff). The award 
recognises the scheme that the Trust runs to train and develop apprentices in 



healthcare, from nursing staff to IT technicians across Frenchay and 
Southmead hospitals, and in the community. 

 
 The Yate Minor Injuries Unit (MIU) celebrates its first year after treating 

almost 8,500 people. The MIU, at the Yate West Gate Centre, offers a drop-in 
service for children and adults to treat a whole range of minor injuries from 
cuts to sprains, from bites to broken arms.  

 
 The first ever NBT Exceptional Healthcare Awards take place. The awards are 

designed to recognise the exceptional care that our staff deliver to our 
patients and to recognise loyalty and innovation. More than 200 nominations 
were received and 10 awards were given out on the night ranging from team 
of the year to unsung hero.  

 
July 2011 
 

 Southmead Hospital is once again awarded Baby Friendly status by UNICEF 
and the World Health Organisation for the high quality education and 
practical advice it gives new mums about breast-feeding. The maternity 
teams scored 100 percent on the standards to achieve the status which 
means that it will stay with the hospital for the next three to four years. 
Southmead was first granted Baby Friendly status back in 2005 and was one 
of the first units of its size in the country to get the accolade. It has 
continued to meet the standards since then in regular reviews. 

 
August 2011 
 

 The Trust starts the process to become an NHS Foundation Trust. The first 
stage of this is to consult with staff, patients, carers and local residents on its 
vision and proposals for the future. 

 
 The Trust encouraged families to use a gorilla hunt around Bristol as an 

opportunity to develop their child’s speech and language. As part of the city’s 
support for ‘Hello’ - the National Year of Communication - speech and 
language therapists developed a guide for parents based around the Gorilla 
Hunt, to help inspire discussion. The guide included talking tips such as using 
lots of different words, picking up on items being pointed at, chatting about 
what gorillas like to do and ideas to follow-up when they got home. 

 
 A cheque for £460,000 was presented to the Trust from the WRVS, marking a 

60-year partnership between the two organisations. The £460,000 comes 
from profits made at the WRVS shops and coffee shops at Frenchay and 
Southmead over the last four years. The shops and coffee shops are run by a 
total of 141 volunteers across the two sites who give up their time every 
week to serve patients, visitors and staff. 

 
 Staff and patients celebrate the 90th anniversary of Frenchay Hospital with a 

special Hawaiian-themed barbecue in the Redwood Restaurant. Frenchay saw 
its first patients in 1921 when, what is now Trust Headquarters was a TB 
sanatorium for children. 

 
September 2011 
 

 A patient who accidently sawed his thumb off had his big toe attached in its 
place by expert surgical teams at Frenchay Hospital. James Byrne, 29, lost 
the thumb on his left hand in December 2010 while sawing through a piece 
of wood. After an attempt to re-attach his thumb was unsuccessful, plastic 



surgeon Umraz Khan transplanted the big toe from his left foot in an eight 
hour operation. James’ story was covered by the national and international 
media.  

 
 The South West’s only prostate surgical robot goes on show at a special 

event to raise awareness of men’s cancers at Southmead. The public were 
given the chance to see a robot in action, and operate it themselves, at a 
special Blue September event. Southmead Hospital was one of the first 
hospitals in the UK to have the robot in 2009.  

 
October 2011 
 

 Frenchay Brain Injury Rehabilitation Centre was celebrating this month, 
following industry recognition at the Laing and Buisson Awards 2011 where 
they scooped the award for best in the Public Private Partnership 
category. Held at London’s Marriott Grosvenor Hotel, Alison Woods, Centre 
Manager and Dr Angus Graham, Consultant in Rehabilitation Medicine, 
accepted the award on behalf of their dedicated teams at Frenchay Brain 
Injury Centre and its NHS partnership organisation, North Bristol NHS Trust.   

 
 A campaign to get more people to take part in research projects is launched. 

Each year 7,000 patients take part in clinical research projects at NBT leading 
to breakthroughs in the understanding and treatment of diseases and health 
conditions. The Take Part Be Involved campaign hopes to encourage more 
people to sign up for clinical studies or to be involved in a research panel. 
Research studies can involve a wide range of topics from changes in routines 
or diet to trialling a new medicine or course of treatment or even undergoing 
new forms of surgery. 

 
 A new project to publicise hygiene and safety scores on every ward at our 

hospitals was recognised in national Department of Health safety awards. 
These recognise how we are using patient and public involvement to inform 
patient safety and experience improvements. Through a series of surveys, 
involving patient panellists and 600 members of the public, patients told us 
that they wanted to know key information when visiting or being admitted to 
a ward. 

 
November 2011 
 

 Work to centralise specialist children’s health services at the Bristol Royal 
Hospital for Children (BRHC) reaches a new milestone as the steel structure 
of the extension to the hospital is complete. The extension is being built to 
accommodate specialist pediatric services that will move from Frenchay 
Hospital in 2014.  

 
 The Trust wins the Green Champion Award for the NHS at the national Green 

Apple Awards. The award was presented to the Environmental Management 
Unit at a ceremony at the House of Commons arranged by the Green 
Organisation, who reward and promote environmental best practice around 
the world. The award was given for the Trust’s Treading Lightly campaign 
which promotes environmental initiatives such as recycling, saving energy 
and reducing carbon footprint at Frenchay and Southmead hospitals. 

 
 The consultation for our Foundation Trust application was launched on 1 

August and closed on 4 November 2011. During that time more than 2,500 
people gave their views on our plans, around 700 of which were members of 



staff. This was one of the highest numbers of responses to an NHS 
Foundation Trust consultation recorded. 

 
December 2011 
 

 Miracle babies born after successful IVF and other fertility treatments at the 
Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine (BCRM) returned to the centre 
where they were conceived to celebrate their first Christmas. The BCRM at 
Southmead Hospital hosted a special Christmas party for babies born this 
year after their parents were successful in their fertility treatment. 

 
 NBT and University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust launch a new 

charter that aims to promote a culture that recognises the vital role carers 
play within our hospitals. Both trusts value the vital work done by carers and, 
the new carers’ charter sets out our commitment to work together with them 
as expert partners in patients’ care. 

 
 We introduce a computer system which changes the way we store and access 

patient records. This new single system replaces two outdated systems and 
will bring significant advantages to clinicians and patients, with the recording 
of clinical information in one secure place. The new computer system is a key 
part of delivering 21st century healthcare in our move towards the new 
hospital at Southmead.  

 
 It was a great end to 2011 for the catering team. They were awarded the 

Hospital Catering Award in the 2011 Health Business Awards in recognition 
for producing good, locally sourced foods at the best possible price. In 
addition, the Trust has become one of only a handful in the UK to be 
presented with Compassion in World Farming - Good Egg Award for only 
using free-range eggs and egg products in its food.  

 
January 2012 

 
 Brother and sister Reuben and Floren Blake were conceived from the same 

batch of embryos but born five years apart after fertility treatment at the 
Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine (BCRM). Parents Simon and Jody 
Blake had been trying to start a family without success and began fertility 
treatment in 2005. During the medical process, five embryos were created 
and two implanted in Mrs Blake, which resulted in the birth of Reuben on 
December 9 2006. The remaining three embryos were frozen until the 
couple, from Cheltenham decided to try for another child last year. Against 
the odds, Floren arrived on November 16 2011 - two weeks before her due 
date - but five years after her twin brother. Reuben and Floren’s story is 
picked up this month and featured by media across the country.  

 
February 2012 
 

 Cancer patients at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals are now offered 
exercise classes to reduce the risk of the disease spreading or returning. The 
hospitals are taking a leading role in the National Cancer Survivorship 
Initiative to improve the chances and quality of life of a patient surviving 
cancer. There is growing evidence that exercise as a vital part of cancer 
management and that it improves a cancer patient’s quality of life. The 
classes are devised by hospital physiotherapists for patients who have 
completed their medical course of treatment for cancer. 

 
March 2012 



 
 NBT gets £3.3million to buy equipment to improve services as part of a 

£330million Government allocation for the NHS. The money will be used to 
buy items including home dialysis machines and intensive care ventilators.  

 
 The Trust launches a virtual Send a Thank You for patients and visitors to 

express their appreciation to the healthcare staff who looked after them. The 
Send a Thank You form is designed to enable patients or their relatives to 
contact the teams who have helped them at Frenchay Hospital, Southmead 
Hospital or through our community health services. 

 
 Surgeons at Southmead Hospital are robotically constructing new bladders for 

cancer patients in a UK first. The procedure, known as a radical cystectomy 
and neo-bladder, used to be performed manually in open surgery by 
surgeons creating a new bladder for cancer patients who had to have the 
organ removed. Now the hospital is making neo-bladders robotically from the 
patient’s own bowel tissue inside their body for the first time. The keyhole 
surgery is less invasive, has a faster recovery time for patients. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4. LISTENING TO AND WORKING WITH OUR PATIENTS  
 
National Inpatient Survey  
Each year North Bristol NHS Trust (NBT) takes part in the National Inpatient Survey, 
which is published by the Care Quality Commission.  From 850 patients randomly 
selected we had a response rate of 56 percent. 
 
As in previous years, the 2011 survey highlighted many positive aspects of patient 
experience at NBT, with 93 percent of patients rating their care as good or excellent 
and 97 percent of patients reported that they were treated with dignity and respect.  
In the key patient experience indicator of whether the patient would recommend the 
Trust, NBT received a positive response of 92 percent, a two percent increase from 
last year.   
 
The results of the annual survey form an important part of the Trust’s planning and 
actions taken as a result of findings from previous years’ surveys include: 
 

 Increasing the usage of pharmacy cards so that patients knew who to contact 
about medication side effects when they went home 

 
 Handing out ward welcome cards so patients and visitors became familiar 

with ward routines, enabling patients to give us feedback through ward 
feedback cards 

 
 Streamlining our patient information so it was more accessible for patients  

 
 Increasing the amount of time nurses spend with patients to ensure the 

needs of vulnerable people were being monitored more closely. 
 
Advice, complaints and compliments 
The Advice and Complaints Team (ACT) has continued to provide a seamless route 
to raise and receive answers to enquires, concerns and complaints.  
 
All complaints and concerns received and those enquires that could not be answered 
with the indicated timeframe were registered.  
 
This year, as ever, ACT has received tremendous support from the complaints co-
ordinators in each of the directorates and numerous staff throughout the Trust to 
meet this challenge.   
 
ACT has focussed on a number of initiatives throughout the year aimed at: 
 

 Improving identification of any general themes and potential areas of 
weakness, or deficiency, in patient experience 

 
 Strengthening the learning processes by improving the monitoring and 

dissemination of data to managers throughout the Trust 
 

 Improving the initial contact with patients or their representatives to agree 
the issues and outcomes being sought 

 
 Supporting other areas of the Trust to meet Quality Care Commission targets 

assessment and other performance criteria 
 

 Improving links to the Trust’s Safeguarding Team, by formalising the referral 
process 

 



 Improving how we work with the Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman 
to resolve complainants’ ongoing dissatisfaction or challenges to complaint 
investigations and responses 

 
 Using the Complaints database to further streamline the complaints process. 

 
Formal complaints 
The Trust received 774 formal complaints 163 more that the previous year. In 
addition 354 concerns were raised and acted upon. 
 
These figures are broadly reflected in many NHS trusts in the South West but echo 
the problems experienced with the new patient records system introduced in 
December, which impacted on some of the busiest services.  
 
The three highest category of formal complaint were: 
 

 All aspects of clinical care  370  
 Attitude of staff   82 
 Lack of communication  79 

 
The three highest category of concern were: 
 

 Lack of communication  107 
 All aspects of clinical care  68 
 Delay/cancellation outpatient  47 

 
Lessons learned 
The number of local resolution meetings undertaken again increased to a total of 63. 
This process provides a positive way of resolving more cases and continues the 
initiative which was introduced in 2009/10. The number of action plans that 
identified positive learning from complaints and concerns again increased reflecting 
the drive to maximise learning from the complaints process. 583 action plans have 
been signed off as complete during the year. 
 
Compliments 
5,600 compliments were received during 2011/12 and, although the figure was down 
- reflecting a challenging year, increases were seen in both the Medicine and 
Neurosciences directorates. 
 
The Trust has also reacted to comments from grateful patients who advised they felt 
the link on the Trust website to complaints, which had to be followed to post a 
compliment, was both confusing and inappropriate. As a consequence action has 
been taken to ensure posting a compliment is more straightforward. 
 
A few examples of the compliments received are listed below: 
 

 The treatment that I received was first rate. The staff were polite, cheerful 
and worked incredibly hard. I cannot fault any aspect of my care.  My 
treatment is now ongoing as an outpatient. A big thank you to all concerned. 
I cannot fault the care that I received, from diagnosis to my operation and 
then in Ward 207, then 201.    

 
 As soon as we arrived at the Barbara Russell Children’s Unit at around 4am 

we realised we were in the best place. We and the rest of the family are 
extremely grateful for the treatment received. Keep up the good work. 

 



 People are quick to complain so I wanted to restore the balance by saying 
thank you to all the staff who dealt with me and in particular the first 
receptionist. What could have been improved? Nothing. 

 
 Thank you for everything you have done and for your help and support. You 

are an amazing team. I feel like a new person. We both say a big thank you. 
 

 Once again I feel compelled to write to you to express my thanks for the 
treatment and care I received during my recent stay at Southmead Hospital. 

 
 Many, many thanks to all of the staff who did so much for our mother. Please 

accept the donations to Ward 4 to assist you in the care of others. 
 

 Please pass on my congratulations to the catering team for all the awards 
they received and for the efforts they put into continuing to improve their 
service. 

 
Improving patient experience and working with the community 
At NBT, improving patient experience is important to us.  We want to understand 
what it is like to use our services and we are committed to listening and involving 
our patients. We extend this commitment to carers, families and members of the 
public, because we value their contribution too.  Becoming a Foundation Trust will 
also help us to strengthen our ability to be more responsive. 
 
To refresh our approach to involving people we have re-written our Patient & Public 
Involvement Strategy.  This sets out a framework for involvement at all levels within 
the Trust to ensure we are compliant, covering one to one interactions with patients 
and their families through to working strategically with patient and carer 
organisations such as Local Involvement Networks [LINks] and The Carers Support 
Centre. 
 
The Trust has a long standing Patient Panel, with a membership of patients and 
carers who use our services or care for patients using our services.  They are 
passionate about helping us to improve services and are highly valued for their 
contribution and hard work. Member of the Patient Panel know that their voice 
counts and that they make a difference.  Over the past year they have been involved 
in over 60 projects and activities.  These include: 
 

 Appointments of senior staff at the request of the Chief Executive 
 Quality and care audits 
 Food and environment inspections 
 Members of key committees  

At the heart of ensuring the Trust provides an excellent experience is the Patient 
Experience Group.  Membership includes patient experience leads who are 
responsible for taking the patient experience agenda out into the directorates and 
patient and carer representation from the Trust’s Patient Panel, LINks and The 
Carers Support Centre.  The group drives how we improve patient experience 
through involvement and is responsible for analysing national surveys, local and 
national targets and patient feedback data. 
 
We also have a range of other patient/user groups who make a significant 
contribution to the development of services across the Trust like The Rheumatology 
Patient Support Group, the Renal Forum and, in terms of brain injured patients, 
Headway. This year we have also worked with the Patient Association on our noise 
at night project where they provided us with a helpful report and recommendations. 
 



The Foundation Trust consultation meant we had an opportunity to re-engage with a 
wide range of community groups including the Pride event for lesbian, gay, bisexual 
and trans people, Womankind, Council of Bristol Mosques and South Gloucestershire 
Disability Equality Action Group. 
 
The extensive programme of involvement and communication continues to engage 
patients, carers and the local community in the development of the new hospital at 
Southmead and we have also been working hard to encourage involvement from a 
wide range of people in plans for the future of Frenchay Hospital.   
 
The Trust has more than 500 volunteers and numbers are rising. Their duties include 
ward-based befriending, pathfinding, chaplaincy visits and massages as well as 
running refreshment centres, driving patients to appointments, putting on musical 
concerts and assisting nursing staff on the wards at meal times.  
 
Your involvement in what we do as a hospital helps us get it right for our patients.  
For more information about how you can get involved, please contact Juliet Winter, 
Patient and Community Engagement Manager, on 0117 323 6546 or email 
juliet.winter@nbt.nhs.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5. HOW WE’RE PERFORMING  
 
The Trust has a long standing commitment to improving the quality and safety of its 
services.  Since 2007 we have been active participants in the Safer Patient Initiative, 
funded by the Health Foundation and have continued to build on this work.  Over the 
last year we have been leading work in South West Quality and Safety Improvement 
programme. This work has enabled us to continue with our commitment to continue 
to reduce our mortality rates to one of the lowest in the country.     
 
Our priorities for improvement in 2011/12 
In addition to the extensive work going on in the Trust to improve the quality of 
patient care, NBT decided to give focus to 5 priority improvement projects for 
2011/12.  These were:  
 
1. Reducing harm from health care acquired infection 
We chose this priority because health care acquired infections cause significant harm 
and are a major concern to our patients.  Our aim was to continually reduce our 
rates of Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) bloodstream infections 
(bacteraemia) and Clostridium Difficile infections.  
 
2. Preventing deterioration 
We chose this because early recognition of a deteriorating patient is key in the 
management of their condition and what factors are causing them to become acutely 
unwell in hospital. The Trust uses a system called ‘Early Warning Scores’ (EWS). This 
calculates a score based on the patient’s key observations (such as blood pressure 
and pulse) and provides an indicator of how sick a patient is, enabling much better 
recognition of ill patients.  
 
3. Reducing falls  
We chose this because falls represent a significant number of the recorded incidents 
that occur in our hospitals. At the Trust we introduced a programme to reduce falls, 
including what we call a ‘falls bundle’.  This consists of a number of tools to help 
staff recognise patients at greater risk of a fall and then put in place preventative 
actions reducing the likelihood of a patient fall.   
 
4. Pressure ulcers    
We chose this because a pressure ulcer, also known as a bed sore, can be extremely 
distressing for patients. They cause pain and can prolong a patient’s time in hospital. 
 
5. Nutrition Screening 
We chose this because hospital meals are a concern for patients and especially for 
relatives when their partner or a family member is in hospital. Maintaining good 
nutrition and hydration, by eating and drinking well, is essential for the wellbeing of 
patients and helps their recovery. 
 
How did we get on with last year’s priorities? 
 
1. Reducing Harm from health care associated infection  
Unfortunately in 2011/12, there were 11 cases of MRSA bloodstream infections 
recorded within the Trust compared to six cases in 2010/11 and against our target of 
eight cases. Therefore, we did not achieve our target for improvement.  
 
The majority of the cases occurred in April to June 2011 and, after further scrutiny, 
the cases were extremely complex in nature. The Trust continues an unrelenting 
focus on all aspects of infection prevention and control practice. 
 



In contrast, during 2011/12, we were able to reduce the number of patients 
recorded as having C.difficile to 79 in comparison to 91 patients in 2010/11. This has 
exceeded the improvement target set out for us nationally of 113 cases.   We 
achieved this through: 
 

 Strengthening our infection prevention and control policies and processes to 
help staff deliver best practice 

 Ongoing clinical staff education programmes.  
 Monitoring compliance with antimicrobial prescribing  
 Caring for patients who developed C.difficile in a separate ward where staff 

have the skills and knowledge to provide the best care possible 
 Thoroughly investigating every patient who has contracted an HCAI, with the 

results reported to the Chief Executive, Medical Director and Director of 
Nursing 

 
The Trust is pleased with the progress made to reduce C.difficile infections, however 
we are focused on continually looking for improvements to reduce the number of 
infections acquired by patients cared for by the Trust. We remain both vigilant and 
committed to the challenge ensuring that further improvements are made over the 
next year.   
 
2. Preventing deterioration 
All inpatients at the Trust have their key observations (such as temperature, pulse, 
blood pressure) monitored according to our Observations Policy. This early 
recognition and management may prevent avoidable patient admissions to Intensive 
Care Unit (ICU) or prevent a heart attack. The Trust has also introduced an 
improved prescribing guide for oxygen treatment to ensure that oxygen is given 
appropriately. 
 
As a result, the Trust’s cardiac arrest rates are now below the national average, we 
have created a specific training programme and so far 71 percent of nursing staff 
have now been trained and unplanned admissions to ICU reduced from last year.  
 
Whilst we are seeing improvements, we know that we still have further work to do to 
ensure best practice is taking place across the Trust. To address this, in March 2012, 
we launched a series of patient safety events for our senior nursing and medical 
teams.  Based on the success of the pilot ward we now plan to roll out the 
Deterioration Prevention Package across all wards over the next six months. We aim 
to achieve more than 95 percent compliance with the Observation Policy and EWS 
best practice to further reduce cardiac arrests by another 30 percent by April 2013.  
 
3. Reducing falls 
Falls can have a devastating outcome for patients. Serious falls can result in bone 
fractures, increasing their time in hospital and in severe cases result in death. So 
preventing, and reducing, the number of falls, especially serious ones, is an 
important priority for the Trust. Not all falls are preventable but many falls can be 
avoided with good patient assessments, preventative interventions and the right 
training and support of staff. For example, bed rails are helpful for patients 
recovering from an anaesthetic or who are worried about falling out of bed in their 
sleep, but not helpful for patients who are mobile, confused or restless. 
 

 88 percent of nurses have completed training in falls prevention 
 Introduced falls champions for every ward  
 Over 90 percent of wards are regularly completing falls risk assessments and 

completing bed rails assessments when a patient is admitted to hospital 
 Implemented hourly comfort ward rounds  
 Identify learning for further preventative action when a fall takes place. 



 
This work has increased the awareness of the need to manage patient falls and has 
resulted in an increase in reporting. The areas that need greater focus include the 
assessment of patients at risk of falls, particularly in terms of how we manage 
confused patients and medication reviews. Recognising the importance of the 
achievements to date the Trust is committed to continuing with the improvement 
work and will be launching a series of safety events, including falls prevention for 
senior medical and nursing staff.   
 
4. Pressure ulcers    
Preventing pressure ulcers (bed sores) prevents pain, distress and avoids prolonged 
hospital stays. Over the last 12 months we have:  
 

 Improved staff education and the process for reporting pressure ulcers 
 Introduced more accurate measurement 
 Developed a ‘skin bundle’ to help staff identify patients at risk and put in 

processes to avoid ulcers and improve care 
 Purchased more pressure relieving equipment, 65 specialist mattresses, 75 

pairs of heel protectors and seat cushions.  
 
We are committed to continuing with our improvement work and this will include 
providing more training, interventions with ward sisters to identify improvements 
that can be made, e-learning modules for all clinical staff and a healthy heels 
campaign to raise awareness of how to keep patients’ feet healthy. 
 
5. Nutrition screening 
Good nutrition and hydration (eating and drinking well) is fundamental to health. In 
hospital it is particularly important because better-nourished patients recover from 
illness faster, have more resistance to infections and heal faster after surgery. 
 
Hospital food is always a subject of interest to patients and visitors and our Catering 
Department is one of only a few hospitals in the UK to have achieved a Soil 
Association award for its food. All inpatients are able to choose from a range of 
meals which meet their personal and dietary requirements.  
 
Sometimes patients are too unwell or frail to fully benefit from the high quality food 
that is produced.  We have made it a priority to undertake a malnutrition risk check 
as soon as people are admitted so that we can identify those people who are already 
malnourished or who, because of their condition, are at risk of becoming 
malnourished or dehydrated during their stay in hospital. We can then make sure 
each patient has a care plan to prevent malnutrition or dehydration. 
 
Our rates of malnutrition patient screening on admission rose steadily through the 
year and the process is now in place on all wards.  We have also introduced a 
system of red identifiers at mealtimes to help ward staff know which patients need 
extra help and encouragement to eat.    
 
All wards now have a designated nutrition champion whose role is to make sure that 
patient nutrition is always considered and a training programme for them has been 
instigated.  We are also developing an accessible menu with pictures for those 
patients with learning difficulties, and dementia.  
  
We are also looking at how we can help people with dementia, for example by using 
coloured crockery to help the patient recognise the plate and by offering a finger 
food menu rather than dishes that need to be eaten with a knife and fork.   
 



We continue to work with our volunteers to identify more people who can offer 
support and encouragement to patients at mealtimes and help them eat when 
necessary.   
 
Nursing Quality Assessment Tool achievements 
The Nursing Quality Assessment Tool (NQAT) examines the core fundamental 
standards of patient care as set down by the Department of Health. The process 
collects data from a real time patient survey questionnaire, review of patient 
documentation, observing nursing care and questioning of staff. Each audit is 
unannounced and centrally co-ordinated to ensure that the audit team allocated are 
independent of the directorate. 
 
The wards are allocated a rating which is a bronze award if their scores are 70-80 
percent, silver if 81-90 percent and gold award in 91– 100 percent. No award is 
given if the total score is below 70 percent.  
 
There has been a steady improvement from bronze to silver and gold awards during 
the year. At the end of March 2012 there were nine gold, 33 silver and two bronze 
wards. The Trust is committed that all ward areas will achieve a total audit score of 
greater then 80 percent (silver award). 
 
Our Priorities for Improvement for 2012/13 
 

 Further reducing infection, focusing on reducing urinary infections for 
patients with catheters and wound site infections 

 Ensuring patients are eating and drinking well 
 Involving and informing patients of treatment planned and keeping patients 

informed of anticipated discharge date 
 Increasing observations for most unwell patients. 

 
Progress against national targets  
To follow from Sue Watkinson  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6. PROGRESS ON NEW HOSPITAL  
 
Southmead Hospital redevelopment 
Excellent progress continues to be made on the new hospital at the Southmead site.   
 
The exterior of the building is now largely complete with both the clinical and the 
ward blocks being water tight.  The focus is now on fitting out the inside with all the 
partitions, cables, sockets and equipment. 
 
Pennant stone has been introduced onto the building.  This will wrap around the 
ward blocks.  This material reflects some of the Trust’s historic buildings such as 
Somerset, Westgate and Beaufort House which are also built from pennant stone. In 
conjunction with the Bath stone that is also being used on the building, this is 
helping to create a high quality finish to the exterior.  
 
A topping out ceremony was held in March which proved to be a real success.  
Twenty staff from Frenchay and Southmead had a full tour of the building and were 
able to get a sense of the spaces that they will be working in from 2014. Staff were 
impressed by the high quality of the hospital and the way it has been designed for 
patient care. Further site tours will take place up until hospital opening. 
 
The interior design of the hospital is progressing well.  Colours have been finalised 
for key spaces such as the concourse, reception areas and on walls in bedrooms and 
other spaces.  One side of the concourse will be very dramatic with interesting use of 
coloured glazing panels to create three distinct zones to help people find their way 
around the hospital.  Wood panelling around the stairways will soften the space and 
help to make the acoustics feel comfortable. 
 
The multi-storey car park is proving to be very successful for patients, staff and 
visitors and has helped to relieve the pressure on parking spaces.  A second multi-
storey car park will be built for visitors once the hospital is complete.  This will be 
very convenient as it will be attached to the hospital with access directly into the 
concourse.  
 
The Trust is very pleased with the attention that Carillion pays to sustainability and 
supporting local people and services.  Over 80 percent of the contractor’s labour 
force lives within 30 miles of the site and nearly 70 percent used sustainable modes 
of transport to get to work.  This includes car sharing, cycling and walking so this is 
keeping their carbon footprint down.   By the end of March 2012, 97 percent of 
waste was diverted from landfill which is an excellent achievement. 
 
Carillion is on target to have provided apprenticeship training to 50 people by the 
time the project is complete and in addition they continue to provide placements for 
homeless people as part of the Business Action on Homelessness. In March 2012, 
Carillion won a silver ‘Considerate Constructors’ award. 
 
2012 brings the start of the commissioning process which the Trust is calling ‘Move’.  
This process is about making sure everything is ready so that patients and staff can 
be moved safely into the new hospital.  Staff throughout the Trust will be engaged in 
this work. 
 
 
Frenchay Hospital Update 
Plans for the new Frenchay Health and Social Care Centre are beginning to take 
shape.   
 



The Trust is looking to work with possible third party partners to develop our plans 
for a health and social care centre at the site which will include the Community 
Hospital.  
 
We have had a wide range of organisations express an interest in working with us, 
but before we engage in more detailed discussions with them, South Gloucestershire 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) at the PCT wants to complete a review of the 
models of care for frail older people, patients with long term conditions and patients 
requiring urgent care.  
 
This will be very helpful to inform the discussions with our possible partners about 
the models of care for patients who will use the Frenchay Community Hospital.  The 
CCG should complete its review in July.  
 
Work has also started on what will happen to the land not required by the NHS once 
acute services move to Southmead in 2014.  
 
It has always been the Trust’s intention that we will sell this surplus land - the 
money from which will be ploughed back into the NHS. 
 
In preparation for disposal of the land, we have started to develop a master plan 
which will inform an outline planning application to South Gloucestershire Council for 
future potential different uses across the site in line with the Council’s emerging Core 
Strategy. 
 
We have been working with local people and the Council so they can voice their 
views on the existing site and we’ve begun to draw together initial ideas on what 
they would like us to consider as part of any future redevelopment.  
 
A public exhibition held in March saw more than 300 local people and staff come 
along to give us their views.  
 
Following, this first consultation event, a draft concept statement will be submitted 
to the Council for consideration. A further public exhibition will then be held to show 
how we have responded to the comments raised before an outline planning 
application is submitted later this year. 
 
Cossham Hospital Update 
The redevelopment of Cossham hospital continues which will mean the provision of a 
wide range of services to the local community.  Services will include x-ray, 
ultrasound, MRI, CT, outpatients, audiology and podiatry, a 24-place satellite renal 
dialysis unit and a midwife-led birth centre. The facilities are expected to be open in 
early 2013. 
 
Private patient unit  
We have started to explore the benefits of allowing an independent, private patient 
facility to be built on spare land on the Southmead site and would open in 2014.  
 
The Trust would benefit financially with the private provider paying us ground rent 
for the site and a share of the income generated, with the money invested back into 
the Trust’s NHS services. It could also be an additional source of income for our 
support services such as pathology. The development would bring employment 
opportunities for the Southmead area. 
 
The finer details on the building specification still have to be determined but the 
successful private partner will build, finance, own, manage and staff the new 
separate private facility. 



 
To start the process, we placed an advert in early 2012 in the Official Journal of the 
European Union (OJEU) to invite private providers to take part in the procurement 
process.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7. SUSTAINABILITY  
 
Our Sustainability aim is to reduce the impact of our operational activities on the 
local environments of the estate of North Bristol NHS Trust.  Our overall aim is to 
reduce our carbon footprint and CO2 emissions as well as associated costs.  In 
accordance with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual 
(FReM), North Bristol NHS Trust are including a section within the annual report on 
our sustainability performance during the 2011/12 financial year which shows the 
Trusts progress against the wider NHS Carbon Reduction Programme.  This section 
highlights both our successes and those areas where improvements can be made. 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust is also working with Carillion on the development of a 
significant building project of a large acute multifunctional facility which will replace 
the two existing large acute hospitals. 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust has since late 2008 had in place a programme aimed at 
improving both its environmental and sustainable performance and reduce its 
environmental impact.  This was developed by the Environmental Management Unit 
under the Treading Lightly Campaign (TLC).  The Campaign addresses a different 
subject every quarter and publicises the theme and the environmental (and financial) 
reasons for taking action via newsletters, emails, posters, manned and stand-alone 
displays, themed days (e.g. Energy Day), lunch-time drop in sessions, training, 
competitions, a dedicated website, the Environmental Awareness Representatives 
(EARs) network and annual Treading Lightly Fairs.  It also provides awareness 
training for its 230 plus EARs.  In recognition of the work undertaken, Treading 
Lightly received the NHS Green Champion Award at the Green Apple Awards in 
November 2011. This was the top award given in the NHS category! The campaign 
stood out from other entries for the all encompassing approach and range of 
projects that we have undertaken.  
 
In addition we signed up to the Forum for the Future - West of England Carbon 
Challenge which is an independent non-profit who work globally with business and 
government to inspire new thinking, build creative partnerships and develop practical 
solutions. The aim is to share what we and other members have learned so that 
others can benefit – and act. We aim to work with our local partners in improving 
our sustainable profile. 
 
Future Strategy 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust will continue to address its sustainability performance 
through the development of its Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP).  
The SDMP will be used to drive the Treading Lightly Campaign and requirements of 
the Good Corporate Citizenship. Adapting to climate change is becoming more 
important and poses a challenge to both or service delivery and infrastructure in the 
future.  We need to asses the risk posed by climate change and raise its importance 
throughout the organisation. 
 
 
 
Data sets 
 
There are limitations with the accuracy of the non-financial sustainability data 
provided within this section as we continue to adapt the way in which the data is 
collated.  Due to the timing of this years report, some ERIC data was not available, 
and in some cases financial estimations have been made to provide annual reporting 
data as allowed by the FReM guidance.  All data provided is in line with the annual 



ERIC reporting process.  Any amendments to our data will be made available in next 
year’s annual report and accounts.   
 
Summary GHG Emissions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

This year has seen improvements in both consumption (MWh) and subsequent CO2e 
emissions (Scopes 1,2).  For this year all our reported CO2 emissions are from gas 
and electricity, as currently we are unable to capture travel related emissions.  
Significant gas reductions were recorded at our Southmead site, due in part to 
improved monitoring and measuring, steam trap surveys and infrastructure changes 
due to building changes on site in preparation for the new hospital. 

 
The Trust continues to work to the NHS 10% target reduction from 2007/08 baseline 
figure for total carbon emissions (composing energy, travel and procurement).   We 
are looking to improve reporting against all areas for the 2012/13 report.  As part of 
this the Trust has signed up to the NHS Goods & Services Carbon Footprint Project in 
association with Shared Business Services.  The aim of the project is to help inform 
decision making, revealing where carbon hot spots are and which suppliers and 
types of goods and services purchased contribute to the Trusts total carbon 
footprint.  We hope to be able to report back on this in next years report.  

 

Waste 
We are unable to report 2011/12 waste figures as the figures are not currently 
available. As a Trust, over the 2010/11 period we generated 2392 tonnes of waste 
and of this recycled 1343 tonnes, which is a 56% recycling rate of all waste 
generated.  Over the year we have worked hard to improve the segregation of 
waste into its appropriate European Waste Catalogue and Hazardous codes in order 
to improve the Trust’s recycling percentage.  A particular area for focus is to 
improve cardboard recycling as internal audits have highlighted that this is still an 
area for improvement.  The Trust will continue to introduce appropriate segregation 
and recycling schemes and will work with clinical groups advising on disposal 
methods when new products are introduced. 

 

During 2011/12 due to the transition to the new hospital we have generated more 
landfill waste due to areas de-cluttering and moving out, this trend will continue up 
until the opening of the new hospital. We have introduced better segregation on 
clinical areas diverting more waste to landfill and recycling streams and will continue 
to do so on an ongoing basis. 

 

In addition, at Frenchay Hospital, the Trust has invested in a Waste Food Digester, 
which through bi-actions reduces the volume of solid food waste from the site.  
Results from its operations will be closely monitored over the coming year. 
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Water 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We have made significant improvements over the last year in water management, 
and have been working closely with Bristol Water to achieve this.  Due to online 
access of metering data, we have been able to identify consumption trends, and as 
such this has helped to identify sudden increases in consumption, which then has 
allowed the Estates Department to engage with specialists to rectify problems 
encountered.  We have also carried out ‘night checks’ to help identify water wastage 
when the water usage for our buildings should be reduced. 
 
As part of Bristol Waters pipe upgrade works we have reviewed our internal systems 
and again carry out system upgrades where required. 
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8. MAKING NBT A GREAT PLACE TO WORK  
 
Ensuring equality and diversity for our staff 
During the year, we have been working to implement the NHS’ Equality Delivery System 
(EDS). This will enable the Trust to meet the requirements of the public sector equality 
duty, introduced in the Equality Act 2010. 
 
Equality and diversity is at the heart of everything we do and defines who we are so 
we can continue to provide patient services which are non-discriminatory - treating 
everyone consistently with dignity and respect. 
 
Our Trust Equality and Diversity Committee and the Staff Equality Group routinely 
meet to discuss issues and review progress against the EDS and Equality objectives. 
 
A new and exciting initiative, the BME (Black Minority Ethnic) Mentoring project, was 
launched in October 2011, where BME staff, in posts up to Band 7, were invited to take 
part while all other members of staff, in Bands higher than 7, were asked to be their 
mentors.  
 
Last year’s Staff Attitude Survey showed that disabled staff felt they were not being 
treated appropriately. More was done to advertise the work being undertaken for them 
and a ‘Positive about Disabled People’ statement was devised. Also a charter of ten 
standards was adopted for lesbian gay, bisexual and trans (LGBT) people.   
 
We celebrated history months for race, disability and LGBT people.   
 
Spiritual and Pastoral Care undertake initiatives to meet the needs of all faith groups 
and to ensure that appropriate end of life information is available to staff.  The team 
were commended on the support they give regarding infant deaths by a member of 
the South Gloucestershire LINKS group in November 2011.  
 
The Trust Board appointed two Equality Champions and signed up to the Equality Delivery 
System.  All submitted Board papers must consider equality matters. The Chief Executive, 
directors and other senior managers have been involved in a range of equality events.   

 
Listening to our staff 
The Staff Engagement Group has sponsored work to establish the Trust’s values.  
Whilst values are incorporated within the NHS Constitution, and restated within the 
Foundation Trust application, this additional work will be directed at involving staff 
throughout the organisation in translating these into meaningful statements and 
behaviours, which they will own.   

 
The results of the 2011 Staff Attitude Survey whilst disappointing in overall terms, 
gave the Trust encouragement that it was moving in the right direction, as 23 out of 
38 scores showed an improvement.  There will be no let up in the motivation to 
improve engagement with our staff, which will also help us fulfil the NHS 
Constitution pledges. 
  
Our top four ranking scores were: 
 

 Percentage of staff feeling valued by their work colleagues 
 Percentage of staff appraised in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff believing the trust provides equal opportunities for career 

progression or promotion 
 Percentage of staff appraised with personal development plans in last 12 

months. 



 
Our bottom four ranking scores: 
 

 Percentage of staff having equality and diversity training in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff suffering work-related injury in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff suffering work-related stress in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff working extra hours. 
 

We are committed to making meaningful and sustainable improvements in the Trust, 
by understanding the results, sharing these openly with staff and involving and 
including staff in developing a way forward at Directorate level.  
 
Protecting our staff 
We continue to work hard in partnership with Staffside to develop and update new 
key policies, which clearly sets out management and staff responsibilities, including: 
 

 Whistle blowing policy 
 Organisational change 
 Employment breaks 
 Disciplinary process 

 
We are committed to providing high quality care to patients within a safe 
environment and believe these policies give a framework for all staff which protects 
both them and the organisation.  
 
We meet regularly with Staffside, for consultation, negotiation, and to involve our 
Trade Union colleagues early in issues relating to potential organisational change 
 
Trust staffing numbers increased in April, following the transfer of 650 South 
Gloucestershire Community Health Services staff.  In addition, during the year we 
transferred staff from a South Bristol Renal Unit to the Trust.   
 
Delivering leadership skills to the Trust 
A ground breaking development programme (LEAD) introduced a new set of 
leadership skills to develop clinical and non-clinical leaders to shape the strategic 
initiative of the Trust by: 
 

 Identifying personal awareness, self awareness and development gaps 
 Embedding a ‘culture of coaching’ to support others through change and 

personal challenges 
 Developing the ‘right mind sets’ and adding essential skills in behavioural 

leadership, personal qualities, strategic thinking and leading others  
 
The Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) accredited coaching programme 
is now being offered through the Trust which provides first line managers with the 
opportunity to achieve the ‘Institute of Leadership and Management Level 3 Award 
in Workplace Coaching’ and to perform effectively.  In December, an awards 
ceremony for over 100 successful participants who achieved ILM qualifications during 
2011 in team leading, first line management and Certificate in Management was 
held. 
 
We were commissioned with the University of the West of England’s Bristol Business 
School by the Strategic Health Authority Leadership Development team to recruit a 
second cohort of aspiring top leaders which started in September 2011.  A year long 
programme which is offered through two centres in the South West – Bristol and 
Exeter, is aimed at aspiring directors with sponsorship of their executive team who 
will be expected to deliver a service improvement project during their programme.   



 
Delivering improved streamlined workforce procedures to the Trust 
In the past year the Trust invested in a new industry-leading electronic recruitment 
system to improve the experience for applicants, recruiting managers and the central 
recruitment team.  This has seen an improvement in the quality of our applicants 
and a reduction in the time to hire of over four days.  In addition we have invested 
in an electronic Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) system which has seen the average 
processing time reduced from four to six weeks to three to four days -getting new 
staff into post quicker.  

During the year the central recruitment team using our new systems have supported 
over 17,000 applicants, 3,500 interviews and 1,000 appointed new staff. 

In the past year NBT eXtra (the Trust's service providing temporary workers) has 
filled a record number of shifts.  More than 92,000 nursing shifts have been filled by 
in the past 12 months representing an increase of over 30 percent on the previous 
year.  

A significant amount of work has been undertaken over the past year to improve the 
monitoring of junior doctors’ working hours.  This work has been undertaken in 
conjunction with Medical Staffing, the junior doctor and consultant body and the 
British Medical Association (BMA).  The Strategic Health Authority (SHA) formally 
thanked the Trust for its significant work in this area. 

Developing Our Staff 
NBT is committed to developing our staff, and providing learning opportunities to 
support development across all levels of staff. 

We have a Learning & Development Agreement and the Chief Executive has received 
a letter from the Strategic Health Authority and the Deanery commending the Trust 
on the evidence of a strong commitment to education in the organisation. 

94 percent of staff had an appraisal and development review during 2011, 
maintaining the high standards of previous years 

We are committed to providing significant e-learning opportunities, and 78 modules 
are now available covering mandatory, statutory and patient safety training. 
Individuals have the option of doing e-learning on alternate update ‘anniversaries’. A 
new e-learning module on falls prevention developed by NBT experts and clinicians in 
partnership with UWE has been successfully integrated and is now available for all 
clinical staff. 
 
The Trust is a partner in the South West Apprenticeship Consortium and recently 
hosted the South West Health Apprenticeship Awards, as recognition of our 
achievement in 2011 when we won the South West Macro Employer of the Year 
award. The Trust employs over 100 apprentices in a variety of roles from healthcare 
support work to business administration. The Trust’s aim is to expand this into a 
number of other areas such as IT.  
 
The BNSSGB (Bristol, North Somerset, South Gloucestershire and Bristol) Mandatory 
& Statutory Training Group, led by NBT, has agreed across the organisations the 
requirements for mandatory and statutory training in a protocol and framework. This 
gives a structure where the training delivery in other organisations can be recognised 
to ensure transferability. It is expected to extend the topics covered, and formalise 
the current transfer of clinical skills experience under a similar agreement.  The work 
will contribute to the development of a national skills passport as NBT is represented 
on the National Stakeholder group with Skills for Health.  



All staff can sign up now and take advantage of learning content available to 
everyone on the Learning4Health e-learning platform.  Learning content is being 
increased to 1,401 ‘learning objects’, by March 2012.  NBT is piloting the platform 
while it is in development stages, and focussing on the dementia programme.   

 

The Trust has had a successful external inspection for the Key Skills programme, 
(literacy and numeracy) offered to staff on Bands 1-4.  The external verifier was 
impressed with the robust recruitment assessment process, individual learner support, 
classroom sessions, the final successful submission of portfolios and examinations and 
we will get certification for all completed learners from now on.  Importantly, the 
learners’ feedback was also good.  Key skills (literacy, numeracy and ICT), remain 
challenging for candidates but are an essential component for the apprenticeships 
programme. Recruitment process for staff includes assessment of literacy and 
numeracy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9. WORLD LEADING RESEARCH  
 
NBT has a significant and growing research portfolio with more than 500 researchers 
delivering more than 500 research studies each year including 60 commercial trials.   
 
Established research strengths in neurosciences, diabetes, respiratory medicine, 
urology, musculoskeletal and infection and immunology continue to be supported 
alongside emerging strengths in anaesthetics, obstetrics and gynaecology and plastic 
surgery research.  
 
We continue to deliver our three existing highly prestigious National Institute for 
Health Research programme grants, each worth nearly £2million.alongside nine 
other National Institute for Health research grants, worth an additional £1million.  
 
During 2011/12 NBT has reviewed and updated its research strategy. The following 
aims outline our priorities for the next five years: 
 

 Aim 1: Be world-leading - Actively participate in the establishment of Bristol 
Health Partners, in which world-class clinical services, research and 
innovation and teaching are strategically and operationally integrated across 
the city 

 
 Aim 2: Deliver high quality research of direct patient benefit - Support our 

staff to deliver high quality translational and applied health services research 
of direct patient benefit 

 
 Aim 3: Embed a research culture in clinical service delivery - Develop a 

culture across NBT in which research and innovation are embedded in and 
aligned with routine clinical services, leading to significant health gains and 
efficiency improvements in health services delivery 

 
 Aim 4: Increase research income - Increase the income from research and 

innovation and use that income in support of our strategic aims. 
 
Collaborating across the city 
In 2012 a formal collaboration, Bristol Health Partners, has been established 
between the four NHS Trusts serving the Bristol area (Avon and Wiltshire Mental 
Health Partnership NHS Trust, NHS Bristol, North Bristol NHS Trust and University 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust), the two Universities in Bristol (University of Bristol 
and the University of the West of England) and Bristol City Council. This unified and 
focused approach will deliver healthier lives, earlier prevention of illness/disease, and 
better integration of healthcare across Bristol. Bristol Health Partners has a tripartite 
mission to integrate clinical service delivery, research and innovation, education and 
training across the organisations.  
 
Building a strong research infrastructure 
The detailed planning for the second phase of the Learning & Research building has 
commenced and will complete the plan to bring the majority of research and learning 
facilities onto the Southmead site.  Combined with the integrated research space in 
the new hospital and plans to establish a dedicated clinical research facility at 
Southmead, this is providing an excellent opportunity for clinicians and academics to 
work even closer together to advance clinical research supporting NBT’s aim of 
enhancing our reputation as one of the UK’s leading NHS organisations in research 
and innovation. Planning permission for the extension was granted in April and work 
will start in the autumn. It is expected to be ready in time for the opening of the new 
hospital in 2014. 
 



NBT has worked hard to sustain and grow a strong research infrastructure of 
professionals including over 120 research nurses, midwives and allied health 
professionals, to work on developing new and delivering existing research studies.  
Through the efforts of this research workforce nearly 5,000 patients have been able 
to participate in nationally recognised clinical research studies at NBT during 
2011/12, along with many more involved in more local research. 
 
Investing in developing new research to benefit patients 
NBT has been successful in attracting funding from the National Institute for Health 
Research (NIHR) to enable the identification and support of new researchers and 
research areas.  This funding has allowed researchers within NBT to dedicate time to 
develop new research ideas which will have a significant impact on the health and 
well-being of patients. This investment is now yielding benefits with four new NBT-
led grants having been won through NIHR competitive calls during 2011/12. 
 
Innovating together for patient benefit 
Innovation continues to thrive at NBT and a new strategy is in development to build 
on and connect existing activity to innovate at appropriate scale and pace across the 
organisation. Staff within NBT are encouraged to think creatively to address 
problems that arise within their every day working lives and in particular as we plan 
the new hospital.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10. FUNDRAISING  
 
A time to shine 
Support from hundreds of people and businesses have made it another successful 
year for Shine Together, the charity based at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals.  
 
Over £1.1 million has been raised by the charity in the past twelve months, along 
with further donations of £1 million in gifts left in wills for a number of departments 
across the hospitals.  
 
This year saw the launch of our Christmas Cracker fund with £100,000 of donations 
being distributed to help patients and wards in the greatest need. We were also 
delighted to see hundreds of runners attend our 6th annual fun run in aid of our 
Prostate Cancer fund at Southmead Hospital. 
 
Mum’s the Word and A Thousand Smiles  
Over 100 mums, dads and children stepped out for a four mile sponsored walk called 
‘From Here to Maternity’ in August in support of Southmead Hospital Maternity Unit. 
The funds raised will go to the Mum’s the Word appeal helping redevelop the unit. 
 
An appeal was launched for 1,000 photos to be donated to the charity to make up a 
mosaic picture which will be displayed in the maternity unit at Southmead Hospital. 
 
The project called A Thousand Smiles has received support from hundreds of Mums 
and Dads who have had babies at the hospital. It also has the backing of Writer, 
actor and co-creator of ‘The Office’, Stephen Merchant who was born at the Hospital 
in the 1970s. 
 
Stephen has sent in a picture of himself aged just five months old and said, “This is 
a great way to celebrate being part of the history of Southmead Hospital, and to 
raise awareness of the fantastic work of the maternity unit.” 
 
Christmas Cracker 
£100,000 has been given to 34 hospital departments and community services at 
North Bristol NHS Trust in a charitable Christmas advent countdown. Up to £5,000 
was given each day in December to allow wards to buy equipment to help improve 
care and support for patients. 
 
Runners donate £35,000 for prostate cancer fund 
Over 600 runners braved windy and rainy conditions in September to raise money 
for the Bristol Urological Institute at Southmead Hospital. Each of the participants in 
the Run for the Future event helped boost donations to the fund which care for men 
with prostate cancer. 
 
John Lewis raises £12,000  
The Shine together charity at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals is celebrating a 
milestone thanks to the support of staff at John Lewis Cribbs Causeway. Over the 
past four years the company has supported a number of charity initiatives at the 
hospitals and the level of its support has now passed £12,000. Liz Mihell, managing 
director, John Lewis Cribbs Causeway said “Working closely with ‘Shine together’ 
over the past four years has given us a real opportunity to make a difference to 
people in the surrounding area. We hope this partnership can continue to grow and 
succeed as it has so far.” 
 
Donor milk bank launches  
The South West’s first human milk bank has been officially opened at Southmead 
Hospital thanks to over £70,000 of donations to the Precious Drops appeal. The 



money has been used to create the milk bank at Southmead’s maternity unit which 
will supply donor breast milk to premature babies in the hospital’s neonatal intensive 
care unit. A range of fundraising events were held to raise the funds including a 
charity zip wire, dragon boat event, ice skating and a team which competed in the 
Bristol 10k. 
 
Bristol to Italy cycle challenge  
A Bristol man, who broke his back in two places, lead a team of intrepid cyclists from 
Bristol to Italy in a one thousand mile charity cycle ride for Shine Together. Dave 
Hart got back in the saddle after a long rehabilitation and raised thousands of 
pounds for our hospital charity, in the cycle challenge across Western Europe. 
  
Looking to the future 
We are so delighted to be supported by so many groups, organisations and 
individuals across Bristol and beyond. 
 
Our plans for the coming months include: 
 

 Ride Back in Time, a vintage cycle event from Bath to Bristol raising funds for 
Shine Together 

 
 Run for the Future, Bristol’s biggest family fun run on the Downs in aid of 

Prostate Cancer Care and Research at Southmead Hospital 
 

 A new Christmas fund for 2012 in support of staff and patients, with the aim 
of giving to areas of the hospitals where the need is greatest 

 
 A charity abseil which will support wards and departments across the 

hospitals 
 

 Sailing on the Matthew, the replica of John Cabot’s famous ship, in aid of the 
Mum’s the Word appeal. 

 
Thank you to everyone who has supported Shine Together and all of our appeals 
and funds. Your support has changed the lives of many of our patients and their 
families, and has enhanced the care and support our staff are able to give every day. 



 
11. PATIENT ACTIVITY 
 

2011/12 

Spells Elect 
Non 
Elect Day 

General Surgery 2221 4571 5501 

Urology 1665 739 6020 

Trauma & Orthopaedics 4509 1955 2841 

ENT 604 381 1005 

Oral Surgery 199 86 1058 

Neurosurgery 1554 1945 479 

Plastic Surgery 1407 2218 5986 

Accident & Emergency 3 4260 0 

Pain Management 10 14 1285 

General Medicine 486 9652 4778 

Clinical Haematology 131 33 4651 
Clinical Immunology And 
Allergy 4 4 614 

Cardiology 264 2141 661 

Infectious Diseases 39 760 2 

Nephrology 449 1128 1701 

Medical Oncology 0 0 1 

Neurology 430 719 647 

Rheumatology 170 10 646 

Paediatrics 24 59 41 

Paediatric Neurology 57 35 160 

Neonatology 78 3561 0 

Well Babies 5 2999 0 

Geriatric Medicine 38 3304 4 

Obstetrics 6 8799 1 

Gynaecology 1050 1001 2869 

Midwife Episode 4 6201 0 

Neuropsychiatry 184 32 0 

Child & Adolescent psych 15 26 0 

15606 56633 40951 

2010/11 17181 56284 42384 

2011/12 

Outpatient Activity New  Fup Total 

General Surgery 12006 15869 27875 

Urology 4963 11943 16906 

Trauma & Orthopaedics 15592 39446 55038 

ENT 5871 7289 13160 

Ophthalmology 67 523 590 

Oral Surgery 3265 4237 7502 

Paediatric Dentistry 22 1153 1175 

Orthodontics 301 2071 2372 

Neurosurgery 3431 5867 9298 

Plastic Surgery 12288 24141 36429 

Cardiothoracic Surgery 3 276 279 

Paediatric Surgery 249 73 322 

Anaesthetics 3665 11131 14796 

General Medicine 6528 18079 24607 

Clinical Haematology 637 6565 7202 



Clinical Immunology And 
Allergy 906 1349 2255 

Cardiology 5391 7087 12478 

Dermatology 3885 5486 9371 

Infectious Diseases 295 3664 3959 

Nephrology 1398 21964 23362 

Medical Oncology 631 1548 2179 

Neurology 5387 8865 14252 

Clinical Neuro-Physiology 2029 402 2431 

Rheumatology 1374 6636 8010 

Paediatrics 789 1678 2467 

Paediatric Neurology 59 264 323 

Neonatology 6 732 738 

Geriatric Medicine 1200 1992 3192 

Obstetrics 3992 6164 10156 

Gynaecology 13170 10782 23952 

Midwife Episode 4833 13397 18230 

Neuropsychiatry 593 1681 2274 

Child & Adolescent psych 22 1282 1304 

Clinical Oncology 57 218 275 

Chemical Pathology 0 15 15 

114905 243869 358774 

2010/11 108259 263809 372068 

2011/12 

A&E New  
Follow 

Up Total 

Frenchay 66522 700 67222 

Southmead 17704 229 17933 

Yate 10619 203 10822 

94845 1132 95977 

2010/11 83853 378 84231 

Maternity Deliveries 2011/12 

Hospital  6055 

Home 161 

Other 89 

Total 6305 

2010/11 5943 

 



FINANCIAL REVIEW AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial information set out below is a summary of the full accounts for 2011-12. 
Full accounts are available on request from: Director of Finance, North Bristol NHS 
Trust, Frenchay Hospital, Beckspool Road, Bristol, BS16 1LE.  
 
Financial Performance 
 
The Trust has three key financial duties: 
 

 To break-even on income and expenditure taking one year with another. 
 Not to overspend its capital resource limit (a limit on capital expenditure set to 

an agreed plan with the Department of Health). 
 To achieve its external financing limit (a cash limit set by the Department of 

Health). 
 
The table below sets out the performance of the Trust against these targets in 2011-
12 and in the previous four years of North Bristol NHS Trust. 
 
 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011-12
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Break-even in-year position 4,008 9,218 6,177 7,888 9,002
Break-even cumulative 
position 

(40,791) (31,573) (25,396) (17,508) (8,506)

  
External Financing Limit Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved
Capital Resource Limit Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved Achieved
 
Commentary on the year and forward look to 2012/13 
 
There is a deficit on the income and expenditure account of £72.571m, which 
includes the effect of impairments of £79.362m, costs related to the loss of the 
donated asset reserve of £1.494m and costs related to IFRIC 12 of £0.717m. These 
adjustments are disregarded for the break even duty so the Trust has achieved a 
surplus of £9.002m for breakeven purposes. This is marginally over the planned 
surplus of £8.980m. 
 
The table below sets out a breakdown of actual performance compared to plan. 
 Plan Actual Variance
 £000 £000 £000
Income 516,154 519,105 2,951 
Pay (329,623) (331,574) (1,951)
Non-Pay (145,776) (150,345) (4,569)
Variance to planned savings*   (910) 0 910
Capacity reductions not achieved 4,035 0 (4,035)
Efficiency Savings in excess of plan* (4,000) 0 4,000
Other (inc dep’n) (30,900) (28,184) 2,716
  
Surplus (before impairments, donated asset reserve 
impact and IFRIC 12) 

8,980 9,002 22

* Capacity reductions and efficiency savings are deducted from budget for income, pay and 
non-pay once achieved. This means that only variance from plan remains against these 
categories. 
 
Due to the continuing problems with reporting PCT income fully to commissioners 
since the Cerner implementation, as previously reported, year end outturn positions 
have been agreed with the main commissioners.  This is based on forecasts 
assessed from the months 1 to 8 data (the last complete snapshot pre-Cerner).  The 
main commissioners account for 92% of total PCT income. 

 



Non-PCT income was favourable to forecast. 
 
Pay expenditure was higher than forecast with high bank and agency usage in the 
month.  Neurosciences and Medicine make up £0.6m of the in-month overspend on 
pay of £0.8m, with very high specialling costs reported in Neurosciences and 
Medicine being a continuation of the trend of recent months. 
 
Rephrase above and comment on savings achieved. 
 
During 2011-12 the trust has undertaken an impairment review of the Frenchay 
hospital site. This was triggered by the substantial progress that has been achieved 
in the construction of the new PFI funded hospital at Southmead, which will be used 
to provide all services previously provided from Frenchay, when it opens in 2014. 
Given the reduced operational life of the asset, this review has led to a reduction in 
the value of the site in the trust’s statement of financial position by £73.5m in the 
current year.  
 
The remaining impairments arose following the district valuer’s review of property 
valuations, and on various assets being revalued as they came into use. 
 
During the year the trust has been successful in renegotiating the payment schedule 
of the historic deficit loan, such that payments expected in the current year fell from 
£9.5m to £5.5m, and future repayments will be £1.4m per annum. This assisted the 
trust in improving its liquidity from 3.3 days at March 2011 to 21.1 days at March 
2012. 
 
The Trust has prepared a detailed 2012/13 budget plan which was presented to 
Trust Board during March 2012. This plan includes a surplus of £9.0m to support 
debt repayment of the same amount. In order to achieve this surplus we have a 
savings requirement of £25m which has been reflected in directorate targets. 
 
The Trust has progressed well with its application for foundation trust status and is 
on course to achieve its expected authorisation date of 1st December 2012. 

 
Public Sector Payment policy – Better Payments Practice Code 
 
In accordance with the Better Payment Practice Code and government accounting 
rules, the Trust’s payment policy is to pay creditors within 30 days of the receipt of 
the goods or a valid invoice (whichever is the latter) unless other payment terms 
have been agreed. 
 
The Trust paid 93% of the invoices within 30 days compared with 87% in the previous 
year.  
 
Revised accounting policies 
 
Following the direction of the Treasury, reserves for donated and Government 
granted reserves are no longer maintained. Donated or Government granted 
non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a 
matching credit to income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired in the 
same way as purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluation, 
impairments and sales are also treated as with purchased assets. Deferred 
Income is recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude 
immediate recognition of the gain. 
 
Costs associated with donated or government granted assets that had 
previously been covered by a release from the relevant reserve, are now 



shown in full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, but are excluded 
from the trust’s breakeven performance. 
 
Other Financial Matters 
 
During the year Stephen Hughes (a Non-Executive Director) was a partner with 
Bevan Brittan. Professor Avril Waterman-Pearson, a Non-Executive Director, was 
Pro Vice Chancellor for Education plus the faculties of Science and Engineering at 
the University of Bristol, although she relinquished this post at the end of the 2010-11 
academic year. Andrew Nield (a Non-Executive Director) is Director of Finance for 
the University of Bristol. 
 
The Trust’s auditors are the Audit Commission. During the financial year they were 
paid £191,000 for statutory audit services. 
 
Definition of key technical items  
 
Statement of Financial Position – previously known as the balance sheet 
 
Statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity – This was previously part of the 
reserves note contained in the accounts. 
 
Revenue – previously known as income 
 
Payables and receivables – previously known as creditors and debtors. 
 
Inventories – previously known as stocks. 
 
Non-current assets – previously known as fixed assets 
 
Impairment: the reduction in the value of an asset from the value recorded in the 
accounts.  This is usually because the asset in question will be sold or where the 
valuation methodology used by the NHS is out of step with property values in the 
wider economy.   Impairments do not count against the statutory breakeven target. 
 
Public Dividend Capital: Cash given to NHS bodies by the Department of Health 
(DH) to support major capital projects.  The trust has received PDC in relation to 
several of its capital schemes in recent years, including the new Pathology Services 
& Learning and Research Centres, but the new PFI scheme will not attract any PDC 
funding. 
 
Unlike a loan PDC has no fixed repayment but does attract a dividend payment to 
the DH of 3.5%.    
 
 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 

   Restated

 2011/12  2010/11

 £000  £000

Revenue   

Revenue from patient care activities 442,828  421,726

Other operating income 76,602  73,709

Operating expenses (502,810)  (477,945)

Operating (deficit)/surplus 16,620  17,490

Finance costs   



Investment revenue 48  25

Other gains 99  152

Finance costs (1,338)  (1,813)

(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year 15,429   15,854

Public Dividend capital dividends payable (6,427)  (7,966)

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year excluding impairments 9,002  7,888

IFRIC 12 adjustment (717)  30

Impairments during the year (79,362)  (6,525)

Adjustments in respect of donated asset reserve elimination (1,494)  2,124

Retained (deficit)/surplus for the year after impairments (72,571)  3,517
 



 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 

31 MARCH 2012 

   

31 March 
2012 

 
31 March 

2011

Non-current assets   £000  £000

Property, plant and equipment  216,191  302,967

Intangible assets  1,463  1,927

Total non-current assets  217,654  304,894

Current assets    

Inventories  7,512  7,655

Trade and other receivables  21,549  19,383

Cash and cash equivalents  28,300  4,482

  57,361  31,520

Non-current assets held for sale  0  425

Total current assets  57,361  31,945

Total assets  275,015  336,839

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables  (53,178)  (42,964)

Other liabilities  (2,312)  (2,894)

DH Working capital loan  (900)  (8,980)

DH Capital Loan  (520)  (520)

Borrowings  0  0

Provisions  (4,033)  (1,205)

Net current liabilities  (3,582)  (24,348)

Total assets less current liabilities  214,072  280,546

Non-current liabilities    

Borrowings  (8,947)  (8,420)

DH working capital loan  (12,590)  (9,450)

DH capital loan  (11,180)  (11,700)

Trade and other payables  (2,106)  (2,396)

Provisions  (1,831)  (1,744)

Total assets employed  177,418  246,836

    

Financed by Taxpayers equity    

Public dividend capital  211,744  209,644

Retained earnings  (117,507)  (47,107)

Revaluation reserve  83,181  84,299

Total taxpayers equity   177,418  246,836
 



Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Public 
Dividend 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836
Opening balance adjustments 0 0 0
Adjustments for Transforming Community Services transactions 0 0 0
Restated balance at 1 April 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12
Retained deficit for the year (72,571) (72,571)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 1,058 1,058
Impairments and reversals (5) (5)
Movements in other reserves 0
Transfers between reserves 2,171 (2,171) 0
New PDC Received 2,100 2,100
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 2,100 (70,400) (1,118) (69,418)
Balance at 31 March 2012 211,744 (117,507) 83,181 177,418

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2010-11
Balance at 1 April 2010 209,543 (52,855) 83,453 240,141
Retained surplus for the year 3,517 3,517
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 7,249 7,249
Impairments and reversals (4,172) (4,172)
Transfers between reserves 2,231 (2,231) 0
New PDC Received 8,101 8,101
PDC Repaid In Year (8,000) (8,000)
Net recognised revenue for the year 101 5,748 846 6,695
Balance at 31 March 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836



 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2012 
  2010-11  2009-10
  £000  £000
Cash flows from operating activities    
Operating surplus/(deficit)  (64,419)   13,119 
Depreciation and amortisation  22,434   21,619 
Impairments and reversals  79,545   6,953 
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but 
non-cash  (325)  (3,678)
Interest paid  (1,305)  (1,757)
Dividends paid  (6,517)  (7,966)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  143   1,810
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables  (2,166)   874
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables  7,305  (3,445) 
Increase in other current liabilities  (582)   1,060 
Provisions utilised  (675)  (200)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions  3,538   412
Net cash inflow from operating activities  28,515   28,515 
    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Interest received  48   25 
Payments for property, plant and equipment  (10,598)  (20,045)
Proceeds from disposal of plant, property and 
equipment  (97)   (594) 
Payments for intangible assets  524  360 
Net cash outflow from investing activities  (10,123)  (20,254)
    
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing  26,853   8,261
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
Public dividend capital received  2,100   8,101 
Public dividend capital repaid   0  (8,000) 
Loans repaid to the DH – Capital Investment Loans   (520)   (520) 
Loans repaid to the DH – Working Capital Loans  (4,940)  (8,420)
Other capital receipts  325   3,678 
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing  (3,035)  (5,161) 
     
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  23,818   3,100 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the financial year  4,482   1,382 

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of 
cash held in foreign currencies  0   0 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year  28,300   4,482 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



Salary and Pensions entitlements of senior managers 2011/12 
 

 
Remuneration

Name and Title 2011-12 2010-11
Salary Other 

remuner
ation

Bonus 
Payments

Benefits 
in Kind

Salary Other 
remuner

ation

Bonus 
Payments

Benefits 
in Kind

(bands 
of 

£5000)

(Bands 
of 

£5000)

(Bands of 
£5000)

(bands 
of 

£5000)

(Bands 
of 

£5000)

(bands of 
£5000)

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Rilett - Chairman 20-25 - - 20-25 - -
Stephen Hughes - Non executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 - -
Nick Patel - Non executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 - -
Avril Waterman-Pearson - Non executive 
Director

5-10 - - 5-10 - -

Andrew S Nield - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 - -
Ken Guy - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 - -
Robert Mould - Non Executive Director 5-10 - - 5-10 - -

Executive Directors

Ruth Brunt – Chief Executive 155-160 - - 160-165 - -
Marie Noelle Orzel - Director of Nursing 110-115 110-115
Chris Burton - Medical Director 145-150 145-150
Steve Webster - Director of Finance 140-145 - - 140-145 - -

Corporate Directors

Sue Watkinson - Director of Operations 95-100 - - 95-100 - -
Martin Bell - Director of Assurance and 
IM&T

100-105 - - 100-105 - -

Harry Hayer - Director of HR 120-125 - - 110-115 - -
Simon Wood - Director of Facilities 95-100 - - 95-100 - -
David Powell - Director of Projects 120-125 - - 110-115 - -

Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100

Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100

 
 
  
Membership of the Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee   
 
The remuneration committee policy is to comply with national guidance 
wherever practicable and to use benchmarking to set levels of executive pay. 
It exists to determine the pay and remuneration of the Chief Executive, 
Executive Directors and other Senior Managers of the Trust. The Membership 
of the Committee during 2011-12 was: 
 
Chairman    Peter Rilett 
Non Executive Director  Nick Patel  
Non Executive Director  Stephen Hughes 
Non Executive Director  Avril Waterman-Pearson 
Non Executive Director  Andrew Nield 
Non Executive Director  Robert Mould 
Non Executive Director  Ken Guy  
 
All contracts for directors are permanent contracts, with a period of six months notice 
on either side. Termination payments would be in accordance with normal rules on 
notice and redundancy payments, with no special provisions. 
 



Pension Benefits 
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(bands of 
£2500)
£000

(bands of 
£2500)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000 £000 £000 £000

To nearest 
£100

Executive Directors

Ruth Brunt - Chief Executive 0-2.5 0-2.5 60-65 185-190 1,361 1,259 62 22,100
Marie Noelle Orzel - Director of Nursing 0-2.5 0-2.5 35-40 105-110 671 588 65 15,800
Chris Burton - Medical Director 2.5-5 10-12.5 35-40 110-115 668 516 137 18,800
Steve Webster - Director of Finance & 
Information 0-2.5 5-7.5 50-55 150-155 904 799 80 19,600

Corporate Directors

Sue Watkinson - Director of Operations 0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 95-100 534 446 74 13,300
Martin Bell - Director of IM&T 0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 35-40 201 155 41 14,300
Harry Hayer - Director of HR 0-2.5 2.5-5 5-10 20-25 117 87 28 11,600
Simon Wood - Director of Facilities 0-2.5 0-2.5 35-40 110-115 706 625 62 13,400
David Powell - Director of Projects 0-2.5 5-7.5 40-45 130-135 820 685 114 16,800

Name and title

 
 
Past and present employees of the Trust are covered by the NHS Pension 
Scheme, details of this scheme are provided at note 10 within the full 
accounts.  
 
The remuneration and pension benefits tables above have been audited.



STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE 
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER OF THE TRUST 
 
The Chief Executive of the NHS has designated that the Chief Executive should be 
the Accountable Officer to the trust.  The relevant responsibilities of Accountable 
Officers are set out in the Accountable Officers Memorandum issued by the 
Department of Health. These include ensuring that:  
 
- there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and 
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance;  
 
- value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;  
 
- the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended 
by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;  
 
- effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and  
 
- annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of 
State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, recognised 
gains and losses and cash flows for the year. 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the 
responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer. 
 
 
 
 
Signed.........................................................................Chief Executive  
 
 
Date.......................... 



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
ACCOUNTS 
 
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare 
accounts for each financial year.  The Secretary of State, with the approval of the 
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash 
flows for the year.  In preparing those accounts, directors are required to: 
 
- apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State 
with the approval of the Treasury; 
 
- make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; 
 
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts. 
 
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable 
them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above 
mentioned direction of the Secretary of State.  They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied 
with the above requirements in preparing the accounts. 
 
 
By order of the Board 
 
.............................................................Chief Executive 
 
..............................Date 
 
 
............................................................Finance Director 
 
..............................Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Name of organisation:  North Bristol NHS Trust 
 
Organisation Code: RVJ 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
1. Scope of responsibility 

 
As Chief Executive and Accountable Officer of the Trust my responsibilities are set 
out in the Accountable Officers’ Memorandum issued by the Department of Health. 
These include ensuring that; 
 

 There are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds 
and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance. 

 Value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust. 

 The expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes 
intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 Effective and sound financial management systems are in place. 

 Annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary 
of State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and 
expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. 

 
In addition I have responsibility for; 
 

 Maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the 
achievement of the Trust’s policies, aims and objectives. 

 Ensuring the services provided by the Trust are of exemplary quality and 
safety, giving patients the best possible experience. 

2. Governance framework of the organisation  

 
Corporate Governance 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control. As a large and complex organisation a supporting infrastructure is 
required to fulfil these responsibilities effectively.  Authority is delegated by the Board 
to various board committees, as outlined within the Trust’s Standing Orders. The 
Committee structure of the Trust is shown below: 
 



 

 

The key committees in terms of supporting the system of internal control are; 
 

Committee  Functions 
Trust Board 
 

The  Trust  Board maintains  overall  accountability  for  the  effectiveness  of  internal  control.  It 
primarily discharges this responsibility through the receipt and review of; 
 Governance  and  Risk Management  Committee  reports  on  the  Assurance  Framework  to 

ensure key risks are identified and controls or assurance gaps are being addressed. 
 Regular  reports  providing  internal  assurances,  at  monthly,  quarterly  and  six  monthly 

intervals  including  finance,  activity,  workforce  measures,  commissioning  and  clinical 
governance. 

 External  assurance  sources,  including  the  Audit  Letter  and  end  of  year  accounts,  and 
reports from the Healthcare Commission, NHSLA etc. 

 
Audit & 
Assurance 
Committee  
 

 The Audit & Assurance Committee provides  independent and objective  scrutiny of Trust 
activities  through  its  membership,  which  consists  of  three  Non‐Executive  directors. 
Executive Directors,  senior managers,  Internal  and  External  auditors  attend  and provide 
input. 

 It  is  responsible  for  ensuring  there  are  arrangements  for  the  establishment  and 
maintenance  of  an  effective  system  of  integrated  governance,  risk  management  and 
internal  control,  across  the whole of  the organisation’s  activities  (both  clinical  and non‐
clinical). 

 This  supports  the  achievement  of  the  organisation’s  objectives  and  ensures  compliance 
with regulatory, legal and code of conduct requirements.  

 In  carrying  out  this  work  the  Committee  primarily  utilises  the  work  of  Internal  Audit, 
External Audit and other assurance  functions, as well as  seeking  reports and assurances 
from directors and managers as appropriate. 

 
Governance and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(G&RMC) and 
supporting 
committees 
 

 The Governance and Risk Management Committee  (G&RMC)  is  the Executive Committee 
responsible for the management of Risk, Governance and Assurance for the Trust, including 
overseeing development of the Trust’s Assurance Framework prior to Board approval.  

 It  comprises  the executives and  two non‐executives and  is  responsible  for ensuring  that 
effective  governance,  risk management  and  regulatory  compliance  systems  are  in  place 
and that effective actions are taken to identify and address deficiencies should they arise.  

 This also  includes overseeing directorates’ clinical and non‐clinical  risk  registers  including 
escalation  to  the  Trust  risk  register  as  informed  by  the  Non  Clinical  and  Clinical  Risk 
Committees and reviewing progress against NHSLA risk management standards.  

 Furthermore,  it  is  responsible  for  identifying  all  the  cross  cutting  themes  arising  from 
various  committees  such  as  the  Patient  Experience  Group  and  commissioning 
improvement activity from the Quality Committee. 

 
Building our 
Future 
Programme 
Board 
 

 The  Programme  Board  has  been  meeting  during  the  year  to  provide  leadership  and 
effective delivery of the Trust’s change agenda as well as leadership to all project boards.   

 In addition the group provides assurance to the Trust Board.   
 The Board is chaired by a non‐executive Director and consists of all the Executive Directors 

and supported by the Head of Marketing and Director of Programmes.  
 



Southmead 
Hospital 
Redevelopment 
Project Board  
 

 This Project Board is responsible for the overall direction, management and governance of 
the Southmead Hospital Redevelopment project.    

 It  comprises  members  of  the  Trust’s  Executive  team,  a  Non‐Executive  Director, 
representatives  from  the  Strategic Health Authority  and  local  Primary  Care  Trust  and  is 
supported by the Deputy Project Director.   

 Its  role  is  to  specify and oversee  the project management arrangements  for  the project 
including  risk management and control and project planning, provide overall guidance  to 
the  project  and  take  decisions  on  key  issues  without  delay  and  within  delegated 
tolerances.   

 It is responsible for ensuring key milestones are met and for directing action necessary to 
meet project objectives.  
 

 

 

 

Committee Member Attendance Records 

Member  Board  Audit & Assurance 
Comm. 

Governance & Risk Mgt. 
Comm. 

Charitable Funds
Comm. 

  2010/11  2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12  2010/11  2011/12
M Bell  10/11  9/11 3 1 4/4 5/6 n/a  n/a
R Brunt  10/11  10/11 n/a n/a 4/4 4/6 n/a  n/a
C Burton  10/11  10/11 n/a n/a 4/4 4/6 n/a  n/a
K Guy  10/11  10/11 3/4 4/4 n/a n/a n/a  n/a
H Hayer  10/11  10/11 1 n/a 4/4 5/6 n/a  n/a
S Hughes  9/11  10/11 n/a n/a 3/4 1/6 n/a  n/a
R Mould  11/11  9/11 n/a n/a 3/4 5/6 n/a  n/a
A Nield  10/11  10/11 3/4 2/4 n/a n/a n/a  n/a
M‐N Orzel  10/11  11/11 n/a 2 3/4 6/6 n/a  n/a
N Patel  10/11  9/11 3/4 3/4 n/a n/a 4/4  4/4
D Powell  8/11  9/11 n/a n/a 2/4 0/6 n/a  n/a
P Rilett  10/11  10/11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  n/a
A Waterman‐
Pearson 

10/11  9/11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  n/a

S Watkinson  10/11  10/11 n/a n/a 3/4 6/6 n/a  n/a
S Webster  9/11  10/11 3/4 4/4 3/4 3/6 4/4  4/4
S Wood  9/11  9/11 n/a n/a 4/4 2/6 1  2

 
Principal Board Committee Reports 

The Audit and Assurance Committee and Governance and Risk Management 
Committee are the key independent and executive risk management and assurance 
committees underpinning the Trust Board’s overall responsibility for internal control. In 
2011/12 these committees have received reports on: 

Committee  Reporting Area
Audit & Assurance Committee 
(Independent assurance) 
 

 the overarching Trust governance and assurance framework  
 the standing financial instructions 
 the counter fraud work plan 
 the strategic internal audit plan 
 the 2010/11 Financial Accounts 
 the Trust’s Annual Report 
 changes to the local counter fraud strategy 
 Safeguarding Adults 
 Decontamination of Medical Equipment 
 Management  systems  for  identifying  and  caring  for  patients  with  learning 

disabilities 
 the Building our Future Programme  
 a summary of clinical audit activity 
 the Foundation Trust project governance 



 benefits realisation from the e‐Rostering project 
 

Governance and Risk Management 
Committee  (G&RMC)  and 
supporting committees 
(Executive assurance) 
 

 Progress on achieving NHSLA  & CNST Maternity risk management standards 
 The overarching Trust framework for governance and assurance 
 Safeguarding protocols for adults 
 Monitoring of mortality statistics for low incidence diseases 
 CQC visiting reports 
 Board Assurance Framework 
 Risk Registers 
 Quality assessment for FT application 
 Outpatient survey results 
 Patient and Public Involvement strategy approval 
 Review of risk reporting procedures 
 CJD risks 
 Decontamination risks 
 CRB checks 
 

 
Board Development & Progress towards Foundation Trust status 

The Trust is applying for Foundation Trust status. Part of this process involves an on-
going programme of board development, including a formal self-assessment of its 
effectiveness. 

The Board Development Programme was initiated through an assessment of 
strengths and weaknesses, performed in the Summer of 2011. PWC were appointed 
to facilitate ongoing development workshops to address the weaknesses identified.  

Areas of development are being progressed and monitored internally via the FT 
Project Board and will be validated externally as part of the FT application 
assessment, by the Department of Health and then Monitor.  
 
In the meantime, various reviews have occurred to validate the progress made, such 
as; 

 SHA Board observation 
 Deloitte Board observation as part of their Due Diligence reviews 
 PWC formal Board observation as part of development programme 
 PWC facilitated mock Board to Board 
 SHA Executive to Executive meeting 
 SHA Board to Board meeting 

To date, all milestones have been achieved and provide assurance that the 
organisation is on track to achieve Foundation Trust status during the 2012-13 
financial year.  

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 

Within the context of being part of the National Health Service the Board complies 
with the Corporate Governance Code with the exception of the following: 

 The deputy chairman acts as the senior independent director and the role of 
the post was finalised as part of the FT governance development in January 
2012, thus whilst not in place for the whole year this has now been resolved. 

 The Appointments Commission appoints the non-executives negating the 
need for a formal nomination committee. If authorised as a Foundation Trust 
this will change in future years. 



3.  Risk and control framework 

 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather 
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to:  

 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s 
policies, aims and objectives   

 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 
they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 
Risk management is embedded throughout the Trust through a risk management 
framework that is made up of committee structures, staff familiar with their roles and 
responsibilities in  
patient safety and risk management and risk management tools e.g. the risk register, 
used throughout the organisation. The risk management strategy, which is reviewed 
annually, seeks to promote a culture where all staff assume responsibility for risk 
management. Its objective is to ensure a pro-active approach to risk management by 
engaging staff at all levels, in efforts to resolve risk locally wherever possible or 
escalate to a more senior  
level of management if necessary. It is available to staff on the Trust intranet.  
 
 
 
 
Leadership given to the risk management process  
 
The overall responsibility for managing risk rests with the Chief Executive and I chair 
the Governance and Risk Management Committee (GRMC). Reports from this 
Committee, which includes all Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors 
of the Trust, are made to the Board in public session. Risk management receives 
significant attention at Board level and this is being cascaded throughout the 
organisation. The Board is formally appraised of risks throughout the organisation 
including clinical, non-clinical and business, through the various committees properly 
constituted within the Trust, as outlined in Section 1. 
 
Committees supporting the GRMC are: Quality, Safeguarding, Clinical Audit, Clinical 
Risk and Clinical Effectiveness, Health and Safety, Infection Control, Patient 
Experience, Patient Records and Cancer Services.  
 
4. Risk Assessment 

 
Strategic Risks - Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
  
The BAF provides the mechanism for identifying potential risks against the Trust’s 
strategic priorities. These are set against the ‘Big 5’ Trust objectives, as approved by 
the Board. It considers the stated aims and objectives of the Trust together with the 
related controls and assurances in place and their adequacy. Furthermore it identifies 
any gaps in those controls and assurances and where an action plan is in progress, 
to address these gaps. It has been updated twice in year since its original approval. 



As required by the Foundation Trust application process the Trust has also submitted 
an Integrated Business Plan to the Strategic Health Authority. This includes a risk 
assessment of the Trust and these risks have been cross-referenced to the BAF to 
demonstrate the relationship to the Trust’s ongoing assessment of its risk profile. 

Project and Directorate Risks 
 
Programmes and projects are expected to manage risks within the context of their 
objectives and deliverables. Overall risks to the organisation arising from key 
programmes and projects are considered for inclusion within the Trusts Corporate 
Risk register. 

All clinical directorates have a forum where risk is discussed. This is either a specific 
risk group or it is part of another group as a standing agenda item e.g. Clinical 
Governance or Health and Safety Group. At these groups the directorate identifies 
risks and reviews incidents, taking action to minimise risk and learn lessons from 
incidents. Risk assessments are used at all levels of the Trust, from service planning 
to assessing day-to-day risks. The Risk Management Strategy/Policy gives guidance 
on scoring risks. 

Risk assessments can be clinical and non-clinical. Risks that cannot be controlled 
adequately at local level should be escalated to directorate level and used to 
populate their directorate risk register. Directorate risk registers are reviewed 
annually by Clinical Risk Committee and are also used to inform/prioritise the budget 
setting process.  
 
The Clinical & Non-Clinical Risk Committees also ensure that the Trust risk register is 
reviewed and updated regularly and includes core strategic and operational risks 
assessed as being over the acceptable level set out in the risk management strategy. 
This is overseen by the Governance and Risk Management Committee which 
reviews the full register at least annually. Incident reports and complaints are 
reviewed regularly at directorate-level and bi-monthly by board-level committees. 
 
In addition there are quarterly meetings between directorate management teams and 
executives which monitor the progress of actions on risk registers as part of the 
Trust’s performance management process. 
Incident reporting   
 
The Trust has a comprehensive single incident reporting system, which is well 
established in the organisation. Reports from incidents are provided to the 
directorates and specific Trust committees as an aid to planning future improvements 
and thus preventing similar incidents from re-occurring. Incidents are reviewed and 
investigated accordingly and for those that are graded serious, a Root Cause 
Analysis (RCA) is undertaken.  
 
Reports of these RCA’s and action plans are considered at the Clinical Risk and 
Trust Health and Safety Committees.  The GRMC receives an incident report and 
dashboard at every meeting. The Trust Board receives a monthly report of new 
serious incidents and progress of actions of previous serious incidents. All patient 
safety incidents are reported electronically to the National Patient Safety Agency 
(NPSA) via the National Learning Reporting Scheme (NLRS). Serious untoward 
incidents are also reported to the Strategic Health Authority and Primary Care Trust. 
Incidents meeting the criteria of the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous 
Occurrence Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR) are reported to the Incident Contact Centre.  
 



During 2010-11 the Trust implemented an on-line electronic incident reporting form 
(e-AIMS), replacing the paper system. This improved the speed of reporting incidents 
and quicker corrective action. Some issues were identified during 2011-12 in the link 
from this system into reporting to the NLRS. This did not affect the management of 
these incidents or the implementation of actions but did reduce the volumes recorded 
on NLRS. This has now been addressed and continues to be monitored. 
 
Organisational Risk Profile 
 
During the 2011/12 financial year the following risks have been identified for GRMC 
or Board review, either through the BAF, or Corporate Risk Register, and managed 
as outlined below; 
 

High Risks (pre‐mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year End?

Failure to deliver 75% of 
available CQUINS incentives. 

 Improve by achieving CQUIN targets 
 An executive leads each target 
 Managerial  lead  appointed  for  each  target  with 

supporting structures developed over year 
 Information team engaged 
 Placed on PPFC dashboards 
 Target progress reported routinely to Board 
 Focus placed on deliverable targets 

 

 Some  targets  achieved 
others,  including  A&E 
waiting time, not achieved. 

Failure to reduce hospital 
acquired Infections within 
parameters set out in the NHS 
Operating Framework. 

 Monthly meetings of Control of Infection Committee 
 Assistant Director of Nursing supporting IC team 
 Focus on screening 
 Anti‐microbial ward rounds re‐introduced 
 Saving lives data placed on ‘I’ 
 Regular reports to Board, PCTs and HPA 
 Continuous emphasis on IC procedures to leaders 
 Focus put on all aspects of Saving Lives bundles 

 All  infections  reduced 
except  MRSA  which  has 
exceeded its annual target. 

Excessive waits/delays in 
Emergency Department (ED) 

 BNSSG Management Board  
 Weekly Emergency Access Group reviews progress on ED 

standards 
 New clinical pathways developed with Community 
 Assurance reporting to Board 

 Further remedial actions 
underway to improve 
performance in 2012‐13. 

Cerner implementation – 
inadequate outpatient & theatre 
builds and related operational 
risks 

 Programme governance structure via Cerner Programme 
Board 

 End of stage Gateways commissioned (and all signed off) 
 Greenfield Board reviews 
 OGC reviews 
 Internal Audit reviews to Audit Committee 
 Post  go‐live  recovery  plans,  with  clinical  safety 

prioritised  
 Directorates aware of problems and managing risks 
 Independent review commissioned 

 Yes  in  terms  of  primary 
clinical  and  operational 
risks. 

 Ongoing work is progressing 
to  improve  build  and  to 
realise system benefits. 

Delays in project for transfer of 
Breast Service. 

 Implementation  plans  being  agreed with  clinicians  and 
stakeholders 

 Joint  post  with  UHB  leading  transfer  with  supporting 
structure 

 Involvement strategy  
 Regular service updates to Management Team 

 Further  actions  planned  to 
strengthen project structure 
and  elicit  key  decisions  to 
progress scheme. 

Delays in project for transfer of 
Pathology Service. 

 Implementation  plans  being  agreed with  clinicians  and 
stakeholders 

 Programme Board set up with supporting structure 
 Bristol providers engaged 
 Business case developed 
 Regular reports to Board and Management Team 

 Yes,  business  case  agreed 
and  procurement  process 
underway. 

Increase in cost of PFI Scheme   Monitoring of RPI whilst above 2.5%   No,  outside  of  any  NHS 
influence  but  improving 
situation 

Injury to Patients through Falls   Falls bundle training introduced 
 Guidelines for post Neck of Femur distributed 

 Yes,  risk  reduced  to  below 
threshold  for  board 



High Risks (pre‐mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year End?

 80% of nurses trained and Falls bundle embedded  monitoring. 
Incomplete Thromboprophylaxis 
implementation 

 Guidance and strategy developed and distributed 
 Identification system of VTE events in RCAs 
 Ensure  compliance  with  CQUIN  target  for  VTE  risk 

assessment and NICE quality standards. 

 Yes,  risk  reduced  to  below 
threshold  for  board 
monitoring. 

Shortage in supply chain leading 
to out of stocks at Trust and 
procurement of alternative drugs 

 On‐going electronic list reviewed twice weekly 
 Contribution to regional letter to DH 
 Strengthening of systems and formal Standard Operating 

Procedures. 

 No– actions are underway 
but as yet not fully 
delivered. 

Contaminants in theatre sets and 
holes in wraps causing delays, 
cancellations or potential post‐
operative infections. 

 AOC theatres to increase shelving 
 Purchase of additional sets to enable  longer turnaround 

times for high demand sets  
 Hire  kit  supervisor  to  further  improve  flow  of  kit  and 

cope with operational difficulties in AOC. 
 Purchase of containers to replace wraps 
 Further purchase of high demand kits in March 2012 
 Range of actions in CSSD to improve service delivery. 
 Independent review of CSSD & AOC interaction 

 No – actions are underway 
but as yet not fully 
delivered. 

Potential failure to meet 
priorities, timelines and pass key 
stages within Foundation Trust 
Application 

 Project board set up 
 Project manager appointed 

 Yes  –strong  project 
management  in  place  and 
all  milestones  achieved  to 
date. 

 
Information Governance 
 

 As Accountable Officer I receive comprehensive and reliable assurance from 
a range of sources including managers, internal audit and periodic external 
audits that information governance risks are being managed effectively.  

 There have been no lapses of data security in 2011/12. 

 I can also confirm that the Trust is compliant with the NHS Information 
Governance Toolkit self-assessment requirements in achieving at least Level 
2 against all 45 requirements at 31st March 2012. 

 
 

5. Review of Effectiveness of risk management and internal control 

 
As Accountable Officer, I have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. Firstly, I can confirm that the system of internal control has been in place in 
North Bristol NHS Trust for the full year ended 31 March 2012 and up to the date of 
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
The detail of my review is informed in a number of ways, as follows; 

 Executive directors and managers within the organisation who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the system of internal 
control provide me with assurance. 

 The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall 
arrangements for gaining assurance through the Board Assurance 
Framework and on the controls reviewed as part of the internal audit plan. 
The draft HIAO has been provided and confirms that “Significant assurance 
can be given that there is a generally sound system of internal control, 



designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are 
generally being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the design 
and in some cases inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of 
particular objectives at risk.” This is a sound assurance opinion, at the same 
level achieved for the past 5 years.  

 The BAF itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls 
that manage the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives 
have been reviewed. 

 The Trust’s Quality Account is subject to review by Internal Audit and also to 
a formal External Auditor’s opinion; the outcomes of these are both reported 
to the Audit & Assurance Committee. The external audit is also reported to 
the Quality Committee. Ongoing assurance on performance and data quality 
against the Trust’s Priority Aims for Quality Improvement is obtained through 
their inclusion in the monthly Board Quality report and the prior scrutiny this 
receives. This information is also reviewed at the Trust’s Quality Committee 
with Clinical Directors and forms part of quarterly directorate performance 
reviews with the executive team. 

 
A range of internal and external assurances are considered, key examples being;  

 
Type  Assurance Source
 
External Assurances 
 

 
 NHS  Litigation  Authority  assessments.  In  November  2011,  the  Trust  was  successful  in 

obtaining level 2 compliance against the acute general standards. 
 The Trust was last at level 2 against the CNST Maternity Standards in 2010 and is due to be 

assessed at Level 3 in June 2012.  
 External Audit  reports on  the Trusts annual  financial accounts, which were unqualified  for 

2010/11. 
 External Audit report on the Trusts Quality Account, which was unqualified for 2010/11. 
 SAS 70 report on the operations run by Shared Business Services Ltd  
 SAS 70 report on the Electronic Staff Records system (ESR)  
 Annual patients’ survey and delivery of action plan 
 Annual staff survey and delivery of action plan 
 Care Quality Commission – planned and unannounced review programme and continuance 

of registration without conditions or enforcement actions  
 External review of the Monitor Quality Governance Framework by PwC 
 Due Diligence reviews for Foundation Trust status (stages 1 & 2) by Deloitte 
 Quality and Governance reviews by Strategic Health Authority for Foundation Trust status 
 LINks – enter and view visit reports  
 Postgraduate Medical Education Training Board visits  
 HSE inspection visits  
 Strategic Health Authority (peer review visits)  
 Local Authorities – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
 National Clinical Audit reports  
 HMCIP visits 
 Medicines and Healthcare Products Agency 
 OFSTED inspections 
 Management  Systems  Organisations  accreditation  reviews,  such  as  the  British  Standards 

Institute 
 

Internal Assurances 
 

 Reports received from internal audit  
 Clinical audit reports  
 Achievement of financial targets for 2011/12  
 Performance Management reports to the Trust Board 
 Quality reports to the Trust Board 
 Workforce & Organisational Development reports to the Trust Board 



Type  Assurance Source
 Annual Quality Account 
 Governance & Risk Management Committee Assurance reports to Board  
 Audit & Assurance Committee reports to Board 

 
 

6. Significant Issues 

 
Taking the guidance provided on the disclosure of ‘significant issues’ within the 
‘Annual Governance Statements – Guidance’ letter issued by Janet Perry NHS Chief 
Financial Controller, on 29th February 2012, the Trust has outlined below information 
where this applies. 
 

Implementation of New Patient Record 
 
The Trust has been implementing a new electronic patient record system to replace 
the previous outdated, less efficient system. The system ‘went live’ in December 
2011. Most wards, minor injuries units at Southmead Hospital and at Yate as well as 
the Emergency Department at Frenchay went live without major difficulties.   
 
However, unexpected problems were experienced within the outpatient appointments 
and to a lesser extent Theatres. Systems were established to ensure that patient 
safety was not compromised. We have apologised to patients who have been 
inconvenienced during this time, as well as making public apologies to patients and 
to our staff who have had to cope with the stress this has caused. 
 
We were able to confirm at the beginning of March that all outpatient activity was 
being processed through the system. Work is ongoing to further ‘bed this in,’ with IT 
teams dealing with issues relating to specific clinics and staff getting used to the new 
system and new ways of working. 
 
An independent review has been commissioned to assess and report on the issues 
experienced and to ensure lessons are learned for the future.  
 

Serious Incidents – ‘Never Events’ 

Two ‘never events’ occurred in NBT during 2011/12: 
 
1. Unintended retention of a foreign object post-surgical intervention 
The retained object was a microvascular clamp and this was removed during a 
subsequent operation which resulted in a satisfactory outcome for the patient.  The 
patient was fully informed of the incident and accepted a formal apology. A robust 
and comprehensive investigation was carried out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident   
 
A Swab, Instrument & Needlecount Policy has been written and implemented within 
the Trust.  This dictates the action to be taken when there is a discrepancy in the 
count and requires that an x-ray be taken if this is the case. 
 
The peri-operative record of care has been revised to include documented recording 
of the count being correct.  If not, the above policy must be followed. 
 



A safe system of work has been written and implemented for the use of 
microvascular clamps.  This links to the policy and peri-operative record of care 
outlined above.   
The Clinical Risk Committee is assured that the above actions have been 
implemented and this will improve patient safety. 
 
 
2. Wrong Site Surgery  
A surgical intervention was performed on the wrong organ in a patient.  The 
operation was complex due to distortion of the anatomy.  This incident has resulted in 
some long term harm for the patient although the patient has since fully recovered. 
The patient has been fully informed and an apology given.  A robust and 
comprehensive investigation has been carried out. 
 
Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident  
 
The incident was caused by human error due to distorted patient anatomy.  The 
consultant surgeon was experienced and assisted by a specialist in the patient’s 
condition. 
The World Health Organisation Surgical Checklist was used correctly and as such, 
could not have prevented this error. 
 
This case was discussed at directorate clinical governance meetings and 
disseminated widely to raise awareness of implications of distorted patient anatomy 
with clinical staff. The Clinical Risk Committee, Commissioners and the National 
Patient Safety Agency are assured that human error is an acceptable root cause of 
this incident and that all procedures were carried out correctly. 
 
 

 

Signed …………………………………….. 

Ruth Brunt, Chief Executive 

North Bristol NHS Trust 

Date:   ..…………………………………. 

 



Membership of the Audit & Assurance Committee  
 
Mr. Ken Guy retained chairmanship of the committee throughout the financial year 
with Andrew Nield and Nick Patel remaining as members of the audit committee. The 
committee, therefore, has retained considerable financial and risk expertise. 
 
A number of senior Trust staff actively support the audit committee through regular 
attendance at meetings. This includes the Director of Finance, the Financial 
Controller, the Head of Internal Audit and the Principal Local Counter Fraud 
Specialist as well as an occasional attendance by a representative from Deloitte & 
Touche which performs the computer audit function on behalf of internal audit. All no-
executive directors are invited to attend the committee meetings, and papers are 
provided to those who are not members of the committee on request. The corporate 
services manager provides support to the audit committee. In addition, the External 
Auditors, the audit Commission, attend each committee meeting and actively engage 
in the work of the committee throughout the year. 
 
The audit committee is able to request the attendance of any staff member to further 
its work as it considers appropriate. During 2011/12 the Director of Assurance, 
Information and Technology attended the April, November and January meetings, 
and, with the Director of Organisation Development, People and Performance also 
the October meeting and provided input into key reports. The Associate and 
Assistant Directors of HR and Development attended the January meeting. 
 
Charitable Funds 
 
The North Bristol NHS Trust Charitable Funds received income of £3,130,000 
in 2011/12 compared with £3,077,000 in 2010/11. The figures are still to be 
audited. 
 
Sources of income were as follows: 
 2011/12 2010/11 
 £000 £000 
Donations 1,349 1,174 
Legacies 1,248 344 
Grants receivable 0 0 
Activities for generating funds 243 204 
Investment income 241 223 
Other income 49 1,132 
 
Total Income 3,130 3,077 
 
Expenditure was as follows:  
Cost of generating funds 167 146 
Activities in furtherance of charity’s objectives 1,980 3,753 
Investment management Costs 52 33 
Governance costs 13 12 
 
Total expenditure 2,212 3,944 
 
Gains/(Losses) on revaluation of investments (165) 334 
Increase/(decrease) in funds 753 (533) 
Balance brought forward      9,442 9,975 
 



TOTAL HELD 10,195 9,442 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Report to the Trust Board – 31st May 2012   
 

Title: Annual Report 2011/12 

Purpose of paper:  To discuss, make comment on or approve the draft 
operating review of the Annual Report for 2011/12 
prior to final approval with the Accounts 

For Approval/Discussion 

Executive Summary:  
 
 The Trust is obliged to, and as a matter of good practice, produce and 

publish an annual report that sets out the significant events and challenges 
of the past year and some of the major challenges to the succeeding year. 
The attached is a draft of the proposed ‘operating review’ for 2011/12. It 
has been seen, and commented on, by the Auditors. 

 One small section remains to be completed regarding progress against 
national targets. This has been delayed due to issues around the release 
of verified data. It is hoped to have this available by the Board meeting. 

 When published later in the year the main Annual Report will be set out 
very differently with colour photographs and include a contents page with 
numbers, the financial review and summary financial statements, the 
salary and pensions entitlements of Board members etc. The contents of 
the Financial Review are largely prescribed by the Department of Health 
but will be subject to comment from the Audit Committee. A draft of this 
has also been seen and commented on by the Auditors. 

 When approved, the ‘operating review’ will be put into two documents, one  
with the full annual accounts and other finance information and one with 
the summary financial statements and other financial information. These 
will be put to the Audit Committee meeting on 6th June for formal 
recommendation to the Board and formal submission to the auditors. This 
version and the main Annual Report will be available for the Annual Public 
meeting on 19th September. 

 
Action Required:  The Trust Board is asked to:  
 

To discuss, comment and amend, as appropriate, 
the operating review part of the 2011/12 Annual 
Report 

 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under 

a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
1 
 
 

Key Risks: The Report needs to satisfy the Auditors that it 
accords with the statements in the Final Accounts 
as well as provide a record for the public 

http://www.nbt.nhs.uk/Default.htm�


This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under 

a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
2 
 
 

 
Impact on Patients: Provision of information to the public about the 

Trust’s services 
 
CQC Outcome: The Report provides a record for a number of
 outcomes  
 
Responsible Committee: Audit and Assurance Committee 
 
Financial Issues  
considered:  None except for production costs 
 
Equality & Diversity: No impact assessment completed but equality and 

diversity forms an integral part of the Report  
 
Legal Issues Considered: None 
     
Sustainability Assessment  
Completed:    Not applicable  
 
Presented by: Ruth Brunt, Chief Executive 
 
Prepared by: Richard Cottle, Media Relations Manager 
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1. TRUST PROFILE  
 
North Bristol NHS Trust is a centre of excellence for healthcare in the South West 
region in a number of fields, as well as one of the largest hospital trusts in the 
country. 
 
Last year we treated almost 113,000 inpatients, including day case patients, as well 
as caring for more than 96,000 people through our Emergency Department at 
Frenchay and Minor Injuries Units at Southmead and Yate. 6,300 babies were born 
at Southmead at home or in the community and we conducted around 360,000 
outpatient consultations. 
 
We have around 1,100 beds and provide inpatient care from Frenchay and 
Southmead Hospitals and the Riverside Unit. We also provide a wide range of 
outpatient services from Cossham Hospital in Kingswood.  
 
The Trust provides general medical and surgical care as well as maternity and 
paediatric services for a local population of around half a million people in the North 
Bristol and South Gloucestershire area.  
 
It is also a regional and specialist centre for people living in the Greater Bristol area 
as well as Somerset, Gloucestershire, Wiltshire and further afield for services such as 
neurosciences, orthopaedics, pathology, plastic surgery, renal services, urology, 
paediatric neurology and neonatal intensive care. Our Children’s Community Health 
Partnership provides all community child health, and child and adolescent mental 
health, services for Bristol and South Gloucestershire. 
 
We employ approximately 9,100 staff. More than 4,000 of our staff members work 
part time. Around one fifth of our workforce is now based outside of the hospital 
setting in the local community. 
 
The Trust has equality schemes for race, gender and disability which are available on 
our website www.nbt.nhs.uk which were combined into a single equality scheme in 
2010. 
 
We have a Major Incident Plan that is fully compliant with requirements and 
guidance. 
 
How to contact us: 
Frenchay Hospital 
Beckspool Road 
Frenchay 
Bristol 
BS16 1JE 
Tel: 0117 970 1212 
 
Southmead Hospital 
Westbury-on-Trym 
Bristol 
BS10 5NB 

http://www.nbt.nhs.uk/


Tel: 0117 950 5050 
2. INTRODUCTION FROM CHAIRMAN AND INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
During the last 12 months, the Trust has continued to focus on delivering good 
quality, safe healthcare for all our patients, with the focus on improving clinical 
outcomes, reducing infections and maintaining good access to our services.   
 
It’s amazing to think that in less than two years we will be caring for our patients in 
the new hospital at the Southmead site. The building and its cranes have become a 
landmark in the Bristol area and can be seen from miles around.  
 
Progress over the last two years has been incredible and anticipation is building 
amongst many of our staff as they look forward to delivering exceptional healthcare 
for our patients in a 21st century, state-of-the-art facility.  
 
We also launched our application to become an NHS Foundation Trust (FT) and 
remain on track to achieve this as planned by December 2012. An FT is accountable 
to its membership which is drawn from the local population and its staff. The 
response has been fantastic with more than 5,000 people already signed up to 
become a member and become part of our new Foundation Trust.  
 
As always, there have been a number of challenges this year. Most notably with the 
introduction of our new computerised booking system in January. We replaced the 
two out dated systems with a new single electronic patient record system that brings 
advantages to clinicians in how they treat their patients. However, the change over 
from our old systems did not go well in some areas of the Trust with significant 
problems in our outpatient clinics.  
 
We are pleased to report that these difficulties have now been overcome and the 
system is working well, but we would like to take this opportunity to once again 
apologise to any patients or staff affected by the change.  
 
We would also like to thank our outgoing Chief Executive Ruth Brunt who retired in 
June 2012 after 40 years in the NHS.  
 
She has been an inspirational leader and we wish her well for the future. Plans are 
now in place to find a permanent Chief Executive to take us forward into the new 
hospital.  
 
In addition, we want to take this opportunity to thank our hard-working and loyal 
staff who have continued to provide our patients with first-class and compassionate 
care over the last 12 months.   
 
Thanks are also due, as always, to the tireless supporters of our hospitals – in 
particularly the Friends of Frenchay Hospital, the League of Friends at Southmead, 
the WRVS and the 500+ volunteers who give up their time each week to support us.  
 
Peter Rilett - Chairman  
XXXX - Interim Chief Executive  
 
 
 



 
 
3. Review of the year 2011/12 
 
April 2011 

 NHS South Gloucestershire and North Bristol NHS Trust agree to the transfer 
of the PCT’s community services provider arm: South Gloucestershire 
Community Health Services, into NBT. From April 1, 550 staff, such as district 
nurses, therapists and Yate Minor Injuries Unit, previously employed by NHS 
South Gloucestershire joined NBT’s growing group of community based staff. 
The latest additions from South Gloucestershire now mean that around a fifth 
of NBT’s total workforce is now based outside the traditional hospital setting, 
providing care and treatment in local communities and patients’ homes. 

 
May 2011 

 The Communication Aid Centre at Frenchay Hospital celebrates its 30th 
anniversary. The service supports patients with varying degrees of 
communication difficulties caused primarily by disability, learning difficulties 
or neurological problems, and works with them to develop systems which can 
enhance or replace speech. These could be low level systems such as books 
or charts right up to the latest technology such as ‘eye-gaze’ computers that 
can track eye movements to spell out words and then speak them. 

 
 As part of the Fresh Arts music programme, patients, staff and visitors are 

entertained by royal harpist, Claire Jones, fresh from her recent performance 
at the wedding of William and Kate – The Duke and Duchess of Cambridge.  

 
 Frenchay Hospital becomes the first in the country to offer children with 

cerebral palsy a pioneering treatment that could see them walk again. 
Selective Dorsal Rhizotomy (SDR) is a technique involving the division of 
some of the nerves as they enter the spinal cord to free up constricting 
muscles caused by lower limb spasticity (or increased muscle tone). If 
performed early enough, problems related to lower limb spasticity, such as 
muscle shortening, contractures and abnormal bone growth can be reduced 
or even eliminated. 

 
 A campaign showing the dangers of tea and coffee spills burning children is 

launched. The Hot Drinks Harm film highlights the risks of tea and coffee 
scalds on young children. Burn injuries from tea or coffee account for 40 per 
cent of admissions to the South West UK Children’s Burn Centre at Frenchay 
Hospital. Each week two children are brought into Frenchay with major burns 
caused by hot drinks. 

 
June 2011 
 

 Multiple Sclerosis (MS) research at Frenchay Hospital was awarded a $1.1 
million donation to continue a pioneering bone marrow stem cell trial. The 
project has been shown to have possible benefits for the treatment of the 
disease. Now the grant, donated by American benefactor, The Kenneth and 
Claudia Silverman Family Foundation to the University of Bristol and North 
Bristol NHS Trust, will fund a phase II clinical trial of bone marrow cellular 
therapy in MS patients. 



 
 NBT is one of only four NHS organisations in the country to appear on the 

National Apprenticeship Service’s Top 100 Employers list. The Trust also won 
the South West Employer of the Year award 2011 in the Macro Employer 
category (for organisations with more than 5,000 staff). The award 
recognises the scheme that the Trust runs to train and develop apprentices in 
healthcare, from nursing staff to IT technicians across Frenchay and 
Southmead hospitals, and in the community. 

 
 The Yate Minor Injuries Unit (MIU) celebrates its first year after treating 

almost 8,500 people. The MIU, at the Yate West Gate Centre, offers a drop-in 
service for children and adults to treat a whole range of minor injuries from 
cuts to sprains, from bites to broken arms.  

 
 The first ever NBT Exceptional Healthcare Awards take place. The awards are 

designed to recognise the exceptional care that our staff deliver to our 
patients and to recognise loyalty and innovation. More than 200 nominations 
were received and 10 awards were given out on the night ranging from team 
of the year to unsung hero.  

 
July 2011 
 

 Southmead Hospital is once again awarded Baby Friendly status by UNICEF 
and the World Health Organisation for the high quality education and 
practical advice it gives new mums about breast-feeding. The maternity 
teams scored 100 percent on the standards to achieve the status which 
means that it will stay with the hospital for the next three to four years. 
Southmead was first granted Baby Friendly status back in 2005 and was one 
of the first units of its size in the country to get the accolade. It has 
continued to meet the standards since then in regular reviews. 

 
August 2011 
 

 The Trust starts the process to become an NHS Foundation Trust. The first 
stage of this is to consult with staff, patients, carers and local residents on its 
vision and proposals for the future. 

 
 The Trust encouraged families to use a gorilla hunt around Bristol as an 

opportunity to develop their child’s speech and language. As part of the city’s 
support for ‘Hello’ - the National Year of Communication - speech and 
language therapists developed a guide for parents based around the Gorilla 
Hunt, to help inspire discussion. The guide included talking tips such as using 
lots of different words, picking up on items being pointed at, chatting about 
what gorillas like to do and ideas to follow-up when they got home. 

 
 A cheque for £460,000 was presented to the Trust from the WRVS, marking a 

60-year partnership between the two organisations. The £460,000 comes 
from profits made at the WRVS shops and coffee shops at Frenchay and 
Southmead over the last four years. The shops and coffee shops are run by a 
total of 141 volunteers across the two sites who give up their time every 
week to serve patients, visitors and staff. 

 



 Staff and patients celebrate the 90th anniversary of Frenchay Hospital with a 
special Hawaiian-themed barbecue in the Redwood Restaurant. Frenchay saw 
its first patients in 1921 when, what is now Trust Headquarters was a TB 
sanatorium for children. 

 
September 2011 
 

 A patient who accidently sawed his thumb off had his big toe attached in its 
place by expert surgical teams at Frenchay Hospital. James Byrne, 29, lost 
the thumb on his left hand in December 2010 while sawing through a piece 
of wood. After an attempt to re-attach his thumb was unsuccessful, plastic 
surgeon Umraz Khan transplanted the big toe from his left foot in an eight 
hour operation. James’ story was covered by the national and international 
media.  

 
 The South West’s only prostate surgical robot goes on show at a special 

event to raise awareness of men’s cancers at Southmead. The public were 
given the chance to see a robot in action, and operate it themselves, at a 
special Blue September event. Southmead Hospital was one of the first 
hospitals in the UK to have the robot in 2009.  

 
October 2011 
 

 Frenchay Brain Injury Rehabilitation Centre was celebrating this month, 
following industry recognition at the Laing and Buisson Awards 2011 where 
they scooped the award for best in the Public Private Partnership 
category. Held at London’s Marriott Grosvenor Hotel, Alison Woods, Centre 
Manager and Dr Angus Graham, Consultant in Rehabilitation Medicine, 
accepted the award on behalf of their dedicated teams at Frenchay Brain 
Injury Centre and its NHS partnership organisation, North Bristol NHS Trust.   

 
 A campaign to get more people to take part in research projects is launched. 

Each year 7,000 patients take part in clinical research projects at NBT leading 
to breakthroughs in the understanding and treatment of diseases and health 
conditions. The Take Part Be Involved campaign hopes to encourage more 
people to sign up for clinical studies or to be involved in a research panel. 
Research studies can involve a wide range of topics from changes in routines 
or diet to trialling a new medicine or course of treatment or even undergoing 
new forms of surgery. 

 
 A new project to publicise hygiene and safety scores on every ward at our 

hospitals was recognised in national Department of Health safety awards. 
These recognise how we are using patient and public involvement to inform 
patient safety and experience improvements. Through a series of surveys, 
involving patient panellists and 600 members of the public, patients told us 
that they wanted to know key information when visiting or being admitted to 
a ward. 

 
November 2011 
 

 Work to centralise specialist children’s health services at the Bristol Royal 
Hospital for Children (BRHC) reaches a new milestone as the steel structure 



of the extension to the hospital is complete. The extension is being built to 
accommodate specialist pediatric services that will move from Frenchay 
Hospital in 2014.  

 
 The Trust wins the Green Champion Award for the NHS at the national Green 

Apple Awards. The award was presented to the Environmental Management 
Unit at a ceremony at the House of Commons arranged by the Green 
Organisation, who reward and promote environmental best practice around 
the world. The award was given for the Trust’s Treading Lightly campaign 
which promotes environmental initiatives such as recycling, saving energy 
and reducing carbon footprint at Frenchay and Southmead hospitals. 

 
 The consultation for our Foundation Trust application was launched on 1 

August and closed on 4 November 2011. During that time more than 2,500 
people gave their views on our plans, around 700 of which were members of 
staff. This was one of the highest numbers of responses to an NHS 
Foundation Trust consultation recorded. 

 
December 2011 
 

 Miracle babies born after successful IVF and other fertility treatments at the 
Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine (BCRM) returned to the centre 
where they were conceived to celebrate their first Christmas. The BCRM at 
Southmead Hospital hosted a special Christmas party for babies born this 
year after their parents were successful in their fertility treatment. 

 
 NBT and University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust launch a new 

charter that aims to promote a culture that recognises the vital role carers 
play within our hospitals. Both trusts value the vital work done by carers and, 
the new carers’ charter sets out our commitment to work together with them 
as expert partners in patients’ care. 

 
 We introduce a computer system which changes the way we store and access 

patient records. This new single system replaces two outdated systems and 
will bring significant advantages to clinicians and patients, with the recording 
of clinical information in one secure place. The new computer system is a key 
part of delivering 21st century healthcare in our move towards the new 
hospital at Southmead.  

 
 It was a great end to 2011 for the catering team. They were awarded the 

Hospital Catering Award in the 2011 Health Business Awards in recognition 
for producing good, locally sourced foods at the best possible price. In 
addition, the Trust has become one of only a handful in the UK to be 
presented with Compassion in World Farming - Good Egg Award for only 
using free-range eggs and egg products in its food.  

 
January 2012 

 
 Brother and sister Reuben and Floren Blake were conceived from the same 

batch of embryos but born five years apart after fertility treatment at the 
Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine (BCRM). Parents Simon and Jody 
Blake had been trying to start a family without success and began fertility 



treatment in 2005. During the medical process, five embryos were created 
and two implanted in Mrs Blake, which resulted in the birth of Reuben on 
December 9 2006. The remaining three embryos were frozen until the couple, 
from Cheltenham decided to try for another child last year. Against the odds, 
Floren arrived on November 16 2011 - two weeks before her due date - but 
five years after her twin brother. Reuben and Floren’s story is picked up this 
month and featured by media across the country.  

 
February 2012 
 

 Cancer patients at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals are now offered 
exercise classes to reduce the risk of the disease spreading or returning. The 
hospitals are taking a leading role in the National Cancer Survivorship 
Initiative to improve the chances and quality of life of a patient surviving 
cancer. There is growing evidence that exercise as a vital part of cancer 
management and that it improves a cancer patient’s quality of life. The 
classes are devised by hospital physiotherapists for patients who have 
completed their medical course of treatment for cancer. 

 
March 2012 
 

 NBT gets £3.3million to buy equipment to improve services as part of a 
£330million Government allocation for the NHS. The money will be used to 
buy items including home dialysis machines and intensive care ventilators.  

 
 The Trust launches a virtual Send a Thank You for patients and visitors to 

express their appreciation to the healthcare staff who looked after them. The 
Send a Thank You form is designed to enable patients or their relatives to 
contact the teams who have helped them at Frenchay Hospital, Southmead 
Hospital or through our community health services. 

 
 Surgeons at Southmead Hospital are robotically constructing new bladders for 

cancer patients in a UK first. The procedure, known as a radical cystectomy 
and neo-bladder, used to be performed manually in open surgery by 
surgeons creating a new bladder for cancer patients who had to have the 
organ removed. Now the hospital is making neo-bladders robotically from the 
patient’s own bowel tissue inside their body for the first time. The keyhole 
surgery is less invasive, has a faster recovery time for patients. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4. LISTENING TO AND WORKING WITH OUR PATIENTS  
 
National Inpatient Survey  
Each year North Bristol NHS Trust (NBT) takes part in the National Inpatient Survey, 
which is published by the Care Quality Commission.  From 850 patients randomly 
selected we had a response rate of 56 percent. 
 
As in previous years, the 2011 survey highlighted many positive aspects of patient 
experience at NBT, with 93 percent of patients rating their care as good or excellent 
and 97 percent of patients reported that they were treated with dignity and respect.  
In the key patient experience indicator of whether the patient would recommend the 
Trust, NBT received a positive response of 92 percent, a two percent increase from 
last year.   
 
The results of the annual survey form an important part of the Trust’s planning and 
actions taken as a result of findings from previous years’ surveys include: 
 

 Increasing the usage of pharmacy cards so that patients knew who to contact 
about medication side effects when they went home 

 
 Handing out ward welcome cards so patients and visitors became familiar 

with ward routines, enabling patients to give us feedback through ward 
feedback cards 

 
 Streamlining our patient information so it was more accessible for patients  

 
 Increasing the amount of time nurses spend with patients to ensure the 

needs of vulnerable people were being monitored more closely. 
 
Advice, complaints and compliments 
The Advice and Complaints Team (ACT) has continued to provide a seamless route 
to raise and receive answers to enquires, concerns and complaints.  
 
All complaints and concerns received and those enquires that could not be answered 
with the indicated timeframe were registered.  
 
This year, as ever, ACT has received tremendous support from the complaints co-
ordinators in each of the directorates and numerous staff throughout the Trust to 
meet this challenge.   
 
ACT has focussed on a number of initiatives throughout the year aimed at: 
 

 Improving identification of any general themes and potential areas of 
weakness, or deficiency, in patient experience 

 
 Strengthening the learning processes by improving the monitoring and 

dissemination of data to managers throughout the Trust 
 

 Improving the initial contact with patients or their representatives to agree 
the issues and outcomes being sought 

 



 Supporting other areas of the Trust to meet Quality Care Commission targets 
assessment and other performance criteria 

 
 Improving links to the Trust’s Safeguarding Team, by formalising the referral 

process 
 

 Improving how we work with the Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman 
to resolve complainants’ ongoing dissatisfaction or challenges to complaint 
investigations and responses 

 
 Using the Complaints database to further streamline the complaints process. 

 
Formal complaints 
The Trust received 774 formal complaints 163 more that the previous year. In 
addition 354 concerns were raised and acted upon. 
 
These figures are broadly reflected in many NHS trusts in the South West but echo 
the problems experienced with the new patient records system introduced in 
December, which impacted on some of the busiest services.  
 
The three highest category of formal complaint were: 
 

 All aspects of clinical care  370  
 Attitude of staff   82 
 Lack of communication  79 

 
The three highest category of concern were: 
 

 Lack of communication  107 
 All aspects of clinical care  68 
 Delay/cancellation outpatient  47 

 
Lessons learned 
The number of local resolution meetings undertaken again increased to a total of 63. 
This process provides a positive way of resolving more cases and continues the 
initiative which was introduced in 2009/10. The number of action plans that 
identified positive learning from complaints and concerns again increased reflecting 
the drive to maximise learning from the complaints process. 583 action plans have 
been signed off as complete during the year. 
 
Compliments 
5,600 compliments were received during 2011/12 and, although the figure was down 
- reflecting a challenging year, increases were seen in both the Medicine and 
Neurosciences directorates. 
 
The Trust has also reacted to comments from grateful patients who advised they felt 
the link on the Trust website to complaints, which had to be followed to post a 
compliment, was both confusing and inappropriate. As a consequence action has 
been taken to ensure posting a compliment is more straightforward. 
 
A few examples of the compliments received are listed below: 
 



 The treatment that I received was first rate. The staff were polite, cheerful 
and worked incredibly hard. I cannot fault any aspect of my care.  My 
treatment is now ongoing as an outpatient. A big thank you to all concerned. 
I cannot fault the care that I received, from diagnosis to my operation and 
then in Ward 207, then 201.    

 
 As soon as we arrived at the Barbara Russell Children’s Unit at around 4am 

we realised we were in the best place. We and the rest of the family are 
extremely grateful for the treatment received. Keep up the good work. 

 
 People are quick to complain so I wanted to restore the balance by saying 

thank you to all the staff who dealt with me and in particular the first 
receptionist. What could have been improved? Nothing. 

 
 Thank you for everything you have done and for your help and support. You 

are an amazing team. I feel like a new person. We both say a big thank you. 
 

 Once again I feel compelled to write to you to express my thanks for the 
treatment and care I received during my recent stay at Southmead Hospital. 

 
 Many, many thanks to all of the staff who did so much for our mother. Please 

accept the donations to Ward 4 to assist you in the care of others. 
 

 Please pass on my congratulations to the catering team for all the awards 
they received and for the efforts they put into continuing to improve their 
service. 

 
Improving patient experience and working with the community 
At NBT, improving patient experience is important to us.  We want to understand 
what it is like to use our services and we are committed to listening and involving our 
patients. We extend this commitment to carers, families and members of the public, 
because we value their contribution too.  Becoming a Foundation Trust will also help 
us to strengthen our ability to be more responsive. 
 
To refresh our approach to involving people we have re-written our Patient & Public 
Involvement Strategy.  This sets out a framework for involvement at all levels within 
the Trust to ensure we are compliant, covering one to one interactions with patients 
and their families through to working strategically with patient and carer 
organisations such as Local Involvement Networks [LINks] and The Carers Support 
Centre. 
 
The Trust has a long standing Patient Panel, with a membership of patients and 
carers who use our services or care for patients using our services.  They are 
passionate about helping us to improve services and are highly valued for their 
contribution and hard work. Member of the Patient Panel know that their voice 
counts and that they make a difference.  Over the past year they have been involved 
in over 60 projects and activities.  These include: 
 

 Appointments of senior staff at the request of the Chief Executive 
 Quality and care audits 
 Food and environment inspections 
 Members of key committees  



At the heart of ensuring the Trust provides an excellent experience is the Patient 
Experience Group.  Membership includes patient experience leads who are 
responsible for taking the patient experience agenda out into the directorates and 
patient and carer representation from the Trust’s Patient Panel, LINks and The 
Carers Support Centre.  The group drives how we improve patient experience 
through involvement and is responsible for analysing national surveys, local and 
national targets and patient feedback data. 
 
We also have a range of other patient/user groups who make a significant 
contribution to the development of services across the Trust like The Rheumatology 
Patient Support Group, the Renal Forum and, in terms of brain injured patients, 
Headway. This year we have also worked with the Patient Association on our noise 
at night project where they provided us with a helpful report and recommendations. 
 
The Foundation Trust consultation meant we had an opportunity to re-engage with a 
wide range of community groups including the Pride event for lesbian, gay, bisexual 
and trans people, Womankind, Council of Bristol Mosques and South Gloucestershire 
Disability Equality Action Group. 
 
The extensive programme of involvement and communication continues to engage 
patients, carers and the local community in the development of the new hospital at 
Southmead and we have also been working hard to encourage involvement from a 
wide range of people in plans for the future of Frenchay Hospital.   
 
The Trust has more than 500 volunteers and numbers are rising. Their duties include 
ward-based befriending, pathfinding, chaplaincy visits and massages as well as 
running refreshment centres, driving patients to appointments, putting on musical 
concerts and assisting nursing staff on the wards at meal times.  
 
Your involvement in what we do as a hospital helps us get it right for our patients.  
For more information about how you can get involved, please contact Juliet Winter, 
Patient and Community Engagement Manager, on 0117 323 6546 or email 
juliet.winter@nbt.nhs.uk 
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5. HOW WE’RE PERFORMING  
 
The Trust has a long standing commitment to improving the quality and safety of its 
services.  Since 2007 we have been active participants in the Safer Patient Initiative, 
funded by the Health Foundation and have continued to build on this work.  Over the 
last year we have been leading work in South West Quality and Safety Improvement 
programme. This work has enabled us to continue with our commitment to continue 
to reduce our mortality rates to one of the lowest in the country.     
 
Our priorities for improvement in 2011/12 
In addition to the extensive work going on in the Trust to improve the quality of 
patient care, NBT decided to give focus to 5 priority improvement projects for 
2011/12.  These were:  
 
1. Reducing harm from health care acquired infection 
We chose this priority because health care acquired infections cause significant harm 
and are a major concern to our patients.  Our aim was to continually reduce our 
rates of Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) bloodstream infections 
(bacteraemia) and Clostridium Difficile infections.  
 
2. Preventing deterioration 
We chose this because early recognition of a deteriorating patient is key in the 
management of their condition and what factors are causing them to become acutely 
unwell in hospital. The Trust uses a system called ‘Early Warning Scores’ (EWS). This 
calculates a score based on the patient’s key observations (such as blood pressure 
and pulse) and provides an indicator of how sick a patient is, enabling much better 
recognition of ill patients.  
 
3. Reducing falls  
We chose this because falls represent a significant number of the recorded incidents 
that occur in our hospitals. At the Trust we introduced a programme to reduce falls, 
including what we call a ‘falls bundle’.  This consists of a number of tools to help 
staff recognise patients at greater risk of a fall and then put in place preventative 
actions reducing the likelihood of a patient fall.   
 
4. Pressure ulcers    
We chose this because a pressure ulcer, also known as a bed sore, can be extremely 
distressing for patients. They cause pain and can prolong a patient’s time in hospital. 
 
5. Nutrition Screening 
We chose this because hospital meals are a concern for patients and especially for 
relatives when their partner or a family member is in hospital. Maintaining good 
nutrition and hydration, by eating and drinking well, is essential for the wellbeing of 
patients and helps their recovery. 
 
How did we get on with last year’s priorities? 
 
1. Reducing Harm from health care associated infection  
Unfortunately in 2011/12, there were 11 cases of MRSA bloodstream infections 
recorded within the Trust compared to six cases in 2010/11 and against our target of 
eight cases. Therefore, we did not achieve our target for improvement.  
 



The majority of the cases occurred in April to June 2011 and, after further scrutiny, 
the cases were extremely complex in nature. The Trust continues an unrelenting 
focus on all aspects of infection prevention and control practice. 
 
In contrast, during 2011/12, we were able to reduce the number of patients 
recorded as having C.difficile to 79 in comparison to 91 patients in 2010/11. This has 
exceeded the improvement target set out for us nationally of 113 cases.   We 
achieved this through: 
 

 Strengthening our infection prevention and control policies and processes to 
help staff deliver best practice 

 Ongoing clinical staff education programmes.  
 Monitoring compliance with antimicrobial prescribing  
 Caring for patients who developed C.difficile in a separate ward where staff 

have the skills and knowledge to provide the best care possible 
 Thoroughly investigating every patient who has contracted an HCAI, with the 

results reported to the Chief Executive, Medical Director and Director of 
Nursing 

 
The Trust is pleased with the progress made to reduce C.difficile infections, however 
we are focused on continually looking for improvements to reduce the number of 
infections acquired by patients cared for by the Trust. We remain both vigilant and 
committed to the challenge ensuring that further improvements are made over the 
next year.   
 
2. Preventing deterioration 
All inpatients at the Trust have their key observations (such as temperature, pulse, 
blood pressure) monitored according to our Observations Policy. This early 
recognition and management may prevent avoidable patient admissions to Intensive 
Care Unit (ICU) or prevent a heart attack. The Trust has also introduced an improved 
prescribing guide for oxygen treatment to ensure that oxygen is given appropriately. 
 
As a result, the Trust’s cardiac arrest rates are now below the national average, we 
have created a specific training programme and so far 71 percent of nursing staff 
have now been trained and unplanned admissions to ICU reduced from last year.  
 
Whilst we are seeing improvements, we know that we still have further work to do to 
ensure best practice is taking place across the Trust. To address this, in March 2012, 
we launched a series of patient safety events for our senior nursing and medical 
teams.  Based on the success of the pilot ward we now plan to roll out the 
Deterioration Prevention Package across all wards over the next six months. We aim 
to achieve more than 95 percent compliance with the Observation Policy and EWS 
best practice to further reduce cardiac arrests by another 30 percent by April 2013.  
 
3. Reducing falls 
Falls can have a devastating outcome for patients. Serious falls can result in bone 
fractures, increasing their time in hospital and in severe cases result in death. So 
preventing, and reducing, the number of falls, especially serious ones, is an 
important priority for the Trust. Not all falls are preventable but many falls can be 
avoided with good patient assessments, preventative interventions and the right 
training and support of staff. For example, bed rails are helpful for patients 



recovering from an anaesthetic or who are worried about falling out of bed in their 
sleep, but not helpful for patients who are mobile, confused or restless. 
 

 88 percent of nurses have completed training in falls prevention 
 Introduced falls champions for every ward  
 Over 90 percent of wards are regularly completing falls risk assessments and 

completing bed rails assessments when a patient is admitted to hospital 
 Implemented hourly comfort ward rounds  
 Identify learning for further preventative action when a fall takes place. 

 
This work has increased the awareness of the need to manage patient falls and has 
resulted in an increase in reporting. The areas that need greater focus include the 
assessment of patients at risk of falls, particularly in terms of how we manage 
confused patients and medication reviews. Recognising the importance of the 
achievements to date the Trust is committed to continuing with the improvement 
work and will be launching a series of safety events, including falls prevention for 
senior medical and nursing staff.   
 
4. Pressure ulcers    
Preventing pressure ulcers (bed sores) prevents pain, distress and avoids prolonged 
hospital stays. Over the last 12 months we have:  
 

 Improved staff education and the process for reporting pressure ulcers 
 Introduced more accurate measurement 
 Developed a ‘skin bundle’ to help staff identify patients at risk and put in 

processes to avoid ulcers and improve care 
 Purchased more pressure relieving equipment, 65 specialist mattresses, 75 

pairs of heel protectors and seat cushions.  
 
We are committed to continuing with our improvement work and this will include 
providing more training, interventions with ward sisters to identify improvements 
that can be made, e-learning modules for all clinical staff and a healthy heels 
campaign to raise awareness of how to keep patients’ feet healthy. 
 
5. Nutrition screening 
Good nutrition and hydration (eating and drinking well) is fundamental to health. In 
hospital it is particularly important because better-nourished patients recover from 
illness faster, have more resistance to infections and heal faster after surgery. 
 
Hospital food is always a subject of interest to patients and visitors and our Catering 
Department is one of only a few hospitals in the UK to have achieved a Soil 
Association award for its food. All inpatients are able to choose from a range of 
meals which meet their personal and dietary requirements.  
 
Sometimes patients are too unwell or frail to fully benefit from the high quality food 
that is produced.  We have made it a priority to undertake a malnutrition risk check 
as soon as people are admitted so that we can identify those people who are already 
malnourished or who, because of their condition, are at risk of becoming 
malnourished or dehydrated during their stay in hospital. We can then make sure 
each patient has a care plan to prevent malnutrition or dehydration. 
 



Our rates of malnutrition patient screening on admission rose steadily through the 
year and the process is now in place on all wards.  We have also introduced a 
system of red identifiers at mealtimes to help ward staff know which patients need 
extra help and encouragement to eat.    
 
All wards now have a designated nutrition champion whose role is to make sure that 
patient nutrition is always considered and a training programme for them has been 
instigated.  We are also developing an accessible menu with pictures for those 
patients with learning difficulties, and dementia.  
  
We are also looking at how we can help people with dementia, for example by using 
coloured crockery to help the patient recognise the plate and by offering a finger 
food menu rather than dishes that need to be eaten with a knife and fork.   
 
We continue to work with our volunteers to identify more people who can offer 
support and encouragement to patients at mealtimes and help them eat when 
necessary.   
 
Nursing Quality Assessment Tool achievements 
The Nursing Quality Assessment Tool (NQAT) examines the core fundamental 
standards of patient care as set down by the Department of Health. The process 
collects data from a real time patient survey questionnaire, review of patient 
documentation, observing nursing care and questioning of staff. Each audit is 
unannounced and centrally co-ordinated to ensure that the audit team allocated are 
independent of the directorate. 
 
The wards are allocated a rating which is a bronze award if their scores are 70-80 
percent, silver if 81-90 percent and gold award in 91– 100 percent. No award is 
given if the total score is below 70 percent.  
 
There has been a steady improvement from bronze to silver and gold awards during 
the year. At the end of March 2012 there were nine gold, 33 silver and two bronze 
wards. The Trust is committed that all ward areas will achieve a total audit score of 
greater then 80 percent (silver award). 
 
Our Priorities for Improvement for 2012/13 
 

 Further reducing infection, focusing on reducing urinary infections for patients 
with catheters and wound site infections 

 Ensuring patients are eating and drinking well 
 Involving and informing patients of treatment planned and keeping patients 

informed of anticipated discharge date 
 Increasing observations for most unwell patients. 

 
Progress against national targets  
To follow from Sue Watkinson  
 
 
 
 
 
 



6. PROGRESS ON NEW HOSPITAL  
 
Southmead Hospital redevelopment 
Excellent progress continues to be made on the new hospital at the Southmead site.   
 
The exterior of the building is now largely complete with both the clinical and the 
ward blocks being water tight.  The focus is now on fitting out the inside with all the 
partitions, cables, sockets and equipment. 
 
Pennant stone has been introduced onto the building.  This will wrap around the 
ward blocks.  This material reflects some of the Trust’s historic buildings such as 
Somerset, Westgate and Beaufort House which are also built from pennant stone. In 
conjunction with the Bath stone that is also being used on the building, this is 
helping to create a high quality finish to the exterior.  
 
A topping out ceremony was held in March which proved to be a real success.  
Twenty staff from Frenchay and Southmead had a full tour of the building and were 
able to get a sense of the spaces that they will be working in from 2014. Staff were 
impressed by the high quality of the hospital and the way it has been designed for 
patient care. Further site tours will take place up until hospital opening. 
 
The interior design of the hospital is progressing well.  Colours have been finalised 
for key spaces such as the concourse, reception areas and on walls in bedrooms and 
other spaces.  One side of the concourse will be very dramatic with interesting use of 
coloured glazing panels to create three distinct zones to help people find their way 
around the hospital.  Wood panelling around the stairways will soften the space and 
help to make the acoustics feel comfortable. 
 
The multi-storey car park is proving to be very successful for patients, staff and 
visitors and has helped to relieve the pressure on parking spaces.  A second multi-
storey car park will be built for visitors once the hospital is complete.  This will be 
very convenient as it will be attached to the hospital with access directly into the 
concourse.  
 
The Trust is very pleased with the attention that Carillion pays to sustainability and 
supporting local people and services.  Over 80 percent of the contractor’s labour 
force lives within 30 miles of the site and nearly 70 percent used sustainable modes 
of transport to get to work.  This includes car sharing, cycling and walking so this is 
keeping their carbon footprint down.   By the end of March 2012, 97 percent of 
waste was diverted from landfill which is an excellent achievement. 
 
Carillion is on target to have provided apprenticeship training to 50 people by the 
time the project is complete and in addition they continue to provide placements for 
homeless people as part of the Business Action on Homelessness. In March 2012, 
Carillion won a silver ‘Considerate Constructors’ award. 
 
2012 brings the start of the commissioning process which the Trust is calling ‘Move’.  
This process is about making sure everything is ready so that patients and staff can 
be moved safely into the new hospital.  Staff throughout the Trust will be engaged in 
this work. 
 
 



Frenchay Hospital Update 
Plans for the new Frenchay Health and Social Care Centre are beginning to take 
shape.   
 
The Trust is looking to work with possible third party partners to develop our plans 
for a health and social care centre at the site which will include the Community 
Hospital.  
 
We have had a wide range of organisations express an interest in working with us, 
but before we engage in more detailed discussions with them, South Gloucestershire 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) at the PCT wants to complete a review of the 
models of care for frail older people, patients with long term conditions and patients 
requiring urgent care.  
 
This will be very helpful to inform the discussions with our possible partners about 
the models of care for patients who will use the Frenchay Community Hospital.  The 
CCG should complete its review in July.  
 
Work has also started on what will happen to the land not required by the NHS once 
acute services move to Southmead in 2014.  
 
It has always been the Trust’s intention that we will sell this surplus land - the 
money from which will be ploughed back into the NHS. 
 
In preparation for disposal of the land, we have started to develop a master plan 
which will inform an outline planning application to South Gloucestershire Council for 
future potential different uses across the site in line with the Council’s emerging Core 
Strategy. 
 
We have been working with local people and the Council so they can voice their 
views on the existing site and we’ve begun to draw together initial ideas on what 
they would like us to consider as part of any future redevelopment.  
 
A public exhibition held in March saw more than 300 local people and staff come 
along to give us their views.  
 
Following, this first consultation event, a draft concept statement will be submitted to 
the Council for consideration. A further public exhibition will then be held to show 
how we have responded to the comments raised before an outline planning 
application is submitted later this year. 
 
Cossham Hospital Update 
The redevelopment of Cossham hospital continues which will mean the provision of a 
wide range of services to the local community.  Services will include x-ray, 
ultrasound, MRI, CT, outpatients, audiology and podiatry, a 24-place satellite renal 
dialysis unit and a midwife-led birth centre. The facilities are expected to be open in 
early 2013. 
 
Private patient unit  
We have started to explore the benefits of allowing an independent, private patient 
facility to be built on spare land on the Southmead site and would open in 2014.  
 



The Trust would benefit financially with the private provider paying us ground rent 
for the site and a share of the income generated, with the money invested back into 
the Trust’s NHS services. It could also be an additional source of income for our 
support services such as pathology. The development would bring employment 
opportunities for the Southmead area. 
 
The finer details on the building specification still have to be determined but the 
successful private partner will build, finance, own, manage and staff the new 
separate private facility. 
 
To start the process, we placed an advert in early 2012 in the Official Journal of the 
European Union (OJEU) to invite private providers to take part in the procurement 
process.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7. SUSTAINABILITY  
 
Our Sustainability aim is to reduce the impact of our operational activities on the 
local environments of the estate of North Bristol NHS Trust.  Our overall aim is to 
reduce our carbon footprint and CO2 emissions as well as associated costs.  In 
accordance with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual 
(FReM), North Bristol NHS Trust are including a section within the annual report on 
our sustainability performance during the 2011/12 financial year which shows the 
Trusts progress against the wider NHS Carbon Reduction Programme.  This section 
highlights both our successes and those areas where improvements can be made. 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust is also working with Carillion on the development of a 
significant building project of a large acute multifunctional facility which will replace 
the two existing large acute hospitals. 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust has since late 2008 had in place a programme aimed at 
improving both its environmental and sustainable performance and reduce its 
environmental impact.  This was developed by the Environmental Management Unit 
under the Treading Lightly Campaign (TLC).  The Campaign addresses a different 
subject every quarter and publicises the theme and the environmental (and financial) 
reasons for taking action via newsletters, emails, posters, manned and stand-alone 
displays, themed days (e.g. Energy Day), lunch-time drop in sessions, training, 
competitions, a dedicated website, the Environmental Awareness Representatives 
(EARs) network and annual Treading Lightly Fairs.  It also provides awareness 
training for its 230 plus EARs.  In recognition of the work undertaken, Treading 
Lightly received the NHS Green Champion Award at the Green Apple Awards in 
November 2011. This was the top award given in the NHS category! The campaign 
stood out from other entries for the all encompassing approach and range of projects 
that we have undertaken.  
 
In addition we signed up to the Forum for the Future - West of England Carbon 
Challenge which is an independent non-profit who work globally with business and 
government to inspire new thinking, build creative partnerships and develop practical 
solutions. The aim is to share what we and other members have learned so that 
others can benefit – and act. We aim to work with our local partners in improving 
our sustainable profile. 
 
Future Strategy 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust will continue to address its sustainability performance 
through the development of its Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP).  
The SDMP will be used to drive the Treading Lightly Campaign and requirements of 
the Good Corporate Citizenship. Adapting to climate change is becoming more 
important and poses a challenge to both or service delivery and infrastructure in the 
future.  We need to asses the risk posed by climate change and raise its importance 
throughout the organisation. 
 
 
 
Data sets 
 



There are limitations with the accuracy of the non-financial sustainability data 
provided within this section as we continue to adapt the way in which the data is 
collated.  Due to the timing of this years report, some ERIC data was not available, 
and in some cases financial estimations have been made to provide annual reporting 
data as allowed by the FReM guidance.  All data provided is in line with the annual 
ERIC reporting process.  Any amendments to our data will be made available in next 
year’s annual report and accounts.   
 
Summary GHG Emissions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

This year has seen improvements in both consumption (MWh) and subsequent CO2e 
emissions (Scopes 1,2).  For this year all our reported CO2 emissions are from gas 
and electricity, as currently we are unable to capture travel related emissions.  
Significant gas reductions were recorded at our Southmead site, due in part to 
improved monitoring and measuring, steam trap surveys and infrastructure changes 
due to building changes on site in preparation for the new hospital. 

 
The Trust continues to work to the NHS 10% target reduction from 2007/08 baseline 
figure for total carbon emissions (composing energy, travel and procurement).   We 
are looking to improve reporting against all areas for the 2012/13 report.  As part of 
this the Trust has signed up to the NHS Goods & Services Carbon Footprint Project in 
association with Shared Business Services.  The aim of the project is to help inform 
decision making, revealing where carbon hot spots are and which suppliers and 
types of goods and services purchased contribute to the Trusts total carbon 
footprint.  We hope to be able to report back on this in next years report.  

 

Waste 
We are unable to report 2011/12 waste figures as the figures are not currently 
available. As a Trust, over the 2010/11 period we generated 2392 tonnes of waste 
and of this recycled 1343 tonnes, which is a 56% recycling rate of all waste 
generated.  Over the year we have worked hard to improve the segregation of 
waste into its appropriate European Waste Catalogue and Hazardous codes in order 
to improve the Trust’s recycling percentage.  A particular area for focus is to 
improve cardboard recycling as internal audits have highlighted that this is still an 
area for improvement.  The Trust will continue to introduce appropriate segregation 
and recycling schemes and will work with clinical groups advising on disposal 
methods when new products are introduced. 

 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

T
on

ne
s 

C
O

2e

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

M
W

h

Other

Rail Electricity

Road Other

Air Renewables

Gas Coal

Electricity Gas

Oil



During 2011/12 due to the transition to the new hospital we have generated more 
landfill waste due to areas de-cluttering and moving out, this trend will continue up 
until the opening of the new hospital. We have introduced better segregation on 
clinical areas diverting more waste to landfill and recycling streams and will continue 
to do so on an ongoing basis. 

 

In addition, at Frenchay Hospital, the Trust has invested in a Waste Food Digester, 
which through bi-actions reduces the volume of solid food waste from the site.  
Results from its operations will be closely monitored over the coming year. 

 
Water 
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We have made significant improvements over the last year in water management, 
and have been working closely with Bristol Water to achieve this.  Due to online 
access of metering data, we have been able to identify consumption trends, and as 
such this has helped to identify sudden increases in consumption, which then has 
allowed the Estates Department to engage with specialists to rectify problems 
encountered.  We have also carried out ‘night checks’ to help identify water wastage 
when the water usage for our buildings should be reduced. 
 
As part of Bristol Waters pipe upgrade works we have reviewed our internal systems 
and again carry out system upgrades where required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8. MAKING NBT A GREAT PLACE TO WORK  
 
Ensuring equality and diversity for our staff 
During the year, we have been working to implement the NHS’ Equality Delivery System 
(EDS). This will enable the Trust to meet the requirements of the public sector equality 
duty, introduced in the Equality Act 2010. 
 
Equality and diversity is at the heart of everything we do and defines who we are so 
we can continue to provide patient services which are non-discriminatory - treating 
everyone consistently with dignity and respect. 
 
Our Trust Equality and Diversity Committee and the Staff Equality Group routinely 
meet to discuss issues and review progress against the EDS and Equality objectives. 
 
A new and exciting initiative, the BME (Black Minority Ethnic) Mentoring project, was 
launched in October 2011, where BME staff, in posts up to Band 7, were invited to take 
part while all other members of staff, in Bands higher than 7, were asked to be their 
mentors.  
 
Last year’s Staff Attitude Survey showed that disabled staff felt they were not being 
treated appropriately. More was done to advertise the work being undertaken for them 
and a ‘Positive about Disabled People’ statement was devised. Also a charter of ten 
standards was adopted for lesbian gay, bisexual and trans (LGBT) people.   
 
We celebrated history months for race, disability and LGBT people.   
 
Spiritual and Pastoral Care undertake initiatives to meet the needs of all faith groups 
and to ensure that appropriate end of life information is available to staff.  The team 
were commended on the support they give regarding infant deaths by a member of 
the South Gloucestershire LINKS group in November 2011.  
 
The Trust Board appointed two Equality Champions and signed up to the Equality Delivery 
System.  All submitted Board papers must consider equality matters. The Chief Executive, 
directors and other senior managers have been involved in a range of equality events.   

 
Listening to our staff 
The Staff Engagement Group has sponsored work to establish the Trust’s values.  
Whilst values are incorporated within the NHS Constitution, and restated within the 
Foundation Trust application, this additional work will be directed at involving staff 
throughout the organisation in translating these into meaningful statements and 
behaviours, which they will own.   

 
The results of the 2011 Staff Attitude Survey whilst disappointing in overall terms, 
gave the Trust encouragement that it was moving in the right direction, as 23 out of 
38 scores showed an improvement.  There will be no let up in the motivation to 
improve engagement with our staff, which will also help us fulfil the NHS Constitution 
pledges. 
  
Our top four ranking scores were: 
 

 Percentage of staff feeling valued by their work colleagues 
 Percentage of staff appraised in last 12 months 



 Percentage of staff believing the trust provides equal opportunities for career 
progression or promotion 

 Percentage of staff appraised with personal development plans in last 12 
months. 

 
Our bottom four ranking scores: 
 

 Percentage of staff having equality and diversity training in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff suffering work-related injury in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff suffering work-related stress in last 12 months 
 Percentage of staff working extra hours. 
 

We are committed to making meaningful and sustainable improvements in the Trust, 
by understanding the results, sharing these openly with staff and involving and 
including staff in developing a way forward at Directorate level.  
 
Protecting our staff 
We continue to work hard in partnership with Staffside to develop and update new 
key policies, which clearly sets out management and staff responsibilities, including: 
 

 Whistle blowing policy 
 Organisational change 
 Employment breaks 
 Disciplinary process 

 
We are committed to providing high quality care to patients within a safe 
environment and believe these policies give a framework for all staff which protects 
both them and the organisation.  
 
We meet regularly with Staffside, for consultation, negotiation, and to involve our 
Trade Union colleagues early in issues relating to potential organisational change 
 
Trust staffing numbers increased in April, following the transfer of 650 South 
Gloucestershire Community Health Services staff.  In addition, during the year we 
transferred staff from a South Bristol Renal Unit to the Trust.   
 
Delivering leadership skills to the Trust 
A ground breaking development programme (LEAD) introduced a new set of 
leadership skills to develop clinical and non-clinical leaders to shape the strategic 
initiative of the Trust by: 
 

 Identifying personal awareness, self awareness and development gaps 
 Embedding a ‘culture of coaching’ to support others through change and 

personal challenges 
 Developing the ‘right mind sets’ and adding essential skills in behavioural 

leadership, personal qualities, strategic thinking and leading others  
 
The Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) accredited coaching programme 
is now being offered through the Trust which provides first line managers with the 
opportunity to achieve the ‘Institute of Leadership and Management Level 3 Award in 
Workplace Coaching’ and to perform effectively.  In December, an awards ceremony 



for over 100 successful participants who achieved ILM qualifications during 2011 in 
team leading, first line management and Certificate in Management was held. 
 
We were commissioned with the University of the West of England’s Bristol Business 
School by the Strategic Health Authority Leadership Development team to recruit a 
second cohort of aspiring top leaders which started in September 2011.  A year long 
programme which is offered through two centres in the South West – Bristol and 
Exeter, is aimed at aspiring directors with sponsorship of their executive team who 
will be expected to deliver a service improvement project during their programme.   
 
Delivering improved streamlined workforce procedures to the Trust 
In the past year the Trust invested in a new industry-leading electronic recruitment 
system to improve the experience for applicants, recruiting managers and the central 
recruitment team.  This has seen an improvement in the quality of our applicants 
and a reduction in the time to hire of over four days.  In addition we have invested 
in an electronic Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) system which has seen the average 
processing time reduced from four to six weeks to three to four days -getting new 
staff into post quicker.  

During the year the central recruitment team using our new systems have supported 
over 17,000 applicants, 3,500 interviews and 1,000 appointed new staff. 

In the past year NBT eXtra (the Trust's service providing temporary workers) has 
filled a record number of shifts.  More than 92,000 nursing shifts have been filled by 
in the past 12 months representing an increase of over 30 percent on the previous 
year.  

A significant amount of work has been undertaken over the past year to improve the 
monitoring of junior doctors’ working hours.  This work has been undertaken in 
conjunction with Medical Staffing, the junior doctor and consultant body and the 
British Medical Association (BMA).  The Strategic Health Authority (SHA) formally 
thanked the Trust for its significant work in this area. 

Developing Our Staff 
NBT is committed to developing our staff, and providing learning opportunities to 
support development across all levels of staff. 

We have a Learning & Development Agreement and the Chief Executive has received 
a letter from the Strategic Health Authority and the Deanery commending the Trust 
on the evidence of a strong commitment to education in the organisation. 

94 percent of staff had an appraisal and development review during 2011, 
maintaining the high standards of previous years 

We are committed to providing significant e-learning opportunities, and 78 modules 
are now available covering mandatory, statutory and patient safety training. 
Individuals have the option of doing e-learning on alternate update ‘anniversaries’. A 
new e-learning module on falls prevention developed by NBT experts and clinicians in 
partnership with UWE has been successfully integrated and is now available for all 
clinical staff. 
 
The Trust is a partner in the South West Apprenticeship Consortium and recently 
hosted the South West Health Apprenticeship Awards, as recognition of our 



achievement in 2011 when we won the South West Macro Employer of the Year 
award. The Trust employs over 100 apprentices in a variety of roles from healthcare 
support work to business administration. The Trust’s aim is to expand this into a 
number of other areas such as IT.  
 
The BNSSGB (Bristol, North Somerset, South Gloucestershire and Bristol) Mandatory 
& Statutory Training Group, led by NBT, has agreed across the organisations the 
requirements for mandatory and statutory training in a protocol and framework. This 
gives a structure where the training delivery in other organisations can be recognised 
to ensure transferability. It is expected to extend the topics covered, and formalise 
the current transfer of clinical skills experience under a similar agreement.  The work 
will contribute to the development of a national skills passport as NBT is represented 
on the National Stakeholder group with Skills for Health.  

All staff can sign up now and take advantage of learning content available to 
everyone on the Learning4Health e-learning platform.  Learning content is being 
increased to 1,401 ‘learning objects’, by March 2012.  NBT is piloting the platform 
while it is in development stages, and focussing on the dementia programme.   

 

The Trust has had a successful external inspection for the Key Skills programme, 
(literacy and numeracy) offered to staff on Bands 1-4.  The external verifier was 
impressed with the robust recruitment assessment process, individual learner support, 
classroom sessions, the final successful submission of portfolios and examinations and 
we will get certification for all completed learners from now on.  Importantly, the 
learners’ feedback was also good.  Key skills (literacy, numeracy and ICT), remain 
challenging for candidates but are an essential component for the apprenticeships 
programme. Recruitment process for staff includes assessment of literacy and 
numeracy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9. WORLD LEADING RESEARCH  
 
NBT has a significant and growing research portfolio with more than 500 researchers 
delivering more than 500 research studies each year including 60 commercial trials.   
 
Established research strengths in neurosciences, diabetes, respiratory medicine, 
urology, musculoskeletal and infection and immunology continue to be supported 
alongside emerging strengths in anaesthetics, obstetrics and gynaecology and plastic 
surgery research.  
 
We continue to deliver our three existing highly prestigious National Institute for 
Health Research programme grants, each worth nearly £2million.alongside nine 
other National Institute for Health research grants, worth an additional £1million.  
 
During 2011/12 NBT has reviewed and updated its research strategy. The following 
aims outline our priorities for the next five years: 
 

 Aim 1: Be world-leading - Actively participate in the establishment of Bristol 
Health Partners, in which world-class clinical services, research and 
innovation and teaching are strategically and operationally integrated across 
the city 

 
 Aim 2: Deliver high quality research of direct patient benefit - Support our 

staff to deliver high quality translational and applied health services research 
of direct patient benefit 

 
 Aim 3: Embed a research culture in clinical service delivery - Develop a 

culture across NBT in which research and innovation are embedded in and 
aligned with routine clinical services, leading to significant health gains and 
efficiency improvements in health services delivery 

 
 Aim 4: Increase research income - Increase the income from research and 

innovation and use that income in support of our strategic aims. 
 
Collaborating across the city 
In 2012 a formal collaboration, Bristol Health Partners, has been established between 
the four NHS Trusts serving the Bristol area (Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health 
Partnership NHS Trust, NHS Bristol, North Bristol NHS Trust and University Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust), the two Universities in Bristol (University of Bristol and the 
University of the West of England) and Bristol City Council. This unified and focused 
approach will deliver healthier lives, earlier prevention of illness/disease, and better 
integration of healthcare across Bristol. Bristol Health Partners has a tripartite 
mission to integrate clinical service delivery, research and innovation, education and 
training across the organisations.  
 
Building a strong research infrastructure 
The detailed planning for the second phase of the Learning & Research building has 
commenced and will complete the plan to bring the majority of research and learning 
facilities onto the Southmead site.  Combined with the integrated research space in 
the new hospital and plans to establish a dedicated clinical research facility at 
Southmead, this is providing an excellent opportunity for clinicians and academics to 
work even closer together to advance clinical research supporting NBT’s aim of 



enhancing our reputation as one of the UK’s leading NHS organisations in research 
and innovation. Planning permission for the extension was granted in April and work 
will start in the autumn. It is expected to be ready in time for the opening of the new 
hospital in 2014. 
 
NBT has worked hard to sustain and grow a strong research infrastructure of 
professionals including over 120 research nurses, midwives and allied health 
professionals, to work on developing new and delivering existing research studies.  
Through the efforts of this research workforce nearly 5,000 patients have been able 
to participate in nationally recognised clinical research studies at NBT during 
2011/12, along with many more involved in more local research. 
 
Investing in developing new research to benefit patients 
NBT has been successful in attracting funding from the National Institute for Health 
Research (NIHR) to enable the identification and support of new researchers and 
research areas.  This funding has allowed researchers within NBT to dedicate time to 
develop new research ideas which will have a significant impact on the health and 
well-being of patients. This investment is now yielding benefits with four new NBT-
led grants having been won through NIHR competitive calls during 2011/12. 
 
Innovating together for patient benefit 
Innovation continues to thrive at NBT and a new strategy is in development to build 
on and connect existing activity to innovate at appropriate scale and pace across the 
organisation. Staff within NBT are encouraged to think creatively to address 
problems that arise within their every day working lives and in particular as we plan 
the new hospital.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10. FUNDRAISING  
 
A time to shine 
Support from hundreds of people and businesses have made it another successful 
year for Shine Together, the charity based at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals.  
 
Over £1.1 million has been raised by the charity in the past twelve months, along 
with further donations of £1 million in gifts left in wills for a number of departments 
across the hospitals.  
 
This year saw the launch of our Christmas Cracker fund with £100,000 of donations 
being distributed to help patients and wards in the greatest need. We were also 
delighted to see hundreds of runners attend our 6th annual fun run in aid of our 
Prostate Cancer fund at Southmead Hospital. 
 
Mum’s the Word and A Thousand Smiles  
Over 100 mums, dads and children stepped out for a four mile sponsored walk called 
‘From Here to Maternity’ in August in support of Southmead Hospital Maternity Unit. 
The funds raised will go to the Mum’s the Word appeal helping redevelop the unit. 
 
An appeal was launched for 1,000 photos to be donated to the charity to make up a 
mosaic picture which will be displayed in the maternity unit at Southmead Hospital. 
 
The project called A Thousand Smiles has received support from hundreds of Mums 
and Dads who have had babies at the hospital. It also has the backing of Writer, 
actor and co-creator of ‘The Office’, Stephen Merchant who was born at the Hospital 
in the 1970s. 
 
Stephen has sent in a picture of himself aged just five months old and said, “This is a 
great way to celebrate being part of the history of Southmead Hospital, and to raise 
awareness of the fantastic work of the maternity unit.” 
 
Christmas Cracker 
£100,000 has been given to 34 hospital departments and community services at 
North Bristol NHS Trust in a charitable Christmas advent countdown. Up to £5,000 
was given each day in December to allow wards to buy equipment to help improve 
care and support for patients. 
 
Runners donate £35,000 for prostate cancer fund 
Over 600 runners braved windy and rainy conditions in September to raise money for 
the Bristol Urological Institute at Southmead Hospital. Each of the participants in the 
Run for the Future event helped boost donations to the fund which care for men with 
prostate cancer. 
 
John Lewis raises £12,000  
The Shine together charity at Southmead and Frenchay hospitals is celebrating a 
milestone thanks to the support of staff at John Lewis Cribbs Causeway. Over the 
past four years the company has supported a number of charity initiatives at the 
hospitals and the level of its support has now passed £12,000. Liz Mihell, managing 
director, John Lewis Cribbs Causeway said “Working closely with ‘Shine together’ 
over the past four years has given us a real opportunity to make a difference to 



people in the surrounding area. We hope this partnership can continue to grow and 
succeed as it has so far.” 
 
Donor milk bank launches  
The South West’s first human milk bank has been officially opened at Southmead 
Hospital thanks to over £70,000 of donations to the Precious Drops appeal. The 
money has been used to create the milk bank at Southmead’s maternity unit which 
will supply donor breast milk to premature babies in the hospital’s neonatal intensive 
care unit. A range of fundraising events were held to raise the funds including a 
charity zip wire, dragon boat event, ice skating and a team which competed in the 
Bristol 10k. 
 
Bristol to Italy cycle challenge  
A Bristol man, who broke his back in two places, lead a team of intrepid cyclists from 
Bristol to Italy in a one thousand mile charity cycle ride for Shine Together. Dave 
Hart got back in the saddle after a long rehabilitation and raised thousands of 
pounds for our hospital charity, in the cycle challenge across Western Europe. 
  
Looking to the future 
We are so delighted to be supported by so many groups, organisations and 
individuals across Bristol and beyond. 
 
Our plans for the coming months include: 
 

 Ride Back in Time, a vintage cycle event from Bath to Bristol raising funds for 
Shine Together 

 
 Run for the Future, Bristol’s biggest family fun run on the Downs in aid of 

Prostate Cancer Care and Research at Southmead Hospital 
 

 A new Christmas fund for 2012 in support of staff and patients, with the aim 
of giving to areas of the hospitals where the need is greatest 

 
 A charity abseil which will support wards and departments across the 

hospitals 
 

 Sailing on the Matthew, the replica of John Cabot’s famous ship, in aid of the 
Mum’s the Word appeal. 

 
Thank you to everyone who has supported Shine Together and all of our appeals and 
funds. Your support has changed the lives of many of our patients and their families, 
and has enhanced the care and support our staff are able to give every day. 
 



 
 
 

Report to Trust Board – May 2012  
 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

Title: Governance and Risk Management Committee Report 
 
Purpose of paper:  To report the key decisions, assurances and risk issues addressed at 

the meeting of the Governance and Risk Management Committee 
(G&RMC) held on 2nd May 2012. 

 
For Discussion and Information 

 
Executive Summary: A summary of the meeting is attached as an appendix to provide the 

Trust Board with assurance that the G&RMC is conducting its 
business in a robust manner. It also provides opportunity for board 
members to triangulate the assurance and risk issues covered with 
information received directly at the Board, or within the normal course 
of their duties. 

 
 Key areas discussed included; 

 
Annual Governance Statement – this is referred to separately on the 
board agenda 
 
Membership – named deputies to be allowed to attend G&RMC in 
special circumstances 
 
Inpatient Survey – priorities for action were approved and this is 
referred to separately on the Board agenda 
 
Risk Management Systems – agreed that for 2012/13 the Assurance 
Framework be assimilated with the Trust Risk Register and any 
significant risks escalated from the directorates into a Strategic Risk 
Register. It was also agreed that the Trust’s risks will be assessed in 
line with the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) recommended 
approach. The Trust’s Risk Strategy will be updated and brought back 
for future board approval as part of broader risk management 
development work in the Trust. 
 
Southmead Endoscopy Unit – a proposal to accept loss of 
accreditation from the Joint Advisory Group is addressed in the 
appendix 

  
 
Action Required:  Trust Board is requested to:  
 

Review the work of the Governance and Risk Management 
Committee, discuss any appropriate issues 
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Key Risks: Demonstration of an adequate process for assuring the Board that 
objectives can be achieved and any governance processes and 
compliance issues are dealt with is important for the safety of 
patients, the Trust’s own health as an organisation and for those 
outside bodies with statutory obligations to oversee healthcare 
providers. Failure to achieve this could bring financial penalties. 
 

Impact on Patients: Indirect impact on the safety of patients and demonstration to 
patients and the public of the Trust’s ability to maintain that safety. 
 

Quality and Safety  
Standards: 

Impacts on all CQC registration and other bodies’ standards. 

Financial Issues 
considered: 

There are no extra financial 
issues. 

Equality Impact 
Assessment: 

None 
Undertaken 

Legal Issues Considered as part of 
compliance issues. 

Sustainability 
Assessment 
Completed: 

An inherent 
part of the 
assurance 
process. 

 
Presented by:  Ruth Brunt, Chief Executive & Chairman of G&RMC 
Prepared by: Nick Stibbs, Corporate Services Manager & Paul Cresswell, Head of 

Compliance 
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  Appendix 
Report of Governance and Risk Management Committee Meeting 

2 May 2012 
 

 
1. Decisions Made/Requested 

 
Exec. 
lead 

 The Committee approved; 
 

a) the attendance of designated deputies at G&RMC under special 
circumstances 

b) the adoption of a revised CRB checking system with a phased 
implementation 

c) the adoption of the NPSA risk matrix for scoring risks 
d) the content of an effectiveness survey for issue to all Board members 

on-line. 
 

 
 
 
 
HH 
 
M-NO 

 
 
2. Assurance Reports Directly reviewed by GRMC 

 
Exec. 
lead 

  
Medicines Assurance  
Following the mainly positive assurances received at GRMC in March, 
clarification was sought on how medicines management formally reports to 
the Board and this will be discussed by the executives and recommendations 
made to the next meeting.  
 
Cellular Pathology Quality  
The process to assure the Board of the quality of the Cellular Pathology 
service was approved with expert advice being sought on the approach and 
depth of reporting. 
 
Emergency Planning 
A compliance matrix summarising the current level of emergency planning 
against the Civil Contingencies Act requirements and health care standards 
was noted. Of the 16 areas, three were largely rated amber (none red) and 
these referred to the provision of a Mobile Response Team in the Avon area 
(and regionally) and planning for major incidents and chemical, biological, 
radiological and nuclear incidents when the new hospital was running. 
 
NHSLA Assessments 
Good progress has been made on the NHSLA Maternity CNST and general 
Risk Management Standards work programmes. Maternity remains on target 
for Level 3 assessment in June 2012 and general standards for Level 3 
assessment late in 2013.  
 
Research and Innovation MHRA Inspection 
An update on actions following the inspection by the Medicines Healthcare 
products Regulatory Agency of four clinical trials in 2011 showed that only 
one preventative action was required for one of the ‘major’ findings and five 
of the nine ‘other’ findings had been completed. 
 
Central Alerts 
The report on Central Alerts for the last quarter of 2011/12 showed that only 
eleven of the 18 new alerts were applicable to NBT and none remained 
beyond their deadline. 

 
 
RB 
 
 
 
 
 
CB  
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2. Assurance Reports Directly reviewed by GRMC 
 

Exec. 
lead 

 
Information Governance 
The final submission score for the Information Governance Toolkit for 
2011/12 was 84% which placed the Trust in joint fourth place nationally. 
 

 
 
3. Assurances Received from Sub-Committees Exec. 

lead 
  

Clinical Audit Committee 
Positive assurances were received that delivery of the Clinical Audit 
Programme for 2011/12 met the Trust requirements and that 91% of all 
specialties had a named clinical audit lead. 
 

 
 
 

 Clinical Risk Committee  
The latest NPSA/NRLS report showed an improvement in reporting incidents 
and provisional data for the last half of 2011/12 suggested NBT would be in 
the highest quartile for reporting volumes in the next report. 
 

 

 Clinical Effectiveness Committee 
The CEC processes for policies, procedures and interventional procedures 
supported all CQC, NHSLA and commissioning requirements, the CQUIN 
target for VTE risk assessments had been achieved, all NCEPOD studies 
were responded to within required timescales and performance on NICE 
Technology Appraisal Guidelines and NICE guidance continued to be rated 
Green. 
 
Patient Experience Group 
Actions are being implemented following a LINk meeting on discharge and 
likewise on the Inpatient and Outpatient surveys. 
 
Control of Infection Committee  
MRSA and C Diff bacteraemia had both reduced in the last three quarters of 
2011/12 and CSSD had achieved its three yearly accreditation by the British 
Standards Institute. 
 

 

 
4. Key Risk Areas Discussed: 

 
Exec. 
lead 

  
Complaints 
In quarter 4, complaints increased by 59% compared to last year’s period and 
30% for the year overall. The transfer of clinic and patient data problems due 
to the implementation of Cerner was the main reason. In the same quarter 
the number of compliments was higher but over the year they decreased. 
 
Southmead Endoscopy 
Southmead was visited by the Joint Advisory Group in 2009 and 2010, which 
made comments about the endoscopy services, some of which have been 
addressed. Physical areas of concern, included the overall size of the unit, 
lack of gender separation immediately pre-procedure, no barrier between 
reception and recovery and lack of pre-admission cubicles. 
 
The Committee was advised that the first two of these points has been fully 
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4. Key Risk Areas Discussed: 
 

Exec. 
lead 

addressed but the unit is about to lose some of its toilet facilities to make 
room for the new hospital entrance, there is still a shortage of private space 
and no plans for the barrier between reception and recovery. There are no 
concerns about the safety or quality of endoscopic procedures. 
 
The Committee approved the proposal that no further physical adjustments 
be made to the Endoscopy unit on the grounds that the costs outweighed the 
benefits between now and the new hospital being opened, even though this 
would prevent accreditation by JAG. Consultation with JAG will take place to 
ensure accreditation for the new hospital and that its requirements are met at 
any potential unit at Cossham.  
 
Clinical Audit Committee  
Availability of notes to support approved clinical audit activity and recent 
clinical alerts is a concern and will be exacerbated when preparing for the 
NHSLA Maternity assessment. 
 
Clinical Risk Committee 
An incident regarding two directorates was delayed three months in reporting 
and two other incidents breached the deadline for submission of root cause 
analyses.  
 
Health and Safety Committee 
The Committee has been informed that many staff are not taking meal 
breaks. Discussions would be held with Human Resources about whether 
this could be included in appraisal paperwork and further research made into 
the prevalence. 
 
Clinical Effectiveness Committee  
The existing Document Management Service is no longer considered fit for 
purpose but the Committee heard that the SharePoint based replacement 
should be available for wider use in July. 
 
Cancer Services Committee 
The lack of an electronic chemotherapy prescribing system was highlighted 
but the Committee noted that a business case was to be put to the Capital 
Planning and Monitoring Group to use some of the capital monies made 
available by the Department of Health. A second concern related to the lack 
of reports and the quality of PET scans from the Cheltenham unit. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MB 
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Report to Trust Board – May 2012 
 
 

Title: Audit Committee Report to Board 

Purpose of paper: To inform the Board on issues approved and discussed by the Audit 
Committee at its meetings on 2nd February and 18th April 2012 

 

For Discussion 

Executive Summary:   

Learning Disability and 
Safeguarding Adult 
Issues 

The Committee noted that risks regarding health care experience 
for people with learning disabilities and other adults with 
safeguarding needs had received considerable national exposure. 
Within the Trust it considered that there were adequate ongoing 
assurance processes in this area but requested specific updates 
on actions following Internal Audit (IA) reports 

Medical Equipment 
Decontamination 

Following an IA report the Committee considered there were 
adequate ongoing assurance processes reporting ultimately to the 
Governance and Risk Management Committee on all 
decontamination issues 

Terms of Reference 

 

The Committee terms of reference already seen by the Board 
were approved  

Board Governance IA presented an evaluation of the actions taken on governance in 
the Trust since its report in February 2011 and the Committee 
agreed that it should revalidate the position for the June meeting. 
The Committee also approved the Chairman’s letter to the 
Auditors outlining the actions taken by the Committee to 
understand the management processes that gave it assurance 
about the effectiveness of governance in the Trust 

Effectiveness Review  Actions following the effectiveness survey of the Committee were 
approved 

External Audit Plan The Audit plan for the 2011/12 financial statements was approved 
at a cost of £159,000 

Draft Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion 

It was noted that that for the fifth year in a row the Head of internal 
Audit Opinion was of ‘significant assurance’. The Committee 
requested an addition to the Opinion regarding the implementation 
of the Cerner Millennium patient administration system and the 
final version will be viewed by the Board at its special meeting on 
6th June  

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

The Committee approved some changes to the draft Annual 
Governance Statement before it was seen by the Governance and 
Risk Management Committee and the final version is on the Board 
agenda separately 

Annual Report The Annual Report of the Committee is attached as an appendix 



 
 

Medium and Long Term 
Savings Plans 

The Committee noted the success in recent years of the annual 
CRES programme but agreed that the Board should have greater 
transparency regarding savings plans beyond the succeeding year 

External Auditors The Committee noted that Grant Thornton had won the tender for 
providing public body audits in the South West and would formally 
take over from the Audit Commission in October 2012. 

Counter Fraud Work Plan A work plan for Counter Fraud services for 2012/13 was approved 
at a cost equivalent to 2011/12 and, therefore, a reduction to 136 
days (17.5%) because of the rise in the day rate 

Strategic Internal Audit 
Work Plan 

The general outline of the IA work plan for 2012/13 was approved 
subject to priority listing by the executive team of its elements. It 
included a reduction of 10% (to 600) in the number of days to 
maintain the same costing as 2011/12 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report giving it assurance on 
the governance systems within the Trust. 

Key Risks: Without a system to monitor governance processes the Board would lack assurance 
that the organisation was a going concern and achieving its targets  

Impact on 
Patients: 

All systems monitored by the Audit Committee relate directly and indirectly to the 
delivery of patient care outcomes and good experience 

CQC Outcome: Outcomes 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 16 and 
21 

Responsible 
Committee: 

Audit Committee 

Financial Issues 
considered: 

As indicated Equality Issues 
Considered: 

Considered 
throughout 

Legal Issues: Considered throughout. Sustainability 
Assessment 
Completed: 

No 

 

 
Presented by: Ken Guy – Non-Executive Director 
Prepared by: Nick Stibbs – Corporate Services Manager 



 
 

Appendix 
Audit Committee Annual Report 2011/12 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 
This is the sixth Annual Report presented by the Audit Committee of the Trust. The report 
sets out the work of the Committee for the financial year 2011/12. 

 
2. Remit and Terms of Reference 

 
The Codes of Conduct and Accountability (1995) set out the requirement for all NHS Trusts to 
establish an Audit Committee. Traditionally the role of the Audit Committee has been to 
provide a central mechanism to ensure that effective internal controls are in place and to offer 
independent scrutiny on the workings of the Trust’s executive team. 

 
With the introduction of significant health care reform, most notably the creation of 
Foundation Trust’s, Audit Committees have adopted a wider remit. This new role seeks to 
better support the working of the Board by way of independent monitoring, follow up and 
reporting on the adequacy of all governance processes, risk management activity  and, in 
particular, the assurances necessary to meet the organisation’s business objectives. In 
recognition of this the Committee was renamed Audit and Assurance in 2009/10. The remit 
regarding assurance has now become so wide and its priority within the Health Service so 
much higher, particularly in regard to clinical governance, that the Trust established a 
Governance and Risk Management Committee early in 2010 to oversee this area but the 
Audit Committee retains the role of assuring itself, and the Board, that adequate systems are 
in place across all its functions for the Trust to fulfill its objectives. During the 2011/12 year 
the Board formally revised all its committee terms of reference to take into account its 
objective of becoming a Foundation Trust in 2012/13 and Assurance was dropped from its 
title.  

 
The Audit Committee met on four scheduled occasions during 2011/2. 

 
3. Membership 

 
Membership of the Committee has remained unchanged over the year with Mr Ken Guy the 
chairman and Andrew Nield and Nick Patel as members. It has, therefore, retained its 
considerable NHS and commercial financial, risk and leadership expertise. 

 
A number of senior Trust staff actively support the Audit Committee through regular 
attendance at meetings. This includes the Director of Finance and the Head of Finance. From 
the last meeting the new Head of Compliance (formerly the Head of Internal Audit) has begun 
to attend. Papers for each meeting are distributed to Audit Committee members only but 
every non-executive is invited to attend if they wish and papers are available if requested. 
The Corporate Services Manager provides support to the Audit Committee. In addition, the 
External Auditors, the Audit Commission, attend each committee meeting and actively 
engage in the work of the committee throughout the year. Internal Audit and Counter Fraud 
services for the Trust are provided by Audit South West and the Chief Internal Auditor has 
attended every meeting mostly with the Head of Internal Audit and the Local Counter Fraud 
Specialist.  

 
The Audit Committee is able to request the attendance of any staff member to further its work 
as it considers appropriate. During 2011/2 the Director of Assurance, Information and 
Technology attended the April meeting, the Director of Nursing the June and February 
meetings, the Director of Purchasing and Supply and the Associate Director of HR and 
Development the June meeting and the heads of Strategic Workforce Planning and Clinical 
Governance the October meeting. They all provided input into key reports. The Director of 
Finance normally attends all meetings. Attendance by the members is shown in the table 
below: 



 
 

 
 

 
Member Attendance 
Ken Guy Four meetings 
Andrew Nield Three meetings
Nick Patel Three meetings

 
4. External Audit Matters 

 
The Audit Committee reviewed the work of the external auditors at each meeting and was 
presented with the annual audit letter in October 2011. 

 
During 2011/2 the following key areas were considered by external audit and reported:- 

 
4.1 Reference Costs 
 
The Audit Commission concluded that the Trust’s reference cost submission to the 
Department of Health for 2009/10 had been materially accurate and that the 
arrangements to support reference cost data quality in the future was adequate. 
 
4.2 Cost Improvement Plan 
 
A review of some areas of the Trust’s cost improvement plan had concluded that the 
arrangements for 2011/2 were, as a minimum, adequate and in some areas performing 
well. 
 
4.3 Annual Accounts 
 
The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the annual accounts for 2010/11. Also 
reviewed were accompanying reports highlighting key points including: 

 the effect of impairments on the income and expenditure account 
 the restatement of impairments incurred in 2009/10 following a change in 

Treasury guidance 
 changes in stock (linen and ASSD stocks) classifications 
 the breakeven duty and historical deficit position 
 going concern considerations 
 the Statement on Internal Control 
 SAS 70 assurance on controls and processes operated by Shared Business 

Services Ltd and on ESR 
 

The Audit Committee noted the achievement of the requirements in respect of 
breakeven, capital absorption rate, the external financing limit (EFL) and the capital 
resource limit (CRL). It was also noted that because guidance on the audit of Quality 
Accounts had not been received until late April, audit work on it had not been 
completed by the time of the audit opinion on the financial statements. As a result, the 
audit certificate, certifying completion of the 2010/11 audit was not issued until the audit 
of the Quality Accounts had been completed. 

 
4.4 Audit Plan 
 
The Audit Commission presented its audit plan for the 2011/2 financial statements to 
the February Committee which was approved. 
 
4.5 Other Issues 
 
The Audit Commission also referred to national reports such as the NAO’s report on 
spending on consumables, progress on the future of the Audit Commission itself, 



 
 

Monitor’s report on its risk evaluation of Transforming Community Services transactions 
and the Audit Commission’s briefing on Quality Accounts. 

5. Internal Audit 
 

The Audit Committee reviewed the work of the Audit South West internal audit team at each 
meeting. 

 
5.1 Internal Audit Plans and Progress Reports 
 
At the April 2011 meeting the Committee approved the Three Year Strategic Audit Plan 
and the Operational Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12. The level of internal audit input to 
the Trust in 2011/2 was 660 days – representing the same input as in 2010/11. Work 
was scheduled across a range of areas including core financial systems, organisational 
and corporate assurance and management/planning/ consultancy/follow-ups. The 
largest category approved by the Committee was on corporate assurance covering 
areas such as the new hospital and other capital developments, financial and service 
improvement plans and project management.  

Internal Audit Progress Reports were presented to the Audit Committee during the year as 
well as the 2010/11 Annual Internal Audit report, which included:- 

 The Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s systems 
of internal control during 2010/11 

 2010-11 performance statistics in respect of internal audit 
 The focus of its activities during the year 

The Committee noted and approved Internal Audit reports during the year and 
highlighted several points of interest where further audit work was requested and 
subsequently undertaken. Key examples of these being; 

 Safeguarding Adults 
 Learning Disabilities 
 Decontamination of Medical Equipment  
 Board Governance 

 
5.2 Counter Fraud  
 
The three year Counter-Fraud work plan was presented and approved. This plan 
included 165 days for 2011/2 – the same level of input as in 2010/11. 
 
The Annual Report of the Principal Counter Fraud Specialist was noted, the Committee 
received reports on the Counter Fraud Assurance Framework, its investigative work 
and proposals for proactive work and the Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy and 
Strategy was revised. 
 
Under the Qualitative Assessment system within the NHS Counter Fraud Services the 
local service was informed at the end of 2011 that it had been rated at Level 2 for 
2010/11, the same as in 2009/10. A review of this decision was requested but the CF 
service subsequently refused to alter its assessment. The system is being revised for 
2012/3.   
 

6. Other Assurances 
 

The Audit Committee reviewed a variety of other sources of information to provide assurance 
to the Board, these included:- 

 
6.1 Assurance Framework  
 
NHS organisations have been required to have an assurance framework that covers 
the strategic objectives approved by the Trust Board. This must demonstrate that a 



 
 

systematic process has been used to assess the risks, controls and sources of 
assurance to the Board in delivering these objectives and provide clear actions to 
address gaps in controlling these risks. The assurance framework underpins the 
Statement of Internal Control (now replaced by the Annual Governance Statement) and 
is included in the Trust’s external auditor’s assessment of ‘Use of Resources’.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion on Internal Control incorporates this process and 
this indicated that the Assurance Framework was deemed fit for purpose in 2010/11.  
Monitoring of in-year progress against the action plans to mitigate risks and gaps in 
assurance and controls identified in the Assurance Framework is undertaken by the 
Governance and Risk Management Committee.  

 
6.2 Compliance and Risk Assurance 
 
The Audit Committee paid close attention to the work of the Governance and Risk 
Management Committee in the development of an overarching framework for 
assurance and risk management particularly linking into Foundation Trust and Monitor 
requirements.  
 
6.3 Purchasing & Supplies 
 
At each meeting, the Committee received a report from the Bristol & Weston NHS 
Purchasing Consortium on single tender actions, in line with the Trust’s standing 
financial Instructions. A specific report from the Director of Purchasing and Supply on 
the Trust’s arrangements on purchasing consumables was received. 
 
6.4 Write-offs 
 
The Committee took an active role in considering debt write-offs at each meeting 
throughout the year. 
 
6.5 Projects 
 
The committee looked closely at progress on the E-Rostering project and its benefits 
realisation, the Staff Savings/Recruitment Programme, Medical Team job planning, the 
FT Project and the overall Building our Future Programme. 
 
6.6 Other Areas 
 
Specific reports were received on Clinical Audit and Quality Improvement, the Deloitte 
stage 1 report on the adequacy of financial systems against FT requirements, services 
for learning disabled patients and safeguarding issues, the decontamination of medical 
equipment, overall Board governance and the involvement of internal Audit in NQAT 
surveys. Reviews of Standing Financial Instructions and recommendations from the 
self-assessment of the Committee’s effectiveness were approved. The terms of 
reference of the committee were revised to take into account the imminent status as a 
Foundation Trust. 
 

7. Risk Evaluation and Assessment 
 

The Committee reviews its work plan on an annual basis taking into account the need to 
address the key risk areas across the Trust. In addition any risk areas that emerge 
throughout the year can be addressed within the overall framework of this work plan. 

 
Both internal and external audit apply a risk based approach to their plans, which are 
demonstrated through formal evaluations provided to the Audit Committee when presenting 
draft plans for each financial year. These evaluations are formed taking account of 
discussions with Trust Board members, review of the Assurance Framework and Trust Risk 
register and taking account of previous audit opinion. Close liaison between Internal and 



 
 

External Audit is undertaken in accordance with a formal protocol. This ensures that audit 
coverage is agreed in a manner that avoids omission or duplication of key risk areas. A 
degree of contingency time is reserved within the Internal Audit plan to address any 
emerging risk areas identified during the audit year. 

 
8. Training 

 
As part of the requirement to ensure the Audit Committee has the appropriate level of skills 
and expertise the Chairman of the Committee would normally assess the training needs of 
committee members. In July, however, the Board itself began, and continues through, a 
development programme run by an independent organisation. This included an individual 
360 degree assessment process, an analysis of board capabilities and the development plan 
to address any gaps. This showed that the Audit Committee members have appropriate 
knowledge in understanding public service values and accountability and skills in commercial 
issues, finance and financial accounting and business, programme/project and risk 
management. Risk management training of all the Board members is due to be carried out 
every two years and will take place either in a seminar following a Board meeting in 2012/3 
or as part of the Board Development Programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NS 8/5/12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Schedule of topics dealt with by the Audit & Assurance Committee in 2011/12 
 

Topic        Meeting 
 

Finance and Corporate Governance 
 

Committee Annual Report      Apr and Jun 11 
Compliance and Risk Assurance Apr 11 
E-Rostering Apr and Oct 11 
FRC Guidance Apr 11 
Standing Financial Instructions     Apr and Oct 11 
Audit South West Contract      Apr 11 
PbR Data Assurance      Apr 11 
Staff Savings/Recruitment Project     Jun 11 
Audited Financial Accounts 2010/11    Jun 11 
Trust Annual Report       Jun 11 
Procurement of Consumables     Jun 11 
Medical Team Job Planning      Oct 11 
FT Project Assurance      Oct 11 
FT Financial Systems Assessments    Oct 11 
Terms of Reference       Oct 11 and Feb 12 
Audit South West Annual Report     Oct 11 
Schedule of Meetings      Oct 11 
Building our Future Together Programme    Oct 11 and Feb 12 
Committee Work plan      Oct 11 
Effectiveness Review      Feb 12 
Understanding Management Processes    Feb 12 
South West Audit Meeting Report     Feb 12 
Deloitte Stage 1 FT Preparation     Feb 12 
Donated Asset Reserve      Feb 12 
Losses Register       Each meeting 
Purchasing Consortium Report     Each meeting 
Single Source Tenders      Each Meeting 

 
Local Counter Fraud 

 
Work Plan        Apr 11 
Annual Report   Jun 11 
Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy and Strategy   Jun 11 
Qualitative Assessment   Each meeting 
Progress Report       Each meeting 

 
External Audit 

 
ALE Continuation       Apr and Oct 11 
Cost Improvement Programme     Apr 11 
Reference Costs       Apr 11 
Annual Audit Fee       Apr 11 and Feb 12 
Audit Outline Plan       Apr 11 and Feb 12 
Annual Governance Report      Jun 11 
Annual Audit Letter       Oct 11 
Progress Report       Each meeting 

 
Internal Audit 

 
Strategic 3 Year Plan      Apr 11 
Operational Audit Plan      Apr 11 and Oct 10 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion     Jun 11 
Annual Report       Jun 11 



 
 

Clinical Audit and Quality Improvement    Jun and Oct 11 
NQAT Participation       Feb 12 
Systems for dealing with patients with learning disabilities  Feb 12    
Safeguarding Processes for Adults     Feb 12    
Decontamination of Medical Equipment    Feb 12 
Board Governance Processes     Feb 12 
Progress and Performance Report     Each meeting 
Audit Report Summaries      Each meeting 
Implementation of Recommendations    Each meeting 

 
 



North Bristol NHS Trust 
Trust Board 31 May 2012 

 
Use of the Trust’s Seal from 12/1/11-18/4/12 

 
Standing Orders require that the Trust Board will receive a report on the use of the Trust 
Seal.  The Trust’s seal has been used on the following occasions:- 
 
Register Ref. No. Date Description of document sealed 
 
378 12/1/2011 Rectification of Southmead Property Title 
 
379 12/1/2011 Lease of part of AOC, Southmead to UoB 
 
380 12/1/2011 Diabetologia Premises lease to UoB forming part of 

AOC, Southmead 
 
381 12/1/2011 Land registry transfer of part AOC, 
  Southmead, to NBT to AOC 
 
382 2/2/2011 Minor works contract with Hemmings for road repair 

works at Frenchay x2 
 
383 28/4/2011 Rectification of Clevedon Hospital Property Title 
 
384 17/5/2011 Renewal of lease to BRACE for use of premises at 

Frenchay 
 
385 24/5/2011 Transfer of Orchard View from NBT to Treasure 

Homes 
 
386 30/6/2011 Deeds of Variation re Unit 9, Eastgate Office x 8 
 
387 12/9/2011 Southmead Hospital – Road Repair works 
 
388 12/9/2011 Percy Philips Ward Plantroom Refurbishment at 

Southmead Hospital 
 
389 29/9/2011 Road repair works at Southmead 
 
390 21/10/2011 Unit 8 & 9 Eastgate Centre Conversion Works, 

Articles of Agreement x 2  
 
391 2/11/2011 Lease of part of Long Cross Specialist Children’s 

Centre for CCHP 
 
392 1/12/2011 Sale of Orchard View for £495, 000 to Colston 

Trustees Ltd 
 
393 5/4/2012 Lease of parts of L&R building to the Renal 

Association  
 
394 18/4/2012 South Gloucester Community Services Contract 

Variation x2 
 
Prepared by:  Sue Lewis, PA to Chairman & Chief Executive 
 
Presented by:  Ruth Brunt, Chief Executive 
 
May 2012 
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